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County /,. Z-r /7

Office of Purchasing
Staff Summary A-02-2017

Subject : IAS/Adapt Assessment System Software Date:
Licenses and Support/Maintenance January 06, 2017
(RQIT 17000003, ROQIT17000005)
Department: Vendor Name:
Office of Purchasing Tyler Technologies
Department Head Name: Contract Number
01,_, Eric Naughton A-02-2017
De ent Head Signat Contract Manager Name
m / /]% %} % Timothy Funaro
Jleier] ST

Proposed Legfslative Action Internal Approvals
To Date | Approval | Info | Other Date & Approval | Date & Approval
Init. Init.
Assgn Dept. Head Counsel to
Comin C.E.
Rules Budget County Atty.
Comm i %27/:.;\@ i
Full Leg Deputy County Exec.
C.E.

Narrative

Purpose: To authorize and award a purchase order for IAS/Adapt Assessment System software licenses
and support/maintenance for the Nassau County Department of Information and Technology.

Discussion: This request is a sole source purchase; Tyler Technologies’ IAS World system is a highly
specialized computer software solution that contains software coding, processes and trade secrets that are
proprietary to Tyler Technologies. Tyler Technologies is the only vendor with the necessary knowledge,
skills and authority to provide the IAS World support to Nassau County. The maintenance agreement
periods are 1/1/2016 to 12/31/2016 (RQIT17C0C003) and 1/1/2017 to 12/31/2017 (RQIT17000005).

Impact on Funding: A purchase order in the amount of One Millon Fifty-Four Thousand Nine Hundred
Ninety-Five Dollars ($1,054,995.) from General Funds.

Recommendation: Office of Purchasing recommends an award be given to Tyler Technologies as the sole
source for this purchase.




COUNTY OF NASSAU

INTER — DEPARTMENTAL MEMO

TO: CLERK OF THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE A-02-2017

FROM: ERIC NAUGHTON, DEPUTY COUNTY EXECUTIVE-FINANCE
DATE:  JANUARY 18,2017

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION-NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION AND
TECHNOLOGY

THIS RESOLUTION IS RECOMMENDED BY THE DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF PURCHASING TO
AUTHORIZE AN AWARD AND TO EXECUTE A PURCHASE ORDER IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE
MILLION FIFTY-FOUR THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED NINETY-FIVE DOLLARS ($1,054,995.00)
ON BEHALF OF NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION AND TECHNOLOGY
TO TYLER TECHNOLOGIES TFOR IAS / ADAPT ASSESSMENT SYSTEM SOFTWARE
LICENSES AND SUPPORT / MAINTENANCE FOR NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF
INFORMATION AND TECHNOLOGY.,

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED DOCUMENT ATTACHED HERETO IS FORWARDED FOR YOUR
REVIEW AND APPROVAL AND SUBSEQUENT TRANSMITTAL TO THE RULES COMMITTEE

FOR INCLUSION IN ITS AGENDA, /%% %/

// ERIC NAUGHTON =

DEPUTY COUNTY EXECUTIVE-FINANCE

MS: br
ENCL: (1) STAFF SUMMARY
(2) DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
(3) RESOLUTION
{4) SOLE SOURCE BOCUMENTS
{(5) QUOTATION
(6) CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
(7 POLITICAL CONTRIBUTION FORM




RULES RESOLUTION 2017

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF NASSAU COUNTY OFFICE OF
PURCHASING TO AWARD AND EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF
NASSAU ACTING ON BEHALF OF NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND TYLER TECHNOLOGIES.

WHEREAS, the Director is representing to the Rules Committee that the firm, TYLER

TECHNOLOGIES is a sole source provider and meets all specifications for the product described in the

said contract as determined by the Director of the Office of Purchasing.

RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislature authorizes the Director,

Office of Purchasing to award and execute the said Purchase Order with TYLER TECHNOLOGIES.




POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions
purstiant to the New York State Election Law in (a) the period beglnning April 1, 2016 and
ending on the date of this disclesure, or (b), beginning April 1, 2018, the perlod beginning two
years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this disclosure, to the
campalgn committees of any of tho following Nassau County elected officlals or to the campaign
committees of any candldates for any of the followlng Nassau County elected offices: the County
Faceoutive, the County Clerk, the Comptroller, the Distriet Attorney, of any County Legislator?
If yes, to what campaign commiltes?

No

2, VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or
Vendor authorized as a glgnatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts,

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing
statements and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate,

The undersigried further certifies and affiyms that the contributlon(s) to the campaign committees
|dentified above were made frealy and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmental
benefit or in exchange for any beneflt or remuneration,

Vendor:_ Tyler Teghnoloples, ihe,

Dated:___11/152016____ Signed:A@SM f m

Print Name: Guos Tenhundfeld

Title:  Inside Sales Managsr

Rev, 3-2016




PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who
hold a ten percent (10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or
printed in ink. If you need more space to answer any question, make as many photocopies of
the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the guestionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY, FAILURE TO
SUBMIT A COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL

WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR
AWARD

1. Princlpal Name MQV’ k Adran /‘)’a wdiins

Date of birtn R

City/state/zip
Business address S 101 Tennyson FEwy
Citylstatefzlp _Plene I x 7502«
Telephone & 772 ~ 7? 3- 3770

Other present address{es)
City/state/zip
Telephone

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached -

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)
President / f{ Treasurer / /
Chairman of Board f / Shareholder / /
Chief Exec. Officer ! ! Secretary / !
Chief Financial Officer / Partner / /

@;@7'/!;3915 I

(Cther)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES v/ NO _ If Yes, provide details. of
Lessy the, 10770

4.  Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any
other type of contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business
submitting the questionnaire? YES ___ NO ;/_ If Yes, provide details.

3

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or not-
for-profit organization other than the one submitting the questionnaire? YES ___ NO
if Yes, provide details,

Rev. 3-2016



6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in
Section 5 in the past 3 years while you were a principal owner or officer? YES __ NO _V/
If Yes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answer [s required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by
operatlon of law, or as a result of any action taken by a government agency.

Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy
the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit
organizations listed in Section 5 in which you have been a principal owner or officer:

d.

Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that
agency‘? /
YES NO Ef“Yes provide details for each sych instance.

Besn decl d in defauit and/or terminated fcgr cay on any contract, and/or had any
contracts cénqelled for cause? YES _ if Yes, provide details for each
such mstance.,r, :

Been der.ned the award of a contrac’g;‘,and!or the opportunity to bid on a contract,
including’-but not limited to, failure t&meet pre-qualification standards? YES __
NO _v  If Yes, provide detalls for each such instance.

Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it;
and/or is any action pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such
business’s ability to bid or propose on contract? YES _____ NO If Yes, provide
details for each such instance, -~

5.

8. Have any ofthe businesses or organizations listed in rééponse to Question 5 filed a
bankruptcy petition and/or been the subject of involuntary bankruptey proceedings during
the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the last 7 year period, been in a state of
bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 years ago and/or is
any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever
inttiated? If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed respanse to all

questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and
attach it to the guestionnaire.)

a)

bj

c)

d)

Is there any felony charge pending against you? YES ___ NO _-’_/_ If Yes, provide
detalls for each such charge.

Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you? YES NO _{
Yes, provide details for each such chérge.

Is there any administrative charge pending against you? YES NO ;{ If
Yes, provide details for each such charge.

In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or
of any other crims, an element of which relates to truthfu!nese/ the underlying facts
of which related to the conduct of business? YES If Yes, provide
details for each such conviction,

Rev. 3-2016



8.

10.

1.

12.

e} Inthe past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a
misdemeanor?

YES__ NO _‘/ if Yes, provide detalls for each such conviction.

f) Inthe past b years, have you been fo‘L}nﬁl in violation of any administrative or

statutory charges? YES NO _¥  If Yes, provide details for each such
occurrence.

In addition to the Information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5
years, have you been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust
investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the
subject of an investigation where such investigation was related to activities performed at,
for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed in

response to Question 57 YES NQ _Y If Yes, provide details for each such
investigation.

In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization
listed in response to Question &, been the subject of a criminat investigation andfor a civil
anti-trust investigation and/or any other type of investigation by any govermnment agency,
including but not limited to federal, state, and |lecal regulatory agencies while you were a

principal owner or officer? YES NO ¥ |f Yes; provide details for each such
investigation,

In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in
rasponse to Question 5 had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative
proceedings with respect to any professional license held? YES __ NO IfYes,
provide detalls for each such instance.

For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any
applicable federzl, state or focal taxes or other ?;sessed charges, including but not timited
fo water and sewer charges? YES NO b If Yes, provide details for each such
year.

Rev. 3-2016



CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE
SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT
BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE
FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

I, /V( i/ } HAW )C. -3 , being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all
the items contained in the foregoing pages of this questlonnaire and the following pages of
attachments; that | supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my
knowledge, Information and belief, that | will notify the County in writing of any change in
clrcumstances occurring after the submission of this questionnaire and before the execution of
the contract; and that alf information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge,
informatian and belief. | understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this

quesflonnaire as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business
entity.

5t
Sworn to before me this t? day of Démmbw 201\

’} b
-~ f) [ i—-——u . e ™
j S SOPHIA L. THOMAS
Pt : Az 3":5‘#"‘*;&% Notary Public, State of Texas
Notary Public 5l P /32 comm. Explres 06-28-2018
%’,‘,3;,,*‘*.;«“ Nolaty ID 120488736
T AT P T "

Tyle, Techaolesies

Name of submitting business

/V{afk HOC«UL-;‘S

Print name

Signature

Se. Uice Presidest of Opca;f';oﬂs
Title

e, , 2e/(C

Date

Rev, 3-2016



PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any Individuals who
hold a ten percent (10%) or greater ownershlp interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or
printed In Ink. If you need more space fo answer any question, make as many photocoples of
the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach tham to the guestionnairs,

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY, FAILURE TO
SUBMIT A COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL
WIiLL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE AND [T WILL NOT B8E CONSIDERED FOR
AWARD
1. Principal Name -3 o 3 -__,\\'LOL“’ ,6 f
Date of birth '
Home address
City/state/zip__ ] - e
Business address On¢: Tyler Drive
City/statefzip \{arm owhn , ME 04090
Telephone (20%F) 132 ~ 2260
Other present address(es)
Clty/state/zlp
Telephone

List of other addressas and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President __ 77/ |/ 0% Treasurer___ /1 Chief Opx ahng
Chairman of Board _t /| /11 Shareholder___ (1 04ResC

Chief Exec. Officer _F_/_\_/ 04 Secretary /1 Jul 2005 - ko
Chief Financial Officer |/ Partner__{ __/___ Zov4

Vice Presidant / / / !
(Oth President o MWS TAA5-Jul 2004
er)” | )
Ditector Bowd v Direchs o 2002 -present”
3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitling the questionnaire?
YES K NO ___ if Yes, provide detalls. See  oddndmach

4, Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any
other type of contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business
submitting the questionnaire? YES ___ NO If Yes, provide detalls.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or not-
for-profit organization other than the one submitting the questionnaire? YES ,X_ NO -
If Yes, provide details.

Hﬂr‘ch{ Boat ( boat Yard 4 redBurant )

215 ey it Roond

Fatmadth, ME - 04107 Rev. 3-2016
(6 - Owig wa e wif€ (e becce Moy



6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed [n
Section 5 in the past 3 years while you weare a principal owner or officer? YES __ NO
If Yes, provide detalls,

NOTE: An affirmative answer s required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by
operation of law, or as a result of any action taken by a gavernment agency.

Provide a detalled response to all questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy
tha appropriate page and atlach it to the questionnalre,

7. inthe past (5) years, have you and/or any affillated businesses ar not-for-profit
organizations listed in Section & In which you have been a principal owner or officer:

a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering Into contracts with that
agency?
YES . NO ?< If Yes, provide detalls for each such instance.
W - L gee e W . )

M

b, Been declaféd in default and/or terminated for ca)tﬁae_qn any contract, andfor had any
contracts cancelled for cause? YES NO A~ if Yes, provide details for each
such instance.

¢. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract,
including, but not limited to, fallure to meet pre-gqualification standards? YES ___
NOX__ if Yes, provide details for each such instance,

d. Been suspended by any governmant agency from antering into any contract with it;
andfor is any action pending thal could formally debar or otherwise affect such
business's ability to bid or propose on contract? YES NO _}g If Yes, provide
details for each such inst?nce.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response lo Question 5 filed &
bankruptey petition andfor been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy’?proceed!ngs during
the past 7 years, éndlor for any portion of the tast 7 year period, been in a state of
bankruptey as & result of bankruptcy proceedings iniiated more than 7 years ago andfor is
any such business now the subjact of any panding bankruptcy proceedings, whenaver
inltiated? If 'Yes", pravide details for each such instance, (Provide a detailed response (o all
questions chacked "YES". If you need mote space, photocopy the appropriale page and
attach it to the questionnalire.)

a) |s there any felony charge pending against you? YES __ NO __lc_ If Yes, provide
details for each such charge.

b} s there any misdemeanar charge pending against yau? YES NO _}_(‘__ if
Yes, provide details for each such charge.

¢} Is there any adminisirative charge pending against you? YES NO _}6__ If
Yes, provide details for each such charge.

d) Inthe past 10 years, have you been convictad, aRter trial or by plea, of any felony, or
of any other crime, an eiement of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts
of which related {o the conduct of business? YES __ NO _XL if Yes, provide
details for each such conviction.

Rev. 3-2016



9.

10.

1.

12.

e} in the past 5 years, have you been convicled, after trial or by plea, of a
misdemeanor?
YES ___ NO f‘__, If Yes, provide details for each such conviction.

f) Inthe past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or
statutory charges? YES NO If Yes, provide details for each such
gcourmrence.,

In addition to the Information provided In response to the previous questions, in the past 5
years, have you been the subject of a criminal Investigation and/or a civil anti-trust
investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the
subject of an investigation where such Investigation was related to activities performed at,
for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed in

rasponse to Question 57 YES NO if Yes, provide details for each such
investigation.
In addition to the Information provided, in the past 6 years has any business or organization

listed in response to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation andfor a civll
anti-trust investigation and/or any other type of investigation by any government agency,
Including but not limited o federal, state, and local regulatory agencies while you were a

principal owner or officer? YES NO } i Yes, provide detalls for each such
investigation.
Inthe past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in

response to Question 5 had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or adminisirative
proceadings with respect to any professlonal license heid? YES NQ if Yos,
provide details for each such instance,

Far the past & tax years, have you falled to file any required tax returns or falled to pay any
applicable federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited
to water and sewer charges? YES NO _X, If Yes, provide detalls for each such
year.

Rev, 3-2016
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CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE
SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT
BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE
FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES,

f, J D S. Moye )"3 (. , being duly sworn, slate that | have read and understand all
the items contained In the foragoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of
attachments; that | supplied full and complete answers ta @ach item therein to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief; that | will notify the County In writing of any change in
circumstances oceurring after the submission of this questionnaire and before the execution of
the contract; and that all information supplied by ma is true to the best of my knowledga,
information and belief. | understand that the County will rely on the Information supplied in this
questionnaire as additional inducement to enter Into a contract with the submitting business
entity.

e
Swomn to before me this <8day of feOruary 20,7

GAYLE M, SCHMID
NOTARY PusLig 4
State of Maing

. My Commission Ex
/iﬂ 4 W Mwﬂf Novembor 3, 2051
ey .

Notary Pdblic

Tylee Tednolosaes  lne.

Name of submitting bUsiness

John & Mary Q“w

2V

Signature” /
Yhaie man and Chiek Grecative. DHACY

Title )
Z 29, / 7

Date

Rev. 3-2016



[N FE16°C LI0TRUTF JAL-di 510 & Lmanbauoy coqek-anueutyydiy

oo S6nG

1SHYEM 6] PPl

ST W ASUBIND 5011d SUNL |88 SSAN - 3EAN
{(1AL) ouy ‘se1fojouysal salk]
o N TR s

21591 1|95, 01 SUN 3Yj S MOU SAPS £gn
ueyny 5AEPOL

(%S9l 210
208
1BAES

(%2090} 02°L
08'DPZL
BIoDy

{%iv'0)z20
985
Hink:iel:Vin]

{% £1°0°) ¥8'6
09°608°5
bepsey

(% ZoG) Zvy-
¥ 208°0Z
9% MoQ

% 21°0°) 6079
91°6¥EZ
565 498

SUHL {4 Ul 95010 SISe &)
ofcod A
218USBI0Z APy

Lot

FOUBML] DR A - UOUSREy “du] ‘STO[oUya0 ) 341 % 211~ §L°1- 06°651 TAL



{#4d FE1S°E L1009 1T 1AL =dixaplon A La0ahanoarooyea aa e iy

S0LZ6R'8L% LS L 810 '0€ 920 085255 pund snuep
0Z8'T62'801L %44 L 9302 ‘62 Un 295'6F9 pund xapuj OB Y2015 oL pienbusy,
LPEL8S 111 %8S L 102 ‘62 095 Ov9'LS9 413 deopipl dBS 8100 SRS
Z8E'285'021 %Z6'L 9L0Z ‘62 d98 8T H0L pung xapu| de-jpws pienbuep
Z09P00'BLL%EE L OLOZ OEINT 0DD'QS. pund uusugney| pareiapa4
GO6'EE6'Z.L %087 9L0E 67 995166600’ L pUnd Auedwog ews pawabeuey |eydel) umoig
O¥2'S0S'COZHEEE  QLOZ ‘6 UNTZEL0ET'L pund SiS2Uss UBULDg 7 JaBiagnan

anigp IR %pouoday a1eQ Se1Byg FETTEY

siepjoH puns jemny dol

CLZ'008°68%16°L PLOZ 00 080 6%i'004 o771 'SI0SiADY DS
651'619'001 %26 9L0Z '0E 530 ¥9LV0L 71 si1supled abpugyocig
LZTEZFOLL%RETE 9LOZ '0£ 380 Q9F'Slg DT wewsbeuejy pyde) asenbg ssuwiy
vLY JZ9811 %622 B10Z 0T 280 £08'288 UoNR10dIon 984S 21815
919 Z8] /Pl %ER'Z D10E OE 290009°580° L VN fuedwlay) 1snd] JBUOHMiSU) Yoo 1oe|g
PPRGLLI6) %ADE DI0Z 0 D2Q0E8°THE'L SIOSIADY PUnd YooyoRlg
2L0'884 261 %6S'E  9L0F OE 920066 6FE'L D77 LNSWDODYNYN TVLIGYD SNNYT
BEL'PEL'EEZ%EG ¥ DLDZ '0F 380r98'BL0'E 071 'dnoig usuuag sebiagnap
296' /6T ZIE%L6'S OL0Z 'DE 28002 L8LE ou| uswabeuew [eyde) umoig
BOF'29'658%89'0 9102 '0E BOrLE'6IST {ay1) "ou| "drotg pienbuep

anjep IO %panoday |Sypg SAIBYS iaplay

SiapioH [eucnnisu; dog
SL0Z ge iy L0 SONYE WYHYYD
SL0Z L1 AON 045°FE W QIVNOQ NIVLIYHE
9107 'SL 085 542'26 M NYIdg I3 THW
QLOZ '0£ 995 EGSED  MP NNAT H IHOCKH
9107 ‘51 d83066'61Z  H NILSNG IT8N0OmM
910Z 'Z uaf 6988 MM HIHLTT ONiM
§10Z "0g 055516'208 W NHOP NYIWYEA
9L0Z Z d9SiEy' LI Il S NHO Jdvii
pavodey sreg S84BYg IWe
{¥ pue ¢ Sullod) sispjoy Juadidl
saueYyg BUIPIOH SUCRMASU! 16 JAGUINYNY Vi
SIHUM) PHNd BN ¥ [PLORRSY] 4G FieH 1801 10 % %5 26
SI3UM) PUN- [EIINY 3 [eUOHMASU] AT PISH SSIBUS 0 % %0F E5
SHUMO %G PUB JOPSU 1Y AG DISH SBIBYS %P2
umopyeasg
asn u Husund
siapjoH solew

| |

s1apjoH Joley

SleABUY

18] 12DUCISIH

S53pIoH

SUCHED

SjBIDUBUIY

Bluoid

SOHSNRIS

SUDNEEIDAUCD

Arewng
DNSSEMTESWINKHNYNILN
yojem osje adosd

‘uado 1IBMNEBR 1S3 WdLSE jo sy
(% 21'1-) 62'L-06'ESL

anuTnl| 004 - ounu ) ‘Sug ‘SarBolowysa] 1814 1o £1T1- £1- 06TES1 TTAL




{Wd PP 18¢ L10201/T) 1AL ~dismplo TALmanh oo aoyedaausy rdny

3oUBUE DOYEA MOHCY
SULBLSPY JNQ 1ROGYASEAILS
sucysabbngdiapiswneosl Bieg

1
i siayoig ¥o0ig aJedwos
H

LLGUTEZO%EGTL 9107 6 uRT  BOZ'SLE pund X8puj 1evpeyy papueixs psentues
6YF'200'PO%e0’ L GL0T 62998 LEL'peE Isnai 413 Q0F dep P J9S BadS
QLL'9vE'89%B0°L 9107 ‘6T 483 8p1'S6E pund xapl) yimors ded-jews penbuen

ADURUL OOYTA - UOUNUO) T SHR0jouYR] ALE Do T S2T 1 06'EEL AL



PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who
hold a ten percent (10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer, Answers typewritten or
printed in ink, If you need more space 1o answer any question, make as many photocopies of
the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAI AREFULLY AND COMPLETELY, FAILURE TQ
SUBMIT A COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL
WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE AND (T WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR
AWARD

1. Principal Name
Date of birth
Home address
City/state/zip I R
Business address 5101 Ternysen Peckusand
City/state/zip P lonn . Ty F&072.4
Telephone (a{’-{—"&-> 5~ 3330
Cther present address(es)
Clty/state/zip
Telephone
List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

Whobee N

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President _t /_| /13~ Treasurer l__ 4
Chairman of Board / ! Shareholder / /

Chief Exec. Officer i1 Secretary \Q_/_| [ 100D

Chief Financial Officer ! / Partner / /

Vice President 10 / | / 2000 v g2/ t 200§
AW IRV dent 0% /2008 - 12-]20ib0
(Other) € X tuive \Jac.a?qts:
Gepead Coumiel 04 /199¢ — 12 )2010
3. Do you have an equity inferest In the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES Y NO___ IfYes, provide details. S ee artncia A

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any
olher type of contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business
submitting the questionnaire? YES ___ NO Y If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal ownar or officer of any business or not-
for-profit organization other than the one submitting the questionnaire? YES ___ NO ,25_;
If Yes, provide details,
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6. Has any governmental entity awarded any confracts to a business or organization listed in
Section 5 in the past 3 years while you were a principal owner or officer? YES ___ NO
If Yes, provide details,

NOTE: An affirmative answer Is required below whather the sanction arose automatically, by
operation of law, or as a resuit of any action taken by a government agency.

Provide a detailed response to alt questions checked "YES®, If you need more space, photocopy
the appropriate page and attach it {o the questionnaire,

7. In the pasl (5} years, have you: and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit
organizations listed in Section 5 in which you have been a principal owner ar officer:

a,

Been debarred by any government agency from entaring into contracts with thal
agency? 5;
YES _ - NO X fYes, provide detag,; for each such instance,

Been declare m default andfor tarminated for cause on any contract, andfor had any
contracls cancelled for cause? YES _"__ NO _K_ If Yes, provide detalls for each
such instance. :

8een denied the award of a contract and/or the oppertunity to bid on a contract,
including, but not limited to, fallure to mest pre-qualification standards? YES
NO J_S_ If Yes, provide details for each such instance.

Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it;
and/or is any action pending that could formally debar or otherwisg,affect such
business’s ability to bid or propose on contract? YES ___ NOD it Yes, provide
details for each such instance.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a
bankruptcy petition andfor been the subject of involuntary bankruptey proceedings during
the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the last 7 year period, been in a state of
bankruptcy as a result of bankruptoy proceedings initiated more than 7 years ago and/for is
any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceadings, whanever
initiated? If 'Yes', pravide details for each such instance, (Provide a detailed response to all
questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and
attach it to the questionnaire.)

a)

b}

<)

ls there any felony charge pending against you? YES ___ NO _X_n if Yes, provide
detalls for each such charge,

|2 there any misdemeanor charge pending against you? YES NO _X_ If
Yes, provide details for each such charge,
NO f_ If

Is there any adminlstrative charge pending against you? YES
Yas, provide details for each such charge.

In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after irial or by plea, of any felony, or
of any other criine, an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts
of which related to the conduct of business? YES ___ NO If Yes, provida
details for each such conviction.
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9.

10.

1.

12,

€} in the past & years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a
misdemeanor?
YES __ NO ~ZS_ If Yes, provide details for each such conviction,

f) Inthe past & yaars, have you been foynd in violation of any administrative or
statutory charges? YES NQ If Yes, provide details for each such
ouGHIrence.,

In addition io the information provided In response to the previous questions, In the past 5
years, have you been the subject of a criminal investigation andfor a civil anti-trust
investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or investigative agency andfor the
subject of an investigation where such investigation was related to activities performed at,
for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed in
response to Question §7 YES ___ NO L If Yes, provide detalls for each such
investigation.

i addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization
listed in response to Quastian &, been the subject of 2 criminal investigation andfor a civil
anti-trust investigation and/or any other type of investigation by any government agency,
including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory agencles whils you were a
principal owner or officar? YES NQ If Yes; provide details for each such
invastigation.

In the past § years, have you or this business, or any other affilialed business listed in
rasponse 1o Question 5 had any sanclion imposed as & result of judicial or agdministrative
proceedings with respect lo any professional license held? YES _~ NO If Yes;
provide detalls for each such instance.

For the past b tax years, have you falled to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any
applicable federal, state or tocal taxes or olher gssessed charges, including but not limited
to water and sewer charges? YES NO If Yes, provide detalls for each such
year.
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CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE
SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT
BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE
FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES,

. L\H\ﬂ Moore , Jo. , being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all
the items contalned in the foregoing pages of this questionnalre and the following pages of
attachments; that | supplied full and complete answars to each item therein to the best of my
knowledge, information and belisf, that | wilt notify the Gounty In writing of any change in
circumstances occurring after the submission of this questionnaire and before the exscution of
the contract; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief, | understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this
questionnaire as additional inducemant to anter into a contract with the submitting business
entity,

#
Sworn lo before me this /7 day of EW 200+

ﬂw"sz

Notary Public ‘ ' 3
K/? DS ,é-ac/aw‘ng 6 /1 /307

Tler Techpologies ine.
Narhe of submitting businiss

Lym\ MDD(‘,E._ S

§1gnaturé =

? rt‘£\ dent
Title

‘AT A .
Date
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[ Insider Transactions| | insider Roster |
Major Holders
Currency in USD

Breakdown
4. 24% Shares Held by All Insider and 5% Owners

§3740% % of Shares Held by Institutional & Matual Fund Owners

97.54% % of Float Held _u< Institutional & Mutual Fund Owners

271 Number of Instituions Holding Shares

Direct Holders {(Forms 3 and 4)
o Name SharesDate Reporied
MARR JOAN § ,z» wt.?ﬂ m&ﬂmmu 2. 2016

YEAMAN JOHN M 307,9158ep 30, 2016

KINGLUTHER JR 68,369 Jun 2, 2016
WOMBLE DUSTINR_ 215.850Sep 15, 2016
MOORE H LYNN JR 62,752 Sep 30, 2016
MILLER BRIAN K 52,775 Sep 15. 2016

BRATTAIN DONALD R 14,570 Nov 17, 2015

GRAHAMBRUCE 307 Jul 22,2015
ﬁcﬁ Institutional Holders

Holder Shares Date Reported% Out  Value

Vanguard Group, Inc. (The) 2,518 314Dec 30, 2016 6.88%359,682 469
Brown Capital Management, Inc. 2.187 420Dec 30, 2016 5.97%312.257 062
Neuberger Barman Group, LLC ) 1.679,864Dec 30, 2016 4.58%239,834,189
JANUS CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (€~ 1.348 950Dec 30, 2016 3.60% 192,738,077
BlackRock Fund Advisors 1,347 830Dec 30, 2016 3.67% 191,715,844
BlackRock institutional Trust Company, N.A 1,035.600Dec 30, 2816 2.83% 147,852,615
State Street Corporation 837,903 Dec 30, 2016 2.90%118.627 414
Times Sguare Capilal Management, LLC 815,460 Dec 30, 2016 2 23% 116,423 227
Stockbridge Pariners 1LC 704,754 Dec 30, 2018 1.92%100,619,158
S0 Advisors, LLG 700149 Dec 30, 2016 1.91%88,960,275
Top Mutual Fund Holders

Holder Shares Date Reported% Out  Val
Neuberger & Berman Genesis Fund T 71,220.7320n 28, 2076 3.33%203 508,240
Brown Capital Management Small Company Fund1,009,951Sep 20, 20168 2.76% 172,533,905
Federated Kaufmann Fund 730,000 Jul 302016 1.69%116,004.602
Vanguard Small-Cap index Fund 704,248 Sep 26, 2046 1609 120588 382
iShares Core S&P Midcap ETF 651.646 Sep 29, 2016  1.78%111,581,341
Vanguard Total Stogk Marke! Index Fund 545588 Jun 20, 3048 1.77% 108,292,820
Janus Fund_ 552586 Dec 30. 2036 1.51%78,892 705

hetpirfinance vahno com/quoteT Y L holders?p=TYL{2/1&72017 3.51 44 PM])



TYL 13390 -1.75 -1.12 % : Tyler Technelogics, Inc, Conunon - Yahoo Finance

Yanguard Smail-Cap Growth index Fund 399,148 Sep 20. 2016 1.09%568,346, 110
SEDR S&F Mid Cap 400 ETF Trust L 374,131 Sep 23, 2016 1.02%64,062,449
Vanguard Extended Market Index Fund 373,269 Jun 28, 2016 1.02%62,227.677

Compare Slock Brokers |
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Business History Form

The confract shall be awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the discretion of the County,
taking into consideration the raliabliity of the proposer and the capacity of the proposer to

perform the services requlred by the County, offers the best value to the County and who will
best promote the public Interest, :

In addition to the submission of proposa]s, each proposer shall complete and submit this
questionnaire, The questionnaire shall be filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by
an authorized representative of the firm, corporation or partnership submitting the Proposal.

NOTE: All questions require a response, even If response Is “none” or “not-applicabie.”
No blanks,

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING
QUESTIONS).

Date: I&J'lk? l'é?t?l b
1) Proposer’s Legal Name: T\Jl@?‘r@ﬂg\mlzﬁijag,ﬁwmj ¢je
¥ - \ mo | ] ‘ MW

List all other business addresses used within {ast five years: - Hs4S C)\
344 ‘.(\;e.?;‘nggr Boad |, Dayten 0K NS0

3) Malling Address (if different):;

Phone ;A - B0 - 259

Does the business own or rent s facliities? (W™

2} Address of Place of Business:

4) Dun and Bradstrest number: _,r:)ui « 1 OB Q24 3
5) Federal LD.Number: "D « 230,34 o

6) The-propoger Is a (check one): Sole Propristorghip Partnership

275 Other (Describe)

7) Does this business share office spacs, staff, or equipment expenses with any other
business?

‘Yes___ No If Yes, please provide details;

8) Does this businoss control one or more other businesses? Yes __ Ne XX IfYes, ploase
provide detalls:
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9) Does this business have one or more affillates, andloris it a subsldiary of, or controlled by,
any other buslness? Yes ___ No 3¢ If Yes, provide details.

10) Has the proposer aver had & bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau
County or any other government entity terminated? Yes — No ﬁ If Yes, state the
name of bonding agency, (if a bond), dats, amount of bond and reason for such cancellation
or forfeiture: or details regarding the termination (if a conract).

11) Has the proposer, duri'ng the past seven years, been declared bankrupt? Yes No™¢
If Yes, state date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/ar any
affiliated business, been the subject of a criminal investigation andfor a eivil anti-trust
investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or investigative agenoy? And/ar, in
the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officar of any affiliated business been the subject of
a criminal investigation and/or a clivil anti-trust investigation by.any federal, state or local
prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was related to activities
performed at, for, or on behalf of an affiliated business.

‘Yes __ No If Yas, provide detalls far each such Investigation.

13} In the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any
affillated business been the subject of an Investigation by any government agency, including
but not imited to federal, state and local regulatory agencies? Andfor, In the past 5 years,
has any owner and/or officer of an afflilated business been the subject of an investigatlon by
any government agancy, including but not limited to federal, state and loca! regutatory
agencles, for matters pertaining to that individual's position at or relationship to an affifated
business. Yes ___ No If Yes, provide detalls for each such Investigation.

14)Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial emplayee of this business
had, sither before or during such persen's employment, or since such employment if the
charges pertalned to evants that allegedly occurred during the time of employment by the
submitiing business, and allegedly related to the conduct of that business:

a) Any felony charge pending? Yes ___ No_>& If Yes, provide detalls for
each such charge.

b) Any misdemsanor charge pending? Yes__ No ﬁ If Yes, provide details
for each such charge.

¢} In the past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony
and/or any other crime, an element of which relates to truthfulness or the
underlying facts of which related to the conduct of business? Yes . No _'&_
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If Yes, provide details for each such conviction

d) Inthe past 5 yaars, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
Yes __ No _& If Yes, provide details for each such conviction.

e) Inthe past 5 years, been found in violation of any administrative, statutory, or

regulatory provisions? Yes __ No _B&  If Yes, provide details for each such
ocouiTence.

15)In the past (5) years, has this business or any of lts owners or officers, or any other affillated
business had any sanction Imposed as a result of Judicial or administrative proceedings with

respect to any professlonal license held? Yes No IX.; If Yes, provide detalls for
each such Instance,

16) For the past (5) tax yaars, has this business falled to file any reguired tax refurns or fallad to
pay any applicable federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not
limfted to water and sewer charges? Yes _ No pl_  If Yes, provide detalls for each
such year. Provide a defalied response to all questions checked 'YES', If you need more

space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaira.

Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES™, If you need maore space,
photocopy the appropriate page and attach It to the quesfionnaire.

17) Conflict of Interest:

a}

Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: if no

confllcts exist, please expressly state “No conflict exists.”

b)

e, o
e Ty Code ok Bustates Ehics 1 okbachied Jo-dnis Blsine 5

(i} Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has
that may creats a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in
acting on behalf of Nassau County,

No Confiied extsts

(i) Any family refationship that any employee of your firm has with any County
public servant that may create a conflict of Interest or the appearance of a conflict
of interest In acting pp behalf of Nassau County.

AR mﬂ VEY ex(sNS

(iil) Any other matter that your firm belleves may creats a conflict of Interest or
the appearance of a,conflict of interast In acting on behalf of Nassau County.
Mo C,nf\& =S

k)

Wk exl

Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the

County that a gonflict of intarest would not exist for your firm in the future.
ALK, Cever Yo luleds (ede b Business Condicd and Blies
Toler empio ke 5, are~nduiden, ot ok Al ok byt

XY %rm ars also tan be«&:w"ﬁ\ ock Rev. 3-2016

cnines stors.deylentedn womy feofilesfEavestor/
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A. Include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer's professional qualifications,

demonstrating extensive experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and
the results of these experiences, must be identified.

Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include:
)  Date of formation; L?"ﬂ& 2 ok Formlo-KY)

) Name, addresses, and position of all persons having a financial interest in the (336 mgv PN
company, including shargholders, members, general or limited pariner; P

JUPRT)
iy Name, address and position of all offlcers and directors of the cornpan:\w;m‘sd?t’i i :fh‘“i“g Ff;g;ﬂm )
iv) State of Incomporation (if applicable); (P&%&al of Form o -'V?)

; £ Formio- )
v)  The number of employees In the firm; { pasg \\ © "’
vi}  Annual revenue of firm; (,,@ou.‘je 1B of Formio- i Re
vii) Summary of relevant accomplishments Lpa.%e lpof Form ln—k'f) ) Anavial Regey

viif) Copies of ali state and local licenses and permits. { Hee aﬁ:’!u.thﬁ&)
B. Indicate number of years in business. e MM"\CA

C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the
Proposer's capacity and reliability to perform these services, e adimihn ﬁnm.ﬁ.ﬁl M + -

D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references for whom the Proposer

has provided similar services or who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer's capability to
perform this work.

Company Fa_CL Jenx CPU"""“j_\, \J A _
Contact Person_ YW\C A oupnrd (Soodie ; Direckor gea.\ E;S‘\P&C

Address X.RAL eyl L0 . A Bleuny ?t%{%m’le’ﬁ
Cityistate __ Yooy, \f A 2203% Cerder e 3]

Tolephone (03 — Aav~- $eos
Faxit__ TI0R - Dadk - 4985

E-Mail Address___ iowar & , %Q@;‘g ® Qa.ir'-&&om%n. ﬂo\/
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Company C}\ Er rNoN-: Cﬂwmq ‘OH
Contact Person__ (s, L K\Aﬁ. Fﬁ&:(ﬁ% A‘L& tﬂﬁ'm‘“
Address 1DV [asd Main, .‘S—k—f‘rea%

Clty/State B@ﬂvm.‘ OH  di\o3
Telaphone 0 G i . Pl 1 550
Fax # SL3 =133 ~ sk

E-Mail Address Ve ﬁ.\ E.M @,\) cher Mm-_&:g; my\-\j ohio. ﬁfﬁ\/

Company L aoi C c?u,ﬂ‘\u 'l: l.
Contact Person__AAS Ka-k-hxs D mm\u’\ T M‘ow Aﬁj raser
Address ) AOE *-7 S! C 22 ! lgu ({1 B eﬁ;(“

-a,a 261

City/State _ Tl VA WNWERS L6 ?\m
Telophone 3@ L“’t% ‘O\UR,
Fex # B0 -2 - 1238

E-Mail Address____ K. b ol N leonpa., 59
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CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE N
CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE
SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT

BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE
FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

l, Ande %L«-J@’A\fer’-’r. belfg duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all
the items contained in the foregoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of
attachments; that | supplied full and complete answers to each itermn therein to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief; that [ wifl notify the County in writing of any changa In
clreumstances occurring after the submission of this questionnaire and before the execution of
the contract; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief. | understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this

questionnalre as additlonal inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business
entity.

Swom to before me this F"]d‘w\day of Retemdoer  2\le

' JOEL P, LLOYD

»"" D - Notary Public, State of Malne
NotaVﬁblic ( Ny Commission Expires Nov. 2, 2018

Name of submitting business: hﬂm{ \ &r ""“ﬁ"’e &:,\M\m\ Oﬁt&fm,jﬂa.
By: Pndrea. L. Q&VQK‘“%
Print name ...,
W’T’Mﬂﬁ

Slgnature

Lor perate AHam&j

Ttle

Vo, /1 ol
Date
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Page 1 of 4
COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT’S, CONTRACTOR’S AND VENDOR’S DISCLOSURE FORM

l. Name of the Entity: Tyler Technologies, Ine.

Address: One Tyler Way

City, State and Zip Code: Moraine, OH 45439

2. Entity’s Vendor Identification Number: 752303920-01

3. Type of Business: _ X Public Corp Partnership Joint Venture
Ltd. Liability Co Closely Held Corp Other (specify)
4. List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of

Directors or comparable body, all partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties
of Joint Ventures, and all members and officers of limited liability companies (atiach additional
sheets if necessary):

See Attached

Please note, we do not disclose the addresses of Tyler’s management team.

5. List names and addresses of all sharcholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the
shareholder is not an individual, list the individual shareholdres/partners/members. If a Publicly
held Corporation include a copy of the 10K in lieu of completing this section.

See attached 10K
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6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line
1. above (if none, enter “None”). Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or
subsidiary company that may take part in the performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall

be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not previously disclosed that participate
in the performance of the contract.

None

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matier (i.e., pre-bid,
bid, post-bid, etc.). The term “lobbyist” means any and every person or organization retained,
employed or designated by any client to influence - or promote a matter before - Nassau County,
its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, legislators or committees, including but not
limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning Commission. Such
matters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of
real property subject to County regulation, procurements, or to otherwise engage in lobbying as
the term is defined herein. The term “lobbyist” does not include any officer, director, trustee,
employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging
his or her official duties.

(a) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):

None
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(b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist. See page 4 of 4 for a complete
description of lobbying activities.

N/A

(c) List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (c.g.,
Nassau County, New York State):

N/A

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant,
contractor or Vendor authorized as a signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing
statements and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

(om 16K
Dated:_August 10 2016 Signed: (
>

Print Name; Gus Tephundfeld

Title; Inside Sales Manager
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the
Nassau County Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage,
defeat, or substance of any local legislation or resolution; any determination by the County
Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation or resolution, whether
or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an
elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement
of goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including
by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or
administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or administration of a grant,
loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by the
County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards,
commiissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and
Parks Advisory Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use,
development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, or any agencies,
boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to requests for proposals,
bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the
acquisition or disposition by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license
or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with respect to a franchise,
concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency of
any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate
making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission;
any determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing;

the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any
determination made by an elected county official or an officer or employee of the county to
support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination
made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or
regulation, whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such
rule or regulation has been formally proposed.



CORPORATE OFFICERS
John M, Yeaman

Chairman of the Board

John 8. Marr Jr.

President & Chief Executive Officer
Brian K. Miller

Executive Vice President,

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
L Lyin Moore Jr.

Executive Vice President,

Business Development & General Counsel
Matthew B. Bieri

Chief Information Officer
Samantha B. Crosby

Chief Marketing Officer

Bruce Graham

Chief Strategy Officer

Robert J. Sansone

Chief Human Resources Officer

W. Michael Smith

Chief Accounting Ofticer

Terri Alford

Coanfroller

OPERATIONAL LEADERSHIFP

Enterprise Group

Andrew D. Teed

President, Baterpriss Group and Appraisal & Tax Division
Christepher P, Hepburn

President, ERP & School Division

Pane Womble

President, Local Government Divigion

Justice Grotp

Bret Pixon

President, Justice Group

Jeff Puckett

President, Courts & Justice Division
Greg Sebastian

President, Public Safety Division



For Agoners

A.D) Avi)
Ai) Avii)
Av)

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC

FORM 10-K

(Annual Report)

Filed 02/24/16 for the Period Ending 12/31/15
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PARTI

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Tyler Technologics, Inc. {“Tyler”) is & major provider of integrated information management solutions and services for the public sector, with a focus on local
governments, We partner with clients to make losal government more accessible to the public, more responsive to the needs of citizens and more efficient in its
operations. We have a broad line of software solutions and services to address the information technology (“IT”) needs of major areas of operations for cities,
coumnities, schools and other local government entities. Most of aur clients have our software installed invhouse, For elients who prefer not 1o physically aequire the
software and hardware, most of our softwate applications can be delivered ay software as 1 service (“SaaS™), which utilize the Tyler private cloud. We provide
professional IT services to our clients, including software and hardware installation, data conversion, training and, at times, product modifications. In addition, we
are the nation's largest provider of guisourced property appraisal services for taxing jurlsdictions. We alsa provide continuing client support services fo ensure
product performance end reliability, which provides us with long-term client relationships and a significant base of recurring maintenance revenue. In addition, we
provide electronic document filing solutions {*‘e-filing”}, which simplify the filing and management of court related documents.

'iyléi was founded i 1966. Pror to 1998, we operated as a diversified industrial conglomerate, with operations in various industrial, retail and distribution
businesses, all of which have been divested. In 1997, we embarked on a nwilti-phase growih plan focused on serving the specinlized information menagement needs
of local governments nationwide. We enlered the local governnient 1T iharkel through 1 series of strategic acquisitions in'1998 and 1999

MARKET OVERVIEW

The state and local government market is one of the largest and most decentralized IT markets in the country, consisting of all 50 states, approximately 3,000
coteities, 36,000 oities and towns and 13,900 school districts. This market is also comprised of approximately 37,000 special districts and other agencies, each with
specialized delegated responsibilities and unique information management requiremerts,

Traditionally, local government bodies and agencios perfortmed statesmandated duties, including property assessment, record keeping, road maintenance, Taw
enforcement, administration of election and judicial functions, and the provision of welfare assistance, Today, & host of emerging and urgent isgues are confronting
locat governments, sach of which demands a servies response. These areas include criminal justice and corrections, administration and finance, public safety,
health and human services, planning, regnlatory and maintenance and records and document management. Transfers of responsibility from the federal and state
governments to county and municipal goverments and agencies in these and other areas alse place additional service and financial requirements on these local
government units. In addition, constituents of local govemments ars increasingly demanding improved service and better access to Information from public entities.
Ag s result, local govarnments recognize the increasing value of information management systems and services to, among other things, improve revenue collection,
provide inoreased access to information, and streamline delivery of services to their constituents. Loca! government bodies are now recognizing that “e-
government” is an additional responsibility for commmunity development. From integrated tax systems to integrated civil and criminal justica information systems,
many counties and cities have benefited significantly from the implementation of jurisdiction-wide systems that allow different agencies or govemnment offices to
share data and provide a more comprehensive approach to information management, Many city and ¢ounty governments! agencies also have unique individual
information management requirements, which must be tailored to the specific functions of each particular office.

Many focal governments alse have difficulties attracting and retaining the staff necassary to support their IT functions. As a resalt, they seek to establish long-terms
relationships with reliable providers of high quality IT products and serviees such as Tyler,

Although local gavernmenls generally face budgetary constraints in their operations, their primary revenye sources are usually property taxes, and to a Iesser
extent, utility billings and other fees, which historically tend to be relatively stable. In addition, the acquisition of new technology typically enables local
governments to operate tore efficiently, and often provides & measurable return on investment that justifies the purchase of software and related services.

Gartner, Inc,, aleading information techniology research and advisery company. estimates that stete and local government application and vertical spectfic software
spending will grow from $11.6 billion in 2016 to $14.0 billion in 2019. The professional services and support segments of the market are expected to expand from
$32.4 billian in 2016 to $35.6 billion in 2019. Application and vertical



specific software sales in the pritnary and secondary education segment s of the market is expected o expand from $2.1 billion in 2016 to $2.6 bittion in 2019
while professional services and support are expected to grow from $2.3 billion in 2016 to $2.6 biltion in 2019,
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

We provide 2 comprehensive and flexible sulte of products and services that addresses the information technology needs of cities, counties, schools and sther local
government entitics. We detive our revenues from five primary sources;

. sales of software licenses and royalties;
* subscr iption-based arrangements;

s software services;

. maintenance and support; and

’ appraisal services,

We design, develop, market and support a broed range of sofiware solutions ta serve mission-critical “back-office” functions of local governments. Many of our
sofiware applications include Internet-socessible solutions that atlow for real-time public accesg to a variety of information or that allow the public to transact
business with local governments via the Internet, Qur software solutions and services are generally grouped in six major areas:

" Financial Management and Education;

. Courts and Justice;

= Public Safety:

» Property Appraisal and Tax;

. Planning, Regulatory and Maintenance; and

. Land and Vital Records Management,

Each of our core software systems consists of several fully integrated applications. For clients who acquire software for use in-house, we generally license our
systems under standard perpetual license agreements that provide the client with a fully paid, nonexclusive, nontransferable right to vse the software, In same of the

product areas, such as financial management and education and property appraisal and tax, we offer multiple sotutions designed o meet the needs of different sized
governments,

We also offer SaaS arrangements, which utilize the Tyler private cloud, for clients who do net wish to maintain, update and operate these systems or to male up-
front capital expenditures to implerment these advanced technologies. For these clients, we deliver our software using the SaaS model — the software and client
data are hosted at our data centers or af third-pariy locations, and elients typically sign multi-year contracts for these subscription-baged services,

Histerically, we have had a greater proportion of our annual revenues in the second half of our fiscal year duc to governmental budget and spending cycles and the
timing of system implementations for clients desiring to “go live™ at the beginning of the calendar year,



A description of our sultes of products and servic es follows:
Software Liconses
Financial Management aid Education

Our financial management and education solutions are enlerprise resovree planning systems for local governments, which integrate information across all facets of
a client organization, Our {inancial managesment solutions inglude modular fund accounting systems that can be tailored to meet the needs of virtually any
government agenoy or not-for-profit entity. Our financial menagement systems include modules for general ledger, budget preparation, fixed assels, requisitions,
purchase erders, bid management, accounts payable, contract management, accounts receivable, investment management, inventory control, project and grant
accounting, work orders, job costing, (FASB reporting, payroll and humen resources. All of our financial management systems are intended 1o conform to
government auditing and financizl reporting requirements and generally accepted accounting principles.

We sell utility billing systems that support the billing and collection of metered and non-metered services, along with multiple billing eycles. Out Web-enabled

utility bifling solutions allow clients to access information onling such as average consumption and transaction history. In addition, our systems can aceapt secured
Internet payments via ¢redit cards and checks.

We also offer speciatized products that automate numerows city functions, including municipal courts, parking tickets, equipment and project costing, animal

licenses, business licenses, permits and inspections, code enforcement, citizen complaint tracking, ambulanee billing, fleet maintenance, and cemetery records
management.

In addition to providing financial management systems to K-12 schools, we sel! student information systems for K-12 schools, which manage such activitics as

scheduling, grades and atiendance. We also offer student transporiaticn solutions to thartege schoeel bus Touting optimization, flest management, field trips and
other related functions,

Tyler's financial management and education solutiony include Web components that enhance local governments® service capabilities by facilitating online access to
information for both employees and sitizens and enabling online transactions.

Courts and Justice

We offer a complete, fully integrated suite of judicial solutions designed to handle complex, multi-jurisdictional county or statewide implementations as well as

single county systems. Our solutions help eliminate duplicate data entry, promote mors effective business procedures and improve efficiency acrass the entire
Jjustice process. -

Qur unified court case management system is designed to automate the tracking and management of information involved in all ease types, including criminal,
traffie, civil, family, probate and juvenile courts. it also tracks the status of cases, processes fines and fees and generates the specialized judgment and sentencing
documents, notices and forins required in the court process, Documents received by the court can be scanned into the electronic case file and casily retrieved for
viewing. Documents generated by the centt can be electronically signed and automaticaily attached to the electronic case file. Additional modules automate the
management of court calendars, coardinaie judge’s schedules and generate court dockets, Qur targeted contiroom fechnologies allow courts to rapidly review
calendats, cases and view documonts in the courtroom. Courts may also take advantage of eur telated jury management systerm.

Our court and law enforcement systems allow the public o access, via the Internet, a variely of information, including non-confidential eriminal and civil contt
records, jail booking and release information, bond and bondsmen information, and court calendars and dockets, In addition, our systems allow cities and counties
to aceepl payments for iraffic and parking tickets over the Internet, with a seamless and automatic interface to back-office justice and financial systems.

Our prosecutor system enables state altomey offices to track and manage criminal cases, including detuiled victim information and private case notes. Investigative
reports and charging instrument documents can be generated and stored for later viewing, Prosecutars can schedule and record the outcomne of grand jury hearings.

When integrated with the court system, prosecutors can view the electronis case file and related documents, as well as manage witness Hats and subpoenas needed
for court hearings.

Our supervigion system allows pre-trial and probation offices to manage offender caseloads. Supervision efficers can track contact schedules, risk/needs
assessments and reassessments, detailed drug test results, employment historigs, ¢ompliancs with conditions and



payments of fees and restitution, Documents and forms, like pre-sentence investigations or revocation orders, can be generated and sto red for easy viewing, When

integrated with the fail and court systems, supervision officers can have casy access and quick notification of offenders that have court hearings scheduled, are
arrested loeally and have new warrants issued.

We also offer & court case manggement solution that antomates and tracks all aspects of municipal courts and offices. It is a fully integrated, graphical application
that provides effective case management, document processing and cash/bond management. This system complies with all state reporting and conviction reports
and includes electronic reporting and also integrates with certain of our financial management solutions and public safety solutions.

Public Safety

Cur public safety software is a fully unified and comprebensive solution for law enforcement, fire and EMS, including 911/ computer aided digpatch ("CAD™),
records management, mobile computing, corrections management, Web-based information sharing and decision support. The modules are filly integrated, working

off of a common database and providing full fimctionality between modules, raducing data entry. The sofiware provides fast, efficient dispatching, and quick
ascess to records, reports and actionable information from an sgency's database.

Our 211/ CAD solutions provide real-time, eritical response dispatch funztions in either single- ar owlti-jurisdictional envirenments, When integrated with our
records management soflware, a vital link exists between dispatch and the most comprehensive records database available. Within seconds, the dispatch operator
and the officer in the field can access critical informatlon, such as prior incidents and cutstanding warrants, increasing officer knowledge and safety. The solutions

offer strong geographic information systems integration to help dispatchers quickly locate and send the best response during an emergency, Tyler’s 911 / CAD
solntions dramatically improve performance, response time and unit safety,

Our records management salutions for law enforcement and fire track statistical, operational, investigative and managemest data for inguiry and reporting, The
systems creale an efficient case processing workflow and help sofve crimes with an accessible database that maintains cetiral files on people, places, property,
vehicles and oriminal activity. Tyler’s public safety records management solutions enebla easy aceess to information and simplify reperting,

Our mobile computing solutions for law enforcement end five provide instant access to local, state, regional and federal databases via mobile devices. Officers and
firefighters can experience the benefits of obtaining eritical, real-time information in the field, white saving time by preparing reports directly in their vehicles.

Our jail management systems document and manage information that mests the requircments of a modern jail facility. This includes the booking and housing of
persons in custody, supervising defendants on a pre-trial release, maintaining offonders sentenced to local incarceration and billing other agencies for housing
inmates. Searching, reporting and tracking features are infegrated, allowing relable, up-io-date access to current arrest and incarceration data, including digitat mug
shots. Our systems also provide warrant checks for visitors or book-ins, inmate classification and risk assessment, commissary, properly and medical processing,
automation of statistics, and state and federal reporting,

Our civil processing solutions manage civil process needs fiom document receipt through service, payment process and final closecut. We also have a mobile
¢lectronic citation solution through which law enforcement officers can casily enter citation information in a mobils device, which is automatically uploaded into
the court or public safety records manugement systems, rather than hand-writing citations that must be re-entered into the systems,

We significantly expanded our presence in the public safety market with our acquisition of New World Systems Corporation in Movember 2015.

Properiy Apprarsal and Tax

We provide systems and sofiware that automate the appraisal and assessment of real and personsl property, including record keeping, mass appraisal, inquiry and
protest tracking, appraisal and tax roll generation, tax stutement processing, and electronic state-lavel reporting. These systems are image and video-enablad to

facilitate the sterage of and access to the many property-related documents and for the online storage of digital photographs of properties for use in defending

values in protest sitnations. Other related tax applications are available for agencies that bill and collect taxes, inchuding cities, cotnties, school tax offices, and
special taxing and



collection agencies. These systems support billing, collections, lovk box operations, mortgage com pany clectronic payments, and varicus reporting requirements,

Planning, Regulatory and Maintenance

Our plarning, regalalory and maintenance softwars solutions are designed for public sector agencies such as community dcvélopment, platming, building, code
enforcement, tax and revenues, public works, transportation, land contrel, envirenmental, firc safety, storm water management, regulatory controls and
engineering. These selutions help public sector agencies better manage their day-to-day business finctions while streamlining snd automating the many aspects of

their land management, permitting and planning systems. Qur mobile solutions extend automation to the field and Web aceess brings online services to citizens 24
hours a day, 365 days a year.

Land and Vital Records Managament

We glso offer a nutuber of specialized software applications degigned to help local governments enhance and antomats operationd invelving records and document
management. These systems record, scan and index informatien for the many documetits maintained by local governments, such a5 deeds, mortgages, liens, UCC
financing statements and vital records (birth, death and marriage certificates), These applications includs fully imtegrated imaging systems with batch and scan
processing capabilities and fully integrated receipting and cashiering systems, as well as, Web-enabled public access.

Our content management solutions allow state and local govetnements and school districts to capture, deliver, manage and archive electronic information, These

solutions streamline the flow of digital information throughout the srganization to increase efficiency by fransforming paper forms and documents into electronic
images that drive key business processes.

Subscription-based revenms is primarily dexived from our Saa8 arrangements, which utilize the Tyler private oloud, as well ay our transaction based offerings such
as o~filing solutions,

We are able 1o provide the majority of our software products through cur SaaS model. The clients whe choose this model typically do not wish to maintain, wpdate
and operate these systems or make up-front capital expenditures to implement these advanced technologies. The contract terms for these arrangements range from
one to 10 years, but are typically contracted for initial perinds of three to seven years, The majority of otr SaaS or hosting arrangements include additienal
professional services as well as maintenance and support services, In certain arrangements, the client may also acquire a license to the software.

As part of our subscription-based services, we provide e-filing solutions that simplify the filing and management of court related documents for courts and law
offices. Rovenues for e-filing are inchided in subscription-based revenues and are derived from transaction fees and in some cases fixed fee ATEngements.

Software Services

We provide a variety of professional IT services to clisnts who utilize our software products. Virtnally all of our clients contract with us for instalfation, fraining,
and data conversion services in connection with their purchase of Tyler’s sofiwere solutions, The complete implementation process for a typical system includes
planning, design, data conversion, set-up and testing. At the culmination of the implementaticn process, an installation team travels to the client’s facility to ensure

the smooth transfer of data to the new system. Installation fees ave churged sepatately fo clients on either n fixed-foe or hourly charge basis, depending on the
contract.

Both in connection with the installation of new systems and on an ongoing basis, we provide extensive training services and Programs related to our products and
services. Training can be provided in our tralning centers, onsite at clients’ locations, or at meetings and conferences and can be eustomized to meet cliente’
requirements. The vast majority of our clients contract with us for training services, both to improve their employeas’ proficiency and productivity and to filly
utilize the fanetionatity of our systems, Training services arc generally billed on an hourly or daily basis, along with travel and other expenses,

Maditenanee and Suppott

Following the implementation of our software systems, we pravide ongoing softwere support services to assist our clients in operating the systems and to
periodically update the software. Support is provided to clients over the phone or via the Web through help desks




staffed by our elient support representatives. For more complicated issue s, our staff, with the client’s permission, ean log on o clients’ systems remotely, We
g Y

maintain ovr elients’ software largely through releases that contain improvements and incremental additions of features and functionality, along with updates
nesessary because of legislative ot regulatory changes.

Virtually all of our software clients contract with g for maintenance and support, which provides us with a significant source of recurring revenue, We generally
provide maintenance and support for our on-premises clients under annyal, or in some cases, multi-yeur contrects, with atypicsl fee based on a percentage of the
software product’s license fee, These foes can generally be increased on reneveal and may also increase as new Jlicense foes inorease, Maintenance and suppott fegs
are generally paid annually in advance. Most matntenance contracts antomatically renew usless the client or Tyler gives notice of termination prior to expiration,
Similar support is provided to our Saa8 clients and is included in their subscription fees, which are classified as subscription-based revenues.

Appraisal Servi

We are the nation’s Largest provider of property appraisal outsourcing services for local government taxing authorities, These services inchsde;

. the physical mspection of commersiel end residential properties;
¥ data collection and processing;

v sophisticated computer analyses for property valuation,

. preparation of tax rolls;

¢ commmumity education regarding the assessment process; and

e arbitration betw een taxpayers and the assessing jurisdiction.

Local governmetit taxing authorities normally reappraise properties from time to time to update values for 1ax assessment purposes and to maintain equity in the
taxing process, In some jurisdictions, law mandates reassessment cycles; in others, they are discretionaty, Whils some taxing jursdictions perform reappraisals in-
house, many local governments outsource this function becauss of its cyclical nature and because of the specialized knowledge and expertise requirements
associated with it. Qur appraisal services business unit has been in this business since 1938,

In some instances, we also sell propetty tax and/or appraisal software products in connection with appraisal cutsoursing projects, while other clients may only
engage us to provide appraisal services. Appraisal outsourcing services are somewhat seasonal in nature to the extent that winter weather conditions reduce the
productivity of data collection activitics in contieetion with those projects.

STRATEGY

Cur objective is ta grow our revenue and eamnings organically, supplemented by focused strategic acquisitions. The key components of our business stretegy are to;

« Provide high) guality, value-added products ard services to ot clients . We eompete on the basis of, ameng other things, delivering to clients our deep

domain expertiso in local government operations through the highest value products and services in the market. We believe we have achicved a reputation as a
premium groduct and service provider ta the focal government merket,

jhue to expys aduet an igo offerings . While we aiready have what we believe te be the broadest line of software produsts for local
governiments, we continually upgrade our core software upplications gnd expand our complementary product and service offerings to respond to technological
advencements and the changing needs of our clients. In 2010, we began providing e-filing for courts and law offices, which simplities the filing and management of
court related documents. We believe revenue from e-filing solutions will continue to grow over time as more local and state governments mandate electronic
document filings. We elso offer salutions that allow the puhlis fo aceess data and conduct trensactions with local governments, such ag paying traffic tickets,
property taxes and utility bills via the Internet. We beligve that the addition of such features enhances the market appeal of our cors products. We have also
broadened our offerings of consulting and busincss process reengineeting services, In November



2015, we significantly expanded our presence in the public s afety software market through the acquisition of New World Systems Corporation,

+ Expand our client base . We seck 1o establish long-term relationships with new clients primarily through our sales and marketing efforts. While we

currently have clients in all 50 states, Canada, the Caribbean, the United Kingdom, and other international Jocations, not all of our solutions have achieved
nationwide geographic penetration. We intend to continue to expand info new geographic markets by adding sales staff and targeting marketing efforts by solutions
in those areas, We also intend to continue to expand our customer base to inciude more large governments, While our traditional market focus hag primarily been
on small and mid-sized governments, our increased size and market presence, together with the technological advances and improved scal ability of certain of our
solutions, are allowing us to achieve increasing success in selling 1o larger clients. We also expect to expand our presence in intemational markets by leveraging
our Jeadership positien in thie United States through the disciplined pursuit of selected epportunities in other countries,

+ Bxpand our existing client relatiopships . Our existing customer base offers significant apportunities for additional sales of solutions and services that we

currenitly offer, but that existing cliests do not fully utilize. Add-on sales to existing clients typically involve lower sales and marketing expenses than sales to new
clients. '

* Grow tecurting revenues . We have a large recurring revenue base from mainienance and support and subscription-bascd services, which generated
revenues of $357.5 million, or 60% of total revertues, in 2015. We have historically experienced very low customer tumover (approximately 3% annually) and
recurTing revenues continue to grow as the nstalled customer base increases. In addition, subscription-based revenues have been our fastest growing revenue
category over the past five years, increasing from $31.2 million in 2011 to $111.9 million in 2015.

and take advanis

+ Maximize economies of scale { financi BgC 33 . We seek to build and maintain a large client base to create
economies of scale, enabling us to provide value-added produets and services to our clients while expanding onr operating margins, Because we sell primarily “off-
the-shelf” software, increased seles of the same solutions result in incrementally higher gross margins. In addition, we believe that we have 5 ntarketing and

administrative infrastruotute in placs that can be leveraged to accommodate significant long-term growth without proportisnately increasing selling, genetal and
administrative expenses,

* Atiract and retain highly qualified employecs . We believe that the depth and quality of eur operations management and staff is one of our significant
strengths, and thal the ability to retain such employees is enicial to our continued growth and success, We believe that our stable matagement team, financial

strength and growth opportunities, ss well as our leadership position in the local government market, enhance onr attractiveness as an employer for highly skilled
employees.

* Purgug selected strategic sequisitions . While we expect to primarily grow internally, from time to time we selectively pursue strategic acquisitions that
provide us with one or more of the following:

i new products and services to complement our existing offerings;
- entry into new markets related to local governments; and
* new clients and/or geographic expansion,
» Bstablish strategic alliancos . In January 2007, we announcad a strategic alliance with Microsoft Corporation to jointly develop core public sector

functionality for Microsoft Dynamics AX to address the mnique accounting needs of public sector organizations worldwida, As part of this alliance, we are
enhancing Microsoft Dynamics AX with public sector-specific functionality, The arrangement has broadened the Functionality of Microsofl Dynamics AX,
providing both Tyler and Microgoft with a public sector accounting platform to support their existing and prospective clients well into the fiture, Microsoft
Dynamics AX with public sectot functionality was released to the market in August 2011 and is being seld in the United States and internationally through
Microsoft's distribution channels, Tyler is 2lso an authorized Microsoft reseller for the Microsoft Dynamics solutions developed under this arrangerent, and we ars

selling the solutions direcily imto the government market. Tyler receives license and maintenance toyalties on direct and indirect public-sector sales worldwide of
the solutions co-developed under this multi-year term relationship,

Our contractual research and development commitment o develop public sector funetionalily for Micresoft Dynamies AX expires with the release of Dynamics
AX 7, which is expecied 1o ocour in the first quarter of 2016, We are currently discussing with Microsoft Corporation the possibility of additienal research and
development beyond Dynamics A 7. If we cannot agree (o terms of any futuwre



cormumitments, we will continue to provide sustained engineering and technical support for the public sector functionnlity within Dynemics AX. License and
maintenance royaities for all applicable domestic and international sales of Dynamics AX to public sector entitics will continue under the terms of the contract,

SALES, MARKETING, AND CLIENTS

We market our products and services through direct sales and marketing personnel located throughout the United States. Other in-house sales staff focus on add-en
sales, professional services and support.

Sales of new systems are typically generated from referrals from other government offices or departments within a county or municipality, referrals from other
local governments, r¢lationships established between sales representatives and county or local officials, contacts at trade shows, direct mailings, and direct contact

from prospects already familiar with us. We are active in numerous national, state, county, and local government associations, and participate in annual meetings,
trade shows, and educational events,

Clients consist primarily of county and municipal agencies, school districts and other loeat government offices, In counties, clients include the auditor, treasures,
tax assessor/collector, county elerk, district ¢lerk, county and district conrt judges, probation officets, sheriff, and county appraiser, At municipal government sites,
clients include directors from various departments, including administration, finence, utilities, public wotks, code enforcement, personnel, purchasing, taxation,
municipal court, and police. Contracts for sofiware products and services are generally implemented over periods of three months to one year, although some
complex implementations may span multiple yoars, with annually renewing maintenance and support update agreements thereafter. Although either the client or we
can tegtninate these agreements, historically aimost all support and maintenance agteements are automatically renewed annually, Contracts for appraisal

outseurcing services are generally one to three years in duration. During 2015, approximately 42% of our revenue was atirlbutable to ongoing support and
maintenance agreements.

COMPETITION

We compete with numerous lecal, regiongl, and national firms that provide or offer some or many ofthe same solutions and services that we provide, Many of
these competitors are smaller companies that may be able to offer less expensive solutions than ours. Many of these firms operate within a specific geographic area
and/or in a narrow produst or serviee niche. We also compete with national firms, some of which have greater financial and technical resources than we do,
including Oracle Corporation, Infor Lawson, SAP AG, FIS (SunGard), Thomson Reuters Corpetation, and Constellation Softwere, Inc, In addition, we sometimes
compete with consulting and systems integration firms, which develop custom, systems, primarily for larger governments, We also occasionally compete with

central intemal information service departments of local governments, which requires us to persuade the end-nser department to discontinue service by its own
personnel and owtsource the service to us.

We compete on g varicety of factors, including price, service, name recogaition, reputation, technological capabilities, and the gbility to modify existing products
and gervices 1o accommadate the individual requirements of the client, O ability to offer an integrated system of applications for several offices or departiments (s
offen 4 compelitive advantage, Local governmental units often are required to seek competitive propesals through a request for proposal process and some
prospective clients use consultants to assist them with the propesal and vendor selectien process.

SUPPLIERS

Substantially all of the computers, peripherals, printers, scanners, operating system software, office automation seftware, and other equipment necessary for the
implementation and provision of gur software systems and services are presently available from several third-party sources. Hardware is purchased on original
equipment manufacturer or distributor terms at discounts from retail, We have not expetienced any significant snpply problems,

BACKLOG

At December 31, 2015, our estimated revenue backlog was approximately $844.5 million, compared to $702.0 million at December 31, 2014. The backlog

represents signed contracts under which the revenue has not been tecogaized as of year-end. Approximately $476.3 million, or 56%, of the backlog is expected to
be recognized during 2016.
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, PROFRIETARY RIGHTS, AND LICENSES

We regard certuin features of our internal operations, seftware, and documentation as confidential and proprietary and rely on a combination of contractual
restrictions, trade secret laws and other measures to protect our proprietary intetlectual properiy. We gencrally do not rely on patertts. We believe that, due fo the
rapid rate of technological change in the computer software industry, trade secrets and copyright protection ate less significant than factors such as knowledge,
ability and experience of our employees, frequent product enhencements, and timeliness and quality of support services. We typically livense our software producis
under non-exclusive license agreements, which are generally non-transferable and bave a perpetual term.

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2015, we hid 3,586 vinployees Appraisal outsourcing projects are cyclical in nature and can be widely dispersed geopraphically, We often hire
temporary employees to assist in these projects whese term of employment generally ends with the project’s completion. Nene of our employess are represented by
alabor union or are subject to coltective bargaining agreements. We consider our relations with our employees to be pesitive.

INTERNET WEBSITE AND AVAILABILITY OF PUBLIC FILINGS

We file anmual, quarterly, current and other reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, pursuant to the
Secwrities Exchange Acl. You may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC"s Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800732-0330,

The SEC maintains an Infemet site that containa reports, proxy and other information statenrents, and other information regarding issuers, including us, that file
electronically with the SEC. The address of this site is hitp://www.sec.gov.

We also mainiain a website at www.tylertech.com. We make available free of charge through this site our Anhual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q, Forms 4 and 5, Curent Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13{a) or 15{d) of the Exchange

Act a5 so0n as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. In addition, copies of eur annuat report wilk be made
available, fres of charge upon written request.

Our “Code of Business Conduct and Ethice” is also available on our website. We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirements regarding amendments to, or walvers
from, a provision of our Code of Business Conduet and Ethics by posting such information on our website,

ITEM 1A, RISE. FACTORS.

An investment in our commen stock involves 4 high degree of risk. Investors evaluating our company should carefully consider the factors described helow and all
other information contained i this Annual Report. Any of the following factors could mater{ally harm our business, operating xesults, and financial condition.
Additional factors and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we turrently consider immaterial could alse harm oer business, operating results, and
financial condition. This section should be read in conjunction with the Finaneial Statements and related Notes and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Resulis of Operations included in this Annual Report. We may make forward-looking statements from time to time, both written and oral,
We undertake no obligation to revise or publicly refease the results of any tevisions to these forward-looking statements, Our actual results may differ materially
from those projested in any such forward-loaking statements due to 2 number of factors, including those set forth belew and elsewhers In this Anmual Report.

Rishs Associnted with Our Software Products
Cvber-atigeis and security vulnerabilities can disrupt our business and harm our competitive position.

Threats to I'T security can take a varlety of forms, Individuals and groups of hackers, and sophisticated organizations including state-sponsored organizationg, may
take steps that pose fhreats to our clients and our IT, They may develop and deploy malivious software ta sitack our products and services and gain aceess t¢ our
networks and data centers, or actin a coordinated manner to launch distributed denial of service or other coordinated attacks. Cyber threats ar¢ constantly evolying,
thereby increasing the difficulty of detecting and suceesstully defending against them. Cyber threats can have caseading impacts that unfold with increasing speed
across our internal networks and sysieins and those of our partners and clients, Breaches of our network or data security eould disrupt the security of our internal
systems and business applications, impair our ability to provide services to our cHents and protect the privacy of their data, result in product development delays,

compromise confidential or technical business information karming our competitive pasition, result in thaft or misuse of eur intellectun property or other assets,
reqnire us to allocate more resources to
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improvo technologies, or otherwise adversely affect our business. Our business polieies and internal secu rity controls may not keep pace with these evelving
threats.

We cannot fully protect client information from securify breaches.

As we conlinue to grow the number and scale of our cloud-based offerings, we store and process increasingly large amounts of personally identifiable and other
confidential information of our clients. The continued oceurrence of high-profile data brezches provides evidence of an externial environment incrossingly hostils to
information security. Despite our efforts to improve security controls, it is possible our security controls aver personal data, our training of employess on data
serurity, and other practives we follow may not prevent the improper disclosure of client data that we store and mannage. Improper digclosure could harm our
reputation, lead to Jegal exposure to clients, or subject us to Hability under Jaws that protect personal data, resulting in increased costs or loss of revene.

Hasting services for some of our products are dependent wpon the tnintervupted operation of data centers.

A material portion of our business is provided through software hosting services, These hosting services depend on the uninterrupted operation of data centers and
the abiltty to protect computer equipment and information stored in these data centers against damage that may be caused by natural disaster, fire, power loss,
telecemtnunications or Internet failure, acts of terrorism, unanthorized infrusion, computer viruses, and other similar damaging events. If any of our data centers
were to become inoperable for an extended period, we might be unable to fulfill our contractual commitments, Although we take what we believe 1o be reasonable

precantions against such occurrences, we cean give no assurance that damaging events such as these will not result in a prolonged interruption of our services, which
could result in client dissatisfaction, loss of revenue, and damage to our business.

Wea run the risk of errors or defects with new praducis or enharcements lo existing products.

Our software products are complex and may contain errors or deteets, especially when first introduced or when new versions ot enhancements ere released.
Although we have not experienced material adverse effects from any such defects or errors to date, we cannot assnre yon that material deficts and errors will not be
found in the future. Any such defects could result in a loss of tevenues or delay market acceptance, Qur license agreements typically contain provisions designed to
limit our exposure to potential liability. However, it is possible we may not always snccessfully negotiate such provisions in our client contracts or the limitation of
liability provisions may not be effective due to existing or future foderal, state, or local laws, ordinances, or judicial decisions. Although we maintain errors and

owmissions and general liability insurance, and we try to structuze comiracts to timit liability, we cannot assure you that a successful claim could not be made or
would not have a material adverse effect on our fature operating results,

We must timely respond to rechnological changes to be competitive,

The merket for our products is characterized by technoiogical change, evelving industry standards in software technolegy, changes in <lient requirements, and
frequent new product introductions and enhancements. The introduction of products embodying new teehnologies and the emergence of new industry standards can
render existing products obsolete and unmarketable. As a result, our fiture success will depend, in part, upon our ability to enhance existing products and develop
and introducs new products that keep pace with technological developments, satisfy increasingly sophisticated client requirements, and achieve market acceptance.
We eannot assure you that we will successfully identify new product opportunities and develop and bring new products to market in a timely and cost-effective
manner. The products, capabilities, or technologies developed by others could also render our produets or technologies obsolete or nancompetitive. Our business
may be adversely affected if we are unable to develop or acquire new software products or develop enhancements fo exdsting products on a timely and cost-
effective basis, or if such new products or ephancements do not achisve market acceptance.

We may be unable to protect our proprietary rights.

Many of our product and service offerings incorporate proprietary information, trade secrets, know-how, and other intelicctual property rights. We rely on a
combination of contracts, copytights, and trade secret laws o establish and protect our proprietary rights in our technolegy. We cannat be certain that we have
taken all appropriate steps to deter misappropriation of our intellectval property, There has also been significant litigation recently involving intellectual property
Tights. We are not currently involved in anty thaterial intellectual property litigation; however, we muy be a party to such litigation in the firturs to protect our
proptietury information, trade secrets, know-how, ard other intellectual property rights. We cannot assure you that third-parties will not assert infringement or
misapprepriation claims against us with respect to current or future products. Any claims ot litigatien, with or without merit, oould be time-consuming, costly, and
a diversion to management, Any such claims and Hiigation could also cause product shipment delays ot require s to enter into royalty or licersing arrangements.
Such royalty or licensing arrangements, if required, may dot be available on terms accoptable to us, if at all. Therefore, litigation to defend and enforee our
intellectual property righis could have a taterial adverss effect on our business, regardless of the final outcome of such litigation,



Clienis may eleci to ferminate our main! enance contracls and manage operations internally,

[t is possible that our clients may elect to not renew maintenance contracts for our sofiware, trying instead 1o maintain and operate the sofiware theraselves uging
their perpetual license rights (excluding software applications that we provide on a hosted or cloud bagis). This eould adversely affect our revenues and profits,

Additionally, they may inadvertently allow our intellectual property or other information to fall into the hands of third-parties, including our competitors, which
could advetsely affect our business.

Material portions of our business require the Intenet infrasivucture to be further developed or adequately mairtained.

Part of our future success depends on the use of the Intétnet a5 & means to access public information and perform transactions electronically, including, for
example, electronie filing of court documents. This in part requires the further development and maintenance of the Internet infrastructure. Ameng other things, this
further development and maintenance will require a reliable network backbone with the necessary speed, daty capacity, security, and timely development of

complementary products for providing retiable Internet access and services. If this infrastructure fails to be further developed or be adequately maintained, our
business would be harmed because users may not be able to access our government portals.

Risks Associated with Selling Products and Services into the Public Sector Markeplace
Selling products and services info the public sector poses unique challenges.

Wo derive substantially ai of our revenues from sales of software and services to state, county, and city governments, other municipal agencies, and other public

entities, We expect that sales to public sector clisnts will continue to account for substantially all of our revenues in the fixwe. We face many tisks and challenges
associated with contracting with governmental entities, including:

* resource limitations caused by budgetary constraints, which may provide for a termination of executed contracts due to a fack of future funding;,

. long and complex sales cycles,

* contract payments at times being subject to achieving implementation milestones, and we may have differences with clients as to whether milestories have
been achigved;

* political resistance to the concept of contracting with third-parties to provide [T selutions;

* legislative changes affecting local povernment’s authority fo contract with third-parties;

» varying bid procedures and internal processes for bid acceptance; and
’ various other political factors, including changes in governmental administrations and persennel.

Each of these risks is outside our contral, If we fail to adequately adapt to these risks and uncertaintles, our financial performance could be adversely affected,

A prolonged econemic slowdown could harm our operations,

A prolonged economic slowdown or recession ¢ould reduce demand for our software products and services. Local and state governments may face finanoial
pressures that could In turr: affect our growth rate and profitability in the future, There is no assurance that local and state spending levels will be unaffected by

declining or stagnant general economic conditions, and if budget shortfalls occur, they may negatively impact local and state IT' spending and could adversely
affect our business,

A decline in the demand for IT may result in a decrease in our revenues or lower our growih rafe.

A decline in the demand for IT ameng our current and prospective clients may result in decreased revenues or a lower growth rate becanse our sales depend, in par,
on our clients® level of funding for new or additional IT systems and services, Moreover, demand for our solutions may be reduced by a declite in overall demand
for computer software and services. We cannot assure you that we will be able te increase or maintain our revenues.

The open bidding process creates uncertainty in predicting fiture contract awards.

Many povernmental agencies purchase products and services through an open bidding process. Generally, a governmental entity wifl publish an established list of
requirements requesting petential vendors to propose solutions for the established requirements. To respond successfully to these requests for proposats, we must
accurately estimate our cost structurs for servicing a proposed coniract, the time required to establish operations for the proposed client, and the likely terms of any

other third-parly proposals submitted, We cannot guarantee that we will win any bids in the future through the request for propossl process, o7 that any winning
bids will
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ultimately result in contracts on favorable terms. Our failure o securs contracts through the open bidding process, of to sec ure such confracts on favorable terms,
may adversely affect our revenue and gross margins.

We face significars competition from other vendors and potential new entrants inio our markets.

We beligve we are a leading provider of integrated solutions for the public sector, However, we face competition from a variety of seftware vendors that offer
products and services similar to these offered by us, as well as rom companies offering to develop custom software. We compete based on 1 mumber of factors,
including:

. the aftractiveness of our “evergreen” business strategy;

*, the breadth, depth, and quality of our product end service offerings;

. the ability to madify cur offerings to accommoda te partieular clients® needs;
" technelogical innovation;

* narne recognition;

> price; and

* awr financial strength and stability,

We believe the market is highly fragmented with ¢ large number of competitors that vary in size, product platfornn, and product scope. Our competitors include
consulting irms, publicly held companies that focus on selected segments of the public sector market, and a significant number of smaller, privately held
companies. Ceriain competitors have greater technical, marketing, and financial resources than we do. We canmot assurs you that such competitors will not develop
products or offer services thal are superior to our products or services or that achieve prester market acceptance.

We also compete with internal, centralized IT departments of governmental ectities, which requires us to persuade the end-user to stop the internal service and

outsourcs to us. In addition, our clients and prospective clients could elect to provide information management services internally through new or existing
depariments, which could reduce the market for our services.

We could face additional conpetition a5 other established and emerging companies enter the public sector software application market and rew products and
technolegics are introduced. Increased competition could result in pricing pressure, fewer client orders, reduced gross margins, and loss of market share, Current
and potential competitors may make strategic acquisitions or establish cooperative relationships ameng themselves or with thirdvparties, thereby increasing the
ahility of their products to address the needs of our prospective clients. It is possible that new competitors or alliances may emerge and rapidly gain significant
matket shere. We cannot assure you that we will be able to compete successiully against current and fitture competitors, and the failute to do so would have a

material adverse effect upon cur business.
Fixed-price contracts may gffect our profits.

Some of our contracts are on a fixed-priced besis, which can lead to varions risks, including:

, the fatlure to acenrately estimate t he resources and time required for an engagement;
. the failure to effectively manage our clients” expectutions regarding the scape of servives deliversd for a fixed fee; and
. the failice to timely and satisfactorily complete fixed-price engagements wit hin budget.

If we do net adequately essess these and other risks, we may be subje«t to cost overruns and penalties, which may havm eur financial performance.

Changes In the insurance markets may qifect our business.

Some of our clients, primarily those for our property appraisal services, require that we secure performance bonds before they will select us as their vendor. In
addition, we have in the past been required to provide letters of credit as security for the issnance of a performance bond. We tennot gharantee that we will be able
to secure such performance bonds in the future on terms that are favorablz to us, if at all. Qur- inability to obtain performance bonds en favorable terms ar at all
could impact our future ability to win some contract awards, particularly large properly appraisal services contracts, which could negatively impact revenves, In

addition, the general insurance matkets experience volatility, which may lead to foture increases in our general and administrative expenses and negatively impact
our operating results,
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Risks Assoclated with Our Perlodic Results and Stock Price

Software revenue recognition rules may require us lo delay revenue recognition into future periods.

We bave in the past had to, and may in the future be required to, defer revenue recognition for software license fees dus to several factors, including whether:
. license agreements include applications that are under development or other indelivered elements;

.

client contracts require the delivery of services considezed essential fo the functionality of the software, inclading significant modifications, customization,
or complex interfaces, that could delay product delivery or acceptance;

* the transaction involves acceptance criteria;

* the transaction invo lves contingent payment terms or fees;
. we are required to accept a fixed-fee services contract; or
- we are required to provide extended payment terms.

Because of these factors and other specific requirements for software revenue recognition under generally accepted accounting principles it the United States, we
musl have very precise terms in our contracts to recognizs revenue upoen the delivery and instaflation of our software or performance of services. Negotiation of

mutually acceptable terms and conditions may extend the seles cycle. We are not always able to negotiate terms and conditions that permit revenue recoguition at
the time of delivery or even upon project completion,

Fluctuations in quarterly revenue could adversely impact owr operating vesulls and stock price.
Our revenues and operating results are difficult to predict and may fluctuate substantially from quarter to quarter for a variety of reasons, inclhuding the following:
. prospective clients’ contracting decisions are often made in the last few weeks of a quarter;

’ the size of license fransactions san vaty significantly;

clients may unexpectedly postpane or caneyl procutement processes due to changes in strategic priorities, project objectives, budget, or personnel;

client purchasing processes vary significantly and a client’s internal approval, expenditore authorization, and contract negotiation processes can be difficult
and time consuming to complete, even afier selection of a vendor:

the nunber, timing, and significance of software product enhancements and new sofiware product announcements by us and oyr competitors may affect
purchase decisions;

Ll we niay have to defor revienues nnder our revenue recognition policies; and

clients may elect subscription-based arrangements, which result in lower software license revenues in the initial year as compared to traditional, on-premise
sofiware license mrangements, but generate higher overall subscription-based revenues over the term of the conragt,

In cach fiscal quarter, our expense levels, operating costs, and hiring plang are based to some extent on projections of future revenues and are relatively fixed, I our

uctual revenues full below axpoctations, we could experience o reduction in operating results. Also, if actual revenues or earnings for any given quarter fall below
expectations, it may lead to a deeline in our stock price.

Increases In service revenue as a pereentage of tolal revenues could decrease overall margins.

We realize lower marging on software and eppraisal service revenues than on license revenue. The majority of our contracts include both software liconses and

software services. Therefore, an increase in the percentage of software service and appraisal service revenue compared to license revenme could have a detrimental
impact on our everall gross marging and could adversely affect operating results.

Qur stock price may be volatile.

The market price of our common stock may be volatile, Bxamples of factors that may significantly impact our stock price include:

* actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;
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+ announcements of technological innovations, new products, or new contracts by us or eur competitors;

3 developments with respect to p atents, copyrights, or other proprietary rights:
' conditions and trends in the software and other technology industries;

* adoption of new accounting standards affecting the software industry;

* changes i finaneial estimates by securities analysts; and

. general market conditions and other factora.

In addition, the stock market has from time to time experienced significant price and velume fluctnations that have particularly affected the market prices of
technology company stocks and may in the fubere adversely affect the market price of our stock. Sometimes, securities class action litigation is fled following
periods of volatility in the market price of & particular company’s secuxities. We cannot agsure you that similar litigation will not oceur in the future with respect to

us. Such litigation could result in substantial costs and 2 diverslon of management’s attention and resources, which gould have a material adverse effect upon our
financial performance,

Financial Cutlook,

From time to time, in press releases and otherwise, we may publish forecasts or other forward-looking statements regarding our results, including estimated
revenucs or eamnings. Any forecast of our future perfottnance reflects various assumptions. These assumptions are subject to significant uncertainties, and a3 i
matter of course, any number of them wiay prove fo be incorrect. Further, the achievement of any forecast depends on numerous risks and other factors {includiag
those described in this discussion), many of which are beyond our control, As a result, we cannot be certain that our performance will be consistent with any
management forecasts or that the variation from such foracasts will not be material and adverse. Current and potential stockholders are cautioned not to base their
entire analysis of our business and prospects upon isolated predictions, but instead are encouraged to utilize our entire publicly available mix of historicel and
forward-looking infomnation, as well az other available information regarding vs, our products and services, and the software industry when evaluating out
prospective results of operations.

Risks Associnted with Our Growth Strategy end Other General Corporate Risks
We may experience difficulties in executing owr aoguisition strategy.

A material portion of our historical growth has resulted from strategle acquisitions. Although cur focus is on internal grawth, we will continue to identify and
pursue strategic acquisitions with suitable candidates. These transactions involve significant challenges and risks, including the transaction does not advance aur
business strategy, we get no satisfactory return on ovr investment, we have difffculty integrating business sysiems and technology, we have difficulty retaining or
integrating new employees, the irangactiony distract management from gur other businesses, we acquite unforeseen liabilities, and other unanticipated events. Our
future success will depend, in part, on our ability to successfully integrate future acquisitions into out aperations, It may take longer than expecied to realize the full
benefits of these transactions, such as increased revenue, enhanced efficiencies, or increased market share, or the benefits may be ultimately smaller than we
expected. Although we conduct due diligence reviews of potential acquisition candidates, we may not identify all material liabilitics or tisks related to acquisition
candidates. There can be no assurance that any such sirategic acquisitions will be accomplished on favorable tenms or will result in profitable operations,

Our failtive to properly manage growth could adversely qffect our business.

We have expanded our operations significantly since 1998, when we entered the business of providing software solutions and gervices to the public sestor, We
intend to continue expansion in the foresesable fisture to pursue existing and potential market opportunities. This growth places a significant demand on
management and operational resources. In order to manage growth effectively, we must implement and improve our operational systems, procedures, and controls
on a timely basis. If'we fail to implement these systems, our business may be materiaily adversely affected.

We may be unable to hire, inteprate, and retain qualified personnel,

Onr confinued suecess will depend upon the availability and performance of our key management, sales, marketing, client suppott, and product development
persannel. The loss of key management or technical personnel could adversely affect us. We believe that our continued success will depend in large part upon our
ability to attract, infegrate, and retain such personnel, We have af tines experienced and continue to experience difficulty in recruiting qualified

personnel. Competition for qualified sofiware development, sales, and other persennel is intense, and we cannot assure you that we will be successtil in attracting
and retaining such persomel.
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Compliance with changing regulation of corporate governance may result In additional expenses,

Changing laws, regulations, and standards ralating to corporate governance and public disclosure can create uncertatuty for publie companies. The costs required to
comply with such evelving laws are difficult to prediet. To maintain high standards of eorporate governance and public disclosure, we intend to invest all
reasanably necessary resources to comply with evolving standards. This investinent may result in an wnforeseen increase in general and administrative expenses
and a diversion of management’s time and attention from revente-generating activities, which may herm our operating results.

We don’t foresee paying dividends on our common steck.

We have not declared or paid a cash dividend since we entered the business of providing software solutions and services to the public sestor in 1998, We intend to

retain earnings for ise in the operation and cxpansion of our business, We do not anficipate paying any cash dividends on our common siock in the foreseeable
future,

Frovisions in our certificate of incorporation, bylaws, and Delaware law could deter takeover attempis,

Our board of directers may issue up to 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock and may determine the price, Tights, preferences, privileges, and resirictions, including
voting and conversion rights, of these preferred shares, These determinations may be made without any further vote or action by our stockholders. The rights of
the helders of our common stock will be subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the tights of the holders of any preferred stock that may be issued in the
future, The lssuance of preferred stock may make it more difficult for a third-party o acquire a mejority of our outstanding voting stock. In addition, some

provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws, and the Delaware General Cotporation Law could alse delay, prevent, or make more difficult a merger,
tender offer, or proxy contest involving vs.

ITEM 1B, UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
Not applicable.

ITEM2.  PROPERTIES.

We occupy approximately 871,000 square foet of office space, of which 541,000 square feet is in office facilities we own. We own or lease offices far our major
operations in Arizona, Celotado, Georgia, Iows, Maine, Michigan, Montana, New York, Ohio, Texas and Washington,

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

Other than routine litigation incidental to our business, there are no material legal procoedings pending to which we are party or to which any of our ptoperties are

subject.

ITEM 4, SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.
Not applicable.

17




PARTII

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AN ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES.

Our common strck 1s traded en'the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “TYL.' * At December 31, 2015, we had. approximately 1,585 stockholders of
record. Most of tizt stockholders hald their shares in street name; therefore, Therd are sibstantially more than'1,585 beneficsal owners of our common stock,

The following table shows, for the calendar periods indicated, the high end low sales price per share of our common stock 83 reported on the New York Stock
Exchamge.

High Low
2014:  Fivst Quarter 3 10789 § 8154
Second Quarter 91.69 74.37
Third Quatier 9753 8470
Fourth Quarter 115,37 86.05
2015:  First Quarier $ 12584 % 103.18
Second Quarter 13354 118.05
Third Quarter 152.91 127.25
Fourth Quarter 184, L1 - 150,00
2016:  First Quoarter (through February 22, 2016) $ 172.50 $ 120.16

We did not pay any cash dividends in 2015 or 2014. Qur bank credit agresment contains restrictions on the payment of cash dividends. We intend to refain earnings
for use in the operation and expansion of our business, and, therefore, we do not asticipate declaring a cash dividend in the forgseeable future.

The following table summarizes certain information related to our stock option plan and our employee stock purchase plan. There are no warranis or rights related
to our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2015,

Number of securities remaining

avellable for
Numaber of securities to fiture Jesvance under
be issned upon exercise Weighted average equity compensation
of outstanding options, ¢x¢r¢ise price of outslanding plans {excluding securitles
warranis and rights as of options, reflected in initial column
December 31, 2013 warrants and rights 88 of December 31, 2015)
Plan Category
Equity compensation plans
approved by security
shareholders: _ _
Stock ophion plan - 5,163,593 % 64 43 3,722,321
Employee stock purchase plan 8,354 148.17 898,564
Bquity compensation plans not )
approved by securtly
shareholders —_ ’ e —
5,171,947 § 64.57 4,620,885
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As of December 31, 2015, we had authorization to repurchase up io 1.4 million additional shares of Tyler common stock . During 2015, we purchased
approximately 5,400 shares of our common steck for an aggregats purchase price of $645,000. A summary of the repurchase agtivity during 2015 is as follows:

Maximmm number of
shares that may be
Total number of shares  Average price paid ~ repurchased under
Period repurchased per share current authorization
Threz months ended March 31 — w— 1,406,000
Three months ended June 30 5,400 118.50 1,400,600
Three months ended September 30 = —_ 1,400,600
Three maonths ended December 31 L £ 1,400,600

5,400

The repurchase program, which was approved by our board of directors, was announced in October 2002, and was amended at various times from 2003 through
2011. There is no expiration date specified for the authorization and we intend to repurchase stock under the plan from time to time,

Subsequent to December 31, 2015 and through Febraary 22, 2016, we purchased approximately 241,000 shares of our common stock for an aggregate cash
purchase price of $31.3 million.




Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related information shall not be deemed “soliciting material” or 1o be “filed” with the Securities and Exchange

Commission, nor shall such Information be incorporated by reference info any fiture filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
each as amended, except to the extent that we specifically incorporate it by reference into such filing,

The following table compares total Shareholder returny for Tyler over the last five years to the Standard and Poor’s 500 Stock Idex and the Standard and Poor's
600 Enformation Technology Index assutning a $100 investment made on December 31, 2010. Each of the three measures of cummtlative total retum assumes
reinvestment of dividends. The stock performmance shown on the graph below is not necessarily indicative of Rature price performance,

COMPARISON OF CCMULATIVE FIVE YEAR TOTAL RETURN
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.
{In thougands, except per share data)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECHMBER 31,

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA
Revenues $ 591,022 § 493,101 3% 416,643 % 363,304 § 309,301
Cost and expenzes :

Cost of revenues () B 313,835 259,730 223440 195,602 167,419

Selling, genéral and administrative expenses (a) 133,317 108,260 938,239 84,706 75,650

Research and development expense 29,922 25,743 23,269 20,140 16,414

Amortizatton of customer and trade name (a)

ntangibles 5,905 4,546 4,517 4,279 3,331

Operating incorme 168,043 04,822 67,128 56,577 46,517
Other income (expenses), net 381 {355) (1,309 (2,709 (2,404)
Income before income taxes 108,424 94,467 65,819 53,568 44,113
Income tax provision 43,555 35,527 26,718 20,874 16,556
Mef ingome 64,869 58,940 39,101 32,994 27,557
Net eatnings per diluted share b 171 8 166 3% ‘113 § 100 0 § C 083
‘Weighted average diluted shares 36,552 35,401 34,590 32,918 33,154
STATHMENT OF CASH FLOWS DATA: |
Cash flows provided by operating activities b $9,013 $ 123437 § 66,090 § 58,608 % 56,435
Cash flows uséd by investing activities (39%,459) {11,555) (25,658) {34,736) {2%,805)
Cash flows provided (used) by financing activities 136,366 15,409 32,038 (18,852) (28.414)
BALANCE SHEET DATA _ S o
Total assets $ 1356570 § 569,812 3§ 444488 % 338,666 3§ 295,391
Revolvitig line of credit 86,000 o — 18,000 - 60,700
Shareholders' equity 858,857 336,973 245,319 145,299 78,110

(2) On November 16, 2015, we completed the acquisition of NWS. Our o perating results inchude the sesults of NWS frot the date of acquisition and include
expenses of approximately $5.9 million for financial advisory, legal, accounting, due diligence, valuation and other services necessary to complete the acquisition,
a5 well as $3.5 million of amortization expense related to NWS acquisition intangibles.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATICNS.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMEN1S

This document contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 274 of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act 0f 1934 that are nof historical in nature and typically address future or anticipated events, irends, expectations or beliefs with respect to our financial condition,
results of operations or business. Forward-looking statements often contain words sach as “believes,” “expacts,” “anticipates,” “foresces,” “forecasts,” “estimates,”
“plans,” “intends,” “continues,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “projects,” “might,” “could” or other similar words or phrases. Simifarly, statements that deseribe our
business strategy, oullook, chjectives, plans, intentions o goals also are forward-leolking statements. We believe there is a reasonable basis for our forward-looking
statements, but they are inherently subject to risks and unceriainties and actual results could diffor materislly from the expeetations and beliefs reflected in the
forward-looking statements. We presently consider the following to be among the iroportant factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our
expectations and beliefs: (1) changes in the budgets or regulatory environments of out clients, primarily local and state governments, that could negatively impact
information, technology spending; (2) our ability te protect client information from security breaches and provide iminternipted operations of data centers; (3) vur
ability to successfully achieve growth or operational synergies through the integration of acquired businesses, while avoiding uwnanticipated costs and disruptions to
gxisting operations; (4) material portions of our business requite the Internet infrastructurs to be adequately maititained; (5) our ability 1o achizve our financial
forecasts due to various factors, including project delays by our clients, reductions in transaction size, fewer transactions, delays in delivery of new products ot
releases or a decline in our renewal rates for service agreements; (6) general cconomic, political and market conditions; {7) technological and market risks

asseciated with the development of new products or services or of new versions of existing or acquired products or services; (8) competition in the industry in
which we conrduct business and the impact of competition on pricing, client retention and pressure
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for new products or services; (9) the ability to attract and retain qualified personnel and dealing with the loss or retirement of key members of management ar other
key personnel; and (10) costs of compliance and any failure to comply with governiment and steck exchange regulations. A detailed discussion of thess factors and

other 1 isks that affect our business are described in Item 1A, “Risk Factors.” We expressly disclaim any obligation to publicly update or revise our forward-looking
statements,

OVERVIEW
General

We provide integrated information management sclutions and services for the public sector, with a focus on local governments, We develop and market a broad
line of software products and services to eddress the IT needs of cities, counties, schools and other local government entities. In addition, we provide professional
IT services to our clients, inchuding software mmil hardware installation, data conversion, traiting and for eertain elients, product modifications, along with
continuing maintenance and support for clients using our systerns, We also provide subscription-based services such as software as a service (“SaaS™), which
utilizes the Tyler private cloud, and electronic decument Sling solutions (*e-filing”), which simplify the filing and management of court related documents.

Revennes for e-filing are derived from transaction fees and in some cases fixed fee arrangements. We also provide property appraisal outseurcing services for
taxing jurisdictions.

Our produsts generally automate six major functionel areas: {1) financial manageient and education, (2) vourts and justice, (3) public safety {4) property appraisal
atd ta, (5) planning, regulatory and maintenance, and {€) land and vital records management. We seport our rasults in two segments, The Enterprise Softwate
Selutions (“ESS") segment provides munieipal and county governments and schools with software systers and services to meet their information technology and
automation needs for mission-critical “back-office™ functions such as financial management; courts and justice processes; public safety; planning, regulstory and
maintenance; ond land und vital records management, The Appraisal and Tax Sofiware Solutions and Services (*ATSS") segment provides systems and software
that automate the appraisal and assessment of real and personal property as well as property appraisal outsouteing services for local governments and taxing
authorities. Property appraisal outsourcing services include: the physical inspection of commercial and residential ptopetties; data collection and processing;
computer analysis for property valuation; preparation of tax rolls; community education; and arbitration between taxpayers and the assessing jurisdiction.

Taotal organic revenuss increased 17% in 2015 compared to 2014,

On Nevember 16, 2015, we scquired all of the capital stock of New World Systems Cotporation (“NWS™), which provides public safety and financial selutions for
loeal governments. The purchase price, net of cash acguired of $22.5 million, was $337.5 million in cash, of which $4.0 million was accrued at December 31,
2015, and 2.1 million shares of Tyler common stock valued at $362.8 million.

On May 29, 2015, we acquited all of the capital stock of Brazos Technology Corporation (*“Brazes™), which provides mobile hand held solutions primarily ‘o law

enforcement agencies for field accident reposting and clectronically issuing itations. The purchase price, net of cash acquired and inchuding debt assumed, was
$4.1 million in cash and 12,500 shares of Tyler common stock valued at $1.5 million,

The operating results of NWS and Brazos are included with the operating results of the Enterprise Seftware Solutions segment since their respective dates of
acquisition.

‘We monitor and analyze several key performance indicators in order to manage our business and evaluate our financial and operating performance. These
indicators include the following:

»  Revenues —We derive our revennes from five primary sources: sale of software licenses and royalties; subscription-based arrangements; sofiwars
services; tmintenance and appraisal services. Subscriptions and maintenance urs considered recurring revenue sources and comprised approximately 60%
of our revenue in 2015. The number of new Saa8 clients and the number of existing clients who convert from our traditional software arrangements to our
Saa8 model are a significant driver to our business, together with new software Hcense sales and mairntenance rate increases. In addition, we also monitor

our customer base and churn as we histotically have experienced very Iow customer tamover, During 2015, based oh our number of customers, turnover
ws approximately 3%.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Margins — Qur primary cost component is personnel expetses in connection with providing sefiware implementation,
subscription-based services, maintenance and support, and apgraisal services fo our clients. We can improve gross matgins by controlling headcount and
related costs and by expanding our revenue base, especially from those products and services that preduce incremental revenue with minimal ingremental

cost, such as software ticenses and royaltics, subscription-based services, and maintenance and support. Our appraisal projects are cyclical in naturs, and
we ofien




employ appraisal personnel on g short-tarm basis to coincide with the life of a project, As of December 31, 2015, our total employee count increased to
3,586 from 2,856 at December 31, 2014, This increase includes 513 employees a dded as a vesult of acquisitions completed in 2015 .

s Selling, General and Administrative ("SG&A™) Expenses — The primary components of SG&A expenses are administrative and sales personne] salaries
and cornmissions, share-based compensation expense, marketing expense, rent and professional fees. Sales commisgions typically fluctuate with revenues
and share-based compensation expense generally increases when the market price of our stock increases. Other administrative expenses tend to grow at &

slower rate than revenues. In 2015, SG&A expenses include approximately §5.9 million for financial advisory, legal, accounting, due diligence, valuation
and other various servicas necessary to complete the NWS acquisition.

»  Liquidity and Cash Flows — The primary driver of our cash flows ig net income, Uses of cash include acquisitions, capital investments in property and
equipment and discretionary purcheses of treasury stock, Qur working capital needs are fairly stable throughout the year with the significant components
of cash outflows being payment of personnel expenses offset by cash inflows representing collection of accounts receivable and cash receipts from clients

in advance of revenue being eamed, In recent years, we have alse received significant amounts of ¢ash from employees exercising stock options and
contributing to our Employee Stock Purchase Plan,

#  Balance Sheet — Cash, accounts receivable and days sales ovtstanding and deferred revenue balances are important indicators of our business.

& mntin

On May 28, 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™} issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU™) No, 2014-08, “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.” This ASU is the result of a convergsnce project between the FASE and the Intemational Accounting Standards Board, The core principle behind ASU
2014-09 is that an entity shauld recognize revenyus to depict the transfer of promized goods and services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be enfitled in exchange for delivering those goods and services, This model involves a five-step process that includes identifying the
confract with the customer, identifying the performance obligations in the contract, determining the transaction price, allocating the transaction prices to the
performance obligations in the contract and recognizing revenue wher (or as) the entity satisfies the performance obligations. The guidence in the ASU supersedes
existing reveme recognition guidance and is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016 with early application not permitted. The
ASU allows two methods of adoption; a full retrospective approach where three years of financial infetmation ure presented in aceordance with the new standard,
and a medified retrospective approach where the ASU is epplied to the most current period presented in the financial statements.

On August 12, 2015, the FASE voted for a one-year deferral of the effective date of the new standard and now reduirss application of the new standard no later
than anrual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim reporting periods therein, Hawever, under the proposal, public entities would

be permitted to elect to early adopt the new standard as of the original effective date. We cumently expect to adopt the new standard in fiscal year 2018 jn
accordance with the revised effective date.

Qutlgok

Activity in the local govemnment seftware market continues fo be good, and with the inclusion of NWS, our backlog at December 31, 2015 reached $844.5 million,
a 20% increase from last year. With our strong finaneial position and cash flow, we plan to accelerale our investment in product development with sxpected
reseerch and development cxpense of approximately $47.0 million, We believe that increasing the investment it gur products will better position us to continue to
expand our competitive position in the public sector software market over the long term,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of aperations is based upon our financial stalements, which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepled in the United States (*GAAP™), The preparation of these financial statements requires ns to make estimates and judgments
that affeet the reported amounts of assets and Habilities at the date of the financial statements, the reported amounts of tevenues, cost of revenies and expenses
during the reporting period, and related disclosure of contingencies, The Notes to the Financial Statements included as part of this Artnnat Report desoribe our
significant accounting policics used in the preparation of the financial statements. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the
application of the percentage-of-completion and proportional performance methods of revenue recognition, the carrying amount and estimated useful lives of
intangible assets, determination of share-based compensation expense and valuation allowance
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for receivables. We base our estimates on historical experience and on varfous other asgumptions that w e believe fo be reasonable under the circumstances, the

results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of zssets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimate ¢ under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following eritical accounting policies require significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our financial statements,

Reverye Recognition . We 1ecognize revenues in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC™ 605, Revenue Recognition and
ASC 985-605, Software Revenus Recognition. Our revenues are derived from sales of software licenses and royaltles, subsoription-based services, appraisal
sarvices, mainienance and suppott, and services that typically range from installation, training and basic consulting to seftware modification and customization to
met specific customer needs. For multiple clement software arrangements, which do not entail the performance of services that are vonsidered essential to the
funetionality of the software, we generally record revenue when the delivered products or performad services result in g legally enforceable and non-refundable
claim, We maitiain allowances for doubiful accounts and sales adjustments, which are provided at the time the revenue 18 recognized. Because mosi of our
customers are governmental entities, we racely incur a loss resulling from the inability of a customer to make required payments, In g limited nurnber of cases, we
encounter a customer who is dissatisfied with some aspect of the sofiware product or our service, and we may offer a “concessien” to such customer, In those
limited situations where we grant a concession, we rarely reduce the contract arrangement fee, but alternatively may perform additional services, such as additional
training or creating additional custom reports. These amounts have historically been neminal. In connection with our customer contracts and the adequacy of
related allowances and measures of progress towards contract completion, our project managers are charged with the responsibility to continually review the stafus
of each customer on a specific contract basis. Alse, we review, on at least a quarterly basis, sfgnificant past due accounts receivable and the adequacy of related
reserves. Bvents or changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying amount for the allswances for doubtful accounts and sales adjustments may requir
revision, include, but are not limited te, deterioration of a customer’s financial condition, fajlure to manage our customer’s expectations regarding the scope of the
services to be delivered, and defects or errors in new versions or enhancements of our software products,

We use conttact accounting, primarily the percentage-ofecompletion methed, as discussed in ASC 605-35, Construction — Type and Certain Production — Type
Contracts, for those soflware arrangements that involve significant produetion, modification or customization of the software, or where our software services are
otherwise considered essential to the functionality of the sofiware, We measure progress-to-completion primarily using labor hours incurred, or value added. In
addition, we recognize revenue nsing the proportional performance methed of revenue recognition for our property appraisal projects, some of which can range up
to five years, These methods rely on ¢stitnates of total expected contract revenue, billings and collections and expected contract costs, as well as measures of
progress toward completion. We believe reasonably dependable estimates of revenne and costs and progress applicable to various stages of a contract can be made.
At times, we perform additional and/or non-contractual services for Little to no incremental fee to satisfy customer expectations, If changes pecur in delivery,
productivity or other factors used in developing our estimates of expected costs or revenues, we tevise our cost and reveine estiwates, and any revisions are
charged to income in the period in which the facts that give rise to that revision first become known, In conneetion with these and certain other condracts, we may
perform the work prior to when the services are billable and/or payable pursuant to the contract. The termination ¢lauses in most of our contracts pravide for the
payment for the value of products delivered and services performed in the event of an early termination.

For S2a8 arrangements, we evaluate whether the customer has the contractual right to take possession of our sofiware at any time during the hosting period withoot
significant penalty and whether the customer can feasibly maintain the software on the custoner’s hardware or enter info another atrangement with a third-party to
host the software. If we determine that the customer hag the contractual right to take possession of our software at any tims during the hosting period without
significant penalty and can feasibly maintain the sofiware on the customer’s hardware or enter into another arrangement with a third-party to host the software, we
recognize the license, professional services and hosting services revenues pursuant to ASC 985-605, Software Revenue Recognition, For Saa8 artangements that do
not meet the criteria for recognition under ASC 983-603, we account for the elements under ASC 605-25, Multiple Element Arrangements using all applicable facts
and circumstances, including whether (i) the clement has stand-alone value, (i) there is a general right of retarn and (jif) the revenue is contingent on delivery of
other elements. We allocate the contract value to each element of the arrangement that qualifies for treatment as a separate element based on vendor-specific
objective evidence of fair value (“VSOE”), and if VSOE is not available, third-party evidence, and if third-party evidence is unavailable, estimated selling price,
For professional services associated with Saa8 arrangemens that we determine do not have stand-alone value to the cusiomer ot are contingent on delivery of other
¢lements, we recognize the services revenue ratably ever the remaining contractual period once hosting has gone live and we may begin billing for the hosting

setvices, We record amounts that have been invoiced in accounts recelvable snd in deferred revenue or revenues, depending on whether the revenue recognition
criteria have been met.
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In connection with certain of our contracts, we have recorded retentions receivable or unbilled receivables consisting of costs and estimated profit in excess of
billings as of the balance s heet date. Many of the contracts which give rise to unbilled receivables at a given balance sheet date are subject to billings in the
subsequent accounting period. We review unbilled receivables and related contract provisions to ensure we are justified in recognizing revenue prior to billing the
customner and that we have abjective evidence which allows us to recognize such revenne. In addition, we have a sizable amount of deferred revenue, which
represents billings in excess of revenue sarned. The majority of this liability consists of maintenance billings for which payments are made in advance and the
revenue is ratably camed over the maintenance period, generally one year. We also have deferred revenue for those contracts in which we receive 4 deposit an d the

conditions in which to recerd revenue for the service or product has not been met. On a periodic basis, we review by customer the detail components of onr
defetred revenue to ensure our accounting remains appropriate.

Inmtangible Assets and Goodwill . Our business acquisitions typically result in the creation of goodwill and other intangible asset balances, and these balances affect
the amownt and timing of future period amortization expense, as well as expense we could possibly incur as a result of an impairment charge. The cost of acquired
companies is aflocated to identifiable tangible and intangible asseis based on estimated fair value, with the excess allocated to geodwill, Accordingly, we have a
significant balance of acquisition date ittangible assets, including software, customer related intangibles, trade name, leases and goodwill, Thesz intangible assets
(other than goodwill) are amortized aver their estimated nseful lives. We currently have no intangible agsets with indefinite lives other than goodwill,

When testing goodwill for impairment quantitatively, we first compere the fair value of each reporting unit with its carrying amount. If the carrying amount of a
reporting unit exceeds iis fair value, a second step is performed to measure the amount of potential impairment, In the sacond step, we compare the implied fair
value of reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill. If the carrying amount of reporting unit goodwill exceads the implied
fair value of that goodwill, an impainment loss is recognized. The fair values caleulated in our impairment tests are determined using discounted cash flow medels
inwolying several assumptions. The assumptions that are used are based upon what we believe a hypothetical marketplace participant would use in estimating fair
value. We base our fair valne estimates ¢n assumptions we belisve to be reasonable but that are unpredictable and inherently uncertain, We evaluate the

reasonableness of the fair value calculations of our reporting units by comparing the total of the fair value of all of our reporting units to our tetal market
capitalization,

Our annoal peodwill impairment analysis, which we performed quantitatively during the second quarter of 2015, did not regult in an impainment cherge. During
2015, wa did not identify any triggering events that would require an update to our annual impairment review.

All intangible assets (other than goodwill) are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable, Recoverability of other intangible assets is measured by comparison of the catrying amount to estimated undiscounted future cash flows.
The assessment of recoverability or of the estimated useful life for amortization purpases will be affected if the timing or the amount of estimated fuiure operating
cash flows i3 net achieved, Such indicators may include, among others: a significant decling in expacted futire cash flows; a sustained, significant decline in stock
price and market capitalization; a significant adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate; unartticipated competition; and raductions in growth rates,
In addition, products, capabilities, or technolegies developed by others may render our software products obsolete or non-competitive, Any adverse change in these
factors could have a sighificant impact on the recoverability of goedwill or other intangible assets,

Share-Based Compensation. We have a stock option plan that provides for the grant of stock options to key employees, directors and non~employee consuliants,
We estimate the fair value of share-based awards on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valuation model, Share-based compensation expense nchides
the estimated effects of forfeitures, which will be adjusted over the requisite service petiod to the extent actual forfeitures differ, or ure expected to differ from such
egstimates, Changey in estimated forfeitures are recognized in the period of change and will also impact the amount of expense to be recognized in future periods.
Forfeiture rate assumptions are derived from historical data. We estimate stock price volatility at the date of grant based on the historical volatility of our common
stock. Bstimated option life is determined using the weighted-average period the stock options are expected to be outstanding based primarily on the options’
vesting terms, remaining contractual life and the employees’ sxpected exercise based on historical patters. Determining the appropriate fair-value model and

¢aleulating the fair value of shure-bused awards at the grant date requires considerable judgment, including estimating stock price volatility, expected option life
and forfefture rates.
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ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND OTHER
The following disctgsion compares the historical results of operations on a basis consigtent with GAAP for the veats ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,

Percentage of Total Revenues

; Years ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013
Revenues.
Software licenses and royalties 100 % 10.0 % 98 %
Subscriptions 189 - 178 148
Software services 23.7 23.1 22.4
‘Mimntenance : 416 431 46.0
Appraisal services 4.2 44 5.0
Hardware and ather L6 16 20
Total revenues 100.0 100.0 100.0
Operating Expenses '
Cost of software licenses, royalties and
acquired gollware 1.0 03 1.1
Cost of software services, mamitenance
and subscriptions - 482 4759 478
Cost of appraisal services 27 2.9 33
Cost of hardware and other- 11 it 13
Selling, general and adininistrative expenses 2.6 22.0 23.6
Research and development expense 51 52 56
Amortization of customer and trade name
intangibles 10 0.5 1.1
Operating inceme 183 192 161
Qther income (expanse), het 0.1 {0.1) 0.3)
Income before income taxes 184 19,1 | 158
Income tax provision 7.4 7.2 5.4
Net ncome 1.0 % 119 % 94 %
2015 Compared 1o 2114

Revenues

On November 16, 2013, we acquired NWS, which provides public safety and financial solutions for locel governments and its operating results are included with
the operating results of the ESS segment since the date of acquisition. The following table details revemue for NWS for the peried fiom November 16, 2015 to
December 31, 2015, which iz included in our conselidated statement of comprehensive income;

2015
Revenues:

Software licenses - : % 1,507
Subscriptions 632
Softwine services : o 2,062
Mainienance 5,624
Hardwart and other : : T 259

Total revenues $ 14,084

In May 2015, wo acquired a company which provides mobile hand-held solutions primarily to law enforcement agencies for field accident reporting and
electronically issuing citations. In August 2014, we acquired a company which provides civil process management, typically to county sheriff departments. The
Impact of these acquisitions on our operating results are not considered
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material an d are not inctuded in the table above, The results of their operations are included in our ESS segment from their respective dates of acquisition,
Saftware licenses and royalties,

The following table sets forth a commparison of our software licenses and royalties revenue for the years ended December 31;

Change
(# in thougands) 2013 2014 3 %
ESS $ T s4316 5 46047 5 8320 18 %
AlSS 4,632 3,018 1,614 53
Total sofivate licenses and royalties revenae : $ 59008 - %- 49065 $ 9,943 20 %

Excluding the results of acquisitions, software license revenue increased 15% compared to the prior year, The majority of this growih was due to a more active
marketplace as the result of improvement in local government economic conditions, as well as our increasingly sirong competitive poesition, which we attribute in
part to our investment in product development in recent years. In addition, add-on sales to our existing customer base for courts and justice related solutions that
assist and support the transition to a4 paperless environment increased appreximately $1.3 million.

Although the mix of new coniracts between subscription-based and perpetual license arrangements may very from quarter to quarter and year to year, we expect
our longer-term software license growth rate to be negatively impacted by a growing number of customers choosing our subscription-based options, rather than
purchasing the software under a traditional perpetual software license arrangement. Subscription-besed arrangements result in lower software license revenue in the
initiel year as compared to perpetual seftware license arrangements but generate higher averall revenue over the term of the contract. Our new client mix in 2015
was approximately 76% sclecting perpetval software license arrangements and approximately 24% selecting subscription-based arrangements compared to a client
mix in 2014 of approximately 74% selecting perpetual software license arrangements and approximately 26% selecting subseription-based arrangements. 134 new
clients entered into subscription-based software arrangements in 2015 compared to 138 new clients in 2014,

Subscriptions.

The following table sets forth a comparison of our subscriptions revenue for the years ended December 31;

Change
($ in thousands) 2013 2014 5 %
ESS $ 107080 $. 84322 § . 22768 2T %
ATSS 4,843 3,526 1,317 37
Total subscriptiong revenue : 3 111,933 § 87,848 § - 24085 P27 %

Subscription-based services revenue primarily consists of revenue derived from our SaaS arrangements, which utilize the Tyler private cloud. As part of our
subscription-based services, we also provide electronic document filing solutions (“e-filing™) that simplify the Rling and management of court related documents
for courts and law offices. E-filing revenue is derived from transaction fees and fixed fee amangements.

Subscription-bascd services revernue increased 27% compered to 2014, E-filing services contributed approximately $7,7 millon of the subscriptions revenue
increase fn 2015, Most of the e-filing reverne increase related to several statewide contracts, several of which implemented mandatory electronic filing near the
cnd of 2014 and throughout 2015. New SaaS clients as well as exiating clients whe convetted to our SaaS model provided the remainder of the subseriptions
revenuc increase. In 2015, we added 134 new SaaS clients and 66 existing clients clected to convert to gur Saa$ model. The average contract sizes in 2015 were
38% and 22% higher than 2014 for new clients and clients converting to our SaaS model, respectively.

Saftware services.

The following table sets forth 2 comparison of our sofiware services revenue for the years ended December 31:

Change
(% in thousands) 2015 2014 $ %
Bgs - - . § 1290068 % 104146 § 24,923 24 %
ATSS 10,784 9,675 1,108 11
Total software services revenue ) $ 139852 % fIagal §0 0 26M1 23 %
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Software services revenue primarily consists of professional services billed in connection with implermenting our software, converting client data, training client pe
rsonnel, custom development activities and consulting, New clients who purchase our proprietary software livenses generally also contract with us to provide for
the related software services. Existing clients also periodically purchase additional training, consulting and minor programming services. Excluding the results of
acquisitions, software services revenue grew 20% comypared fo the prior year period, This growth is mainty due te much higher revenue from proprietary software
atrangements, as well as add itions to our implementation and support staff, which inereased our capacity to deliver backlog,

Maintenance.

The following table sets forth a comparison of vur maintenance revenue for the years ended Decernber 31:

Change

{$ in fhousands) 2015 2014 § %

ESS . $ 2758 % 195381 $ 31,705 16 %

ATSS 17,951 16,815 1,136 7
Total mamtenance revenne ¥ 245,537 §° 212696 ¥ 32,841 15 %

We provide maintenance und support services for our software products and certain third-party software, Excluding the results of acquisitions, maintenance

revenue grew 12% compared to the prior year. Maintenance and support revenue increased mainly due to growth in our installed customer base from new software
license sales as well as annual maintenance rate inoreases.

Appraisal services,

The following table sets forth a comparison of our appraisal services revenuc for the years ended December 31

Change
{$ In thousands) 2015 2014 £ %%
ESS 5 — 3 - % - = — %
ATSS 25,065 21,302 3,263 15
Total appraisal services sevemue 3 25065 $ 21802 § - 3,263 15 %

The appraisal services business is somewhat cyclical and driven in part by statutory tevaluation cycles in various states. Appraisal services revenue benefiited from
the addition of several new revaluation contracts, including the City of Detroit, and the current appraisal cyole in Indiana, both of which began in mid-2014. In
mid-2015, Franklin County, Ohio began a full reappraisal cyele, which also contributed 1a appraisal services revenue.

Cost erit 8 Ma

The following table sets forth a comparison of the key components of our cost of revenues for the years cnded December 310

Chiange

[$ in_thousapds) 2015 2014 3 Y%
Software licenses and royaliies” ' $ . 1632 § 1900 § (268} (14)%
Acquired software _ 4,440 1,858 2,582 130
Softwae sérvices, mamtenance and subserptions - 285,340 236,363 43,977 21
Appraisal services 15922 14,284 1,638 11
Hardware and other =~ 6,501 - - 5325 1,176 22

Total cost of revenmes § 313,835 § 259,730 § 34,103 21 %
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The following tabie sets forth a comparison of gross margin percentage by revenue typs for the years ended December 31:

Grogs margin percentage 2015 2014 Changg
Softwire licenses, royalties and aceuired sofiware 897 % 03 % (26)%
Sofiware services, maintenance and subscriptions 2.6 43.0 (0.4)
Appraisal services 365 45 20
Hardware and other 32.5 323 02
Overall gross margm ' _ : 469 % . 4713 % 04)%

Software licenses, royafties and acquired software . Costs of sofiware licenses, royalties and acquired sofiware are primarily comprised of third-perty software
costs and amortization expense for acquired softwace, We do not have any direct costs associzfed with royalties. In 2015, our software licenses, royalties and
scquired software pross margin percentage declined compered to the prior year due to much higher amertization expense for acquired software resulting from pur
aequisition of NWS. Excluding the results of NWS, our software license, royaltics and acquired software gross margin was 93.6% which increased 1.3% from the
prior year period mainly due to higher revenues from proprietary software arrangements.

Saftware services, maintenatice and subscriptions . Cost of software services, maintenance and subscriptions primarily consists of personnel costs related to
installation of our software, conversion of client data, training client persontiel and suppert activities and various other services such as custom client development
and on-going operation of SaaS and e-filing arrangements. In 2015, {he software services, maintenance and subscriptions gross margin percentage declined
compared fo the priet year mainly due to enboarding costs associated with accelorated hiring to ensure that we are well-positioned to deliver our current backlog
and enticipated new business. Excluding 285 employees added with acquisitions, our implementation and suppart staff has grown by 200 employees since
December 31, 2014, In addition, in 2015, ws incutred $1.4 wmillion more in contract labor cost than 2014 in an effort to maintain flexibility to accommodate
fluctuations in demand for professional services. The gross margin docline was somewhat offset because costs related to maintenance and variows other services

guch as SaaS and e-filing typically grow at n slowes rate than related revenue due to leverage in the utilization of our support and maintenatice staff and economies
of scale. Price increases also resulted in slightly higher rates on certain services.

Appraisal services . Appraisal services revenue comprised approximately 4% of total revenue. The appraisal serviees gross matgin increased 2% compared to
2014. A high proportion of the costs nf appraisal services revenue are variable, as we often hite temperary employees to assist in appraisal projects, whose tesm of

employment generally ends with the projects’ completion. The appraisal servives gross margin was favarably impacted by operational efficiencies associated with
a large reveluation contract that began late 2014,

Cur 2015 blended gross margin declined 0.4% compared to 2014, The gross margin was negatively impacted by increased acquired sofiwate amortization expense

associated with the NWS acquisition and expenses assoclated with increased hiring of implementation and development staff in order to expand our capacity to
implement our contract backlog,

Selling. General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses consist primarily of salarios, cmployee benefits, travel, share-based compensation expense, commissions
and related overhead costs for administrative and sales and marketing employecs, as well as, profossional fees, trade show activities, advertising costs and other
marketing related costs. The following table sets forth a comparison of our SG&A expenses for the following years ended December 31:

Change
(% in thousands) 2013 2014 £ %
Selling, genersl and administrative exgenses $ 133317 % 108260 § 25,057 23 %
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BG&A as a percentage of revenue was 22.6% in 2015 compared to 22.0% in 2014. In 2015, our SG&A expenses include approximately $5.9 million for firancial
advisory, tegal, ac counting, due ditigence, valuation and other various services necessary fo complete the NWS acquisition, In addition, our 2015 operating results
include $4.0 million of SG&A expenses for NWS from the date of acquisition. The remaining SG&A expense incress ¢ is mainly due fo compensation cost related
{o increased staff levels, higher stock compensation expense and increazed commission expense as a result of kigher sales. Excloding 140 employees added with
acquisitions, we have added 16 employees mainly to o ur sales and finance teams since December 31, 2014, In addition, our 2015 stock compensation expenss rose
$4.2 million, mainly due to increases in our stock price over the last few years,

Resegrch and Development Expense

Research and development expense consists primarily of salaries, employee benefits and related overhead costs associated with product development. The
following 1able sets forth a comparison of our research and development expense for the years ended December 31:

Change
(8 in thousands) 2015 014 3 %
Research and development expense $ 29922 % 25743 § 4179 16 %

Research and development expense consists mainly of costs associated with development of new products and technologies from which we do not currently
gencrate revenue, 43 well as costs related to the ongoing development efforts for Microsaft Dynamics AX. In February 2015, we announced that our contractual
research and development commitment to develop public sector finctionality for Microsoft Dynamics AX expires with the release of Dynarnics AX 7, which is
expected to occur in the first quarter of 2016, We ure corrently discossing with Microsoft Corporation the possibility of additional research and development
beyend Dynamics AX 7. If we cannet agree to terms of any future commitments, we will confinne to provide sustained enginecring and technical support for the

public secter functionality within Dynamics AX. License and maintenance royalties for all applicable domestic and international sales of Dynamics AX to public
sector entities will continve under the terms of the contract.

Research and development expense in 2015 includes approximately $1.5 million refated to NWS. The remaining increase compared to 2014 was primarily due to
increased staffing to maintain and enhance our competitive position and annual wage adjustments,

Amortization o

Acquisition intangibles are cornprised of the excess of the purchase ptice over the falr value of net tangible assets acquired that iy allocated to sequired software,
leases and customer and trade name intangibles. The remaining excess purchase price is allocated to goodwill that is not subject to amortization. Amortization
expense related to acquired software is included with cost of revenues, while amortization expense of customer and trade name intangibles is recorded as operating
expense, The estimated usefisl lives of both sustomer and trade name intangibles range from five to 25 years. The following table sets forth a comparison of
amortization. of customer and trade narme intangibles for the years ended December 31:

Change

{3 in theusands) 2015 ) 2014 g %
Amortization of cusiomer and trade name intangrbles L% 5905 §..  4346. % 1,359 7 30 %

In 2015, we completed two acquisitions that increesed amortizable customer and trade name intangibles by approximately $127.8 million. This amount is being
amortized over a weighted average period of 15 year. We also added approximately $3.7 million to acquisition related intangibles to reflect the fair value of
acquirad leases, which will be amortized over the weighted average life of @ years.

Estimated annieal amortization expense relating to customer and trade name acquisition intangibles, excluding acquired sofiware for which the amortization
expense is recorded as cost of Tevenues, for the next five years is as follows (in thousands):

216 ﬁ ' b3 13,448
2017 13,448
2018 - 13,299
2019 11,944
2020 10,795

30



Amortization expense relating {o acquired leases will be recorded as a reduction to other income and is expected to be 5444,000 in 2016, $444,000 in 2017,
$426,000 in 2018, $372,000 in 2019, $313,000 in 2020 and $1.7 million thereafter,

Cther

The following fable sets forth a comparison of other income (expense), net for the years ended December 31:

Change
(% in thousands) 2015 2014 s %
Other incornie (expense), net _ ‘ $ 381 % {333) & 136 NA %

Other income (expense) is comprised of interest income from invested cash, as well as interest expense and non-usage and other fees associated with our revolving
credit agreement. Expenses in 2014 were comprised primarily of non-usage and other fees associated with a revolving debt agreement that terminated in August

2014, offset slightly by interest income from invested cash. In 2015, we had significantly higher invested cash balances than 2014 until we complated the NWS
acquisition on November 16, 2015,

Income Tax Provision

The following table scts forth a comparison of our income tax provision for the years ended December 31:

Change

% in thousands) z015 2014 $ %
Tricomrio tax protision $ 41555 3§ 35527 % 8,028 23 %

Effective mncome tax rate 40.2 % 376 %

The effective income tax rates were difforent from the statwtory United States federal Income tax rate of 35% principally due to state income taxes, non-deductible
share-based compensation expense, the qualified manufacturing aclivities deduction, disqualifying incentive stock option dispositions , non-deductible meals and
entertainment costs and non~deductible transaction costs. A lower qualified manufacturing activities deduction and non~-deductible transaction costs related {o the
NWS acquisition negatively impacted our 2015 effective tax rate.

In the past few years a relatively high amount of excess tax benefits related to stock option exercises have resulted it # reduction in our qualified manufacturing
aetivities deduction. The qualified mannfaciuting sotivities deduction can be limited to a certain level of taxable income on the tax return. Therefore, any
significant items that reduce taxable income, such as excess tax benefits on stock options, ean reduce the amount of the quatified manufacturing activities

deduction. We experienced significant stock option exercise activity in 2015 and 2014 that generated excess tax benefits of $45,3 million and $19.4 million,
respectively.

2014 Compared to 2013
Revenyes

Software Heenses and royaities.

The following table sets forth a comparison of our softwara licenses and royalttes revenue for the years ended December 31:

Change
(8 in thousands) 2014 2013 $ %
ESS . ' 3 46,047 § 38774 § 7,278 19 %
ATSS 3,018 2,067 D51 46
Total softwae heenses and royalties tevenue $ . 49065 "% 40841 § 8,224 20 %

Software license and royalties revenue growth was mainly due 1o a mora active marketplace as the result of improvement in logal government economic conditions,
as well as our incteasingly strong competitive position, which we attsibute in part to our increased investments in produet development over the past few years, An
inerease in the number of larger contracts, in particular in the cotrts and justice market, also contributed to the growth in license revenue.
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Software license revenue was reduced so mewhat because of a growing number of clients choosing our subseription based options, rather than purchasing the

softwate under a traditional perpetual software license arrangement. 138 new clients entered into subscription-based sofiware arrangemwents in 2014 compated to
100 new clients in 2013,

Subscriptions.

The following table sets forth a comparison of our subscriptions revenue for the years ended December 31:

Change
(§ i thousands) 2014 2013 $ % _
ESS $. 843 3% 59070 § 15,252 43 %
ATSS 3,526 2,794 732 26
Total subscriptions revenue 3 87848 § 61,864 % 25,984 42 %

Subscription-based services revenue increased 42% compared to 2013. E-filing services contributed approximately $13.3 million of the subscriptions revenue
increase in 2014, Most of the e-filing revenue increase related to higher revenue from a contract with the Texas Office of Court Administration for our Odyszey
File and Serve e-filing system for Texas courts (“eFileTexas.gov™) for civil court filings, which was implemented in September 2013, The state of Texas mandated
all counties use eFileTexas. gov. This contrac provided a recurring revenue stream that totaled §17.0 million in 2014, New Saa$ clients as well as existing clients

who converted to our SaaS model provided the remainder of the subscriptions revenue increase. In 2014, we added 138 new SaaS clients and 59 existing clients
elected to convert to our Saa8 model,

Saftware services .

The following table sets forth a comparison of our sofrware services revenue for the years ended December 31:

Change
$ in thousands 2014 2013 $ i)
ESS ! . b 104,146 $ . . 85459 3% 18,687 22 %
ATSS 9,675 7,808 1,867 24
Total software services revenue 5 113,821 § 93267 § 20,554 22 %

Software services grew 22% in 2014 mainly due to imuch higher revenue from new proprietary software arranigrantents, slightly higher rates on certain services and
additions to our professional services staff which increased our capacity to deliver backlog.

Maintenance |

The following table sets forth a comparison of our maintenance revenue for the years ended Decomber 31:

Chanpe
{3 m thousands) 2014 2013 $ %
ESS 5 195,881 % 175180 % 20,701 12 %
ATSS 16,815 16,540 275 2
‘Total maintenance revenue. - .. $ 21289 § 191,720 §: - 20976 11 %

Maintenance and support revenue increased mainly due to growth in our installed custemer base from new software license sales as well as annual maintenance
rate increases.

Appraival services .

The following table sets forth a comparison of our appraisal services revenue for the years ended Devember 51:

Change
(# iu thopsapds) 2044 2013 $ %
ESS ‘ T 5 — ¥ — ¥ _ — e Yo
ATSS 21,802 20,825 017 5
Total appraisal setinces revenug ' $ 21,802 $. .- 20825 §. 917 5 %
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Appraisal services 2014 revenue benefitted by the mid-year addition of several new revaluation contracts in New York and the recent appraisal eycle in
Indisne,

Revenyes di farging

The following table sets forth a comparison of the key components of our cost of revenues for the years ended December 31:

Change

(§ in thousands) 2014 2013 § %
Software licenses and royalties 3 1,900 § 2377 % {477) (R03%
Acquired software 1,858 2,078 (220} (1)
Software services, maintenance and subscriptions : 236,363 199,617 36,746 18
Appraisal services 14,284 13,809 475 3
Hatdware and other 5,325 5559 - (234) {4}

Total cost of revenues 3 259730 § 223440 36,290 16 %

The following table sets forth a comparison of gross margin percentage by revenue type for the years ended December 31:

CGross margin percentage 2004 2013 Change
Software Heenses, royalties and acqiiired software W3 % o 891 % 32 %
Soflware services, maintenance and subscriptions 430 424 0.6
Appralial services L 345 Co37 © 08 .
Hardware and other 323 316 0.7
Overall pross margin o : 473 % 464 % 09 %

Software licenses, rovalties and aequived software . In 2014, our sofiware licenses, royalties and acquired sofiware gross margin percentage increased compared to
2013 mainly due to higher revenues from proprietary sofiware revenues, which have a higher gross margin than third-party seftware.

Software services, maintenance and subscription-based services . The sofiware services, maintenance and subscriptions gross margin percentage increased mainly
due to revenue from a contract with the Texas Office of Court Administestion for eFileTexas.gov to manage e-filing of court documents. This contract began in

September 2013, but we incurred initial startup costs in 2013 for which there were very limited retated revenues. The addition of revenue from this contract since
2013 accounted for most of the gross margin increase, The gross margin increase was offset somewhat by costs related to accelerated hiring to ensure that we are

well-positioned to deliver eur current backlog and anticipated new business, Our implementation, development and support staff has increased in 2014 by 215
employees since 2013,

Appraisal services . The appraisal services gross margin incroased slightly compared to 2013, A high proportion of the costs of appraisal services revenue are
variable, a3 we often hire temporary employees to assist in appraisal projeets, whoge tesm of employment penerally ends with the projects’ completion.

Our blended gross margin for 2014 inereased 0.9% from 2013. The gross margin increase was mainly due to a revenue mix that included more software license
revenue and sybseription revenue and in particular, increased revenus from ¢-filing {n Texas. This imprevement in gross margin was offset somewhat by expenses
agsociated with increased hiring of implementation, development and support staff in order to expand our capacity te implement our contract backlog.

The following table sets forth a comparisen of our 8G&A oxpenses for the following years ended Decernber 31

Change
(3 in thousands) 2014 2013 $ [
Selling, peneral and administrative expenses ] 108260 % 98,285 § 9,971 10 %

SC&A as a percentage of revetue was 22.0% in 2014 compared to 23.6% in 2013, Approximately one-third of the SG&A expense increase was from higher
commission expense due to sales growth. Stock compensation expense contributed approximately one-
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quarter of fhe increase primarily due to increases in onr stock price. The remalning increase consisted of higher bonuses related to operating rosults, annval wage
adjustnents and inereased travel expengas,

Reseqrch and Development Expense
The following table sets forth a comparisen of our rescarch and development expense for the years ended December 31:

Change

($ in thousands) 2014 2013 - 3 k1)
Research énd development éxpenie - % 25743 % 23,269 % 2474 11 %

In 2014, research and development expense increased 11% compared to 2013 due to annual wage adjustments and increased staffing to maintain and enhance our
competitive position.

zal 1! de Name Intangible

The following table sets forth a comparison of amortization of customer and trade name intangibles for the years onded December 31:

Chinpe

(8 in thousands) 2014 2013 $ %
Amattizatfosi of customer and trade name intangibles . £ 0 4546 § 4517 § - 29 t %

In 2014, we completed one acquisition that increased amortizable customer and trade name intangibles by approximately $1.0 million. This amount i3 being
amortized over g weighted average period of 12 years.

Qthgr

The following table sets forth a comparison of other expense, net for the years ended December 31:

Change
{4 in thousands) 2014 2013 $ %
Other expetise; net : 3 (355) § (1309) % 954 ' (73)%

Other expense, net was pritarily coraprised of interest expense, non-usage and other foes associated with a revolving line of credit sgreement that mapared in
August 2014, offset somewhat by Interest Income associated with invested cash balances, Interest expense declined compared to the prior year because we repaid
all borrowings under the revolving credit agreement in early 2013, and had no debt outstanding during 2014.

Income Tax Provigion

The following table sets forth a comparison of our income tax provision for the years ended December 31:

Change
(% in thousands) 2014 2013 b %
Income tax provision § 35527 % 2678 § 8,808 33 %

Effective income tax rate 376 % 406 %

The effective income tax rates were different from the statutory United States federal income tax rate of 35% due to state income taxes, non-deductible share-based
compensation expense, the qualified manufacturing activities deduction, disqualifying incentive stock option dispositions and non-deductible meals end
entertainment costs, The qualified manufacturing activities deduction increased in 2014, which coniributed to a lower effective tax rate,

We experienced significant stock option exercise activity in 2014 and 2013 that generated excess tax benefits of $19.4 million and $28.2 million, respectively.

Excess tax benefits raduce tax payments but do not significantly reduce the effective tax rate and can result in limitations on other deductions. In 2013, limitations
resulting from excess tax benefits eliminated the qualified manufacturing activities deduction, which negatively impacied our effective tax rate.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

As of December 31, 2013, we had cash and cash equivalents of $33.1 million compared to $206.2 million at December 31, 2014, We also had $30.9 million
invested in investment grade corperate and municipal bonds as of December 31, 2013. These invesiments mature between 2016 and mid-2017 and we intend to
hold these investments until maturity. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on deposit with several domestic banks and money market funds. Asof
December 31, 2013, we had $66.0 million in outstanding borrewings and an owtstanding letter of credit totaling $1.5 million in connection with one contract. We
do not believe this letter of credit will be required to be drawn upon. This letter of credit expires in mid-2016, We believe our revolving line of credit, cash from
operating activities, cash on hand and access to the eredit markets provides vs with sufficient flexibility to meet our long-term financial needs.

The following table sets forth a suramary of cash flows for the years ehded Deceraber 31:

{8 in thousands) 2015 2014 2013

Cash flows provided (used) by, '

Qperating activitics $ 89,013 % 123,437 3 66,000
Tnvestitig actiVities (398,459) ~ - (11,555} (25,658)
Financing activities : 136,366 15,409 32,038
Net {decrease) increasc in cash and cash equlvalents $  (173,080) § 127,291 § 72,470

Net cash provided by eperating activities continues to be our primary source of finds to finance operating needs and capital expenditures. Other potential capital
resonrees inctude cash on hand, public and private ssuances of debt or equity securities, and bank borrowings. It is possible that cur ability to access the capital and
credit markets in the future may be limited by economic conditions or other factors, We cutrently believe that cash provided by operating activities, cash on hand

and available credit are sufficient to fund our working capital requirements, capital expenditures, income tax obligations, and ghare repurchases for at least the next
twelve months.

In 2015, operating activities provided cash of $89.0 million. Operating activities that provided cash were primarily comprised of net income of $64,9 millio, non-
cash depresiation and amortization charges of $19.6 million and non-cash share-based compengation expense of $20.2 million, Cash provided by operating
activities was negatively impacted in 2015 by tax payments that were $17.1 million higher than the prior year partly due to more taxable income and parily dus to
timing of stock option exercises and our ability to utikize related excess tax credits to determine estimated tax payments during the year, Our excess tax credit in
2015 was $43.3 million of which, ever 70% was generated in the fourth quarter and as a result we recorded a $21,1 million income tex receivable at December 31,
2015. Accounis receivable glso increased due to timing of annual maintenance and subscription billings due to growth in our customer hase as well as nermal
mairtenatce biltings of approximately $15.0 million associated with NWS, These negative impacts on operating cash were offset somewhat by growth in deferred
maintenancs revenue. In general, changes In the balance of defetred revenue are cyclival and primarily driven by the timing of our maintenance renewal billings.
Our renewal dates oceur firoughout the year but our heaviest renewal cycles occur in the second and fourth quarters. In addition, deferred revenue intluded one
nusually large costomer deposit of $7.5 million at December 31, 2015,

Days sales outstanding in accounts receivable were 100 days at December 31, 2015, compared fo 80 days at December 31, 2014, mainly due to the impact ot the
DSO caleulation of having approximately seven weeks of post-acquisition revenues fiom NWS but included all of their ontstanding accounts receivable at
December 31, 2015, DSOs are caleulated based on accounts receivable (excluding long-term receivables, but including unbilled receivables) divided by the
quoticnt of annualized quarterly revenuos divided by 360 days. Excluding NWS, DSOs were 7% days at December 31, 2013,

Investing activities vsed cash of $398.5 million in 2015 compared to §11,6 million in 2014. On November 16, 2815, we acquired all of the capital stock of NWS,
which provides public safsty and financial solutions for lecal governments. The purchase price, net of cash acquired of $22.5 million, was $337.5 million in cash,
of which $4.0 million was acorued at December 31, 2013, and 2.1 million shares of Tyler comimon stock valued of $362.8 miltion, On May 29, 2015, we acquired
all of the capital stock of Brazos Technology Corporation, which provides mobile hand held solutions primarily to law enforcement agencies for field accident
reporting and electronitally issuing citations, The purchase price, net of cash acquired and including debt assumed, was $6.1 million in cash and 12,500 shares of
Tyler copanon stock valued at $1.5 million, On Junuary 30, 2015, we made a §15.0 million investment in convertible preferred stock representing a 20% interest in
Revord Holdings Pty Limited. We 2lso invested $30.9 million in investrent grade corporate and municipel bonds maturing between 2016 and mid-2017. The
remaining vse of cash was for capital expenditures related to computer equipment, fieniture and fixtures in support of infernal growih, particularly with respect to
growth in our cloud-based offerings. These expenditures were finded from cash generated from operstions, cash on hand and bank barrowings.



In 2014, we completed the acquisition of SoftCode, Ine. for a purchase price of $3.5 miltion in cash, of which $325,000 was accrued at Decem ber 31, 2014, and
16,540 shares of Tyler common stock valued st $1.5 million. The temaining use of cash in 2014 was comprised primarily of capital expenditures related to

computer ¢quipment, furnitare and fixtures in support of internal growth. Investing a ctivities in 2013 included $20.3 million paid in conmection with the
construction of an office building in Plano, Texas,

Finanving activities provided cash of $136.4 million in 2015 compared to $15.4 million in 2014, Financing activities were comprised of net borrowings of 66,0
million, collections of $27.8 million from stock option exereises and employee stock purchase plan activity and $45.3 million excess tax benefit from exercises of
share-based arrmgements, We purchased approximately 5,400 shares of our common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $645,000 in 2015 and paid §2.1
million in debt issuance costs_ Financing activities in 2014 were comprised of collsctions of $18.8 million from stock option exercises and confributions from the
employee stock purchase plan and $19.4 million excess tax benefit from exercises of share-based arrangements. “These increases were offset somewhat by
parchases of 294,000 shares of our common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $22.8 million, Financing activities in 2013 were comprised of collections of
$21.8 million from stock option exercises and employes stock purchass plan activity and $28.2 million excess tax benefit from exercises of share-based
arrangements, offset partially by $18.0 million in net payments on our revolving line of credit,

The share repurchase program, which was approved by our hoard of directors, was announced in Ostober 2002, and was amended at varlous times from 2003
through 2011, As of December 31, 2015, we had remaining autherization to repurchase up to 1.4 million additional shares of our common stock, Our share
repurchase program allows us to repurchase shares at our discretion. Market conditions influence the timing of the buybacks and the rumber of shares repurchased,
as well as the volume of employes stock option exercises, Share repurchases are generally funded using our existing cash balances and borrowings under our eradit
facitity and may occur through open market purchases and transactions sttuctured through investment banking institutions, privately negotiated transactions and/or
other mechanisms. There is no expirailon date specified for the authorization and we itend to repurchage stock under the plan from time to time.

Subsequent to December 31, 2015 and through February 22, 2016, we purchased approximately 241,000 shares of our commaon steck for an aggregate cash
purchase price of $31.3 million,

On November 16, 2015 we entered into a $300.0 miliion Credit Agreement (the “Credit Facility™) with various lenders party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as Administrative Agent. The Credit Facility provides for a revolving credit line of $300.0 million with 2 $10.0 million sublimit for letters of
credit, The Credit Facility matures on November 16, 2020. Botrowings under the Credit Facility may be used for general corporate purposes, including workdng

capitdl tequirements, acquisitions and share repurchases. In 2015, we paid $2.1 million in related debt issuance costs, which are included with other assets on the
accampanying balance sheet.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest at a rate of either (1) (he Wells Fargo Bank prime rate (subject to cortain higher rate determinations) plusa
margin of 0.25% to 1,00% or (2) the 30, 60, 90 or 180-day LIBOR rate plus a mergin of 1.25% to 2.00%, In 2015, our effective average inferest rate for
borrowings was 1.8%. As of December 31, 2015 our interest rate was 1.6%. The Credit Facility is securcd by substantially all of our sssets. The Credit Facllity
tequires us to maintain certain financial ratios and other financial conditions and probibits us from making certain investruents, advances, cash dividends or loans,
and limits incurrence of additional indebtedness and liens, As of December 21, 2015, we were in compliance with those covenants,

At Decembor 31, 2015, we had $66.0 million in cutstanding borrewings and unused borrowing capacily of $234.0 million under the Credit Facility.

We paid income taxes, net of refunds received, of $27.3 miliion in 2015, $10.2 million in 2014, and $9.3 millien in 2013, We experienced significant stock option
excrcise aclivity in 2015 that generated $45.3 million excess tax benefits, Excess tax bengfits reduce tax payments but do not significanily reduce the effective tax
rate and can result in limitations on other deductions. However, more than 70% of our 2015 excess tax benefit was generated in the fourth quatter of 2015 and as a

result we recorded an income tax receivable of $21.1 million, which will reduce income tax payments in 2016. In 2014 and 2013, excess tax benefits were $19.4
million and §28.2 million, respectively.

Eacluding acquisitions, we anticipate that 2016 capital spending will be between $31.0 miltion and §33.0 million. We expect the majority of this capital spending
will consist of computer equipment and software for infrastructure replacements and expansion. We also expect to purchase 2 leased office building in Falmouth,
Maine for approximately $1¢.0 million, We currently do not expect to capitalize significant amounts related to soflware develapment in 2016, hut the actual
amount and timing of these costs, and whether they are capitalized or expensed may result in additionel capitalized sottware development, Capital spending is
expected to be funded from existing cash balances, cash flows from operations and borrowings under our revalving line of credit.
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From time fo time we engage in discussions with potential acquisition candidates. In order to pursue such opportunities, which could raquire signifi cant

conmitments of capital, we may be required to Iheur debt or to issue additional potentially dilutive seeurities in the future. No assurance can be given as to our
futore acquisition opportunitics and how such oppor{unities will be financed,

We lease office facilities, as well ag transportation, computer and nther equipment used in ovr operations under nen-cancelable operating lease agreements expiring
at various dates through 2022, Most leases contain renewal options and sems contain purchase options.

Summarized in the table below are our obligations to make fusture payments under our Credit Facility and lease obligations at December 31, 2015 (in thousands):

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 _ Thersafter Total
Revolving line of credit L — 8 — 4 — 3 -~ $ . 66000 % — % 66,000
Lease obligations 5,912 6,250 3,845 3,204 3,050 2,223 24,484
Totsl future pavment obligations $ 5912 § 6250 % 3845 % 3204 5 65050 § . 2223 § 90484

As of Degember 31, 2015, we do nat have any eff-balance sheet mrangements, guarantees to third-parties or material purchase commitments, except for the
operating lease commitments listed above,

CAPITALIZATION
At December 31, 2015, our capitalization consisted of $66.0 million of outstanding berrowings and $358.9 million of shareholders” equity.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.
Market risk represents the risk of loss that may affect us due to adverse changes in financial market prices and inferest rates.

As of December 31, 2015, we had $66.0 million in outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility. Loans under the Credit Faeility bear interest, at Tyler’s option,

at a per anmim rate of cither (1) the Wells Fargo Bank prime rate (subject to certain higher rate determinations) plus a margin of 0.25% to 1,00% or (2} the 30, 60,
90 or §80-day LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.25% to 2,00%,

Tnn 2015, our effective average interest rate for borrowings was 1.8%. As of December 31, 2015 our interest rate was 1.6%. The Credit Facility is secured by
substantially all of our assets.

Assuming borcowings of $66.0 million, a hypethetical 10% increase in our interest rate at December 31, 2015 for @ one year period would result in approximately
$106,600 of additional interest rate expense.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAT, STATEMENTS AND SUFPFLEMENTARY DATA.

The reports of our independent registered public accounting firm and our financial statements, related notes, md supplementary data are included as part of this
Anmual Report beginning on page F-1.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
MNone,

I TEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES,

Evaluation of Disclosure Conirols and Procedures - We maintain diselosure controls and procedures (as defined #n Rule 13a-15(e) of the Secutities Exchange
Act) designed fo provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and repotted within the time periods specified in the SEC’s mies and forms. These include controls and procedurss designed to
ensure that this information is accumulated and communicated to eur management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate
to altow timely decisions regarding required disclosures, Management, with the participation of the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedurss a¢ of December 31, 2015. Based on this evaluation, the chief
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executive officer and chief financial officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2015,

Management's Report on Internal Conirol Over Financial Reporting — Tyler's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporiing as defined in Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Tyler's internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance to Tyler's management and board of directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal sontrol over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Therefore, even those systems deterinined to
be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

Management assessed the effectiveness of Tyler’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, In making this assessment, management used
the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) {the COSO criterin), Based on our assessment,
we concluded that, as of December 31, 2015, Tyler's internal control over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria.

Management’s assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the internal controls of NWS, which is
included in our 2015 consolidated financial statements and sonstituted 57% of total assets as of Degember 31, 2015 and 2% ofrevenues for the yoar then ended.

Tyler's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015 has been audited by Emst & Young LLP, the independent registered publiec accounting

firm who also audited Tylet’s financial statements, Emst & Young’s attestation report en Tyler's intemal control aver financiul reporting appears on page Fe1
hereof.

Changes in Internal Control Over Finanelal Reporting ~— During the quarter ended December 31, 2015, there were no changes in our imternal control over

financial reporting, as defined in Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-15{f), that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

Neone.

PART III

See the informeation under the following captions in Tyler’s definitive Prexy Statement, which is incorporated herein by reference. Only those sections of the Proxy
Statement that specifically address the items set forth herein are incorporated by reference. Such incorporation by reference does not include the Compensation
Digcussion and Aualysis, the Compensation Commitiee Report or the Audit Committee Report, which are included in the Proxy Statement.

Headings in Proxy Statement

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPCRATE

“Tyler Management” and “Corporate Governance Principles and Board
GOVERNANCE.

Matters”

ITEM 11.  EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION. “Bxscutive Compensation™

ITEM 12.  SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICTAL OWNERS “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management”
AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER

MATTERS.

“Executive Compensation * and
ITEM13.  CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions”
AND DIRECTOR INDEFPENDENCE,
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ITE M 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICHS,

The information required under this item may be found under the section captioned “Proposals For Cansideration — Proposal Two — Ratification of Our
Independent Auditors for Fiscal Year 2016™ in our Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 135,

PART IV

EXHIRITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES,

The follewing documents are filed as part of this Aonual Report;

@ O

@

®

E xhihit
Number
31

3.2

3.3

34

41
42

4.3

102

10.3

The financtal statements are filed ag part of this Annual Report,

&muﬁmmmmmmﬂ alilic Aguoun) . ﬂ%%
Cionzolidated Staternents of Comprehensive Tncome for the vears ended Decepnber 31, 2013, 2014 and 2013 F-3
megmmmg_m of Peceraber 31 2015 and 2014 F-4
F-5

to Connlidated Financial Statements BT

Financial statement schedules:

There are no financial statement schedules filed as part of this Annual Report, since the required information is included in the financial
statsments, including the notes thereto, or the circumstances requiring inclusion of such schedules are not present.

Exhibits
Certrin of the exhibits to this Anmual Report are hareby incorporated by reference, a3 specified:
Description

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Tyler Three, as amended through May 14, 1990, and Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to our Form 10-Q for the guarter ended June 30, 1990, and incorporated by reference herein},

Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to our Form 8-K, dated February 19, 1998, and incorporated
by reference herein).

Amended and Restated By-Laws of Tyler Corporation, dated Qctober 20, 2015 (filed as Exhibit 3.3 to our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septombar
30, 2015, und incorporated by reference herein).,

Certificate of Amendment dated May 19, 1599 to the Restated Certificate of Lncorporation (filed as Exhibit 3.4 to our Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2000, and incorporated by referonce herein).

Specimen of Corameon Stock Certificate (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to vur registration statement no, 3333505 and ingotporated by reference herein),

Credit Agreement dated November 16, 2015, among Tyler Technologies, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bark, N, A. as Administeative Agent and othet lenders
party hereto (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 8-K dated November 16, 2015, and incorporated by reference herein).

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of September 30, 2015, by and among Tyler Tecinologies, Inc,, Brinston Acquisition, LLC, New World
Systems Corporation, and Lamry D. Leinweber, as the Principal Sharcholder identified therein and the Sharcholders’ Representative identified therein,
{filed ag Exhibit 2.1 to our Form §-K, dated October 1, 2015, and incorporated by reference herein).

Tyler Technologies, Ine. 2010 Stock Option Plan effective as of May 13, 2010 {filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our rogistration statement no. 333168459 and
incorporated by reference herein),

Employment and Non-Competition Agreement between Tylar Technologies, Inc. and John 8, Marr Jr. dated February 5, 2013 (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to
our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 and incorporated by reference herein).
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E xhibit
Number

Pescription

10.4

Employment and Non-Competition Agreement between Tyler Technologies, Tne. and Dustin R. Womble dated Februaty 5,
2013 (filed as Bxhibit 10.4 to our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 and incotporated by reference herein),

10.5 Emnployment and Non-Competilion Agreement between Tyler Technologies, Inc. and Brian K. Miller dated February 5, 2013 (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to
onr Form 10-K for the yeor ended December 31, 2012 and incorporated by reference herein),
10.6 Employment and Non-Competition Agreement between Tyler Tecimologies, Inc. and H. Lynn Moore dated Febroary 5, 2013 {filed as Bxhibit 10.6 to
our Form 10-K. for the year ended December 31, 2012 and ineorporated by referenee herein).
10.7 Employee Stock Purchage Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 fo our registration statement 333-182318 dated June 25, 2012 and imcorporated by reference
herein).
*23 Consent of Indspendent Registered Public Accounting Firm
*31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification by Principal Executive Otficer.
*31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification by Principal Financial Officer.
*32 Section 1350 Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer.
*101 Instance Document
*101 Schema Decument
*101 Caleulation Linkbase Document
*101 Labels Linkbase Document
*101 Definition Linkbase Document
*101 Presentation Linkbase Document
* — Tiled herewith.

A copy of each exhibit may be obtained at a price of 15 cents per page, with a $10,00 minimum order, by writing nvastor Relations, 5101 Tennyson Parkway,
Plano, Texas, 75024,
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SIGNATURES

Pyrsuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly saused this report fo be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

TYLER TECHNOLGGIES, INC.

Date: February 24, 2016 By: /s John S. Mam
John S, Marr
Chisf Executive Officer and President
(principal executive officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
mdicated have signed this report below.

Date: February 24, 2016 By: /s/John 8. Marr

Joha S, Mait

Chief Executive Qfficer and Fresident
Director

(principal executive officer)

Date: February 24, 2016 By: /s/ John M. Yeaman

John M, Yeaman
Chairman of the Board

Date: February 24, 2016 By: /8/Brian K. Miller
Brian X. Miller
Executive Viee President and Chief
Finanecial Officer
(principal financial officer)

Date: Febmary 24, 2016 By: /s/W. Michael Simith

W. Michael Smith
Viee President and Chief Accounting Officer
(principal accounting offiver)

Date: February 24, 2016 By: /s/ Donald R. Brafiain

Donald R, Braitain
Ditector

Drate: February 24, 2016 By: /s/ Glenn A, Carter

Glemm A, Carter
Director

Date: Febroary 24, 2016 By: /s/Brenda A. Cline

Brenda A. Cling
Director
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Date: Febmary 24, 2016

Date: February 24, 2016

Date: February 24, 2016

By:

By:

By:

43

/3! J. Luther King

J. Luther King
Director

{s! Larry D, Leinweber

Larry D, Leinweber
Director

f5/ Dustin R. Womble

Dustin R. Womble
Director




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Tyler Technologies, Inc.

We have audited Tyler Technologies, Inc,’y internal eontrel over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in Internal Control —
Integraiad Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO eriterla), Tyler
Technologies, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assesgment of the effectiveness of
internal control ever financtal reporting included in the accompenying “Management’s Report on Intemnal Control Over Financisl Reporting,” Our responsibility is
to express en opinion on the company’s internal control ever financial reporting based on our audit.

We condueted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Cversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the andit to ¢btain reasonable sssurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects, Our
audit ineluded obtaining an wnderstanding of internal control over financial reperting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, festing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our andit provides a reasonable basis for our epinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rvelisbility of financizl reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external parposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal conirol over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately end fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as neeessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordanee with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in acoordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasenable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautherized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that cauld have a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of ita inherent limitations, internal sontro! over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements, Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriotate.

As indicated in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finaneial Reporting, management’s assessment of and conclusion on the
effectiveness of internal cantrol over financial reporting did not include the internal controls of New World Systems Corporation, which is included in the 2015
consolidated financial statements of Tyler Technologies, Inc. and constituted 57% of total assets as of December 31, 2015 and 2% of revenues for the year then

ended. Qur audit of internal control over financial reporting of Tyler Technologies, Inc. alse did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial
reporting of New World Systems Corporation.

In our opinion, Tyler Technologies, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on
the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of
Tyler Technologies, Inc. as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consclidated statements of comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the three years it the period ended December 31, 2015 and our report dated February 24, 2016 expressed an vnqualified opinion thereon.

/s ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 24, 2016
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REPO RT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Sharcholders

Tyler Technologies, Inc. '

We have audited the accompanying cousolidated balance sheets of Tyler Technologies, Inc. as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated
statements of comprehengive income, shareholders® equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015, These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perforta the audit to abtain reasonable assurunce about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes oxamining, on
4 tast basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An awdit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management, a3 well as evaluating the overall finmmeial statement presentation. We believe that our andits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opindon, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Tyler Technologies, Inc. at Docember 31,

2015 and 2014, and the resulis of its operations and its cash flows for each of the thrae years in the period ended December 31, 2015, in conformity with U.8.
generally accepted accoumting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has adopted ASU 2015-17 Income Taxes (Tepic 740): Balance Sheet Classification
aof Deferred Taxes,

We also have audited, in accordanee with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Tyler Technolegies, Ine.’s internal
control over financial reparting as of December 31, 2013, based en criteria established in Intemnal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) and our repart dated Febroary 24, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

f5/ BRNST & YOUNG LLP
Dallas, Texas

February 24, 2016
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Tyler Technologies, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the yeats ended December 31

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenues: : .
Sofiware licenses and royalties
Sithscriptions
Software services
Maintenance
Appraisal services

* Hardware and ofher
“Iofal sevenves

Cost of revenues;
Software lHcenses and royaltics
Acquired software
Software vervices, maintenance and subscriptions
Apprafsai services
" Hardware and other
Total cost of revennes

Gross pmﬁt

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research and dévelopmictit expénse
Amortization of eustomer and trade name intangibles

Operating income

Other income (expernse), net
"Income before income taxes
Income tax provision
" Netincome

Earriings pér coinmon share
Bagic
Diluted

Unrealized gaims on investment securities available-for-sale
Income tax benefit related to components of other comprehensive

inconie
Other éomprehiensive income, net of tax
Comprehensive income

See accompanying nofes.
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2015 2014 2013
50008 § 49,065 $ 40,841
131,933 57,848 61,864
139,852 113,821 93,267
245,537 212,606 . 191,720
25,065 21,802 20,325

0,627 7,860 §,126
501 022 493,101 416,643
1,632 1,900 2,377
4440 1,858 2,078
285,340 236363 199,617
15,922 14284 13,509
6501 5325 - 5550
313,835 259,730 223 440
271,187 233,371 193,203
133,317 108,260 08,289
29,922 25,743 23,269
5,908 4,546 4517
108,043 94,822 67,128
381 (355) (1,309)
108,424 94,467 65,819
43,555 35,527 26,718
64,860 $ 38940 3% 30,101
150 § 179 3 123
177 % 166 & 113
- § - § 341
_ — 118
e 8 — 272
64869 § 58,940 § 39,323




Tyler Technelogies, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except par value and ghare amounts)

ASSFETS
Current assets: )
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable (less allowance for logses of §1,640 in 2015 and $1,725 in 2014)
Short-term investments
Prepaid expenses
Income tax recervable
Other ciatrent assets
Total current assets

Atcounts receivable; long-term
Property end equipment, net
Deferred income taxes
Cther assets:
Goodwill
Other intangibles, net
Cost method nvestment
Non-current investroents and other asssts

LIABILITIES AND SHARFHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilitles:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
‘Total current liabilities

Revolving line of credit
Dieferred revenue, long-ferm
Deferred income taxes

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $10,00 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; none 1ssned

Common stock, $0.01 par vabae; 100,000,000 shares authorized, 48,147,969 shares
issued in 2015 and 2014

Additioral patd-in‘capital - .
Accumnlated other comprehensive logs, net of tax
Retained earnings

Treasury stock, at cost; 11,373,666 and 14,678,782 shares in 2015 and 2014, respectively

Total shareholders' equity .

See decompanying noles.

Fd

December 31, Decernber 31,
2013 2014
$ 53,087 % 206,167
176,360 112,660
13,423 —
22,334 17,851
21,080 19
1,931 330
268,215 357,036
27T 1,761
164,112 63,910
— 5,504
653,666, - 124,142
293,378 34,742
15,000 o
20,422 737
5 1,356,570 & 569,812
$ 6789 % 4,119
49,156 39,508
281,627 - 189,212
137,572 252 839
66,000 —
3,115 e
91,026 s
481 481
607,755 201,389
(46) {46)
326,010 261,150
(75,352) {126,601)
858,857 336,573
$ 1,356,570 % 560,412




Tyler Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
For the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

{In thousands)
Accumulated .
Additicnal Other Total
Common Stock Paid-in Comprohensive Retained Treasury Stock Bharehaldery'
) Shargs Amount Capital Income (058 Eamnings Shates Amount Equity
Balance at Decetber 31, 2012 45,148 $ 481 S$154018 § {268) § 163,109 (16,817) $(172,041) § 143299
Net income e e o o 35,101 R — 39,101
Unrealized gam on investment : .
sacurities, net of tax. — e — 222 - — _— 1222
Issuance of shares pursuant
to stock compensation plan e e {13,742) = — 1,443 32,031 18,289
Stock compensation —_ — 11,653 L — — — - 11,653
Issuance of shares pursnant to
employee stock purchase plan — - 2,034 et —_ 64 1,508 3,542
Fedetal mcome tax benefit related ' _
to exercise of stock options - — 28,213 — — o | 28,213
Balance at December 31, 2013 48,148 481 182,176 (46) 202210 (15310)  (138,502) 246,319
© Net Icome . — e _— —_— 58,940 — — 58,940
Issuance of shares pursnant
to stock compensation plan — i (17,449) — —_ 855 32,129 14,680
Sfock compensation — — 14,819 — — — — 14,819
Issuance of shares pursuant to
employee stoek purchase plan — — 2,235 o s 53 1,909 4,144
Federal income tax benefit related
1a exercise of stock options e — 19415 - — — — 19,415
Treasury stock purchases —_ - — —— — (294 (22,817} (22,817)
Issusnce of shares for acquisition — — 193 — — 17 1,280 1,473
Balance at December 31, 2014 48,148 481 201,389 48) 261,150 (14,679)  {126,001) 336,973
Net in¢ome — - — - 64,869 — — 64,869
Issuance of shares pursnant
to stock compensation plan o o 4,332 e —— 1,118 18,828 23,160
Stack compensation —_ — 20,182 . - — - - 20,182
Tssuance of shares pursuant to
employee stock purchase plan — — 3,879 e —_ 43 792 4,671
Federal income tax benefit related
to exercise of stock options — — 45314 wl - e o 45314
Treaswy stock purchases e s — o - (5) {645) (645)
tssuance of shares for scquisitions T e — 332650 — — 2,149 31,674 364,333
Balance at December 31, 2015 48148 $§ 481 5607755 § (46) § 326,019 {11,374) $ (75,352) § 858,857
See accompanying noles.
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Tyler ‘Technologies, Inc.

Congolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31

{In: thousands})

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net rcome to cash provided by operationy:
Depraciation and amortization
Share-based compensation expense
Provision for logses - secounts receivable
Excess tax bencfit from exercises of shere-based ayangements
Deferred income tax benefit
Chunges in operating assets and iabilities, exclusive of effects of
acqnired companes;
Accounts recelvable
Income tax recervable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts paysble .
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenne :
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Clost of acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Purchase of cost method investment
Purchase of marketable security invesiments
Froceeds from marketable security investmenis
Additions to property and equipment
Decrease in other

Net cash used by investing activitics

Cash flows from finaficing actrvitdes:
Increase (decreasc) in net borrowings on revelving ling of credit
Purchase of treasury shares
Contributions from grployee stock purchase plan
Proceeds froin exercise of stock options’
Debt issuance costs
Exceds tak Benéfit fom exercizes of share-bused arrangéments
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net {decrease) inerease in cash and cash equivalents

Cagh and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

See accompanying notes.
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2015 2014 2013
64,869 § 58940 § 39,101
19,574 14,605 13,786
20,182 14,819 11,653
1,756 1,897 720
(45:314)- (19,402}, (28,207
(7,956) (3,804) (1,497)
(28,172) (8,912) (7,488)
24,255 25,117 18,898
(3,054) (3,696) {4,154)
632 1,586 (574)
490 6,326 7,655
41,731 31,963 16,188
89,013 123,437 66,050
(339.961) - (3,242) {181)
(15,000) - -
31,807y - —
900 808 1,090
(12,501) (9,343) . {26,858)
10 222 291
(398,459) {11,555) (25,658)
66,000 -. {18,900)
(645) (22317) e
4,671 4,144 3,542
23,160 14,680 18,289
(2,134) — —
45314 19,402 28207
136,366 15,409 32,038
(173,080) 127,291 72,470
206,167 74,876 6,406
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Tyler Technologies, Inc.,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Tables in thousamds, except per share data)

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

We provide integrated software systerns und related services for the public secior, with a focus on local governments. We develop and market a broad line of
software solutions and services to address the information technology (“IT) needs of cities, counties, schools and other local government entities. In addition, we
provide professional IT services, including sofiware and hardware installation, data conversion, training, and for certain customers, product medifications, along
with contimaing meintenance and suppozt for customers using pur systems, We also provide subscription-based services such as saftware as a service (*Saa5")

arrangsments, which utilize the Tyler private cloud, and alectranic docurnent filing solutions (“e-fiting”). In addition, we provide property appraisel outsourcing
services for taxing jurisdictions,

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consalidated financial statements include our parent company and a subsidiary, which is wholly-owned. All significant intercompany balances and transactiony
have been eliminated in consolidation.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in excess of that necessary for eperating raquirements is invested in short-term, highly liguid, income-producing investments. Investments with original

maturities of three months or less are classified as cash and cash equivalents, which primarily consist of cash on deposit with several banks and money market
funds, Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market value.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

We earn revenue from software licenses, royaltios, subscription-based services, software services, post-coniract customer support (“PCS” or “maintenance”),
hardware, and appraisal services.

L] €]

Far the majority of our software arrangements, we provide services that range from installation, fraining, and basic consutting to sefiware modification and
customization to meet specific customer needs. If the arrangement does not require significent groduction, modification or customization or whers the software
services are not considered essential to the functionality of the software, revenue is recognized when all of the following conditions are met:

i persuasive cvidence of an arrangement exists;
ii. delivery has occurred;
iii.  our fee is fixed or determinable; and

iv.  collectability is probable,

For multiple element arrangements, cach element of the arrangement is analyzed end we allocate a pertion of the total avrangement fee to the elements based on the
relative fair value of the element using vendor-specific objective evidence of fair vatue (“VBOE”), regardless of any separate prices stated within the vontract for
each element. Fair value is considered the price a customer would be required to pay if the element was sold separately based on o historical experience of stand-
alone sales of these elements to third-parties. For PCS, we use renswal rates for continued support arrangements to determine fair value, For software services, we
use the fair valoe we chatge our customers when those services are sold separately, We monitor owr fransactions to determine that we maintain and periedically
revise VSOE to reflect fair value. In software arrangemonts in which we have the fair value of all undelivered elements but not of a delivered element, we apply the
“residual method ” in compliance with Accounting Standurds Codification (“ASC") 985-605, Sofiware Revenue Recognition. Under the residual method, if the fair
value of all undelivered clements is determinahle, the fale value of the undelivered elements is deferred and the remalning porfion of the arrangement fee is
allocated to the delivered element(s) and is recognized as revenue assuming the other revenue recognition critéria are mef. In software arrangements in which we do
not have VSOE for ol undeliverad elements, revenue is deferred until fair value is determined or all elements for which we do not have VSOE have been delivered.
Altemnatively, if sulficient VSOE does not exist and the only undslivered element is services that do not involve significant modification or customization of the
software, the entire fee is recognized over the perind during which the services are expected to be performed.
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Software Licenses and Royaliies

We recognize the revenue allocable to software licenses and specified upprades upon delivery of the seftware product or upgrade to the customer, unlsss the fee is
not fixed or determinable or collectability is not probable, If the fee is not fixed or determinable, sofiware license revenue is generally recognized as payments
become due from the customer. If collectability is net eonsidered probable, revenue is recognized when the fae is collected. Arrangements that include software
services, such as training or instellation, are evaluated to determine whether those serviees are essential to the product’s functionality.

A majority of our sofiware arrangements involve “off-the-shelf” software. We congider software to be off-the-shelf software if it ¢an be added to an arrangement
with minor changes i the underlying code and it can be used by the customer for the cugtomer’s purpose upon instaliation, For off-the-shelf software
arrangements, we recognize the softwars license fee a5 Tevenue after delivery has oceutred, customer accoptance is reasonebly assured, that portion of the fee

represents a non-refmdable enforceable claim and js probable of collection, and the remaining services such as training are not considered essential to the product’s
functionality.

For arrangements that involve significant production, modification or customization of the software, or where software services are otherwige considered essential,
we recognize revenus using contraet accounting and apply the provislons of the Construction ~ Type and Praduction—Type Contracts as discussed in ASC 605-35,
Multiple Blements Arrangements. We generally use the percentage-of-corapletion method to recognize revenus from these arrangements. We measure progress-to-
completion primarily using laber hours incutred, ot valus added. The percentage-of-completion method generally results in the recognition of reasonably consistent
profit margins over the life of a contract because we have the ability to produce reasonably dependable estimates of contract billings and contract costs. We use the
level of profit margin that is most likely to oceur on a contract, If the most likely profit margin cannot be precisely determined, the lowest probable level of profit in
the range of estimates is used until the results can be estimated more precisely. These arrangements are often implemented over an extended fime period and
occasionally require us to revise total cost estimates, Amounts recognized in revenue are caloulated using the progress-to-completion measurement after giving
effrct to any changes in our cost estimates, Changes to total estimated contract costs, if any, are recorded in the peried they are determined. Estimated Losses on
uncompleted contracts are recorded in the pericd in which we first determine that a loss is apparent, For arrangements that include new product releases for which it
is diffienlt to estimate final profitability except to assume that 1o logs will ultimately be incurred, we recognize revenye under the completed contract method.
Under the completed contract method, cevene is recognized only when a contract is completed or substantially complete. Historically these amounts have been
immateria).

We recognize royalty revenue when eamed under the terms of our third-party royalty arrangements, provided the fees are considered fixed or determinable and
realization of payment is probable. Currently, our third-party royulties are variable in nature and such ameunts are not considered fixed ot determinable until we

receiye notice of amounts eamed. Typically, we recelve notice of royally revenues carned on a quarterly basis in the quarter immediately following the royalty
reporting period, ’

Software Services

Some of our software arrangements include services considered egsential for the customer to use the software for the sustomer's purposes. For these softwate
arrengements, both the software license revenuc and the services revenue are recognized as the services are perforined using the percentage-of-cempletion contract

accounting method. When software services are not considered essential, the fee allocable to the service element is recognized as revenue as we perform the
servioes.

Consputer Hardware Equipment
Revenue allocable to computer hardware equipment is recognized when we deliver the equipment and collection is probable.
Post Contract Customer Support

Our customers generally enter into PCS agreemonts when they purchase our software licenses. PCS includes telephone support, bug fixes, and rights to upgrades on
a when-and-if available basis. Qur PCS agreements are typically renewable annually, Revenue allocated to PCS i3 recognized on a straight-ling basis over the
periad the PCS is provided, All significant costs and expenses assoclated with PCS are expensed as incurred.

Subgseription-Based Services;
Subscription-based services congist of revenues derived from Saa$ arranpentents, which utilize the Tyler private cloud, and slecironic filing transactions,

For Saa$ atrangements, we evaluate whether the customer has the contractual right to take possession of our software at any time during the hosting period without
significant penalty and whether the customer can feasibly maintain the softwars on the customer’s hardware ot enter itito another arrangement with a third-party to

host the software. In cases where the custormer has the contractual tight to take possession of aut software at any time duwing the hosting period without significant
penalty and the customer can feasibly
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maintain the software on the customer's hardware or enter into another arrangement with a third-party {o host the software, we recognize the license, professional
services and fostin g services revenues pursuant to ASC 985-605, Software Revenue Recognition.

For $aas arrangements that do not meet the criteria for recopuition under ASC 985-605, we account for the elements under ASC 605-25, Multiple Element
Arrangements, using all applicable facts and eitoumstanices, including whether (i) the element has stand-alone valus, {ii) there is a general right of return and

(it the revenue is contingent on delivety of other elements. We allocate contract value to each element of the arrangement that qualifies for treatment as a separate
element based on VSOE, and if VSOR s not available, third-party evidence, end if third-party evidence is unavailable, cstimated selling price. We recognize
hosting services ratably over the term of the arrangement, which tange from one to 10 years but are typlcalty for a period of three fo seven years. For professional
setvices associated with Saa8 arrangements that we determine do not have stand-alone value to the customer or are contingent on delivery of other elements, we
recognize the services revenue ratably over the remaining contractual period once we have provided the customer access to the sofiware and we may begin billing

for hosting services. We record amounts that have begn invoiced in accounts reeeivable and in deferred revenue or revennes, depending on whether the revenue
recognition criteria have been met.

Electronic filing transaction fees primarily pettein to documents filed with the courts by attorneys ard other third-parties via our e-filing services and retricval of
filed docwments vis our acvess setvices. The elements for these arrangemenis are accownted for under ASC 605-25, For each document filed with a court, the filer
generally pays a transaction fee and a court filing fee to us and we remit a portion of the transaction fee and the filing fee to the court. We record as revenus the
transaction fee, while the portion of the transaction fee remitted to the courts is recorded as cost of sales as we arc acting as a principal in the arrangement. Court
filing foes vollected on behalf of the courts and remitted to the courts ars recorded on a net basis and thus do not affect the statement of comprehensive income. In
gome cases, we are paid on a fixed fee basis and recognize the revenue ratably ovet the cottractual period.

Costs of performing services under subseription-based arrangements are expensed as incurred, except for certain direct and incremental contract origination and
set-up costs associated with SaaS arrangements, Such direct and incremental costs are capitalized and amortized ratably over the related Saa$ hosting term.

Apoprai TViCES,

For our property appraisal prajects, we recognize revenue using the proportional performance tethed of revenue recognition since many of these projects are
jmplemented over one to three year periods and consist of various unique activities. Under this method of revere recognition, we identify each activity for the
appraisal project, with a typical project generslly calling for bonding, office set up, raining, routing ol map information, data entry, data collection, data
verification, informal hearings, appeals and project management. Each sotivity or act is specifically identified and assigned an estimated cost. Costs which are
considered to be associated with indirect activities, such as bonding costs and office set up, are expensed as incurred. These costs are typically billed as inourred
and ate recognized as revenue equal o cost. Direct contract fulfillment activities and related supervisory costs sich as data collection, data eniry and verification
are expensed as incuered, The direet costs for these activities are deterntined and the total contract vatue is then allocated lo each activity based on a consistent
profit margin. Bach activily is assigned & consistent unit of measure to determine progress towards completion and revenue is recognized for each activity based
upon the pereentage complete as applied to the estimated revenue for that activity. Progress for the fulfillment activities is typically based on Jabor hours or an

output measure such a3 the number of parcel counts completed for that activity. Estimated losses ott nncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which we
first determing that a loss is apparent.

Allocation of Reverme in Statements of Comprehensive Income

In our statements of comprehensive income, we allocate revenue to software licenses, software services, maintenance and hardware and other based on the VSOE
of fair value for elements in each rovenue arrangement and e application of the residual methed for arrangements in which we have established VEOE of fair
value for all undelivered elements, In arrangernents where we are not able to establish VSOR of fair value for all undelivered clements, revenue is first allocated to
aty undelivered elements for which VSOE of fair value has been established, We then allocate revenue to any mdelivered elements for which VSOE uf fair value
has not been established based upon management’s best estimate of fair value of faose nndelivered slements and apply a tesidual method to determine the license

fec. Management's best estimate of fair value of undslivered elemonts for which VSOE of fair value has not been established is based upen the YSOE of similar
offerings and other objective criteria.

Other

'The majority of deferred revenue consists of unearaed support and maintenance revenue that has been billed based ot contractugl terms in the underlying
arrangement with the remaining balance consisting of payments received in advance of revenue being eamed under software licensing, subscription-based services,
software and appraisal services and hardware installation. Unbilled revenue is not billable at the batance sheet date but is recoverable over the remaining life of the

contract through bitlings made in accordance with confractual agreements, The termination clauses in our contracts generally provide for the payment for the valus
of products delivered and services performed in the event of an early termination.
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Prepaid expenses and other curtent assets include direct and incremental costs such as commissions associated with arrangements for which revenue recognition
has been deferred. Such costs are expensed af the time the related revenue is recoghized.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of our finaneial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the Undted States (“GAAP”) reqmires us to meke
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and lisbilities and disclosure of contingent assets and Habilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of reverues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions inciude the
application of the petcentage-of-completion and proportional petformance methods of reverue recognition, the carrying amount and estimated useful lives of
intangible assets, determination of share-based compansation expense and valuation allowance for receivebles. Actual results conld differ from estimates,

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property, equipment and purchased sofiware are recorded at original cost and increased by the cost of any significant impravements after purchase. We expense
maintenance and repairs when incurred. Depresiation and amortization is caleulated using the straight-line method over the shorter of the asset’s estimated useful
1ife or the term of the lease in the case of leasshold improvements. For income tax pusposes, we use accelerated depreciation methods as allowed by tax laws.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS
We expensed research and development costs of §29.9 million during 2015, $25.7 million during 2014, and $23.3 million during 2013.
INCOME TAXES

Ineome taxes are aceounted for under the asset and Hability method. Deferred taxes arise because of different treatment between fiancial statement aceounting and
tax accounting, known s “temporary differences.” We record the tax effect of these temporary differences as “deferred tax assets” {generally items that can be
used as a tax deduction or credit in the future periods) and “deferred tax liabilitles” (generally items that we received a tax deduction for, which have not yet been
recorded in the income statement). The deferred tax assets and liabilities ere measured using enacted tax rules and laws that are expected to be in effect when the

tempeoraty differences are expected to be recovered or setiled, A valuation allowsnce would be established to reduce deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not
that a deferred tax asset will not be realized.

On November 20, 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accovnting Standards Update ("ASU™) No, 2015-17, Income Taxes (Topic 740):
Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes. The standard amends the current requirement for entities to present deferred tax liabilities and assets as current and
noncnrrent in a classified balancs sheet. Instead, eititles will now be required to classify all deferred tax assets and liabilities as noncurrent. The ASU is effective
for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, begintring afier December 15, 2016, with early adoption permitted. We sarly adopted this standard duriy

fourth quarter 2015, uiilizing the retrospective application 29 permitted, As such, certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the eurent
presentation,

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

We have a stock option plan that provides for the grant of stock options to key employees, directors and non-employee consultants. Stock options generally vest
after three fo six years of continuous servics from the date of grant and have a contractual term of 10 years. We account for share-based compensation utilizing the
fair value recognition pursuant to ASC 718, Stock Compensation. Ses Note 9 - “Share-Based Compensatinn” for forther information.

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodw!ll

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired, inclading identifiable intangible assets, in connection with our
business combinations, Upen acquisitien, goodwill is assigned to the reporting uni! that is expected ta benefit from the synergies of the business combination,
which is the reparting unit to which the related acquired tephnology is assigred. A reporiing unit is the operating segment, or a business unit one level below that

operating segment, for which discrete financizl information is prepared and regularly reviewsd by executive management. We assess goodwill for impairment
annually as of April, or more frequently whenever events or ¢hanges in circumstances indicate its corrying value may not be recoverable,

When testing goodwill for impairment quantitatively, we fitst compare the fair value of each reporting unit with its carrying amount, If the carrying amount of 2
reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a sevord step is perforned to measure the amount of potential
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impairment, Tn the second step, we compate the implied fair value of reporting unit goodwiil with the carrying amount of the reporting wnit’s goodwill. If the
carrying amount of reporting unit goadwill exceeds the implied fair value of th gt poodwill, an impairment loss is recopnized. The fair values caloulated in our
impairment tests are determined using discounted cash flow medels invelving several assumptions. The assumptions that are used are based upon what we believe
& hypothetical ma tketplace participant would use in estimating falr value. We evaluate the reasonablencss of the fair value calcnlations of eur reporting units by
comparing the total of the fair value of all of our reporting units to our total market capitalization,

Qur annual goodwill impairment analysis, which we performed quantitatively during the second quarter 6f 2015, did not result in an impaitment charge.
Other Intangible Assets

We make judgments about the recoverability of purchased intangible assets other than goodwill whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an
impairtent may exist. Customer base und aoquired software each comprise approximately half of our purchased intangible assets other than goodwill, We review
our customer turnover each year for indications of impairment. Qur customer turnover has historically been very low. There have been no significant impairments
of intangille assets in any of the peripds presonted. If indications of impairment ere determined to exist, we measure the recoverability of assets by a comparisorn
of the carrying amount of the asset to the estimated undiscounted future cush flows expected to be gencrated by the asset, If the carrying amount of the assets

exceeds their sstimated future cash flows, an Impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the earrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of
the assets.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

We periodically evaluate whether current facts or ¢ircumstances indjcate that the carrying value of eur propesty and equipment or other long-lived assets to be held
and used may not be recoverable. If such circumstances ate detcrmined to exist, we measure the recoverability of assets to be held and used by a compatison of the
carrying amount of the asset or appropriaie grouping of assets and the estimated undiscounted futare cash flows expected to be generated by the assets, If the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds their estimated future cash flows, an impainment chatge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds the fair vatue of the assots, Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying
amount of fair value less vosts to sell, and are no longer depraciated. The assets and liabilities of a disposed group classified as held for salo would be presented

gepatately in the appropriate asset and liability sections of the balance sheet. Thers have been no significant impaittents of long-lived assets in any of the periods
presented.

COSTS OF COMPUTER SOFTWARE

We capitalize software development costs upon the establishment of technalogical foastbility and prior to the availability of the product for general releass to
customets, Software developmment costs primarily consist of personnel costs and rent for related office space. We Pegin to amortize capitalized costs when a product
is svailable for general release to customers. Amottization expense is determined on a product-by-product Dasis at arate not less than straight-line basis over the
product’s remaining estimated econemic life. We have not capitalized any internal software development custs in any of the periods presented.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents, sccounts receivables, accounts payables, shori-term obligations and certain other assets at cost approximate fair vajue because of the
short maturity of these instruments. The fair value of our revolving line of eredit approxirmates book value as of Desember 31, 2015, because our interest rates reset
approximately every 30 days or less. See Nots 6 — “Revolving Line of Cred{t” for further discussion.

As of December 2015, we have $30.8 million in investment prade coxporate and municipal bonds with maturity dates ranging from 2016 through mid-2017, We

intend to hold these bonds to matutity and have classified them as such. We believe cost approximates fair valus because of the relatively short duration of these

investments. The fait values of these securities are considered Lovel TT as they are based on inputs from quoted prices in markets that are not active o from other
observable market data. These imvestments ate included in short-term investments and non-cutrent investments and other assets.

On Junuary 30, 2015, we made a $15.0 miflion investmont in convertible preferred stack representing a 20% interest in Record Holdings Pty Limited, a privately
held Australian company specializing in digitizing the spoken word it court and legal proseedings. The fair value of this investment is based on valuations using
Level 11T, unobservable inputs that are supported by Hitle or no market value activity and that are significant to the fair value of the investment.
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CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND UNBILLED RECEIVABLES

Financial instruments that potentially sabject us to significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents, acconnts receivable
from frade customers, and investments in marketable securities, Our cash and cash equivalents primarily consists of operating account balances and money market
funds, which are maintained at several major domestic financial institutions and the baletices often exceed insured amounts. As of December 31, 2015 we had cash
and cash equivalents of $33.1 million, We perform periodic evaluations of the credit standing of these financial institutions,”

Concenirations of eredit risk with respeet to receivables are imited due to the size and geographical diversity of our customer base. Historically, our credit losses
have not been significant, Ag a regult, we do not believe wa have any significant concentrations of credit risk us of Decenaber 31, 2015,

We maintain alfowances for doubtfil accounts and sales adjustments, which arg provided at the time the revenue is racogitized. Since most of our cusiomerg are
domestic governmental entities, we rarely incur a loss resulting from the inability of a customer to make required payments. Events or changes in circumstances
that indicate that the carrying amount for the allowances for doubtful aceounts and sales adjustments may require revision, inclwde, but ave not Kimited io,

deterioration of a customer’s financial condition, failure to manage our customer’s expeciations regarding the scope of the services to be delivered, and defeots or
etrors in new versions or enhancements of our software products.

The following table summarizes the changes in the allowances for doubtful accounts and sales adjustments:

Years ended December 31,

7 : 2015 2014 2001
Balance at beginning of year $ 1725 § 1113 § 1,621
Provisions fot losses - accounts receivable 1,756 1,897 729
Colleation of accounts proviously writiesi off . 153 - -
Doductions for accounts charged off or credits issued {1,994) {1,285) {1,237)
Palance at end of year : § 1,640 % - 1,725 § 1,113

The termination clanses in most of our contracts provide for the payment for the value of products delivered or services performed in the event of early termination.
Our property appraisal outsourcing service contracts can range up to thiree yeats and, in a fow cases, as long as five yours, in dusation, In contiection with these
contracts, as well 45 certain sofiware service contracts, we may perform worlk prior to when the software and services are billable and/or payable pursyant to the
contract, We have historically recorded such wmbilled receivables (costs and estimatod profit in excesy of billings) in connection with 1) property appraisal services
contracts accounted for using proportional performance accounting in which the revenue is eamed based upon activities performed in one accounting period but the
billing normally eceurs subsequently and may spen another accounting period; (2) sofiwarg services contracts accounted for using the percentage-of-completion
method of revenue recognition using labor hours as a measure of progreas towards completion in which the services are performed in one accounting petiod but the
billing for the sofiware element of the arrangement may be based npon the specific phase of the implementation; (3) software revenue for which we have objective
evidence that the customer-specificd objective criteria has been met but the billing has not yet been submitted to the customer; (4) some of our contracts provide for
an amonnt fo be withheld from a progress billing (generally between 5% and 20% retention) until final and salisfactory projest completion is achieved; and (5) ina

limited number of casos, we may grant extended payment terms, generally te existing customers with whom we have a long-term relationship and favorable
collection history,

We have recorded unbilled receivables of $29.7 million and $14.8 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. We also have recorded retention
receivables of $4.7 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and these retentions become payable upon the completion of the contract or completion of

our ficldwerk and formal hearings. Unbilled receivables and retention receivables expected to be collected in ext¢sa of one year have been included with accounts
receivable, long-term. portion in the accompanying consolidated balanve sheets,

INDEMNIFICATION

Most of our software license agreements indemnify our customers in the event that the seftware sold infringes upon the mtellectual property rights of & third-party,
These agreements typically provide that in such event we will either modify or replace the sefiware so that it becomes non-infringing or procure for the customer
the right to use the software, We have recorded no liability associated with these indemnifications, as we are net aware of any pending or threatencd infringement
sctions that are possible losses. We believe the estimated fair value of these intellectual property indenmnification clanses is minimal.

‘We have also agreed te indemnify our officers and board members if they are named or threatencd to be named as & party to any proceeding by reason of the fuct
that they acted in such capacity. We maintain directors” and officers’ lisbility insurance coverage to
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protect against aty such losse &, We have recorded no liability assoclated with these indemnifications, Because of our insurance coverage, we believe the estimated
fair value of these indemnification agreements is minimal,

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain amounts for previous years have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

On May 28, 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“TASB") issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contrasts with Customers.” This ASU ig the
result of a convergence project between the FASE and the International Accounting Standards Board, The core principle behind ASU 2014-09 is that an entity
should recognize revenus to depict the transfer of promised goods and services to custemers in an amount fhat reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for delivering those goods and services. This model involves a five-step process that includes identifying the contract with the customer,
identifying the performance obligations in the contract, determining the transastion price, allocating the transaction prices to the performance obligations in the
contract and recognizing revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies the performance obligations. The gnidance in the ASU supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance and is effective for annual reporting pericds beginning after December 15, 2016 with carly application not permitted. The ASU allows two methods of
adoption; a full retrospective approach where three vears of financial information are presented i accordance with the new standard, and 2 modified Tetrospective
appreach where the ASU is applied to the most current period prosented in the financiat statements.

On August 12, 2015, the FASB voted for a one-year deferral of the effective dale of the new standard and now requires application of the new standard no later
than annut reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim reporting perieds therein. However, under the proposal, public entities would

be permitted to elact to early adopt the new standard as of the original effective date. We currently expect to adopt the new standard in fiscal year 2018 in
accordance with the revised effective date.

() ACQUISITIONS
2015

On November 16, 2015, we acquired all of the capital stock of New World Systems Corporation (“NWS”), which provides public safety and financial solutions for
local govermments, The purchase price, net of cash acquired of $22.5 million, was $337.5 miltion in cash, of which $4.0 million was accrued at December 31,
2015, and 2.1 million shares of Tyler common stock valued at $362.8 million, which wags based on the closing price on November 16, 2015. We also inourred fees
of approximately $5.9 million for financial advisory, legal, accounting, due diligence, valuation and other various services necessary to complets the acquisition.
These fees were expensed in 2015 and are included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

Tyler has performed a preliminary vatuation analysis of the fair market value of NWS' assets and liabilities. ‘The following table summarizes the allocation of the
preliminary purchase price as of the acquisition date.

Cash b3 22,486
Accounts receivable 37,068
Other current assets” 2,371
Property and equiprent 30,672
Identifiable mimgible assets 264,814
Goodwil] 527618
Accounts payable {1,382)
Accrued expenses (7,282)
Deferred reventic - ' " (53,008)
Deferred tax liabilities, net (104,484)
**Fotal consideraticn $ - 718,813

In connection with this transaction we acquired tofal tangible asscts of $70.1 million and assumed lisbilities of approximately $61.8 million, We recorded goodwill
of $527.6 million, none of which js expected to be deductible for tax purposes, and other intangible assats of approximately $264.8 miltion. Approximately $261.1
million of intangible assets is uttributable to customer relaticnships, acquired software and trade name and will be amortized over a weighted average period of
approximately 11 years. Also included in oiher intangibles is an asset for approximately $3.7 million to reflect the fair value of existing lease agreements, and this
intangible will be amortized over the weighted average life of these lease agreements of approximately 9 years and reduces other income. In
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addition, we recorded deferred tax Liabilities of $104.5 million related to estimated fait valve allocations. We believe this transaction will broaden our courts anc
justice software solutions and will ereate a unigue end-lo-end enterprise eriminal justice selution. We believe that likely market participants for this transaction
would be entities with a presence in the judicial and public safety markets. Therefore , the gondwill of $527.6 million arising from this acquisition is primarily
attributed to our ability to integrate NWS solutions with our existing portfolio and generate increased revenues, eamings and cash flow, As of Decernher 31, 2015,

the purchase pric e allocation for NWS is not vet complete. The preliminary estimates of fair value assumed al the acquisition date for intangible assets, receivables
and deferred revenue and related deferred taxes are subject to change as valuations are finallzed.

The following unaudited pro forma information of the consolidated results of operations have been prepared as if the NWS acquisition had occunred at January 1,
2014, after giving effect to certain adjustments, including amortization of intangibles, interest, transaction costs and tax effects. The pro forma results of operativns

include compensation costs of $16.2 million and $16.0 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively, for certain NWS executives whose employment terminated at the
date of acquisition.

Pro forma information does not include acquisitions that are not cansidered material to our results of operations. The pro forma information does not purport to

represent what our results of operations actually would have been had such transaction or event occurred on the dates specified, or to project our tesults of
operations for any future period.

2015 2014
Revenmes 3 691,711 b §90,071
Netincome 55,164 44,436
Basic sarings per common share 1.62 1.26
Diluted curnings per commion shite _ t 51 118

On May 29, 2015, we acquired all of the capital stock of Brazos Technology Corporation (“Brazos™), which provides mobile hand held solutions primarily to Taw
enforcement agencies for field accident reporting and electronically issuing citations, The purchese price, net of cash acquired of $312,000 and including debt
assumed of $733,000, was $6.1 million in cash and 12,500 shaves of Tyler common stock valued at $1.5 million, As a result, we acquired total tangible assets of
approximately $2.1 miftion and assumed liabilities of approximately $2.6 million. We have recorded total goodwill of approximately $£.9 million, alt of which is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes, and other intangible assets of approximately $6.2 million. The $6.2 million of intangible assets is attributable to
customer relationships, acquired software and trade name and will be amortized over a weighted average period of approximately ten years.

The operating resulis of NWS and Brazos are included with the operating results of the Enterprise Sofiware Selutions segment since their dates of acquisition.
Revenues from NWS ingluded in 2015 results of operations totaled approximately $10.0 million and net income was not significant. Qur balance sheet s of
December 31, 2015, reflects the allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired based on their fair vulue at the date of acquisition, The fair value of the assets
and Habilities acquired are based on valuationg using Level III, unobservable inputs that are supported by litfle or no market activity and that are significant to the
fair value of the assels or liabilities.

2014
On August 29, 2014, we acquired afl of the capital stock of SofiCede, tne. (“SofiCode™), which develops and sells civil process management soflware, typically to

courily sheriff departments. The purchase price, net of cash acquired of $71,000, was $3.5 million in cash, of which $325,000 was accrued at Decernber 31, 2014,
and 16,540 shares of Tyler common stock valued at $1.5 million, based on the stock price on the acquisition date,
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(3} PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Property and equipment, net consists of the following at December 31:

Useful
Lives
_ (years) 2013 014
Land — 3 8146 § 7736
Building and leasehold improvements 5-39 77,020 51,309
Cornputer equipment and purchased software 3-5 42245 34,058
Furniture and fixhires 5 16,661 11,812
Transportation equipment 5 252. 238
144,324 105,153
Accumlsisd depreciation and amertization {43,212) (39,243)

Properiy and equipment, net 3 101,112 § 65,910

Depreciation expense was $9.1 million during 2015, $7.9 million during 2014, and $6.4 million during 2013,

We own office buildings in Banger and Yarmouth, Maine; Lubbock and Plano, Texas; Troy, Michigan; and Moraine, Ohic. We lease some spece in these
buildings to third-party tenants. These leases expire between 2016 and 2025 and are expected to provide remtal income of approximately $1.7 million during 2016,
$1.6 miltion during 2017, $1.6 million dusing 2018, $1.5 million during 2019, $1.3 million during 2020, and $6.6 million thereafier, Rental income from third-party
tenants was $913,600 in 2015, $945,000 in 2014, and $704,000 in 2013,

(4 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Other intangible assets and related accumnlated amortization consists of the following at December 31:

_ , 2015 2014

Gross carrymg amount of acquisition mtangibles ‘
Customer related intangibles $ 181671 % 61,325
Acquired softwate - 172,666 33,103
Trade name 19,765 3,331
Leases gequired . 3,604 —_

368,796 97,759

Accuminlated amortization - {73,418) (63,037}

Total intangibles, net 3 295378 $ 34,722

Tatal amattization cxpense for intangibles was $10.3 million in 2015, $6.4 miltion in 2014, and $6.8 million during 2013,

The allocation of acquisition intangible assets is summarized in the following table:

Diccember 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Welghted Weighted
Gross Average Gross Average
Canrying Amortization Accunwilated Carrying Amportization Accumulated
Amonmr Perigd Amortization Amount Period Amortization
Non-amoriizable mtangibles
Good»_viﬂ_ _ $ 653,666 — 3 — 5 124,142 — e
Amortizable intangitdes. .
Custommer related intangibles 181,671 _ 15 years 38,754 61,325 15 years 33,194
Acquiréd software 172,666 7 yeits 32,880 - ¢ 33,103 5 years 28,441
Trade name 10,763 12 years 1,747 3,331 15 years 1,402
Leases acqiired 3,694 9 years - » —= — v
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The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the two years ended December 31, 2015 are as follows;

Enterprise Appraisal and Tax
Software Sofiware Solutions
i Sclutions and Serylces Total

Balance a5 of December 31, 2013 3 11445¢ § 6,557 % 121,011
Goodwill acquired during 2014 relaed to the purchase of SoftCode 3,131 — 3,131
Balance as of December 31, 2014 o 117,585 6,557 124,142
Goodwill acquired during 2015 related to the purchase of NWS 527,618 — 527,618
~ Goodwill aéquired during 2015 related to the purchase of Btazos 1,906 — . 1,906
Balance as of December 31, 2013 3 647,109 8 6557 % 653,666

Tstimated anmual amortization expense relating to acquired leases will be recorded as a reduction to other income and iy expected to be $444,000 in 2016, $444,000
in 2017, $426,000 in 2018, $372,000 in 2018, $313,000 in 2020 and $1.7 million thereater _Bstimated annual amortization expense relating to acquisition
intangibles, including acquited software, for which the amortization expense is recorded as cost of revennes, for the next five years is as follows:

2016 B . -8 35182
2017 34,204
2018 ' 33,528
2019 3z,100
2020 30,804

(5) ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities sonsist of the following at December 31:

B o 2015 2014

Aceroed wages, boruses and commusstons $ 32,006 $ 30,977

Other accrued ligbilities 17,150 8,531
L $ 49156 - % 39,508

() REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT

On November 16, 2013, we entered into a $300.0 millien Credit Agresment (the “Credit Facility”) with the various lenders party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, es Administrative Agent. The Credit Facility provides for a revelving credit line up ta $300.0 million, including a $10.0 million sublimit for
letters of eredit. The Credit Facility matures on November 16, 2020, Borrowings under the Credit Facility may be used for gencral carporate purposes, including
working capital requirements, acquisitions and share repurchases.

Horrowings under the Credit Facility bear interast at a rate of either (1} Wells Fargo Bauk's printe rate (subject to certain higher rate determinations) plus a margin
of 0.25% to 1,00% or (2) the 30, 60, 90 or 180 day LIBOR rate plus s margin of 1.25% t0 2.00%. As of Decerber 31, 2615, our interest rate was 1.6%. The
Credit Facility is secured by substantially all of our assets. The Credit Facility requires us to maintain certain financial ratios and other financial conditions and
prohibits us from making certaln investments, advances, cash dividends or loans, and Himits ineurrence of additional indebtedness and Hens, As of December 31,
2015, we were in complianee with these covenants

As of December 31, 2015, we had $66.0 million in outstanding borrowings and nnused borrowing capacity of $234.0 million under the Credit Facility . In addition,

as of December 31, 2015, we had an outstanding £1.5 million letter of credit in favor of one of our clients. The letter of credit gnarantees our performance under a
software contract and expires in 2016.

We paid interest of $223.000 in 2015



(7) INCOMETAX

The income tax provision (benefit) on income from operations consists of the following:

Years ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

Current: ) :
Federal 5 44,841 $ 34,504 § 25,625
State : 6,670 4,827 2,590
51,511 39,331 28,215
Deferred (7,956) (3,804) (L497)

b 43,555 % 35,527 % 26,718

Reconciliation of the U.S. statutory income tex eate to our effective income tax expense rate for operations follows:

. YemendedDecemberdl,

. 2015 2014 2013
Federsl mcome tax expense at statatory. rate ' $ 37849 § 33,064 § - 23,037
State incoma tax, net of federal income tax benefit 3,715 2,867 2371
Noz-deductible business expenses 2414 1,485 1,110
Qualifisd mamifacturing activities (466) (1,720) —
Othef, net . _ : (57) (169) 200

$ 43,555 § 35,527 § 26,718

The tax effects of the major items recorded as deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31 are:

2013 2014
Deferred fiéothe tax asseis
Operating expenses not currently deductible % 2953 % 9,093
Stock oplion and other employee benefi plats 13,504 9,815
Capital Loss and credit canryforward 179 177
Property and egiripment —_ 46
Total deferred income tax assets 23,636 19,131
Deferred income tax Habilines:
Intangible essets (111,653) (13,424)
Property and equipment {2,781) - e
Other (228) (203}
Total deferréd income tax Irabrhncs (114,662) (13,607)
‘Net deferred income tax (liability) asset 3 (91,026) § 5,504

In 2014, we wtilized approximately $650,000 of et operating loss carryforwards for federal income tax reporting purposes. The full amount of the net operating
10ss utilized was attributable to excess tax benefits related to share-based arrangements for which authoritative guidance prohibited the recogaition of a deferred tax
asset in 2013. In 2014, this tax henefit was accounted for as an Increass to ghareholders” equity and a reduction in income tax payable. In total, we recognized
epproximately $45.3 million and $19.4 million of excess tax benefits related to shere-based arrangements in 2013 and 2014, respectively, as a credit to
sharcholders’ equity and a reduction in ingome taxes payable.

Although realization is not assured, we believe it is mere likely than not that all the deferred tax assets at December 31, 2015 and 2014 will be
realized. Accordingly, we believe no valuation allowance is required for the deferred tax assets. However, the amount of the deferred tax asset considered
realizeble could be adjusted in the future if estimates of reversing taxable temporary differcncss are revised.

The Tnternal Revenue Service (“IRS™ is examining our U.S. income tax retumn for the year 2012, In addition, there is one open state audit for the year 2011. As of

Febroary 22, 2016, no significant adjustments have been proposed by the IRS, We are unable to make a reasonable estimate as to when cash settlements, if any,
will oceur.
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We are subject to 1.5, federal tax as well as income fax of multiple state and loeal jurisdictions, We are no longer su bject to United States foderal income tax
examinations for years before 2012, We are no longer subject to state and local income tax examinations by tax authorities for the years before 2011.

We paid income taxes, net of refinds received, of $27.3 million in 2015, $10.2 million in 2014, and $9 3 miltion in 2013,
(8) SHAREHOLDERS' BEQUITY

The following table details activity in our commeon steck:

Years ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amout
Stock option exercises : 1,118 § 23160 BS5 14,680 1443 % 18,289
Purchases of common stock %) (645) (294) {22,817) — —
Employée stock plan purchases ' 437 487 53 - 4144 64 3,542
Shares issued for acquisitions 2,149 364,333 17 1473 — s

Subsequent to December 31, 2015 and through February 22, 2016, we repurchased 241,000 shares for an aggregate purchase price of $31.3 million. As of
February 22, 2016, we had authorization from our hoard of directors to rapurchase up fo 1.2 million additional shares of our common stock.

9y SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
Share-Based Compengation Plan

We have g stock option plan that provides for the grant of stock options to key employees, directors and non-employee consultents, Steck options generally vest
after three to six years of continuous service from the date of grant and have & contraciual term of 10 years. Once options become excrcisable, the employes can

purchase shares of our common stock at the market price on the date we granted the option. We account for share-based compensation utilizing the fair value
recogaition pursuant to ASC 718, Stock Compensation,

As of December 31, 2015, thers were 3,7 million shares available for future grants under the plan from the 20.0 million shares previously approved by the
stockholders,

Determining Fair Valye of Stock Competsation

Valuation and Amortization Mcthed, We estimate the fair value of share-based awards granted using the Black-Scholes aption valuation model. We amortize the
fair value of all awards on a straight-line basis over the requisite service periods, which are generally the vesting periods.

Expected Life. The expouted life of awards granted represents the peried of time that they are expected to be outstanding. The expected life vepresents the

weighted-average period the stock options are expseted to be outstanding based primarily on the options’ vesting terms, remaining contractnal life and the
employees” expected exervise based on historical patferns,

Expected Yolatility. Using the Biack-Scholes option valuation model, we estimate the volatitity of our cormon stock at the date of grant based on the historical
volatility of our common stock.

Risk-Free Interest Rate. We base the risk-fres interest rate used in the Black-Scholes option valuation model on the implied yicld currently available on U.S,
Treasury zero-coupon issues with an equivalent remaining term equal to the expected life of the award.

Expected Dividend Yield. We have not paid any cash dividends on our commeon stock in more than ten years and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in
the foreseeable future. Consequently, we use an expected dividend yield of zero in the Black-Scholes option valuation model,

Expected Horfeitures. We use historical data to estimats pre-vesting option forfeftures. We record share-based compensation only for those awards that are expected
o vest.
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Th e following weightad average assumptions were used for aptions granted:

Years ended Decembar 31

2015 2014 2013
Expected life (in years) 60 50 " 64
Expected volatility 283 % 309 324 %
Risk-ffes interest rate : 17 % 18 % - 14 %
Bxpected forfeiture rate 1.7 % 30 % 3.0 %

The following table summarizes share-based compensation expense related to share-based awards which is recorded in the siatements of comprebensive income:

Years ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013
Cost of sofiware gervices, mantenance and subscoptions 8 3,380 § 2177 3 1,509
Selling, general and administrative sxpenses 16,302 12,642 10,144
Tota} share-bascd compensation expenses 20,182 14,815 11,659
Tux henefit (5,936) {4,237) (3,363)
Net decrease 10 net incame : L 1419 § . 10582 % 8,290
Stock Option Activi
Options granted, exercised, forfeited and expired are summarized as follows:
Weighted
Weighted Avemge
Average Remaining Agpregate
Number of Extreise Contractuel Life Inirinsio
) Shares Price {Years) Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 5711 5§ 2086 -
Granted 1,453 67.08
Exercised (1,443) -12.68
Forfeited {1) 68.17
Cuilstanding at December 31,2013 57120 3466
Granted 675 94,15
Exercised _ . {855) 1717
Fotfeited 3 3744
Outstanding at December 31,2014 5,537 44,61
Graoted 47 145.71
Eréerdised (1,118) 2071
Forfeited (2} 19.61
Outsianding at December 31, 2015 5164 - 6443 7 § 568239
Exercisable at December 31, 2015 1,940 40,69 6 § 259,257

We had unvested options to purchase 3.1 million shares with a weighted average grant date exercise price of $78.86 as of December 31, 2015 and unvested options
to purchase 3.3 million shares with a weighted average grant date exercise price of $55.61 as of December 31, 2014, As of Devember 31, 2013, we had 569.8

million of total unrevopnized compensation cost related to unvested options, net of expected forfeitures, which is expected to be amortized over a weighted average
amaortization period of 3.4 years.
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Other information pertaining to option activity was as follows during the twelve months ended Pecember 31:

: ‘ 2013 2014 2013
Weghted average grant-date fawr value of stock options granted $ 4517 % 33z % 327
Total intrinsic value of stock options exersised 149,542 69,768 99,393

mpl Stock Purc) b

Under our Employee Stock Purchagse Plan (“ESPP”) participants may contribute up to 15% of their anmual compensation to purchase common shares of Tyfer. The
purchase price of the shares is equal to 85% of the closing price of Tyler shares on the last day of each quarterly offering period. As of December 31, 2013, there
were 899,000 shares available for future grants umder the ESPP from the 2.0 million shares previously approved by the stockholders.

(10) EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic eamings and diluted earnings per share data were computed as follows:

Vears Ended December 31,

o o 2013 2014 2013
Numerator for basic and dilitéd earnings per share:

Net income : $ 64,869 § 53940 § 39,101
Denominator; ] .
Weighted-average basle common shares outstanding 34,137 33,011 31,891

Aswimed conversion of dilutrve securtties

Stock options . 2,415 2,350 2,699

Denominator for dituted earnings per share - ' '

- Adjusted weighted-average shares 36,552 35,401 ~ 34,590
Earnings per common share; :

Base b 190 % 179 & - 123

Dilnted $ 177 § 1.66 § 1.13

Stock options representing the right to purchase commen stock of 417,000 shares in 2015, 481,000 ghares in 2014, and 62,000 shares in 2013 were not included in
the computation of diluted earnings per shate because their inclusion weuld have had an angi-dilutive effect.

{11) LEASES

We lease office facilities for use in our pperations, as well as transpertation, computer and other equipment. We also have an office facility lease agreement with
an entity owned by an executive’s father and brother. The executive does not have an interest in the entity that leases the property to us and the lease arrangement
existed at the time we acquired the business unit that occupies this property. Most of our leases are non-cancelable operating lease agreements and they expire at
various dates through 2022, In addition to rent, the leases generally tequite us to pay taxes, maintenance, insurance and certain other operating expenses,

Rent expense was approximately $7.2 millien in 2015, $6.7 million in 2014, and $7.5 million in 2013, which included rent expense associated with related party
lease agresments of $1.8 million in 2015, $1.7 miltion in 2014, and $1.7 million in 2013,

Futare minimum lease payments under all non-cancelable leases at December 31, 2015 are as follows:

Years ending December 31,

2016 - - ) ¥4
2017 6,250
2018 ' 31845
2019 3,204
2020 : ’ 3,050
Thereafter . 2,223

$ 24484
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Included in firture minimum lease payments are non-cancelable payments due to related parties of $1.9 million in 2016, $1.9 millien in 2017 and $14,060 in 2018.

(12) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

We provide a defined contribution plan for the majority of our employees meeting minimum service requirements. The etoployees ¢an contribute up to 30% of
their current compensation to the plan subject to cortain statutory limitations. We contribute up to a maximum of 3% of an employes’s compensation to the
plan. We made contributions to the plan and charged operating results $5.3 million during 2015, $4.3 million during 2014, and $3.3 million during 2013,

(13) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Other than routine litigation incidental to our business, there are no meterial legel proceedings pending to which we are party or to which any of our properties are
subject,

(14) SEGMENT AND RELATED INFORMATION

We are a major provider of integrated information management selutions and services for the public sector, with a focus on local and state governments,
We provide our seftware systems and services and appraisal services through four business units, which focus on the following products:

¢ financial management, education and planning, regulatory and mainienance software solutions;

#  financial management, municipal courts, and land and vital records management sofiware salutions;

% courts and justice end public safety software solutions; and

».  appraisal and fax software solutions and property appraisal services.

In accordance with ASC 280-10, Segment Reporting, the financial management, education and planning, regulatory and maintenance seftware solutions unit;
financial management, nunicipal courts and land and vital records management so fiware solutions unit; and the conrts and justice and public safety sofiware
solutions wnit meet the criteria for aggregation and are prosented in one reportable segment, Enterprise Software Selutions (“ESS™), The ESS segment provides
municipal and county govenunents and schools with software systems and services to meet their information technology and automation needs for mission-critical
“back-office” functions such as financial mansgement ond courts and justice and public safefy processes. The Appraisal and Tax Seftware Solutions and Services
(“ATSS") segment provides systems and software that automate the appraisal and assessment of real and personal property as well as property appraizal
outsourcing services for local governments and taxing authorities. Property appraisel qutsourcing services include: the physical inspection of commercial and

residential propertics; data collection and processing; computer analysis for propetty valuation; preparation of tax rolls; commmity education; gnd arbitration
between taxpayers and the assessing jurisdiction.

We evaluale performance based on several factors, of which the primaty financial measurs is business segment operating income. We define segment operating
income for our business units as income before noncash amortization of intangible assets associated with their acquisition, interest expense and income

taxes. Segment operating income includes intercompany tranzactions, The majority of intercompany fransactions tolate to contracts involving mere than one unit
and are vaiued based on the contractual arrangement, Segment operating income for corporate primarily cobsists of compensation costs for the executive
management team and certain accounting and administrative staff and share-based compensatien expense for the entire company. Cotporate segment operating

income alse includes revenues and expenscs telated to a pompany-wide user conference. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those
described in Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policles.”
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Segment assets include net accounts receivable, prepaid expensss and other current assets and net property and equipment. Corporate assets consis £ of cash and

investments, propaid insurance, intangibles associated with acquisitions, deferred income taxes and net property and equipment mainly refated to unallocated
information #nd technology assets.

ESS sepment capital expenditures 2013 included 519.6 million for the construction of a new building and purchase of an oxisting building and land.

As of the year ended December 31, 2015
Enferprise Appraisal and Tax

Software Software Selutions

Solutions and Services Cerporate Totals
Revenues
Sofiware licenses and royalties $ 54376 § 4632 § — % 59,008
Subscriptions : _ 107,080 4,843 — 111,933
Software services : 129,068 10,784 — 139,852
Maiittenance 227586 - 17,951 — 245537
Apptaizal services o 25,065 — 25,065
Hardwate and other _ 6,935 12 2,680 9,627
Intercompany 4,025 — {4,025) —
Total revemues - § 529,080 § 63,287 % (1,345) § 591,022
Depreciation and amortization expense 15,413 867 3,294 19,574
Segment operating income ' 141,401 15477 (38,400) 118,388
Capital expenditures 6,112 646 6,746 13,504
Segment assets . $ - 265877 22283 §  1,068410 §  1,35657¢
Ags of the year ended December 31, 2014

Emterprise Appraizal and Tax

Software Softwate Solutions

Solutions and Bervices Corporate Totals
Revenues . . )
Soeftware licenses and royalties $ 46,047 % 3018 § — 3 49,065
Subscriptions : 84,322 3,526 — 87,848
Software gervices 104,146 9,675 — 113,821
Maintenance 195,881 16,815 — e 212,696
Appraisal services e 21,802 —r 21,802
Hardware and other 5,98 1 2,460 7,869
Intercompany 2,812 — {2,812) —_
Total révenes $ 438606 $ 54,847 § (352) $ 493,101
Deprociation and amortization expense 11,140 866 2,509 14,605
Sepment operahng income 114,993 11,603 (2530 101,226
Capital expenditores 3,644 359 5,446 - 9,449
Segment assets 5 170,369 § - 16463 § 392980 % 569,812
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As of the year ended December 31, 2013

Entetprize Appralsal and Tax
Software Software Solutions
Solutions ardd Services Corporate Totals
Revenues :
Software licenses and royalties b 387714 § 2,067 § — § 40,841
Subscriptions 39,070 2,794 — 61,864
Software services 85,459 7,808 —_ 93,267
Maratenance 175,180 16,540 e 191,720
Appraisal services c— 20,825 — 20,825
Hardware and other 6,342 — 1784 8,126
Intercompany 2,499 ] (2,299) cten
Totat revenues $ 361724 0§ 50,034 § {,115). §- 416,643
Depreciation and amortization expense 16,569 1.028 2,189 13,786
Segment operating income 85,045 0,428 (20,750) 73,723
Capital expenditureg 22457 250 3438 26,145
Segtment assets $ 161923 % 16244 8 ° 266321 § 444488
Reconsiliation of reportable segment operating Years Ended December 31,
income to the Company's consolidated tofals: 2015 2014 2013
Total segment operatittg meoms | ¥ 118388 . % 101,226 73,723
Amortization of acquired software (4,440) (1,858) (2,073)
Antortization of cugtontes and trade name mtangibles (5,905} {4,546) (4517)
Cther income (sxpense), net 381 (355) (1,309)
Inedme Before income taxes _ ' 3 108424 § 24467 § 65,819
(15) QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudited)
The following table contains selected financial information from unaudited statements of income for each quarter of 2015 and 2014.
Quarters Ended
2013 2014
Dec. 31 {a) Sept. 30 Jure 30 __Mar.31 Deo. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 Mar. 31

Revenues . . § 158916 8§ 150,345 8§ 146,205 § 134,966 § 127440 - $ 128,664 - £ 24371 $ 112,626
Gross profit 73,222 71,833 68,253 63,879 60,491 61,792 58,558 52,530
Tncomé befors income taxes 19,540 31,744 25,781 27,359 24,760 26,698 23,406 19,603
Net income 3,618 20,142 18,336 17273 15,317 17,000 14,740 11,883
Earnings per diluted share S0z 055 - D52 048 0.43 048 042 - 033
Shares used in computing diluted

earnings per share 37,864 36,349 16,097 35,895 35,661 35,284 35,161 35,500

() Operating results for the three months ended December 31, 2015, include $3.5 million for financial advisory, legal, accounting, due diligence, valuation and
other services necessary to complete the NWS acquisition as well as $3.5 million amortization expanse related to NWS acquisition intangibles.
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Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Amendment No. 2 to the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-205983) pertaining to the Tyler Technologies,
Inc. 2010 Stoek Option Plan {Form 5-8 No. 333-168499) and the Registration Statepaent (Form 5-8 No. 333-182318) pertaining 1o the Tyler Technologies, Inc,
Employee Stock Purchase Plan of our reports dated February 24, 2016, wiih respect to the consolidated financial statements of Tyler Technologies, Inc., and the

effectiveness of internal contrel over financial reporting of Tyler Technologies, Ing., included in this Anogal Report (Forn 10-K) for the year ended December 31,
2015.

Js/ ERNST & YOUNGLLP

Dallas, Texas
February 24, 2016



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

1, John 8, Marr, Ir., certify that:

L

T have reviewed this antal report on Form 10-K. of Tyler Technologies, Inc.;

2, Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or onit to state 4 material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my lmowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
cendition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the perieds presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other cerlitying officer and I are respongible for establishing and meintaining disclosure contrals and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(c)) and internal contrel aver our financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for Tyler
and have:

a) Desizned such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and pracedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the regisivant, including its divisions, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly durng the
period in which this report is being prepured;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
10 provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purpeses in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosute contyols and procedures and presented in this repott our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrani’s most recent fiscal
quarter (The registrant’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual repert) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to matecially affect, the
regisivant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of interal contrel over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the awdit committee of the registrant’s boerd of directors (or persons performing the equivalent funetion):

4) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or opetation of internal controls over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report finaneial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management ot other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls
aver financizl reporting.

Dated; February 24, 2016 By: /s/ John 8. Marr, Jr.

John 8. Marr, Jr.
President and Chief Execntive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

1, Brian K. Miller, certify that:

1 Thave reviewed this anmnal report on Form 10-K of Tyler Technologies, Inc.;

2 Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of 2 materiai fact or omit to state 2 material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the ¢ircumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with regpeet to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stetements, and other financial information inclnded in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operationy and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining diselosure contrels and procedures {as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)} and internel control over our financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(D) for Tyler
and have;

a) Designed such disclosure cantrols and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material informaticn relating to the registrants, including its divisions, is tmade known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report iz being prepared,

b} Designed such infernal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over finuncial repotting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of firancial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure confrols and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Diselosed in this report any change in registrant’s internal contral over financial reporting that ovcurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasenably likely to matertally affoct, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5 The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evahiation of internal control aver finencial repotting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the andit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function);

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or eperation of internal controls over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

)] Any fraud, whethet of not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant rele in the registrant’s internal controls
over financial reporting.

Dated: February 24, 2016 By: /s/ Brian K. Miller

Brian K., Miller .
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 96 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
John $. Mar, Jr, President and Chief Executive Officer of Tyler Technologies, Inc., (the “Company™) and Brian K, Miller, Executive Vice President and Chief
Finaneial Officer of the Company, each certify pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 11.8.C. Seetion 1350, that:
1. The Report filly complies with the requirements of Bection 13(z) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 a3 amended; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, In all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Corporation,

Dated: February 24, 2016 By: /s/ John 5. Ma, Jr.

John 8 Maur, Jr,
President and Chief Executive Officer

By. /s/ Brian K. Miller
Brian K. Miller
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

A, signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Tyler Technologies, Inc. and will be retained by Tyler Technologies, Inc.
and furnished to the Securities and Bxchange Commission upon request,
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Question A,iii:

Tyler Technologies, Inc. Directors as of 12/13/16

hitp://investors. tlertech.com/profiles/investor/Directors.asp 821 0=489

=+ Donald R. Brattain — 5101 Tennyson Parkway, Plano TX 75024
®  Glenn A. Carter — 5101 Tennyson Parkway, Plano TX 75024

* Brenda A. Cline — 5101 Tennysoh Parkway, Plano TX 75024

» 1 LutherKing, Jr. - 5101 Tennyson Parkway, Plano TX 75024

¢ larry D. Leinweber — 5101 Tennyson Parkway, Plano TX 75024
John 8. Marr, Ir, ~ One Tyler Drive, Yarmouth, ME 04096
Daniel Pope — 5101 Tennyson Parkway, Plano TX 75024
Dustin R. Wombhle - 5519 53rd Street, Lubbock, TX 79414
John M. Yeaman ~ 5101 Tennyson Parkway, Planho TX 75024

@ 8 % e

Tyler Technologies, Inc. Officers as of 12/13/16
http://www.tvlertech.com/about-us/our-leadershi

® John M. Yeaman ~ 5101 Tennyson Parkway, Plano TX 75024
Chairman of the Board

¢ John S. Marr Ir, ~ One Tyler Drive, Yarmouth, ME 04095
President & Chief Executive Officer

¢ Brian K. Miller - 5101 Tennysan Parkway, Planc TX 75024
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financlal Officer and Treasurer

¢ H.Lynn Moore Jr. - 5101 Tennyson Parkway, Planc TX 75024
Exacutive Vice President,

Business Development & General Counsel

¢ Matihew B. Bierl ~ 5101 Tennyson Parkway, Plano TX 75024
Vice Prestdent, Chief Information Officer

» Samantha B. Crosby — 5101 Tennyson Parkway, Plano TX 75024
Vice President, Chief Marketing Officer

» Bruce Graham - 5101 Tennyson Parkway, Plano TX 75024
Chief Strategy Officer

@ Robert ). Sansone — One Tyler Drive, Yarmouth, ME 04096
Vice President, Human Resources

e W, Michael Smith — 5101 Tennyson Parkway, Plano TX 75024
Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer



* Terri Alford ~ 5101 Tennyson Parkway, Plano TX 75024
Controlier

8. Indicate Number of Years in Business

Tyler's Appraisal and Tax Division {formerly known as Cole Layer Trumble or CLT) has been in business

since 1938. As indicated in Tyler's Form 10-K, Tyler was incorporated in 1966. Tyler acquired Cole Layer
Trumnble in 1999.

&%, tyler
Empowering peoplo whe sevve the public” o G !
fecboningles



Entity Information Page 1 of 2

A )viia*

NYS Department of State

Division of Corporations

Entity Information

The information contained in this database is current through December 12, 2016,

Lt TSGR A NG I L i PTG M R e e+ - e

Selected Entity Name: TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
Selected Entity Status Information
Current Entity Name: TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
DOS ID #: 3168959
Enitial DOS Filing Date: FEBRUARY 25, 2005
County: ALBANY

Jurisdiction: DELAWARE

Entity Type: FOREIGN BUSINESS CORPORATION
Current Entity Status: ACTIVE

Selected Entity Address Information
DOS Process (Address to which DOS will mail process if accepted on behalf of the entity)
TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

5101 TENNYSON PARKWAY
PLANO, TEXAS, 75024
Chief Executive Officer
JOHN 8§ MARR IR
5101 TENNYSON PARKWAY
PLANO, TEXAS, 75024
Principal Exccutive Office
TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
5101 TENNYSON PARKWAY
PLANO, TEXAS, 75024
Registered Agent

https://appext20.dos.ny.gov/eorp_public/CORPSEARCHENTITY _INFORMATION?p t... 12/13/2016



Entity Information Page 2 of 2

CAPITOL SERVICES, INC.
1218 CENTRAL AVENUE, SUITE 100
ALBANY, NEW YORK, 12205

This office does not record information reparding
ke names and addresses of officers, shareholders
or directors of nonprofessional corporations except
the chief executive officer, if provided, which
would be listed above. Professional corporations
must include the name(s) and address(es) of the
initial officers, directors, and shareholders in the
initial certificate of incorporation, however this
information is not recorded and only available by
viewing the certificate,

*Stock Information

# of Shares Type of Stock $ Vahie per Share
No Information Available

*Stock information is applicable to domestic business corporations.

Name History

Filing Date Name Type Entity Name
FEB 25, 2005 Actual TYLER TECHNOIOGIES, INC.

A Fictitions name must be used when the Actual name of a fareign entity is unavailable for use in
New York State, The entity must use the fiotitious name when conducting its activities or business in
New York State.

NOTE: New York State does not issue organizational identification numbers,

Besrch Results Mew Semch

Services/Proprams | Privacy Policy | Acoessibility Policy 1 Disclaiveer 1 Retum fo DOS
' Homepage | Contact Us

hitps://appext20.dos.ny.gov/corp_public/CORPSEARCH.ENTITY INFORMATION?p t... 12/13/2016



Numbers

Tell A
/4 | Bigger
i ) o C
For Ahsuers \> Story
(, y
2015 Annual Report Empowering people who serve the public” 'Bégg% L%. ) ﬂ@iﬁ



Crnshient azataplc grawth has ensbled
“Tirber Tochnaiogies to ezpand out preence

as the premler grovider of end-ta-<nd
informadon managemen: nﬂ':ﬂ.ng.l ang
services for the publie seetar, Wit the revent
asqubskiion of Now Wodd Systams, Trier
dpnlbiandy Inctsed both the bieadth

and depth of aut publlc rafery and fitatuctal
aofiwara niferinga, By continully extending
wur zeach atu evohving oar products, Tyler
affecs 20 indusiey-Jeading porifollo of
oluyrtons thet mapawee elletita Insra vhe Ruure.

Monioa Flre District #3

nen ol e v an

50 pollea and five agzncics

and lwa &11 call centers
314 Sashc e b Surety W hingon,

that share an Jntegrated 911
emergensy dispaich system

1k Tylew's N o Warl £ pultfie by
waltontae selons.

Tylersaftrvarc kel Improve the
flow of infermation u, wi speici

gava lives, préserve property

anf malintain the sacurity
and safely of die sy, i,

When our clients serve
their constituents more
efficiently, transparently
and responsively, that's
our success story.

1 Bl By L st i



We put our numbers
to good use in 2015.

fis 1he largest software company in North America focused solaly on tha public
sector, Tvler Technolagles has built and shaped a business characterized by
conglstent revetiue and garings growth, and a strong lavel of recurring revenies,
Tyler pursuss & sharply focused strategy of steady and significant investment in
organie growth, adding further value thraugh targated acqulsltions, Qur future
prospects are exciting and provide oppertunities to deliver meaningful rewards
for our sharehalders, ¢llents and colleagues,
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AN EMPLOYEE PARTXERSHIP IN SUCCESS
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We don’t just measure success
by growing numbers.
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Our clients’ success

IS Tyler’s success

“Our financial success enables us to support our
clients with solutions that allow them to do their jobs
more efficiently and serve their constituents more
transparently, effectively and responsively, This has a
positive impact not only on our business, but on the
quality of life in the thousands of communities where

Tyler Technologies has a presence.”

To Our Shareholders:

2015 was an eventful year for Tyler Technologles.

We achieved exceptional results across our business
units from both operational and financial perspectives,
as we continued to outperform our competition in

a solid market. By virtually every meaningful measure,
Tyler’s inanclal results reached record levels, In
addition, we continued to execute on our strategy of
expanding our platform for leng-term growech with

key acquisitions and investments in aur products.

EXTERDING RELATIONSHIPS
WITH EXISTING CLIENTS - .
> BROADENINBOUR G
.- PRODUCT OFFERINGS =

k' it Erecaud Omicnr

Financial Strength

‘Tyler's revenues grew nearly 20 percent (almost 17
petcent organic) to $591.0 million, exceeding our
long-term growth targets in part due to significant
gains in revenue from our e-filing solutions and rapid
expansion of cotitts and justice revenues in California.
That said, our growth reflects balance acrass the entire
Tyler portfalio, and we ended the year with our 17th
straight quarter of double-digit revenue growth.
Subscription revenues grew mote than 27 percent to
$111.9 million as our cloud-based offerings continue
to gain momentum. Annual revenue from software
licenses and rayalties exceeded $50 million for the first

time, up more than 20 percent from 2014,
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12 nez 12 months, provlding s whh grearer bang alued 2t 57003 mitlon In exch and stack, the fargen M 18, 2016

term vhsibility, Qur balsnee sheet Is scong, with
3640 million In cush and isvestmens and $66.6
swiillion of debst at thnend of 2013, I Noveaber
2015 we pue n plave 4 new fiveyean, $300.0 satllian
smcdic facliing, pheing us e reased Hexlhility e rake
sdwancage of wppartunlthd n croars sharcholder valua
und defve grawih,

REBURRING REVENUE
|||-lul!o!|s

acquirltion bn Tylor's hisracy, New Warld by 2 leading
provider of publie.aafery snd financtal manugement
softwrs for the pulilic scqver, Ny Wadds priblic
safity solusians complement ovr lndustey-feading
canrts andd faaiiee tnlibnna, and the emplayess and
elixnzs of buth cowspanizs re excticd abnue our
vislan for the Dacket’s ot end-ro-end Integrated
solution for public safety aud courts,

Our May aequisitlan of Braaws Techaslogy
Corporardon for §7.6 milllun sl exhatrees aur public
safiy postfolio, Brazvd law eoforezment pteducts
Includs mohils handheld slutions for dectvonic
<citaddors wnd Feld aceident reporing. n January 2015,
we made 3 §15.0 milllon converrible prefred sock
favestment Far 0 20 percenrauke Jn Reeord Holdings,

rlatonshipr, [a 2015, we schicved mors than

" 500 ga-llven seensr the marien, Inchiding 11

Californis caut sysrems,

Financial Success that

Strengthens Communities

2015 weps oxrtainly a year uFrubur zrowrh for Tilee
Luubdng forwaed, while we cepect that frum Gme
w0 time there will be extalysts for higher prowrh, we
comyfngg e belimre the 8 grawehs catetn the low ta
mbd-toens i anrainable, Frler's fiancil sucecse in
20E5 s the reesly ofa focused lnng-term nwercgy of

4

that has driven gravweh ahd shareltald
sralug, W wilk continue t Invest b Tkor at a bigh
Tevel fo 2018 in ozder tn Broaden mur product
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The Driving Forces

Behind Our Growth

Expanding Our Geographlc Reach

Tyker Tehonloges fs the eadlng prowlder nf hategrated
and-to-end managenwint soluidous and servieen for
Jocad goverments, supplylng rofowure aid sesvices eo
e than 14,000 Joedl governmeny offices chraughoue
he Unted Seatss, Canada and odher beasions, Our
snhuttons acklreza 2 wide varlery of publis sesrer neeids,
including financtal and public saficy selucsens faz Jocsl

studeny sulmtons far
achool districes, maulve starew|ds (nplemeradons
of digltad wotkflows and much mare. These rolytions
hedp puklle seeror clients mperate with moza offictency,

An likwteadan of peagraplds wipanddon o w mejer
deiver o greweh b che successful hiplemeteadon of
our Crpysey” couces and [usties seluslan fn woze than
30 jusisd tn 2015, Tyler's L

and eapazlty to successfully manage numerows
cepeutnent kplemenmations - Including the milaur
of eFilsTiaos va all 154 o ehe state's counties nlne

¥ and reiy and o monthy ehiead of schedule and on budger — have
exprtnd dur reacht et scrve liomty wmd i s huted o finacy growth In tae couns tnd
pew markers. [ustlen secror.

GEDGRAPHIC SAMPLING DF NEW CONTRACTS IN 2045
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In 2dditlon e wipanding sut positlon bn the
Unieed Statcs theonpgh new wins and otganle groveh,
Tylix 1t scbeerively exploting inremadonal erategic
artaersbips and tegered s oppurcsnitin wheve
Tlers expertise, leadership and acfatans ase x naural
Br. By Inveaibng I Record Holdings Pry Urntted,
an Austeall Py, and jes U8, subatdlary; Por
The Risund, Trler galned o strurege relaconship
he Anrrealion moneker, as well s aceess r s divere
aulte uf pruducts dins enn vorve i an ctictolun of
“Tler'r Odyrscy cawrt case management sysctn,

Trlere marcgle alllanes with Mievaroft o Jokmdy
develop Micrasaft Dpnumsied AX, an enterpriss
resaurca planaing {ERE) syswemn For thie public sccror,
providea tha lang-term potantial to generare rophy
fevenutes from nttuide ow traditinnal madel

Winning Blg

Tyler’s 3015 wl with Gook County, Thinois. & 4
patme exemaple of 2 second growth dtiver: growing
our preseoce with larger gavarnmens, Tyler was
well-pusivioncd 1o addross tha meed re seplace the
40-year-old propergy v spstem wsed by the secand
most papuloys eaunry I the Untsed Sraees, Afice

& rigurois cumpieildee peviiew ppocise, Cuak
Counry sderred Tyler's LoWadld® appaalual and 1
adwinlscratlar mltware sulutivn w serve as ke
et databa fot the cstiny'e 1.8 millivn rl stz
pascslr, This $30 million conerace, which represente
Tyler's bipgect Approtial 8¢ Tax roftwarc solndions
deal In hiscory; inchades sofrware licenacs,

implementation, malatcnance snd suppare

REVENUE MIX
..

Anocher sipaificant wha that undeocores the geowdh
patenital |n e-fllog soludons Iy the fouryear, §20
milllon conteacy with the Indians Supreime Court,
Tk w13 chosen 1o implement the Odyisey Fils &
Ferve™ plankatm For the e of Indiant o handle
an extlmawd 1.5 milion Glings abouatly for neuly
400 lodiana eourts. This alsn reprecears die pawat
of bullding ou caisilog cllent reladonbips, 15 the
eaurr lid sleeady chascn Tylert Cdyresey” court
case managemens eafrware for hidiana mial and
appellar: epurts,

1A Tin Kibralg o F25 Arirt B



Bullding o Relatianships

A chird diiver of gruwth s expaneion of wbr stuny
cllent relatlonships, which give bx the credibifity ta
browden exkiing selavionchips and cross-aclt solutfons
= adding addivionad applieations within 2 2ulee of
preducen, a1 well a5 uddivonal pruduet sulres, Given
Tler's buse of mere chan 14,004 lova] gaverivment
office, shir abliity erpresens b signifizims Tong-term
gaawih spparcunicy,

The clty of Newpary News, Yirgloia, which
alreedy ores Tyler's Munte® BRI sofrware sulw and
s Wald" 2p pratal and tux snlution, ammougesd an
agreement for Tyler's EncrQu™ phnning and
ngulitory managemenc sufte. EncrGov's web-
rmabled tpplications and self-service kiosks will
axpand the eley'r public sccessand Jis mabile
applizstlong will pravide staf¥ neel-shue aceess to
dura v the Qebd, subsrantiadly reducing hivse.
incensne and redundans procedurcs,

“The Superlar Canre of Califorais. San Bemanfing
Cuvary, an oxkiring; eltene of out Odyssdy® cotist case
managsment suftssre vl for traffic sod edmlual
cares, signed A Folluve vnt agreemient to lmphement
1hls selution fur sl ol ire temaliing case trpes,
Inchuding civil, family, juventle and probace, Kera
Coungy, Califoria, signed 2 §5 millon conaract

Jor the Deyascy inveearcd ariminal justice sluriens
o e Impleamenied b four Wern Councy elminal
watice dhep tn dolng o, il o il fuln
whily Ketn Gownw Supcrine Court and atler county
fusdler agencler ta aperace ot 4 dnghe platfocn ahar

AV T Tolbobpar 200 s g

will atresmiling eriminal Jusdee proccsscs and allow
#gncics to mors clficiently sharc Infarmation with
one gnothot, Korn County b salected the Mew
World publlic safery asluton for 1o abiiiy o provida
mlalur-citica data i fizst cespondens In i shed s
affice. It ulin provides o steealined spstem foe
submlufng cae mpotta by dupuster,

Atwther mows-selling opporuniny includes Inzegrated
#nlurions thar belp locsl gavernments serass mulifple
departnents, The wawn af Addtson, Texo, sipned
= malrizobwdux, agesinent wieh Tiler that dadudes
"Tyler's Munls® BIVP sagen, Incode” court tase
maragerient solutlun and InerGav™ plansing,
regubiory and matarcnence plaifarm, Contrazu
2ugh 54 thesa not anly help fuifll one of Ter's
arrssegie for organle growth, but abia allow e
ellenis 1o henet serve their comtituents with the
support uElanovative technolugy:

A everGuide

Wb vheve vesvard eatneneing lomg-term relitlanehips
thurough suistanding support, Tiler ot miplemented
 catriiLows Improvemant infthusive Thas helps

vt clienbs myedmlac and peocect thete Investment,
ExerGuide™ ir 3 natural atenston nf Tyler's svargreen
phileraply thet eovuses our dliens have up~to-dac
produet rdeuesy, g well ax realnlng and esmsuliing
2epvicer that lielp tsenm vake full advanrage of thuls
Invesments Ju aur produwic, By equipping our cliane
to'be responalvs to thoir constineznts, Trler condnues
to suppart their wioess: s we strengthen our basiners.

Investing in Opportunity

Tyler alen delvas growdy by broadanirng er prodict
afferings theough both sequisilune sad bnternal
praduer develop "The most signifi ke of
thia ¥ the Moventber 2015 acqpisition oFNew World
Systenw Corporacon, & letding provides of public
saleey aind Bnanciat nfutlons for kcal grvernmmen.
Wil this acquirtulon, valsed a1 §700.3 millien, Is dhe
fargest Er awg Iseary, Mevw Winchdhs eor: compenscles
and culkurs ara vlosely atigned with those af Tyler,

Tn nddditton ro papanding et lndusary-udiing pastiion
In the publle s2etpr ERP shabict, sequlving Mew Wogld
Ivunchven ‘Tykes liea 4 beadeshlp posttion In the publi=

safery marhes. Crur Cdysray conrty and Justioe soludons
#nd New World pabllc sefity offerlnpy are highly
somplmentary, creadng tremends us long-temm
rpparubide for crom-selling 1nd Leveraging product
develoy Wit o ision of nscgrating Thleys
eoutts and |uaiee products with New Wanld's publie
afeny proclurets, Tyler n posttloned ta develap the
Jiese fully Invegrived end-ro-end soluston spunming
publie safory thraugh all phass of eAminad Jusdee.

Inrernal developmient prvjects shar ixpanded wur
prouet wiferings include the laoch o Tz ST8™
rmoblle applicatans foz cvare phanes aod tablew that
v school staff scal-sime, on-he-ga aeecit o suddane
Informadsn, Trler o Jaunched Traserns™ Token
Server for the Thiversa pradut, & smprehansive
avlutlat for bus routing, fleet malntenance, activity
wipt and many other transporcation fanatans,

The pd dardl: et I leatk
kivahling stoeanlined wecest for she etiirs niia,
includhitg whicts and apps.
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Tylers integrasal sehool managemene rafiwars aifers stodant
infarmislan, sthoel financial and ransporuden whufans thar
Belp oducators snd adminlstravars marvege due peeds of their
consthiuents and put stadenus first. From Integrated Snancisl
anliinne dhar ke Inte gecount vhe urdque hudgating, procurement
and paysh neests of edacatlon <licots 1o teantportatinn offesings
thar enable efficlent and safs teanaporsation cauging and

et Tler schipol so} pposvee sehals va facts
ot doing wlas ey do beat = educaving sruden. '

Tiler's Jey accomplishmans chuded launching the now
telemmtics proup with Versamrand?, plus susvessful start-of-schoslpar
gu-lives incleding Tyler SIS™v8 (i 1% school disstict) and 1D
{inn 12 school latriess, sprenc acrans Fouz new stang), We akso
Uieked off' developiment fot the Tyder 518 smarrphops app for 105°
und Andteid™, end: dae Student 360 mubile app was rm d avaltsble
bor downluad ar Apple* and Google® app steres, 2013 ahio 1aw the
tnetaflasion oF eur §0,000ch Tyler THemarle™ GPS enic, 1 1elurion
that, in addidon ro using slsbt pesiferdng wptem (GPS) 1 ek
veluele pusidun, provides rebilnte Insighr L driver behavior and
vidyieli darwamch as fiel consumpion and uil prascure.

[ rrerees
R AT 5%,

37,253 citizens
In Prigee Grorge Crundy; Yirginia

where Dlrector of Technology John Biockwen
Tuelpeed npleaneiy Tler 8IS amd “Syler Folar

in Prince Gearge Cinurty Fablic Selsls
10474 tanchers
ran wack perfepmanec of 6,310 studants

idantify at-risk studenisund nake infurmed decisims
that empoise] prung Jearivess o nweceed

and Paach khelr potential.
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Neasly 5,000 government enclees coun on Trler's financtl
xofurlons For effielons mmg of g: budgedng

payroll and hunssn ressuree and for generating utiling bilis
and collecting eoventics,

Tyler comilmiies to innwvase with i cncrprisa resource planning
{ERF solittlony tn mect changing dint needs. Gne: notabla adrenee
was puli ve wn mitiple carleadumilon sres wich Munts vi1,

o HTMLS vercdun dhitt Jmpeoves wee and mublle vxperdenees,
Furtheeore, Murs wsee group meceings wore tonducted for
hondreds of dicnis atress tha councry, which provided the
opporganliy for malalng, product upitates and pecr nerworking.

MNotable comeace: Include the elty of Balstal, Teaneswe, whicl.
slgned 2 reven-yoar software ne 4 servles [548) ngrezment far on,
Intigrated suine of smfivasa anuttens et Includued henbh o
Muniy* FRE and Incode® ¢ttt ek nrasagetitens tobiions; avd
the <lry o Waen, Texas, who als sefoeted arslelple raluons,
$uclyding Musts ERT, the BnerGav™ plunning, tegulusory und
malnienance and Incode court salutions. The Gerald R, Ford
Inwcinaitonal Aleport fn Grand Raplds, Michigan, chow Tyler's
Mew Wothd™ ERP solulan,

Natahle rantaces for Tydce's Infinice Visions* financisk and
peracanel mansgement stluden inclede Alaska’s Kadiah lilind
Porotgh Scheol Tsrrlers ind Wen \allty Sehook Diselz 4208
I Yakima, Wisklngton, which became the Fourth lleat in
Washimganm 1a leave vhe starc’s cooferative lor schaol buslness
sufvrare T faver of Infislee Viitous,

201,560 cititons

.
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Tylex hes berved mur: thas, 1408 taxtng suzhorisies throughear
vhs Unitcerd Sares sund Canedda wich compuscreassinted mass appraisal
{CAMA) sahrlons, billing sod rlletions eoftwire, and rosesment
and tevabiadion rervcos,

One milestonc lor the Appralsal & Taz Divislen incladed
complettait of the fiesc lssWagld’ Ficld Mablle gllot program widh
Giteene Critnty, Misseud, for texting and evaluatlon of featess
thaw allow zppralscis tn socrss, aview and odit parcel-level daca fenm
the field. Another patlesane wat the Crlon™ saftwans go-liva with
she Teeas Cainpreatler of Publle Asouim.

HNonble contazts fncluded 2 36.8 rillon mulipess $28
agreement with Lake County, Ullsoly, whick locludas the la:Warld®
apptalsal and eax admaintlpcation system, 2od 2 $5.5 milion
agieument wich Cobl County, Geargle, to previde coramercll
privatization of the county’s cotmetclal/indusyrlal tex dvision
nerlng CLT Appralead Seqwices™

E36,433 titizens
In Mumgomery Countg, Ghis

where Tyler's CLT Appraiaal Services and Tyht Vi
hefped Auditor Karl ¥elth

cunduer o papprotsal of 250,332 propertles

inodtng 473 blighled structures
(argeled Far sieategle dennlitlon

Inchrding tho.cIn Drytnis Rasscrdt ndghbarhoad whre
34 new high-guallty, low-income homes

are reviializhng the neighbarhood
fot the 765 resldents wha e thery,
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FLIETY L% TR TR

Our products ceneeallze and conneet processes acrons building
depanments, rada enforcemenc, pablic wurks and echer
agencles, with 24-bour cltlzrm accea and mablle salukan: thar
exiend funedonaliy Into the ficld, ercating v and
Tucreasing dceurasy

W owpanded mur preduct mlie frc the EoerGov™ plamming,
tegulatory and nalarchanec saluton te lichide hodule far
apset management, work onder sud owhirenanve msagement,
Fiifuel g bugecrion and gations, and
Envetatory tomsgement, The enboneed produst yules Ineludes
Fearutes that can sparlaliy taap asreta and affillace them itk 2
derignated source.

Contasr sucresses inchede 2 pesy agrocmenn with M Cousty,
Huwali, 10 eplace b kegacy soluion with Toler's Encrlioy
Placforim. Mant Canaty fuuplgue due to i large peecenmgs of
reatal varztion homes and ¢he rosaism indostry, that cemblne

o make real esenre 3 primary driver of rrvenoe and cummese,
Brertiue will play 2 majur zule In the Maci Aurumared Flanning
and Mernliting Syatemn (MAPPS) profect, helpleg rhe cuungy
svtrilice it grospatial data by deseleping o conmtypwlde
eopraphle bifotrradon spamem (G5 dita seposicaly To sippart
covnty land management md ovher processcs, Az parcef the
project, EnerGov will team veich longtime parner Eari®, whore.
industry-losding CIS platform s cmbaddud tn EncrCov,

4.5 millian citizans
oo raly i G opad,

. 384,767 squure miles

Cov . 24,205 physicsl avseszinenls
T G AET physeal aasestnr- o3 Tallurgs
TR 1: From & gas safity offie

s an So et
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Cur suluslons ae ipsrumental in the managemont af land recpsds
e other virsl ncconds, such ax binhs, mardages and deaths, for

troze thte 20 million elelzens aceos ehe United Staces, A kay beoefit of
“Tylefs record and doeament management 4olotlnns I3 thar die sofowans
ta very Aexible and respusrive v leglilasive changes, When dhe Suprave
Cowrg uf the Unlesd Sneces ulked Fa June 2035 char samese rauples
could mnesy, Tlu's Ducument Pro™ sofrware was bz vo quickly and
raslly sccammondate the receseary changes. The Eaghe™ pruduer suln:
alsa ¢ontatica ta help local goscenment 1cran the Unived Stuces Ineccase
the bmber of papet documznu convertad Info digital files.

Trker Bagle Recorder™ was chasen by Santa Clara Counny, Califoralas
fiGh Targest connty with spprottmstely 1.8 million residents, ta replace the
caniys begacy pivera and Smplify band, Atal ond derk-recerd mansgement.

Ia st Eapnegs Kenh Gardian
1,510 birth cerdiflicates
and 1,053 marrlage licenses

ave rocotdad annually by the Jobisan Caunty Regihtar of Deeds
tlng Ragle Ja-zorder' and Bagle Weh

piving cinmn 247 260e88 m
more than 37,000 new public recards ahnually

s+gomputer systemns analyst Jeff Wilson
et bunger bas 2o fivdd boneptghs phooe ealls

und caw e g longbugeding whiv bls fit urite fiding partier,
a rescved whippatifab mix named Marley.
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Onir products provlde 2 broad range of funesionality for eauris,
i law enf and mipervistan

staff. Mo char shic-third of the natlen's pepulatlon Yves in
Turlsdfetlons thie have Heensed Tyber's Odyasey™ cuse muanegenien
o1 e-fling solurione,

Koy innurvarlong and eevults In Cunren ¢ fJusclee tneludsd o
po-lve b Miaml-Dads Cauncy, Plorida (e tevench most papolous
eopgy In the Untied States), and the mifoat of cFeTots w all
254 oF the stateh conndies, There were alio enfile go-lives with Frst
it covees L Wask and [dahw, Tirler comphead 2 wrl wf 11
acw Odgssey bmpl doms i Caliform In 2015, in
jurbdicttons Wocludiing the tosires of Sath DHego, Sais Matos wd
Santa Crug.

We dlio voewred uutt fitst lotegrated jurdlee conmmwer in Cablfornia,
“The $5.0 million agrezment whh Keen Caunty expands she couny’s
st of the Odysey™ lotegraned crlimdnal usdee 1CT) soluden, The
conngys Odysesy 1C) ugresment sasbks Keon Superior Court and
couniy Juschs apencles a oparaie e 4 singhs pladorma char will
sizaimllie proicorses and allovy sgencics 0 mnn: effeccivily share
Informacion, The agutement alin included Odyssey Jall Maager™,
to e tmptrmenced in the Sheriffs Offier fail facilities and the
Probarden Deparmaeny’ javenlle deendon Facilitics, and Qdyasey”
ttortiy Manages, to b Ingbomested b foch die Keen Couy
Disastet Aorney's and Fublic Defendac'y officer. Thir agrecment
savashs a significant move Sovvrard tn Tlers effasie m prowide an
Integrotol xotuciors thet sianling: tnformatian sharisy serss
muhlpl: Jusriice apenscles,

480,250 cliizens
1 Wilhrmngarn Connry, Tk

50,7586 court flings

pricesed deetranically througl, offieTecar™
liminaing 420,000 places of paper p yeur
saying 500 square feet ol wffies e

and enahlisag Peevinct 3
dustica of Wre Peace BIE Gravell, Jr

ol weekennd eomrl peders v b valrlen lrosn dagne

wink gt buck 1n Playing dolls with bis granddanghter,
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Tylutx];ublle safery ralutians foelltar 311 dlapatching and

shattng of misston-critical Informavion among Atst
responders, dispatchets, fuils and ather public safary entl des.

A key nnovation I our Pullle Safisy praduct sulte ls the mldiiton

#F tha Tyler Public SaFory™ {Fad app. The 1pp delives misdonsackical
functonalicy that cnables st responido 10 make beutcr decleinns,
cammauniears pere sffeetvaly In 1ba Beld, ind inczease offfcer safiry
Iy Impreving disaunnal swarepess, In Baems, Texar, the (Pad app
has eqabled the Bocrne Pollee Depitment 1 dect=are tosponise iy
vl thyan fove minruter and deeveare mobile wah costy by souphly
7 percenswindte sell heeping up with a tapidly Inereasing pepulzsion
stud spending mare e Ju tho Beld.

Ty acquisicions bn 2018 Bonsted Tyt produst offziogs avd hunched
Tyler inta a kadershige postrien {u the public safiry secior, In May
2085, THer sequivad Brauue Tochnulogy Curpuratlon, a pruvider of
mobile Landheld solurions wed prirmasily Ly law enfaresitient agasier
fur kesulag elvativna electeunically and for field aecident reposting.
The wequi of]!mzns p an 1ne fnae wiehs Tler's

I i Ty wir exdsting saite of publis sfry
wlulons and mpshnﬂng o mablle offelngs

The seennd aequisitlon — the lugest In Tyles blitary — come in
Blovensher 2013 vehun v asguired New World $yseesur Corporation,
As a rostc, Trler slgadficantly expanded s podtion ih che publie zafesy
miacker: Tyler's vlilan for che incegration of this New Warld Systems
publle safety platforam with Tlets Ocdypsacy’ cours and Jastice mlumm
will eresta tha Saat d, d bow enf and

criminal jusriea mhatonen the mirket.

787,604 clilzens
1o by Eonitg Waskingsen

sepend by 1,675 miles of roads
trluling 223 masaf S Highway 92

where Edmonds Police Officer Alan Hardwlek
v 8 spicioie vehiche

ran Fhe ficense plat® chrogsh Tyfers Mew World sfrvan
vallvd For backup and safdy

captured an escaped convict
witl a blansry uf viokmey.,
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USES OF CASHOVER LAST (0 YEARS s

Investing in Our Future

Putting Caphial to Work

T wddfsinm tn penviding conajsient pvenue snd
carnings grawth aver an citended perind nf time,
“Tyler's aperalany consiscently geneniee very diralig
cash Ao, Qver b pas fve yeurs, Tyler's frea cash
Roiw has oveioged 2.3 dhmea fts non-GAAR tict incoime,
W dy evnluane sfrernactves te put it cash
Elow 1 wirk 1o ganeraee value For nir sharcholdeny,
But also have showm putlencs st discipllog tn sueking
catnpelling uses of eash, Our strotg cash fow and
selid bulance sheee give ua 3 grear deal of Auibiliyy n

sonsidering prnegic Invesment.

Investlig in our produco aud tncernal cxpansion

theauph sur rereacch and developmsens effocee 12

nelarity For Fyler. Wich a 1earg of mspe than 1,000
Fv 1

i dewd
ngincers and we

enhance ceising praduees and develop nsevanive
e sdurune i gddresc our clienee’ evaleing needs
anil challemyes, Althongh all of cue develeg n

Straseghe acqulsitions huv slsa been a sigoificant vse.of
onr eatl, Weveconipleted 71 scquisttons by the lasy
decade, with the largest bsing the acqulsidon af New
Watld Syrteras n 2015, Miach af our MEA activiny
1 aimed ar brosduning our offerings of pesduces or
seevien, ome of these, tuch ut axr 2015 aquisivion
of Bratos Technolopy expand axiating product

suises, while others, iuch as Mew World, represenc
the sirengthaning of ous [radesship positien s the
public secror marker. We alio occastonally qomyphe:
cansulidarion acquisisions, whete the scqulied husiaesy
har prodiscs that overdap with sur porcialla,

The vhir uss uf uur rash is far suck sepurchas=s. Ax
with M&A, we take an uppurmuntistc spproach ne
bying uur stack - buying mars agzressively when
we belleve the market's valunden doey ot fuBy reflesr
anr long-term vicw of Tylers Raturc prospoers. From
2002 threugh the ond of 2015, we have cuminbaively

weeent Yt Bas boen cxpensod, we censider those

| 2461 wrillien hars of sur constaon atock,
akan iverage price of 12,34 par ihare, Wich 4 bowrd

effrol to e an thut pravides long:
growch g eseengthens aue comparliive posicion,
Tn addditturs, aur broadsl of praduces and depth of
tesstecs snalike v ko deverage R&D efforty seron
mulitple peaduees, and aver dne, realise specating
margin leverage.

4 eF dealey 4303 Remarl s

] 1 purchase .4 millon addislncal shures
au the end of 2018, we expece that wack repurchases
will canthiue zo represent a ponisn ef nue
eaplal allzzadian,

25M

Fusling Innovation

While e iajority olsur developers work o1 busivess
lagic, fantlamal technology and cading hav are a tle
<are ol our prodhuss, athes developers ure dedieaed 1o
pure technalogy Infttatives, In foet, in 2015 v created
4 bew group Focused on banavative mchnotogiis and
thelr applicatiaw scrors Tyler's product ponifulio.

The way the public sectar works )b evolslng, and
Tiler Iy commitied to Jeveraging the brst of exdalng
] cmerging technologiet that cnahl wx v deliver
selurleny that kelp oue clienves addsct dhelr chauging
needs, b gy elients and thele have
an eipevvativn fur infurmativo to be availzbls fram
anywhere sr any dme. Toler b vespondiog to there
changes and uppurnumitie: with moblle pehpolugles
and elond compuag sslotieny spesifically desipned.
far the unique tsds of the public secror,

Mehile kpplicarisns have became an irporsnt parc
of sugponing our pulslic exctor salytlank, whether they
Ievnlvr eonducdeg an appedsl in the Bdd, baolng o
bwiling permly nr swelting a cRfic sloatlon,

Tiler bat aleo miade aerides by offering proven cfoud-
hased salatigns for wirtually all of oor praducts,
and we eemain commiteed to ofelng pur cients
the mant effective and efficient sufewary dellvery
aystems, whether enline or an stta, Tyler uses z
ayhiid clowd nftaginciug: that phvides dicats with
slwayseon gty 10 sofiwite and dara, We alie make
Tawveatinenes by reenginteting ear praducte w workin

Leading tha £-Fliing Revolutioh

The abllizy to view and Rle documents sleciranically
and roake eleeseonle paymentshas sevelutioniznd

tliv way onwsy tedng jurisdivdons sud acher

2 1 serve thel const! with
[reater transpatency; Roruracy and responveness.
Tyler Technologles has bewn ac the fapefrons of thla
monamencal shifg s Odyssey Flle & Scrre™ phiform
Is now being used In mon: than, 30 judedicrions,
Including 11 jmplementatiens ar the steicwlds Jeveh

g CONTRAZTS

Mine Califorota caoer are uring #FlleCA ro reduse
coset, slmplify fllng provesses, savs papen, chane
Infarnaacion snd [ncreas clizenm’ fiir aceers o Javdos,
TnTexas, Tylae auccessfully tropiuraanted olileTerae
inall 254 counttes n the state nine momihs ahead of
schedule, Already; eFileTexas has tuansformed the coum
ystem, eeddaced cose barldog and facilitared confidence
1n the justice apstem, Tn 2015, Tyler alia signed an

vhe cland, and inuc 1o invest J1gnil by m gr o fmpl a sarewide v Bllng ypiem
our hosting facilities. in Indisna snd went Tive with piiut cuure in
Washington and [dsho.
o
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The plienomenal growth in interest regarding

e-filing solutions, the seamless integration acrass
multiple jutisdictions and the almost-immediate
benefits realizect by the public sectar make Tiler's

e-filing solutions a strang area fot growth.

Fostering A Community Of Users

Tyler Technologies has achieved exceptionally high
retention rates with both clients and employees for
good reason, Many of our emplayees have wotked in
the public sector and bring 2 deep level of knowledge
and understanding of the challenges our clients
face in serving the public, They also bring a passion
for helping our dlients overcome those challenges,
and gain personal satisfaction and fulflltnent from
providing solutiens that truly make a difference in

the lives of fellow citizens.

E-FILING
SOLUTIONS
with Odyssay
File & Serve™

= - & - M
01 23 15

year million doruments million filings

Tyler’s leadership position, coupled with our low
client atteition rate, has been intensively hard-earned.
One of the reasons our client relations remain so
strong is that we never take our clients’ loyalty for
granted. BverGuide™ is a continuous improvement
istitiative that revolves around ensuring that our
clients ate tzking full advantage of our products; our
evergreen philosophy ensures that their investment

is protected with up-to-date technology through the
life of the product.

32 Bler Trchnologics 2015 Aruit! Reparr

Tyler also understands that our clients can learn from
each other. User group meetings and our annual
Tyler Connect-user conference offer our clients the
opportunity to network and share experiences and
best practices face to face, The Tyler Community is
an online forum where Tyler clients can share ideas,

pose questions and help solve each other’s problems.

Providing these opportunities for our clients also
helps ‘Tyler berrer understand our clients’ wants

and needs so that features and functionality can be
developed according to their evolving requirements.
In this way, we at Tyler are helping ro fulfill our
promise of empowering those who serve the public
by helping our clients work together and share

best practices.

A Story of Service

A Story of Success

Bvery day at Tyler Technologies, we individually
and collectively suive to build tools that genuinely
help state and local gaverntnents and school discricrs
work more efficiently, more cost-effectively and

more transparently,

The Tyler story is grounded in the belief that we can
help make communlties stronger by empowering
those who serve them. In this teport, our numbers
and our achievements add up to semething bigger
than our earnings. They add up to greater potential
andl a brighter futute for out company, our investors,

our ¢lienes and their cittzens.

We call that
a success story.
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Siack Markel Data

Jar cominon slock s traded an the New York Stock Exchiange undar the symbod *TYL" &t Desambar 31, 2016,
wa had 2ppreximetely 1,585 stockholdens of pacard. Most of our stockhakiars hold thelr shares bn straat Tidemiy
thergiare, thera ara substantinily mors Han 1,885 banafislal cemers of our common steck.

Tha followng Yafde shows, for the calendar perlods Indleated, tha high and Jow 5813 pHice per xhera of aur commen
atock as poportad on thy New York Stock Exahange,

High Low
i Fist artar 318795 + Yo
Eacond Duartsr ER ] %37
Third Qurter 7.5 24,70
Faudle OQuartar 11537 609
2016 Fi Quartu LI ARt
Secnnd Quactar Wsry e
Thisd Qurarter L B30
Fourih Duarier Pl B

Ve did not pay any cash dividems In 2015 ar 2014, Our bank credit ngaement coniains rastrictians on the
payment of cxsh dividends: We [ntend i Patdin eamings for use la he: aperation and expanelan of stz busitess,
and, thorefora, we do not anticipaie declaring a cash dividend In the foreseuable future,

During 2016, we purchased approviirtately 5,400 shares of ot asmmon stock fo¢ an ngaregals puishsee price of
$848,000, As of December 31, 2015, we had authorizatlon 10 repurchass up by 1.4 million additional shares of
Tyler ceaninon stock, The rapurchase progrem, which was approved by our board of directors. was announced In
Cctober 2002, and was amended at varlous imes from 2003 thicugh 2011 1, ‘There I3 ne axpiratlon date specified
for the duthorlzallon 2nd we Intend te repurchese stou unider tha phen fom me to tine,
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Selected Financial Data

Sulected Financlal Daia

Fon L veary Endedl Decomber 31,
Ui thousitidy, gecenl pr HIare data} 2013 EQl4 2013 2012 2001
IATEMENT OF DPERATIONS DATA:
Kenfues §7 Fedud $453,101  $416,649 $365.504  $304.3%1
Cest and sxpenses:

- Coxl ol rsnues (1] #1a 255,730 215,440 185,602 167,478
Sallicg, gonaral snd adm nlstrative expenaea {a) ANT 106,260 98,280 B6, 786 78,850
Restarttyand developminl mpisse 20,0 26,743 23,269 20, Mo ledla
Amvectizatian of eustomer ' trude name -

Inkanggiles (a) YR #8486 4,647 4218 4.351
Gparatiog Incoma Rt 84,822 67128 56,677 de,517
@tner Incomn {expenaes), nal Sa1 358 1,309 {2,709) & 404
Incame batuee lcome tees B2 Eha 84,467 55819 53,868 112
Ineoine b provision A 35557 20,714 20,874 16,886
Hat Income b Se28 478940 4 zodm ¢ 32034 4 27387
Hat warnings per dituiad shxe r Ll 3 L6 % 113§ 100 8 UB3
‘Welghiod avsrags dituled shouzs S 35400 34,890 32,916 13,154
STRFEMENT OF GASH FLOWS Dikres
Cush fiowk pravidad by sperallng activlties F o $120427  § 65000 & 58868 § Bo4d
Quah tiaws osed by InvisEing activitics [E ] {11,555} 125,658) @4,7361 (26,50%)
Cah Moy providhed fused] by Minancing acliviies Lk e 15,408 a0 (13,852 (2801
BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Total asvata 2pALET $880,812 §s4d400 $330688  §295301
Rexpving Jina-of credi) Lk - — 18,000 60,700
Sharehaldars' aquity e BN 236873 245319 1452% a0

ta) O Kivember 26, 2015, %8 complated the scqulsion of Mevr World Syatems Corporstion (WS Dyr operating resulis include the
resalia o WS foum the dare o Doqu iion M1 OAISE dYMASES of dsrarimloly $5.9 millon Jv Rnsncial aovior, gl acebuitiee,
< oifigenze, vuliaiion and dthar Faviees shissmbey 00 camplele 1he acquistiion, 41 vail a1 S millian of amonizalion axpines mistsd
o NA'S deyursifiont vargibich

LR - N L

ianagement's Discussion and Analysis of Finangial Condition and Resulls of Operatlons

Forward-looking Siatemants

tn audition te historlaas Infotmetisn, this Anaesl Report sontal i-laking The farward-laoking
staterments 4@ nada In sellance upon sefe havbor provisians of the Private Securlties Llgation Reform Act ol

1983, Tha fegward-leaking stofernents are aublect o caraln risks snd yntaridintles that could cavse actual resulis.
Yo differ matarislly oo thosn roflacted In the forward-tooking statements. Readers are ceutioned not to place undus

rallance ¢m these forward-fooking witich reflect opinlon taly 18 ol the date hareot, We
umderiake na obligetlsn to ravizs or publtcly releasn the results of any redsloms to these forwzrd-leoXing statoments.
Readels shauld earefully review the I wa file feor imea b titne with the
Securitles and Exchanga Commisalon,

When uted In this Annual Report, tha wirds "beReves,” “expects,” "anticipates,” “foresacs,” “foratasls,”

“estimales,” *plans,” “Intends,” “continues, *may,” *will," “shobfd,” "projects,” "might,” “could” or ather
similsr words or phrases are Intencod ta identify forward-ioking statements. Similarly, statemonts that descrica
Aur business strategy, aullook, chlectives, plans, intentions or goals 2150 are fwward-ttaking stat=meats,

Sverion

Generl

W pravide Inlagraind 1nfornation mamsgement sohotlang addd sewices for the public sector; with & Jozus on lece)
giveraments. We develop: and mevket 2 broad line of software products and sanvioas te sddrase the IT neads of
uilles, counties, schoolsand othes kocal govemmant antities, n sddition, we provide professlonal IT servicas fo o
cllonts, Includinig software and hardwarg Inatallstion, dats conversion, fraining and for certaln dllants, produet
modiflcations, along Wit contiruing nainbenince and support for ellsnts usiig ouy systems, We alss provide
subserintion-basud servies such as sotteara 65 8 sorvice (“SanS"), which uiilizes the Tyler privata cloud; end
dlagtvonle document iifing salutfons {*e-fillag™h, which simplify tha fillng and menagemant of court ralatas
documents, Revenues for e-filing are derived from. %ous and In sane fived feg af We
alan provide progerly appraisal inig $orvices Jor faxing jur

Oue prodyets generakly Bulomate six misjor funchional areas: (1) financlad managernent and cducatlon, (2) coutts and
|usthes, 42) public natsty, 44) praparty appraleal and tax, [S} planning, regulatory and malitenance, and (6] Jand and
wital recards mansgement. We repart our resulls in two segmeats, Tha Entsrprise Saftwaro Solutions {“ESS™)
segment provides nlunicipal and county sovernmants and sehanls with koftwate systems and services bo meat Inelr
I gy onid automation needs for missior-critical “back-oiiice” funchons such as Mnansiz)

eouHs and justi pubifc satety; planning, regulatory and maintenance: and land and vital
recorda management. Tae Appraisal and Tax Softwars Salutions and Sewvicss ["ATSS") segiment provides systerms
end software that aitometa the appiilsel and assessment 6f rsal and persana! progerty as wall & papoty epprelsal

Hov jaal gor and taning Peoperty eppralssl g senvices include:
Ehe physical lnspectien of and eskinnlial properlies; data collect i campister analysis
lor property valuation; of tax rolls; Jutations and arbltratlon bebwaen lexpayars and Hhe
astesalng Jurisdiction,
Total l i 17% n 2015 t0 2014,

Qi Hewsmbar 16, 2018, wa acquived all of tha capital etock af New World Systems Comporetion {*NWS™), which
irovldes public saiety and dinenctal salulions for Iocal govornments, The puseiasa pelte, nat af cash acqulred of
$22,5 milljon, was $337,5 milllon In easky, of which $4.0 mililon was atcruad st December 31, 2015, ead 2.1
Milliiow shares of Trlar commmen stock valued at 3362.8 millton.

O oy 24, 2015, wa acqulred all of the capital stock of Brazes Technetogy Carpazation (*Brazos™s, whioh provides
ilka hamd hgld sulutions prmarly to law enorcemeat agencles for Retd sccldent reporing and electronleally
Issulng citatlons, The purchase price, net of cash pequired and Incloding debt axsumed, was $6,1 miltion In cash
end 12,600 shares of Tyler commmmn steck salued ot $ L8 milllon,
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Maonsgement's Discussion and Analysis ef Flnancial Gendition and Rest ts of Operations

Tha oparating sasuits of NWE and Brzos ara Inelidad with the ppeeating resuits of the Eterprise Software
Solutions segment gines tholr regpective dates af acquisition,

Yéa moniiter and analyza several key performatica Inglealoss In arder ta managa sur business and ovaluels gur
financlal and operating pecfarmanca. These indicatars ingludo the following

# Revesued — We derbva our reventies from five primary 3ouresss sala of software licenses znd soyaitles;
lumrfptllm basay Brangamants| softwara services; malntenante and appraisal servicas, Subseripilons gnd
sturcas and L ¥ 50% of Qur revenue In
20415, The number of néw 3229 clients and the number ulul.ﬁlnxnllunlsw\u ctxweuimm aur traditional
soflyare arrangements o our 508 adel ara & siguificent drver 1o aor busieas, together with now soltware
Bcenaa saled and malnjenance fate Incydases. I addition, we alsd monlkor our custemer base and shum as
we hfstorically hove experienced very low gustomor luimover, Dulhg 2015, based on pur hutnber of customers,

turnever was appraximately 3%,

+ Co\ of Recénues and Gross Margins — Dl.r pllmaly céet comporent |s pazsonnel aigunzes in cannectian with
pmldlngsnﬂwm 't hased services, mal and support, and appralaal
services b oul clpnts, Wa can Imp arging by cantrelling haad and related aosts and by
expaidling our revenu biise, aspacally from thas: products and services that preduse Incramsnte] revenua
with tinlnaf oat, slch and royeltles, subscriptlon-based sarvices, and

malntanance and support. Qur sppraisal projects are eycllcsl in ttive, #rd wa often smploy appraisal

persannel on a shart-tenm basis ta calnclde with the life of a project. As of Detambar 31, 2015, sur tofsl

emplayea count increasad to 3,586 from 2,856 al Dectmber 31, 2014, This Increase Includes 513
added a5 2 resikt of In 2015,

. &Iling. (:‘une«al and Mmlnlstmllva ("SB&A™) Expensss - Tha primary epmporents of SG&A Expenses are
§ salatles and share-based compensation expensa, morketing
oping, tor} BRd ml’ass[unal fees. Balas commislons bypl leally fuctuate with revenyas and share-bagad
slalpansatlen exporiss generally Incrensas when the markel prica of our floch Incressas, Cther administrative
expanses 2nd 19 prow et 4 slower cals than revenues, [n 2018, 30&A xtenses Indluds approximataly $2.9
million fer financiak edvisery, legal, acsounting, due diligente, valuallah and olher Various sarvices nacesszny
to compleia the NWS acqulsition,

+ Liquidity and Cash Flows — The primary deiver of ot cash fnws i nok Incoma, Uses of cash inciude
arqulsifons, capital dvedtrents in property and equipmenl and discrationary purchages of Weesury stack.
Bur pital needs ara falrly 1he year with tha slgnificant components of ash
eulfiows being paymunt of persomsii expenses offset by 248 nllows repriventing callection of accounts
racciwaMe erid ¢ash recetpls from clients In edvance of reveiiue h!iﬂg earned, [N fesen! yoars, we have alss

of cagh from s Ing stock optlons and contribuilng lo sur
Employea Stosk Purchase Plan.

= Balance Sheal .- Gash, aceounts mceivabis and drys sales sulstanding und dafemed revenua balances ere
imsportant Indicators of gur busshess,

New Accounting Proneucemenls

Qp May 28, 2014, the Financial Acpounting Standards Board ("FASB") lasuad Agoounting Stancards Update
{"ASU"} Ne, 2014-08, *Revenue frorm Dontradts with Cystomers,” This ABLE 12 the resull of a ¢onvergence projact
between the FASR and the International Accounting Slendacds Seand. Tha eota priactple behind ASU 2014-08 is
that a0 anilty should meognize ravanua to deplct the transfer of promised goods snd xervicad to cuslomess [a en
amount 1hat reficets tha coraidesation 1o which the oathy expects ta be aotitled in exchange for dallvaring those
goods and sarvkces. This mrdol Involves a ve-gtep process tiat neludes [dentifying tha contract with the customer,
Idenllfying the performance abllestions In the contract, determining the transaclion prica, allecating ha transection
prices ba e perf in the coniract ng revenua when (or #4) the entlty satishios the

B4 20 Fokooagt SRS Avnel R

Management's Discusslon and AnalysTs of Financlal Condition and Reeulis of Operations

The guidance in the ASU des exst] ition guidanca and Is
affactive for annup reperting purlods beginnlng aftar December 15, 2016 with early application not parantied, The
A3U allows two methous of adoption; a full relaspectiva spproach whara throa years of finantal infatmation are
prostnted In secardsace with the new standard, and amod!fied retrospectfve approach whare the ASU I 2pplied b
the mast cuzrant porbod prassated i the financie] etatements,

Un August 12, 2016, the EASE voted for 2 one-year deferral of the effective date of the new standand and now
requires application of the: new stanctard no Tater tham annual repweking perlods beghning aftar Dacember 15, 20137,
Ineheding faterim reporting padads therein. However, under tha preposel, publle antities wauld be pemitted to sfact
toeady adopl the new standard aa of tha odplas| atfectiva data. We currently expect inadopt tha nev standeed in
fisce! year 2018 [n accerdance with the revised gifantive ditm,

Outlank

Arthyky In the local government safferie market continues t be gocd, and it the fheluslon of NWS, aur Tacklog
at Desernber 31, 2015 reached $844.5 milllon, 3 20% Incraase fron last year. With our strong financial positan
and cash Aow, ¥e plan tr scosk: BUF i In product avejor with expacted resaarch and
davelopiment expense of appropimately $47.0 miklion, We Beliove that Incressing the lovestment In our products will
better position us 1 cartbisve tw expand eur sompeiltive positionin Lhe publlc seelor software market gver the fang.
ey,

I:rihnl Azcounting Pollcles :ﬂd Exfimatos

2nd analysls of i 1 cond fion and resulls of o4 k4 Baaed wpon our financlal statements,
whlr.h ‘ave heem preparad in scccedanca with accaunting principlés generally accapted In the United Statey
"GAAP"). The thom of these financhal stats totlres ug o make 2atimates and Judgments that affect the
veported amourrts of assets and fiablVities at the date of he financisl atatamants, the reparted 2mounts of revenues,
tas) of reeniles Atd sxpanses durlng bhe reporting gerod, and refated disclasure of eoplingancies, The Notam ia tho
Financia) Staterments included as pant of s Aorual Rapart desoribe aur algnilleant atzounting pollcles used In the
preparation of 1he tinanelal statements. Slgnifizant tems subject kW such estimales and assumplions Inciute tha

1k af the o lindon and perft hod: revenue eengnition, the
canying ainount and estimated usaful |Ives of b 1t ion of share.b; expense
and valuation allewancy fev recelables, Webm ar asnma!a an histolcal experlence and on verkous cther
assumptions that we beliava o b tha the regults of which farm the basls tar

meking Judgments abouk the carrying values of assets and llabilities thal ave not ieadily apperent jrom clhér sowces.
Aetued rosults may dHfer from these estimates under diffanent assumptions or conditions.

ot )iuva tha following <ttlcal accounting policias require significant judgmants and eatimates usad In the

Rencanya Rocogoition, We recognize revenuss In with the provisions ot I !

Codification (“ASC™) 605, Revanua Recagolilen and ASC OBE-508, Soltwars Revanca acagnltion, Dur rovenias
are derived fiom sales of software Hlornses and rovaitles, sobecriptionsbased serviees, aptralaal services,
maintenence and suppo. and services at typically range tram Inetallation, tralning ard basle corsuiting fo
software madlfication and custelztion te meet spasitle cuctorser heads. For muliiple elsmant sottwerq
awangemants, which do not entail the perlormance of services that ara conslasted sstantial tn the. functionality of
the soltwaio, wa gencrally record resunue when tha delivered products er performed secvices resull In a logatly
enforcesble and aon-refuadatrn clsim, Wo maltain shavences fo dowbittul accounts and sales adjustments, which
ar0 piovided at Ve Hine the revenug 1a B 1 of cur satitles, we
raraly Incue a loas eeauiting frocs the. Inablbity of a customer to rriake required paymanls. In a imlted number of
cp3qs, we encounter a customor who (s diesatisfied with same aspect of the Wflwars product o our servics, and wa
iy obfer a % Jon™ to such cust Inthosa Ylmitad situations whare we grand 2 fon, wa rerely
reduea tha eontrack armigament fes, buk aliernetively may perform adrlitionsl senices, such as additional traiing

- or ureating eddiional custom reparis, These amaunts have histarieslly baan nominel. I Hin with oyt

customer contracts and the adequacy of related sllowances and maxsures af progress towards contiact completion,

L3 STURVYLILP RO



Management's Plseusslon and Analysis of Financlal Gendition and Results of Operations

aur project managars era charged wilh the rasponsilillity 16 sontinually reulew tha stalus <! aech gustemeron a
apeeific epntract boasis. Also, wa review, on al least a quarterly basls, significant past due accaunts secaivabla and
the adequacy of related 133apvos, Eventa er changes In circumatencas thak incicate Yial the czriylog amoons for tha
atlowancea for doubtful actounts and sala8 ediwstments may require revisian, Include, but ara not limited to,
detardorstion of 2 customer's finanolal conditlen, failum ts manags our custarnar's expectations ragatding tha scopa
of the services 1o be delivarad, and detecls or orrors [n new verslons or anharkenanid of ol saftware progcts,

W usa carlract ing, prienarlly f-completion ilhod, 38 tiacyased Jn ASC 605-35,
Cunstrudton - Type and Gartaln Preduation = Tyge (‘animcts, {or thase wﬂwm arangerienls that lnvalve
mndlﬁl:-it.unm licn of the software, or whare our software services afe othervlaa
d assantlal to the fi y of the saftware. We measure progtaas.o-complation pamarily using fabo:
haurs [ncumad, or vaiue added, In addition, using the @ Honal parformenca methed of
rovanlie recoguition fer our property appralsal projects, soma of whieh cah rage up 1 five Yers. These metheds raly
on e!tlmlha!ofhlﬂmcied !:unincl revenya, billtogs and l:nusc‘kma A eactad codlract costs, es wall i3
¥a belleva estimates of muania and casts ang

prdgeas appllcabls to varlous stages of a contract can be made, Al times, wa perform sddilions! 2ndfor nop-
contractual seniced ot Hifle to ne Inaramental feo Lo satisly customer expactations. 1f changes ocgur In dalivery,
Poduetivdty of other fastars usad In developing our eetimatas of axpecied costs ar revantias, wa revise our sost apd

timates, and any revisk charged fo income In the pariod In witleh the lacts that ghve rlsa tathat
zenlston first becoma Kok, In cornsetion witd these snd certaln olher contraets, wa may porform tework prior 1o
whitn Uha serviees are billable andfor payabla pursuant o tha coatrzct. The tesm ination clauses in most af our
contracts provide for tha paytnaet for the valua of products delivered and sdrviced perfarmed in the event of an sarly
termination.

For 58a5 awangaments, wa svalusta whether the cust ras fha cantraciual right bo k% fion of our
salfwane atany ﬂmedur}ng the hosting heriod withot significant penety and whotier the ustomer can feasinly
mialertals The soily n t 's haed) shter Infe anether arrangaimant with a third-party to host the

$ottwera, |F wa determlng that Iha utamar hss tha contractue) right to take posszssion of our sofkware 2L any time
during the hagting perlod withaut signiilcant penaity and ¢an feasihly mafntain the sofbware on 1he cuslemar’s
hardware or enter into analber airangement with a third-panty to host tha softwere, wa soengnlze Ibe lcenss,
prufesslonal services and hoating services ravenuen piraient to ASC 985-605, Softwale Rewnus Recognttan, Far
3a0% arrangements lhat do nat meet the critera for recopmitfon under ASG 5}85-60&. we aceeunt fof The elemenls
under ASG 605-25, Mulilple Elerwant A using 2!l appll facts and ¢lr including
whelhu'li) ﬂle elcment has stand-alana valua, (1)) |hmls o general right of tstur and (10 the revonug s
other 'Yfa sllocate 1he contrRet valua to each elemient of the arrangsment thet

quulifies for |rﬂn1lmnt #a 6 saparate elernient based anvendor-2pecific objective evidanca of ke vafug (*“VSOE*),
and ¥ YSOE le net available, third-party svidence, and ff third-party svidenca Is unavailzble, estimated seifing price.
Far prafeeslons! eaivicos asseelsiod with SeaS smangemants that wa datermina da nat heva sland-alone vatuz to the
customer or are contlngant an delivery of athar glarsents, wa recognize the servicis ravenue mably over tha

Ining contractusl perixd {ng fas gorte live arkl wa iney bagln billing tor the hesting serdces, We record
smbunts thal have been invelead tnsccounts receivableand In defemed revants ¢f Rvanuat, depending on whether
tha revenea racogniting criterla hava beea mat,

In conmection with &radd of our cortracts, wa have recorded i ivable o unbilled las congisttng
of costs and estimated profit {n exeass of billlsgs as of tha halance shest date. Nany of he contracts which giva rlsa
to Unbilled rcetvables @i 8 glven balance sheet date ara subjest to billings in the subsequent accountinig period, We
review unbllled recaliabilen and related conlract providions to ensura wa 4tk [ustied in maogntsing mvenua priar to
billing lhe customer and thet we hova objeclve avidence whicl allows s to recogniza sich fevanue, In additlon, wa
hava a nizable ansount of defemed revenwe, which ropresents blllings [n gigess of revonue earned, The majuity of
this liabHily consists of matnterrance bHlings for which payments ste made 1 advanca and the revenus |s ralebly
earned over tha maintenance period, generally ane year, Wa alse have deferred ravenue. for thosa eshiragts In which

ivd 4 depoalt and tha in which fo récord raveaue for the setvlue or product has not basn met, Ona
patledic basiz, we revlew by ¢ttenier the detad] camponenty of our deferred mvenue to ensure ur accopnting
Temalng appropriale.
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Intangible Assets and Goodwill, Dur buslness acquistiines typleally rasult In the ¢rastion of gaedwiil 2 other
intargfble asset bafances, and thase: balances affect the amaunt and ¥ming of futute period amortizalton ekpanse, as
well ny aepnze wa could possibly lcur es a result f an lmpalrment charge, The cost of acquired compandes
aflocated ko Identifisbie angible sndintangible ssaels bavad en uﬂmntsd falr va!ue, writh the mieess alfocated o
goadwill. v hava a signil balance of date intengibk b, Including softwars, customer
ratated imanglbles, trads name, Ysases and poodwll, Thess Inlangible assats {other than goodwllZ) ars amartized gyer
thelr exfimated useful lives, Wa currently have no Imtanglbla assats with badelinita ves ather than goadlll,

Wihea {esting poodwill for impalrment quantitatively, we tis compara the Jalr value of aseh reperting unitwith lis
cateylng amaount, [f the carrying amaent of a ragorting wnit excaeds IS fairvalua, 8 ecord stap I parformed e
meazsure e amaunt of polentie] lmpairment, In the second stap, we eompare the Implied falf yahse of reporting
Uit guodwill withs the carrylng ameint of He risading unil's georwil, 1t th varring amount of reperting unit
goodwl'l exceeds Whe Implied falr value of Lhat gaodrill, an impalrment koss §s recognized, The talr valtes calculaled
In sur bnpiad I besta srn vaing cash Flow modgls Inwlvlng sa'veral ussumpilnns The
rssumptiond that are uxed are based upoi What we befieve & would usa In
eatimalng falr valus, We base ocr fair value estimtes om essumidions km beffeve to be razscnabls bul that zre
wnpredictable and lnhasently uncortoln, Wa evaluele the reosanalleness of the als vatue calelatisng of cur
reporting units by comparing tha tatal 6f 1ha falrvalies of all ol ourroptring untte bo our tolal market capitalization.

9or snndal goodwill Tmpaliment eralysls, which wa performed quantitativaly duting Lhe second quarter of 2013, Uid
notzeswit in an impairment charge. Dufing 2015, we tid kol Kiehtity any triggering avanls that would require an
update o our amnuad impairment revtow.

Afl | fblg assats (other th, I} for lnpai whenever events or change$ in circumsiances

Indicala thet tha carying ameunl of an 2sset may net ba ity of olher [ntangthly azatata

massured by compardson of the canying amount 1o estl 3 uny! {ut h fiews, The of
Liilify o of the usaful Ifs for wil'b if the Kiming or tha amourt of

setimaied future operating tash floves s stot achbevad, Such indlzators mey lnclude, amaeng sthers: & sigs it
decling Ly gwpaoted futute cash flows) a sustalned, significant decling in stock pilca and market capitalizatlon; a
sipaticant adverse shanga n legal factors orin lh! business c!lma\e. Unanhc{paled campetition; pag reductins in
rowth rates, |n addition, praducts, capabllitl ity others mey render our seltwarn
preducts obzoleta ar non-competitive, Any admu thenge tri thesa factors conld have a significant impagton the
tecovarnblity of zoadwill or othor Talangibla assels.

Share-Based C We have 4 sivck apllon plan trat grovides for the grant of stock eptions ta key
ernployees, deectors and non-amployes consultants, We estimale the falr voluz of share-based awac on tha datg of
grant using the Black-Scholes oplign velustlon model, Sharm-basgd P includes tha astimatsd
stiscta of forfelras, which will ba edjusted over the requisile sarvce perind 1 tha extent actugl forlettures difler, or
are expectadta diffar froin such asiimates, are 1zad In tha peded ef chapge
and wilk aiso Impact the amouni of expens tu ba raeegnbied In ftrs peneds, Ferfeltura rate assumplions sre
dirfvnd fimin historlcal data, We estimate stoed nrlea velatility &) the dale of grant basad o tha historizal volalllity of
aur comemon stock. Estimatad aption fe |s detennined using the welgntec-averape pertod tha stack opkions ar
axpacted to be cutstanding based prinally on the aptlois wsting tecits, iemaining contractual life and the
employess expacted skarcise Lased o historical petéarns. Determining Lhe appropriste fair-value model and
selculating e fair valus of shero-bassd aweds at Lhe prant. deta ragquires conslderabln Jucgroant, tneluding
eatlmating stack price yolatiliky, espected option life and fefsiture rates.
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Analys1s of Results ot Ogerations and Other 2018 Gompared Ta 2014
The Pollowing discussian compares the historical results of operetion on 4 basls censistent with QAR lar the yeara Revenias
¢rided Dacamber 51, 2013, 2014 and 2013. On Novamiber 16, 2015, wa atquirad NWS, which provides public safety and financlal solulfons for lacal
and Its Ingluded wilhi the apermiing resuits of the ESS sagment sinca tha
Pergunlesn ol Tolsl Rovoneids date of requisition. The Tallswing beble detalls revanue for NWS for the padiod from Moverriber 16, 2016 15
——m i T Decamber 31, 2015, whioh Is incfuded in cur consalidstad statement of ive Mcomes
Yuats Ended Decambsr 31, 2015 20l 2013
Reweniies
Suftwnrd [ioemes and rogltles Lt 10a% f0% 2 Ineusunds) 2014
Sbserintions (L1 12,8 148 Revanuaz:
Soltwore serdees it 21 224 Softwars Beunex *
Malntenanee [ 41,1 450 s s
: Saoftwaie servites TOR¢
MDUBIEN Serdite £2 A4 5.0
Hawswa 8t ol 16 Halhaen Hy
;umri ik e e 20 THazdysnm path cthay 5
e R : .
T — ELEL LS L “Total Mgy W
Cparzting Expenses
Cost ot lkiea and pequi o 0.4 i
. " . I May 2015, we acquired a company which provides motifke hac-iield salusions: primarlly b Ww enforesmant
€ e, matnh tiom A S ’
¥ of salbware senités,maintaranca nd siasi Wi 478 e agancles for fiald acckdent repaiting and electren cally lssulng cltatfons, In Augist 2014, we acquired a company
Cast of sppralial sendces ol z9 33 welilgh providfes eivil pracess management. typlcal ly to county shepift departments, The impact of thaes scqulstions
Coal of harhwars and olber N 11 13 Sihdur opesating resulis.are net consivored materfal and ara st included i the table 3bové. The results of thejr
Selling, general ang wimEnialraiin expentos, w1 220 e o e from Teir resp dates of
Itesezroiy and devalopmant exponss 1 L] 56 Software Ulcenzes and Royalios,
of customs s o3 L1 “fha following table ser forth a zowmparisen of eur software llcanses end rayaltles revenue far tha yaars ended
- . Dacember 311
Ogesating Lncoma. (125 182 16,1
ahar inegrae leapnst), sut 21 0.y 0,3 CHANGE
Ingorme e Incems tars 174 191 158 14 n ihounandsy 2015 2019 4 +,
e —
Ineoniaaa préviston I 72 54 ESS - Bba b0 $4G,007 48929 19N
Net Seoine o 1Le% 9% A58 twi 3018 184 Ba
Toka sotfwal nsas 30d Foyatiles rewnue 'jﬁw‘« 349065  $9943 20%

Evaluding the results of eoquisitions, soltware licanse revenue increased 15% comparsd a tha Micr year, The
majarlly of this prowth wes due to @ more setve Mmarkelplace ax the sesulk of improvsrent in bocal governmant
economis conclitions, 25 wail a9 our increasingly strong cantpetitive pesllion, which we ettribute In part to oo
Invealmant [n prachet developrment imzecent years, In agditlon, add-op sales to cur existing customer base for
eonrs and Justica retaled solutlona thal pasist and swpport the runeltion to 1 paperdess envlanmont Incrensed
approsim stely $1.3 millln,

Altholugh iha il of new cantracts between subsedption-besed and petpetual loense arrsaganvints sy vary from

quarter e uarter end ypar i year, wa expect oUr longsrtar sofiwara leensa grawth rate to be negatively impscled

by a gaving number of customers chaosing Gur subscrption-besed options, rather \han purchesing tha acftwara
bt ]

undar a traditional perpetual solbwars license 5 p 13 resull [n kewer
saltwara licensa revenud |n the Initial yoar nx compared ] lcense arr Bk geterate
nigher the tasmn of th Our new ellent mfxin PO15 was approximataly 76% seferting
petpatual softwarg || and Iy 24% selecting subseription-basad arangsmenls
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compargd t 3 ¢light mixin 2004 of appraximataly 74% eslecHng parpetusl aoftwars Jicenza arangements and
p 26% selecting based 134 new <llents entered into subscription-based
saftwar smongemonts {n 2015 campered b 138 new cllents in 2014,

Subwrriphane,
The: followkty, table sefe forth a comparlsan e2 our subseripilans reveaus for the years ended Deosraber 315

CH
{3 m thikizarde) il 2014 $ a
EB§ e 4 164,322 $22,788 2%
¥ 3.526 1,317 7

Tabe] apbscrinons 1wenus 3

$a7,m48 $24,085 27%

Subecriptiornbased asrvloes revenva primaclly cansisls of revenue derlved from our 53a5 drangements, which
uliliza the Tyler privata cloud. As part of aur subscriptivt-based services, wa ol provide elecbanie document filing
eolutions {"=-dlléng") that slnplEky the fitng 2ad management of colt refated doclmants for cotirts an law affices,
E-fillng revenizia I4 derlved fem transantion feas end fixed fee arrangements,

Subscripion-basad sarvies ravenus incressed 27% compered o 2014, E-fillng serdees contributed approd mately
$7.2 milllon of the: subseréptinns reveriug Increaa In 2018, Mot of the e-tiling revanua Increase related o azverai
Malevwide contracha, xeveral of which implemented mandatory lecrenic fing near the and of 2014 and throughaut
2018, New ifants o4 well ap axisting cliants wh td {0 our S2a§ modei provided the remalndear of the
subscriptions revenue Increass, (n 2015, we sdded 154 iew 533 ellants e 66 misting cllonts olaclad 1o cmrvert
to our Saa§ midel, Tha everage contract sizes In 20015 wee 35% and 22% Wgher than 2014 for new cllents and
cllents converting to our Se25 modol, respectively.

Softwara Services.
The tollowing lable sets forh 2 comparison of our coftwara sarvicas revanue for the years endzd Decainber L;

CHANGE
(% i Ibaatsantk) 2018 _”22_1 4 § -
Esa RO PR $104,146 624,92 24%
AT33 14504 9,675 1,103 11
Tols| eolkwara gervicds rivente Jstauz 8113891 426,031 23%

Software services rpventie primaniy conglels of prafesglonel services billed In cannection with Implementlng onr
anftware, ing client data, training cllent I, tustorn davelopmaint aetivities und flng, New
clleats who purzhasae our pmprletary soffwans licenses generally alss sonfraet with us Lo provide Jor the rlaledt
aofiware sarvices, Exlsting clinis also pertadieally purchasa additional Laining, senauiling and miner programming
servicas, Excluding the results of acquisitions, softwarezenvizes revenus grew 20% compared Lo the gHor year
petiad, This growh I molnly due to much higker revenae from proprietzry software arrangaments, o5 well as
edditions 16 oty Thlementation and support statf, which Hicrzased our eapacity to delver backleg,
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Iaintanance.

The faltowing ts¥is sats forlh acamparizon of bt mainlénance mvenue for the years ended December 31,

CHANGE
4 m Ihousands) 018 2014 [y
£3% LETHL 185,881 $al,706 6%
AT8S ALY 16815 1,135 7
Total alnlenanes revanye 373530 4712596 $52,841 1%

We-provide malatenance and sippar services foraur mitwer products and certaln Hid-parly sofware, Excluding
the results of cquisitions, maintenance tevemue graw 1% compared to the prior year. Malnlenansa and supparl
revenue Increased malnly due to grawth kv aur Instalied custoter besa fom new softwara [lcanea zales s well as

annual inalnfenance rats incroases.

Appraizsl Semvites,

The fallowing tahfe sets forth 2 comparison of our appralsal services revamta for the years ended Decembar 31;

{HANGE
I3 i {honyaands} 2016 i) 5
(2] X [ | - - —%
AT35 X 25,002 2.263 15
Touall Appraisal services remnue $ihoby 8 31802 ia.z_@_a__ 15%

Theappralsal services business is somewhiat cychical 4nd diivan I et by statutery revalustion cyclss In varlous
states, Appraizsl services revenue benefitted fram the addition of several mew naveluatfon contracts, Ineluding tha
Cly of Debiail, 2rd tha corrent sppratsal cycie n Indiana, both of WRICH bag In mid-2014, [n mid-2015, Frenklin
Counly, Ohln began # full reappralsal cycla, which plso conleibuted fo appraisal services ravenue.

Cosl of Rarortuea ond Grazs Merglng

The fallowing table sats forth a comparison of the key companents of aur ¢est of ravenues for fhe years endad

Decamber 31;
CRAHGE

¥ In iouzande) 2016 w8 %
Saftvesrs lleenios and soaltiss Bovsh % L,X0 % {259 [$E30 3
Azquirad sl eyl 1,85% 2,682 139
Witwam wendess, maintanaqes and subscriplians 2y 236,963 48,977 21
Appralaal sorvices .2 14,284 1,538 n
Hardwazy srd alhar [ 5325 L1 2

Total ctat of revannes WEIAASE §I69,730 §54,108 21%
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The tellwiag table sats forth p comperison of gross margin parcentage by revanus typu for tho yeerd anced
Decerthat 31t

Gioss Manzin Faresninas 2916 2014 BHANOE
Botbyre lizensas, roywhika und amaidied solnvare 6P I 82.3% 2.8)%
and sirbasrlp A 430 @5
Pppraiyal parvicen wsh 14,5 0
Hirdiard beud other R I 32.3 42
Ouerell zoos maeia Hp e 7a% ar

Softwara llconses, royaltias and aequired eoftwars, Costs of software licenses, oyaltizs and soqulred softwere zre
primarly comprised of Ehird-party saftwera saatd and amortizetion expense fer acquirad saflware. We da nat have
any direct costaasaccialed with rayalties, n 2615, our softwdre [fcenses, royallkes and sequired softwars grass
margin pareantage declined compared t the grlos yasr dug ta mizch higher amorizalion expense for acyuived
software sesufiing from our aequisition of NWS. Excluding tha resuita of NWS3, our aoftwara flosnsa, royaliles snd
aeaitived soflviare gross margin wag 98.6% which Incraased 1.3% from tha prit year perlad malnly dus 10 igher
revenues from proprietary softwara arrangemants,

Boft ervltas, malid and p Cast of saftwate serylees, maintenance and subscriptions
patmarily tonslsty of personne] costs Fatated to inadalttion of our softwars, canversion of dllest datz, ralning clisnt
personnel and sepport acthities and various other sarvices Such as custom cltant development and on-golig
operation of BasS and e-filing arrangaments, In 2013, tha sottware services, maintananca and subscrlpHons
mergin percentuge dacined camparad be the prior year mainty df= to ant Ing costa fated wlth J
hirérig ta ensura that wa are well-pasltioned to dellver our current backlog and anticipated new business. Exeluding
2685 employaed added with ritiens, our (npl #nd suppart ataff has grown by 200 emplapess sinee
Qucernber 31, 2014, ln addition, In 2016, we incumed §1.4 millian morg 15 conlrack Labor gost than 2014 in an
eifud la maintuin fexiblilly o accommodate fuctuations In demand for professional services, The gross margin
decline was somewhat offsat hetause costs jelated to meintenance and verious ather servicas sach 25 33a% and
e-filling typleally grow ot a slower rate than refated revenue dus I laveraga in the utliizatlen of eur suppart ams
mainlenanca staff and cconomlex ¢f seel, Prick Inzreases 2lso rasulted In slighty bigher fates on certzls sarces,

Appraal services. Appralanl servees revenua comprised approximataly 4% of iotz revonve, The appraleal sarvicey
Eruss margén increased 2% compared te 2014, A high proportion of he gasts of appreisal sarvlzes revanus ara
verlable, ax we often hire famporary empleyecs o asisl in appraisal projacts, whoss term of employment generally
ends wiikh the wojects’ complation, The appralzal s2wlees gross masgin was favorably lmpattad by oparational

it latgd with 2 largd ravaluath rnet thal began jate 2014,

Qur 2016 blendesd gross mavein deslined 0,4% compared to 2014, The goss margin was nogativelyimpacted by
fncrezsed acquined software ion exjensd lated with the NWS scquisition and expanses

with increased hiring of Implementation and development stalf In arder to expand our eapielly to Jmplamor our
contrect backlog,
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Setliog, Goreral and Adminlstrative Expanses

Sehing, general and administative ("SGEA") expenses conslsl primarily of salarles, employes banefits, fravel.

share-based EXPENYE, l: and related gverhead coats for admin: ad esles end
kgt ki 25 wal) o5, profe | fous, trag'a show aetivities, advartising costs ard elher marksling

Telated costs, Tha following table sets focth  comperisan af our SG&A expenses for the fallawlng years ended

Daeambar 315

CHANGE
i$in |h'n|sm.u£ 2015 2014 3 %
Sellig, ganers] and administiaihie ependes AlERAT O SloSDE0 495007 3%

$6&A asa percantage of ravenue was 22,6% In 2015 comparzd to 22,0% In 2004, In 20)5, oy 3GAA expunses
Includa approdlenataly $5.9 million for financlal advisory, legal, acesunting, dus diligencs, valugtion ord other
varlouy sérvices necessary te complets the NWS acqulsitian. En addition, our 2015 operating resuls inphude $4.0
million of SG&A expenses for NWS from the date of sequisition, Tha remeining SG&A expansa Incrasee s mulnly
due 16 carpendation cast related to Inoressed <ttt kvals, highet stoek compensation expanse erid Increases
carmemiaslon expanse 85 & Arwlt 4f ighar sales. Extluding 140 employses added! with acqulsitians, we have added
LB gsipdosests Msily 39 our sales and finence teama sinca Uecenibar 34, 2014, In addition, cur 2015 steek
compensalion expense rose $4.2 million, malnly due 1o Ineraeses fmovr stock price ovsr the Yast few years,

Research and Development Expelise

Rasearch and ! SxpEnse E imerily of salarles, emplopee benefits and related ovarhesd costs
acsaclated with product developmant. Tha fellowing tabln sels forth a compartsci of cue resarch and devaiopment
expensg for the yaam ended fecsmber 312

CHANOE
e in thpygonds) 2016 2015 § L
Restarch and deslopment opense Lok 528,742 84,178 4%
Reszarch pad 4 t expense of costs lated with ¥ of naw products and
technokigies from which wa do 1ot currently ganerala revenue, as well as costa retatad to the ongoing dewalopmant
#ticrts for Micraseft Dynamlca A% In Febrary 2015, we d that gur rasearch and
\a deialop pubfe yestor fi for Wicmseft tey AR cxplrgy with the retsase of Dynamics

AX7, which i oxpected 10 pceur in the firs quarlar of 2015, Wa are cumently distussing with Micisott Gorporetion
1 possibifity of additional researeh and davelopment beyand Dunamics AX 7. Ifwe £znpol agree 16 lerms of any
Tuturs ecninilments, wa wilh continua fo provide sustalned ongarering and technical support for the public sector
Turktlonality within des AX, Lizensa and mak royalties for I applicable domestic ang jntamational
sales of Dymamics 200 1o publle sector entities will continue under the terms of iha confract,

Research and gevelopment expense in 2015 Incldes i $1.5 million refaled ke NWS. The i
Increase companed 1o 2014 wes primarily due to Inereased staMing i matntaln and enboazs aue compalltiva
posiiton and annuel wage sdlustmania,

Amgrtizadion of Gustamer 214 Trade Name Infanghles

Aequlition Intanglbles ara camprisod of the excesa of tha purchase price over the falr valua of net tahgible assets
acqulred that is sliccated to zcquired software, leases and custeier and 1rade rame |ntanglblea, The remaning
oxweas purchase price Is stlocated to gaadvill that ls ok subjeet to amgeization. Amiart)zation oxpanse reluted to
noquired eafiwnrt iisIncludod with cost of revenues, whito emortlzation expunsa of cstame: and trade name
Intangibles is recorded as speraling axpense, The extimated usaful ives of both cuglomer and Yrads nama
Intznglbles range from fiva 1o 25 yeps,
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‘The Following tabia sata forth a camparlson al smortization of customer end brda name Intangihles for the years
Brded Decertiber 311

CHANDE

L in Movsinds) 201K 2014 ¥ v
et —
Aagelization of qustemer and trada namas Intangibdes EE el $4,546 $1,359 0%
In 2015, we iwo ilions that | emortizabile custormcs end trade nam Intangiblaa by
spproxfmately $127,8 miltlen, This amount [ being amortized over 2 walghtsd avaraga paried of 15 years, We also
added fy $5.7 tillisn to taition related Intangibles to refleck tha Ialr valua of acquirad lepsas,
whith wifl & flzed gver the weighted 111e of nine years,

i $ annual b custeier and frade name acquisitian Intungliles, exsluding

Acquired safiwane for which tha a&orﬁzltbn wxpainse Iszecordad RS cost of ravenues, lor the next iva years feas
follots {in thousandsh

2016 §13,448
0171 13,448
2018 13,299
2019 11,544
2020 10,795

Amartization ecpanse relaking to aeuirad leases wilk be recorded 23 p reduction ta oier Income and is expectad to
ba $444,000 In 2016, $244.000 in 2017, $4.26,000 in 2018, $372,000 in 2019, $313,000 1 2020 and $1.7
nifban thareaftar,

Other
Thefollowing tahte sets forth 3 camparisan of offiar Income fexpense), net %or the years ended Decamber 31

CHANGE
i3m0 mwuﬁ:l 2015 2014 t p
Qthet ftveaing (axphniel, net oY 50355) $73p Wa

Other Inoerie {axgrinse) la comprised of Interast Incorie from Invested cash, as well ar nterest axpense and non-
usage arkd vther fees associaled with aur tevolving credit sgrsemant, Expenses In 2014 wera comprized primarlly of
nan-usags and oifer faes assaciated with a rewlving debit agreement hal teminatad 1n August 2014, offset rlightly
by Intergst nedime from Invested cash, In 2015, wa hatsignificantly hgher Invested cash balances than 2014 unti)
wa campleted the NWS scquisition on Nevember 16, 2015,

Angame Tex Provision
The Jallewing table ssls fonth a comparison of sur Incoma tay provisicn for the years snded Dacember 81

CHANGE
% o Ectisamdsj 2015 2013 3 k3
Ancome e pravislon LS Hry $35,627 #4008 25%

E{feetdee [ncoma Loy rale W 90.86%

36 BlsTetsfiple 8l dveest fogen

Managoment's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Oparatiohs

Trte effective incoma ta rates wera diffarant from fhe staturtory Lnited States tedaral Insams tax 1te of 35%

princlpally dua ko stete lncomn taxes, h penga, thd qualified
manufecturing setivities decuetios, disgualiying incentive stork aption dioposltions, nan<deductile meals and
costs and ible irahsactfon costs, A luwer qualtfied menufscturing activities deduction end

fon-teductible transaction costs ralated to the NwS acqrlsitlon negatively Impacted our 2015 sffective tax rats,

I the pest few years n relatively nigh ameunt of excess lax benaflis related ta stock aplion mewelsas have resulted In
& seducden in our qualiiled tucring achivities deduction. The qupliied manuiacturing sctivities daduction
can bo limited o a cortsin Tavsl of tacatla income on tha tex rafuen. Tharafore, any stgaHleant ftem that teduts
tauable Income, such a8 miogas 1ax benefily nn stagk options, can reduce the amount of s qualified manvfacturing
activhios daduction, We experienced slgniicant stock opllon exarclas aclivity In 2015 and 2014 that genersted
encass ta betiakis of $45.3 milllan and 312.4 miltian, raspactively.
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2044 Gomparnd To 2013
Rayvenled

oftware Livenaes snd Foyaltles,
The Yol lewing table sats forth » comparlzan of our soflware licanses and royaliles revenue for the yeers andsd
Decsmbur 314

CHANGE
o in insirands] 2014 kY § &
palliibid i -
S8 6,047 538,714 17273 13%
ATSS 08 AN #al 46
‘Tatal Fuftwur: lhceness and woialties mvene $48,005 ildtias) 38284 0%

Beftwore Fcensa and royalilss ravenue grovth was mainky due o 2 mire active markeriplass a8 the result of
in logal '] 1! diVlors, a3 well 83 our | ingly strong tilva petition,

which we alteibule in pert to ur Increased ivestments In product development ever tha pest lew yuars, An Ineresa
i the numberof langse tanlracts, In paricular in the courts and Juatice markst, alss contribided 1o the growth In
ficense ravenus,

Sottware Il way reduced
based optlons, rather than Ing tha 2ol
vt 1 d lnk

because of a grawlng number of cliants cheosing ollr sUbscziptian
undee a perpetual softwere [lcansa arangamant. 138
bazod soffy its In 2014 d 1o 100 tew eflents In 2033,

Subiseriptions,
The fellewing toble zets forth a camparizon of aur subscriptions revenlis 1or the years ended Decamber 31:

EHANGE

{5 m Ibaugands) 2014 2013 3 3
E53 84,322 §52.070 495252 43%
ATSY 3,576 2,784 732 28
Telal suhmigklm FeyEnuL 367,848 $651,864 428,084 42%
Based i ue Intreased 42% d {0 2013, E-Bling 3emvices cantributed eppreximelely

$13,3 mitllan of the subseriptions reventa Increass In 2014, Most of the =-Fllng reventia Incresss refaled to higher
resane from @ cantrant with he Texas Office ol Court Administrztion For obr Qdyssey Filsdnd Serva e-filing system
{or Texas courts ("eFlleTatas.gov™) for vl court filings, which was Implemented In Saptember 2013, The state of
Toxas mendaled al| countles uss aFllsTexaz.gav. This sanlrect provided precuning revenus slream thet totalad
$17.0 millien I 2014, Hew 52a8 clienls s weil B existing cliants who converied to pur Sass madel prévided the
yemainder of the subscriptians revenus incraase, In 2014, we rdded 138 new Saas clients and 63 exlsting clients
electad 1o conyver! to our Sp2S medel,

20 i Bt
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Software Services,
The foltwing tabls sels farth & comparison of our soFtwne Servicas revenua for the yeors ended Dacembrey 31,

CHANGE
18 n Hooussnds) 2014 2012 £ =
[+ 5104,245 $28,459 $1apH7  E2h
ATEE 2873 7808 L8872
Toldl seharars garvlens sovantie $113,E21 43,267 $20,884  22%
Seftwara sendcas grew 22% In 2614 malnly dua to much higher revenus from new proprictery softwire
amangemants, slightty Wghet 15185 on certaln sendees and additions 1o our professions] services steff which
Increased eur capacily o defiver backlog.
Malntanance.
The fal{owing table seta forth a comparison of dur maintenance mvenie for the yaars ended Deczmbar 31
L. S
14 3 Uhcuands) 2012 2013 ¥ %
ESE $198,98) 4175300 $2e,0a1  1E%
ATSE 16818 16,848 76 2
Totel malntenshes Kvanua j21z.898 $191,720 $20,976 1%
and support i d malnly due to grovth T eur installed customer base from new softwara
Nipansn yalas a1 woll 48 anauz] maintenance rale incribess,
Appiaisal Sendess.
The fallowing tahle sets fortl & somparlson ol cur apprateak sarvices rovanus for the yasrs ended Decamber 31:
—_—
15 1 Lhousandsh ) 200 5 £
EsS L L 1 - - %
AT3S 21807 20,825 377 5
Total appraizal services revedue $71,602 420,625 § 8717 55
e e -1

Apptaisa) sarvices 2014 revanue bansfitted by lhe sld-yaar additlen af saverd new revalisticn dantracts 'n New
York and the pacent appraisal cycle In dlzans,
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Cost of Revertez and Grosa Maging

The fallawlng tabte sets forth & comparison of tha kay componants of buF cust of revarues for the years andet
Decamnber 21z

GHANRE

13 m Hourands) 2014 2013 k] %
Sefueard (arised snd eliins $ 10 § 2m7 3 U o
Acquivect sefbwars [R:13 2008 20} 131}
Séftward sandedd, Malnlsolinte ind subseriptions 235363 119,617 36,745 18
Appralzal services 14,284 12809 4 a
Hectwara and ather 5425 8569 Q) )

Total coatf rewanues 4260,730 228,400 $36.000 15%

Th fidlowlug lable eate forth a sempariser; of grosa margin parcontage by ravanie typa for the years endad
December 31,

Brozs Wnipin Pereontois 2014 2013 CHANGE
Sattwars Usenzes, myakies mnd moiired sofivarg 92A% 8.1% 1.2%
Soltwire services, mainlanance and subsgripiteny 430 42,4 -3
Appeaina) survicas EL 339 L1
Hurdware and other 239 e 2
Ovarall groxs imaigint 47.3% 45.4% 049%

Software licenses, ra;aftles and acqumed saftware, |n 2014, our $oftwars licenses, royalties and soquired softwara
gruss miargin patcsntage Incrsased caimparad ta 2013 malnly dus ta highet revanuss from propiletsry software
revenues, which have a higher gass masgia 1han third-party seliviere,

Softviare servizes, malal and aubseriplan-basod sevices. Tha softy vi
subseriptians gross margin percantage increased malaly due to ravenus from a r.unh'-d; wilh lhe Taxad aum o
Gourt Adminteieation for aF e Texas.gov to mansge e-filing of court documents, This contract bagan In Seplember
2013, bt we Icurred Inillial startup costs I 2013 for which there were very limited related revenues, Tha addltion
ui reaemmiluun mrs contract sinca 2013 sceatnted for medt of ihe gmss inangn Ingreass, Tho grees margln

hatk by costs related o hirlog l ensure thet we sre well-posilionad to deliver
wour currant becidog and anticipated new business, Dur Implementetion, develipment and sunport staff has
Inceeased 1g 20414 by 215 employeas sinca 2013,

Appealsal serces. The appraisal earvices gross margin lncreased slighlly companed b 2003, A high progortion af
tim eaets of appaleal services revenue are varlable, as we ofien hita temparary empieyees to asslst In 2ppralsal
profects, whosa termof smplayment geners lly ends with the projects’ completion,

F Tite Mrdudi 0H dumact pan

Managemenl's Discussion and Anajysis of Financial Gonditien and Resulls of Dperallons

Our hlanted gross mangin for 2014 increazert 0.0% 1rom 2013, The gross margin [neraass was mainly dus ks a
tevenis mix sl included more softwars license revenua and subsos!plion revenus and fn partizutar, 1gteased
Tevefitsa trom e-flling kn Texas. This improvement in gross margln was offset somewhat by sxparzes atsociated with
Incransed hiring of Implamantatian, develapmant atd suppott stalf in arder to ewpand our capacity lo implamant ou
confracl backlog.

$elling, Ganaral and Adniniskalive Expensas
The folkwing table 3ats forth 2 comparison of our SG&A expenses for the owlng yesss anclad Decamber 311

SHANGE
1§ 10 roussande) 2014 2013 4 %
Enliiog, ganesal ind administiaties expenics 4108200 §98239 49471 low

5G4 as a parcontags of rovenua vas 22.0% Iin 2014 compered to 23.6% Ir| 2013. Appmdm& om-thlrd of tha BELA
expensa Inwem was from bigher cammizsion Expense duete s1les.

quarter af the i rimarily due to Im'meslnwslmk ptice, The remnlnlru Inz:lease consivind
af higher b latad i annual wage and lngreased toval expensea,

Research and Developmant Expaisa
The fallowing fable seta forth 2 compaison of our rasearch and develnpient axpanan Tar the yzars snded
Dacamnbar 31;

CHAABE

P—
(4 In Mousaidzl 2004 2013 3 'y
Research pod developrent axpeise $25,743 23,369 52474 1%
In 2014, research and sxpenst increased 11% 1o 2013 due o annual wags adjusimenls
and | £ o malntain and eni our compakitlve pacitian,

Aunartization of Customer and Trade Name Intangibles

The foitawing Labla scls favth a eomparisan of smortizotion of custoriar and Lrade rame Intangibles for the years
#nded Decamber 311

e
4 in Ihourandsy 2084 2013 ) %
Amanization of eustomtr and trede nasom jntangiblas E28:40) #4517 L] 1%
In 2014, we lsled one acquisition thal increased i 5k and vade name intaigibles by

approwimately §1.0 silllos, This amound I3 belng smartlzed mwer a welghted average porled of 12 years,

Dlhat
The following table sela borkh o compasiasn of other axpense, ned for the years snded Gocombor 31:

CHANGE
% i Lheusandsy 20L& 5013 § %
—
Othet Inzime feapansel, nst $135% 08,309 4954 5%

Dthet a¥penen, net was primarily comprised of Interest expansa, non-usage ard other fees associsled with a
tevoling line of eredit agreement hat maturad in August 2014, alfsat somevhat by Interest Income assaclated with
Inuestad cash bakvneas, Interest pxpetiss dechinad sompared Yo the priar yaar becausa we repsld all borrowtngs
undor tha ievolving credit agraemenl in early 2013, end had o debi eutstanding during 2014,
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Inecina Tax Pravision
The follewing kable sets forih a compariean of our iicome tax provision lor the y=ara ended Docambet 31

CHANGE
——
13 3 thousande} 2014 2013 3 I3
[neams tas provislon $35527  $26,M8 48009 %

Erfective incorra le rate argn 40.4%

‘The eWoctiva Incemie 1ax rates wero dficiant fom the statulory Unitad Statas federal income tax rate of 35% duk o
oy deduatible share based m

tares, expense, the quallfied manutaciun ng netivities
dasdvction, dlsqualifying Incantive stack optiam di and non-deductinle meals and I costs, The
nusEIed Ing aclivitios deductfon b d i 2014, which contributed 1o o Jower effective tex tate,

W aupariantad glgnltioant stock ophon exarcise activity Tn 2614 end 2013 that generated exzess tax benafits of
$19.4 million and $28.2 mizllon, raspaciively. Excess tax benefits raduce tax payments but do not slgniflcantly

reduga the effective tax rete and can vesuit In || on otfiar daduztians, In 2015, lmitatlons resulting from
ercess tax benefila alimi tha quetified facturing actitise lon, wilzh negatiealy Impicted owr
eifectivs tax rate,

Efpangbal Conditiem and Liquhdity

As of Pecember 31, 2015, we had cash and cesh equivalents of $23, [ mlilon compated Lo $208,2 million st
Docambar 31, 2014. Wa also had §30.9 mifflen lrvested (0 frvistmant grader corporata ard municipel bonds as of
Cecember 3, 2045, Thest invastments matura Sotwean 2016 end mid-2017 and we Intend to bk thesa
Investmenis upifl maburily, Cash ang cash equivalents conslst of eash on duposl) with sevaral domentlc banks and
molvey ket funcs, As of Daeamber 31, 2045, wa had $86.0 mifllan [n autelanding barrowings and an
ouistanding better of eredit Tntaling $1,5 million in connection with one contreal. We do not balleve (hig |sttar of
oredit vlll ba requised b he drawn upan. Tivs letier of credit expires In mid-2016. Wa bellevs our reveiving liee of
credit, cash fiom aperating actlvitias, cash on Taned and actess ko the credit markels provides us with suffielant
Haalblity to meet qur lengsterm financhal needs.

The foilowing tabla 4e1s forth a summary of cash Hows for the years ended December 31;

4 W Mot ey 2012 2014 13
Cash Bovny prawidod tuscd] by
Operating ailvities 2 aao1! $123437 486000
Inwesiing sctidtles (S50 (LY36+ 125,656
Finanging-aotieitiay ARE Y 15,409 82,008
Ret {ecienns) incranss I sash 3nd caths eduivulenis FUASAEN,  $127.291  $7EAD

et cash provided by opwaiing activities cantinues Lo be cur primary saurce of Funds to Hnancs operallng needs and
eppltal expanditures. Other potentlal eapital resourees includa cash on hard, publia and private Bspancas of debk or
<aquity seeurfitey, and benk borrowings. Y Is possibila trat our abliity to access tha eaplial and cradit merkets n 1he

be limitad by i dillons ot other tactars, Wa cumently believa that cash provided by apaseting
#Ivities, cast on hand and avallabla credit ara sufficlent 1o fund our working capial requirsments, sapital
fl | b+ and shara for l tuast the next twolva months.

U [obe T w085 Aot e
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In 2013, sastating sctivities provided cash of $89.0 million. Operting activitles that provided cash were primarily
stnprlsad of et Income of $64,9 milllon, pen-ash dekrecintion and amortfzation charges o} $19,8 miilion eng
non-cash share-basex! compansation axpense of §20,2 million, Gash pravided by operaling ectivitles wes negslively
Impacied Sn 2013 by tax paymants that were $17.1 millfon higher than {ha prior year partly dus io more taxabls
Income Bd parlly due totiming of stock option axerclsas and our ablilty to ublliza releted exeess tox cradity b
determine astimated tax paiymants during the year, Our exeess Lax credit in 2015 was $45.3 millian of whish, over
0% wea ganaralad ¥ th tourth quarter and a5 8 Pesult we racorded s $21,1 miltfon Income 1zx recalvable at
Decetriber 31, 2015, Aecounts racalvabia alsaIhcreaced dus toliming of antual malntsnznce end subeer|ption
billings tiuz to prowth In our custoner base o5 well as normal bilitags ol $16.0 million
as3eclaiad with NWS, These negative impacts 4 operating cash t by growth: I deferred
Taindenance revenue, In general changes In Lhe balancs of deferrad cavenue arecycllcal and pHmasily deiven by
the timing of out mainlenance renevral blitlnga. Qur ranewa) dales aocur thaoughat tha year but our heavies)
#enitee! cyoles oecur In the second and fourth quarlera. Inadiition, deferrad revenun Incluzed cne unvsunlly faige
customer deposiy of $7.4 mlllioh at Gecamber 31, 2016,

Days sales putstanding in neeounls recelvabla ware 103 doys ol Dacamber 31, 2018, compared 1o 8D doys at
Dacamber 31, 2014, wiaknly due fd the impact on the DSC caleufation af having spprodmelely seven weeka of
poetactulsitin revenues from MWS but Ingluded all of thair nutstinding accouats recelvable ef Pocember 31,
2015. [r30s are: calculated based on aceounts ecafvable laxcluding lorg:term recolvabios, hut Including unbilled
recalrablan) dividid by the quolient of annuslized quarterly ravenues Sivided i 360 days. Exciuding NWS, D308
weve 79 days at Becember 31, 2014,

Imvesting setivities used eash of $396,5 miliion in 2015 compared ta $1 1.6 miilonin 2014, On Novembr 15,
2015, we acquired NI of the apital stack of N3, which provides pubie salety and fleancial salutions foe loeal
gEmments, The purchaan price, net of cash scqulred of $22.6 miljlon, wes $337.6 tillion In cazh, of which §4.0
tilllon wan acerued at Decembey 31, 2018, and 2.1 mikion sharos of Tyler comman stock vajugd at $362.8
millian, Bn Moy 29, 2015, we acqufred oll of Fhe capital stock of Brazos Technolagy Gerparation, which provides
2R3 hand held sofuafons primarily 1o Jew enforcament agencles for fleld acekignt ceparting and zlectonlcally
tesging citatlons, The puichisse pice, et of cash acquired and Ineluding debi assumed, wes 36,1 milion b eash
and 12,500 sharez of Tylar commen steck valved at $3.5 million. ©n Janugry 30, 2015, we made o $15.0 milllen
Invasisnenl I eanwerilale preferred sluck represeniing a 20r% dvteresd [0 Record Holdings Py Limied. Wo alsa
Imrested $30.9 millish In grada carporale and lelpal bonds maturing bofwees 2016 and mid-2017,
The remaining usa of cash wak for capital di related to computer equj Turnilura ang fixtures in
suppart of Intemal growth, particutary with respect tn growti in our ehiudkbased offerings, Thase exp 8s Wern
funded from cash ganerxted from oporatlons, tash &t Hand and bank bomowinge.

In 2054, wo complated the scquishion ol SaflCede, In¢, for ¥ purchasa price ol $3.5 milllan I cash, 4F which
$326,000 weas zecrued at [lecamber 31, 2014, &nd 16,540 shares of Tyler common stk valued at $1.5 millios.
The ramulnlng 1sh of cash in 2004 was comgrised pelmarily of capitet dl lated 10 pompeter.

furaiture end fistures In suppart of Intemal growth, [bvesting activiios in 2013 Included $20,3 millian pald In
conneciion wlth tha constryetion of an office bullding in Plana, Taxas.

Financing aclivities providec cash af $135.4 allllen In 2015 comparad o $15.4 million s 2014, Finangdng

Bctivitaz of nol b gz of $66.0 million, f $27.8 millian Irem stook aptien
akarcises atd einployas stock purchage plan actiity and $48.3 milltan greoss tax benefit fom exercises of share-
based ] i 5,400 shares of our cotmmon tock for an apgregte purcinse

peice ol $645,000 (0 2015 and pald 2,1 milllea in debt issuance costs. Financlag activities In 2014 sare

comprleed of colleetions of $18,8 milllon trens slock apklon axerelsas and eahtributions from the armployea stock

purchasa plan and 5154 milblon excess tag benotit fi f3at of shere-based 1 These Inereases

;vere oHsel sariewhat by purchasos of 254,000 shares of our comman stack for an gRsegale purchasa piies of
22.8 million.
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Flesticing actlvitios In 2013 wera eompeieed of ¢ollactions of $21.8 million lrom stock sption exerclies and
amployes stock purchase plan activity and $29.2 miilon excess tax benefit from awpralzas of ehare-besed
ARENEIMSRES, offset partiully by $18.0 milllan In pok paymants on aur kvolving na of credit,

The share repurchase program, whieh was appreved by our bozrd of dirertors, wea snmounced 13 Octaber 2002, and
way smendad at various times from 2003 through 2011, As of Datamber 31, 2015, we had remalalog autherization
to repurchase up 1o 1.4 millton pdaltional shares of our cummon stock, Qur shara repurchae program allows s to
tares Bt our arket Infbuzocs tha liming of 1he buybacks end the number of

shaveyeapuinchiased, iz wel] us tha volume of employca steck option exercises, Bhare repurchases ara gonsrally
fended using our existing cash belances and borrowings undsr our cradit facilly s may bbtur Shrough cpen
kel purchasas and lransictions struciurad thieugh Imvestinant benking inslitutions, peivalely negotisted

tlons swd/or olier meshan: Tharé 4 na ekolration dats specified for Lha guthorization and w4 intend ta
repurchase stock under tha plen from tme Lo tine.

Subszquent to Dezembor 31, 2016 and through Fabruasy 22, 2016, we purchpsad approiimataly 241,000 shares
af qur common stock for im agaregate cazh purchase price of $3L,3 mllllon,

Qo November 16, 2015 we artarad into & $300.0 million Cred]t Agraament {tha *Cradit Facllity™} wilh varicus
lenders party thereto and Wislls Fargn Bank, Natlonal Assaslation, es Administrative Agenl, Ths Credit Facliity
provldes fars revolving eradit (ng of $300.0 miklon With 2 $10.0 millian sublimit fer letters of pradis, The Cmdit
Facllity matuses an November 16, 2020, Bonewings under the Credil Facllity may be used for ganeral comorate
pufpases, Includlig warking eapltad I It ona and sfizre In 2015, wa pold $2.1
miltien In related debt issusnca costs, which ws included with ather assets on the aczempenying balance shaat,

Benowings under the Credit Facllity bear Sitaresi ot o rete of aither (1) tha Wells Fergo Bank prime rale (subjact lo
certain higher rate determinatioms) plus a margin of 0.25% ta 1,00% or {2) the 30, 60, 99 o 180-day L IAOR rate
plus n margln &f 1,28% ta 2,00%. In 2015, our affectiv rvercge Interest rate for horrmaings was 1.8%, A1 of
December 21, ZO15 our Intorsst ratd Way 1.6%. The Cendit Factiity is sezured by substantially of af our assets, The
Crad Ik Fac) Eiy yequires us Io eaintain cartain financia| ratios and offier finanelal conditions and prohibHts ys fram
making cartain advancad, easly divldends or loans, and limits fncumence of addilonat Indeblednass
nnd llena. As of Decamber 31, 2015, we wees in compliance with thesa cavenants,

At Decamber 31, 2015, wo had $86.0 mifllon I outstarding beawings and unused banawing capezlly of §234.0
milllan under Ihe Credit Facil ty.

Wo pald |ncome tixes, net of wfunds recoived, of $27.2 millian In 2015, $20,2 millicn |n 2014, ané $9.4 milllan
In 2013, We experlancad sigaifizant stock aption exercise actlvity 1n 2015 Bl gancraled $45,3 million exceas tax
bnefily, Exgeas bax banefity radues tax pagrments bul domot significantly reduce the atfective tax rate and can
vesult in limitations on othar duductions. Howavor, mora than 70% of our 2015 axcess tax benadit was ganorated in
Mhie Fourth guzrter of 2015 and as & recult we recorded an (neome tay racalvabln of $21.1 million, which will reduca
Tncorad bax paynienila In 2016, In 2014 and 2033, axeest tax heneflls ware $19.4 miilion and $22.2 miflon,
respectively.

ExetidIng scqulsitions, we anliclpate thal 2016 eapital spending wiil be between $31,0 milfion 2nd $33.0 militan,
Wi expect the maforlly of this capilal spanding will consit of coniputar squipmont and saftware for infrastrecture
replacements and expanslon. We alss expect o purchasa a lensed oftice buldihg In Falmouth, Malne for

pp ¥ 5100 rillian. ¥ by o ot axpact bo Sa3talize significant amousts ralzled 1o softwary
development |p 2618, but 1ha sctual ainount and Himlong of thoze ecaty, and whetlar they e eaplialized or
expoiiied tiay esylt [ additlonak capltal ed sofi lop Capital spending is expected 10 bo funded from

existing eash balentes, cash fMlows from operalions and borrawings under our revolving |Ina of credit.

Frem flme {er Eime vee engogze in dlscusslons with potential ecquizltion candidales, In arder to pursua such
il ich could mauire algai | of capital, we mey ba requltad 1o incur debl or to issua

B0 For Bedusthr T3 dvae) Bpse

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Dperations

additiestal potentially difutive securlties In \ae tuture, No assurance can be given as Yo onr future acquisition
oppertunitizs and how such oppariunitios will be financed,

We lassa office facilitios, 85 well s ranspartation, camputer and othae squipment used In aur operationa Lnder noa-

operating 41 s eupliing at variaus dales through 2022, Modt lenses contala renawal epticns
and sofne contsin purchiase eptions,

“Summarizsd In Uhe tabla beloy are sur obligations to make future paymeants under our Credit Facllity and Jease
chllgallons 7\ December 31, 2015 {In Iheusands):

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Tbwraatter Tolaf
Retvalvlng ing of credit 8 - - $ - £ - J88,000 L I $ 66,000
Leate shligntions 3,912 6260 1,805 3,204 3060 2,229 28,484
Total lrture panent

aitigaflons 80k ¥6E0 W84S $3,304 369050 42223 $00,484
Az of Decambar 31, 2015, we da nal have any oif-bal haal les (o brlrdsparties or
midtertal purchass commitments, exsept for tht opersting lease commitmenta [lstad aboys,
Eapliatization
Ak 3, 2015, aur isled of §66.0 million of putstanding borowings and $884.9 milfion
of sharaheldors* squity.

Tluantitativa and Gualltative Disclosures Abatst Harked Rish

Markat risk represenis the visk of less that may affast us due to advarse changes in Anancial market prices 2
interest rates,

As of Dacomber A1, 2015, we hag $65.4 mitilon In swkstanding borrowings mnder the Cradit Facily, Loans under
Lhe Credit Facllfty oot interast, at Tyler's option, at a per anaum rats of either (1) the Wells Fergo Bank prime rate
(subject i cortain higher rata determinalians) plus 2 mangtn of 0.25% to 1.00% or (2) The 30, 60, 90 ar 180-day
LIBOR rate plus 2 margln of 1,25% o 2,00%,

in 2018, au? effective averags Inferest rate for waz 1,85, As of 31, 2015 our Interest zale
was 1,6%. Tho Cradit Facility 4 sucurad oy substamifally all of our essets.

Assurning borawtngs of $65.0 mitllon, a hypothatieal 10% increass in our intereat rate at Decenther 31, 2015 for &
one year pediod woukd result In 2ppvoximately $106,000 of additional Irterest rate expensd,

el andy X1 Aund R EF



Centrols And Procedures

Edntrolt drl Procetlures

E: ahuation of Dlitloste Controls and Procedutes — Wa malnisin dischswa contrats and procedures (25 defined In.
Ruie 13a-16(e) of he Securitios Exchange Act) desfrned Yo provide reasanaint assuranca thet the Infermation
roqulrad tw be disslosed by usin the reparts we flle or submit unde: the Exchange Act ia tecordad, processed,
surmarized and riported within the time perlods specifed fn the SEC’s rulex and torms, These Tnalude contrals and
procedures deslzgned 1o ensura that This information & accumulatad ans semmunicaled 16 our managemen],
Including our ehisf sxeaniiva uﬂlcar and ehlal finanu(al oifleer, a3 approgriate lo alow Himely dacistons regarding
requlred L t with the parti of the chlzl exaeutiva afficer and chiel Anancla) olflsar,
evaluntec o irols and progedures g of Dacemnber 31, 2016, Based on ihis
evalustion, the ehief mcunve nrﬂeqr 2t Shiled financlal siicr have concluded that our disclosure controls and
piocedures were effective 25 of Dacember 31, 2015,

s Report on Lwver Finastcial Reporting — Tylar's management s responalble for
eateklishing and mainialning ettective inlemak contro! aver financial raporling 48 defined In Sacuritfos Exchanga Ant
Rule 130-16011, Tyier'intemal ronleo! over floanelal reporting is desighed o provids reasonable pssuranca to Tyler's

and board of dj the preperation and Fair p flen of publiehed Mnanehsl
statomends,

Becaysa of Its Inherent Hmitations, Fitémal contrel ouer financlal rapeding mey not prevent ex delect misslstemnenta,
Therafarm, even thosn systema detannined s ba effective can previds anly rersanabis assuranea wilh respoet to

nancial plep and
assessed the alfecth of Tylers Internal catitrol over financlet reperling 2s of December 31, 2015,
n lnaklng this asaessrnam. mmagammtused tem criteria set forth by the Cammitiea bl Spangcting Organtzatisng of
(20131 {the GO5Q criteria), Based ¢n dur astessmient, Wa sancluded Lhat, g5 of

D:cemhu 31 2015, Tyer's internai control aver financlal teporting was effective based on ihose tilterla,

d ard goncluston o the of intamal cenlial aver financial raperting did
nmrnch.ldalhe Intamal controfe of News World Systerns Corparetion, which i Included th our 2015 cansolldnias
financlal stateients and constituted 57% of total assels as of Beoambier 31, 2015 and 2% of rewenues for the ysar
then ended,

Tler's internal contral aver financlal reparting a3 of Bocantber 31, 2016 hax basn audited by Ernat & Young LLR
the pubke H whio aiso audiled Teler's financlas slatements. Ernst & Young's
aitastation répart on Tyler's internal contrl ever financial raporting appesrs on page B2 herant.

Changes bn [nterngl Centrol Over Financial ftaparting — During tha quarter endad Decamber 31, 2018, thera wata
110 chernges Tn our inkernal cantrol aver Baancial reporling, as detined In Seurltics Exchange Act Rule 138-1B{f),
that materlally affoctod, or 426 rensonably Bkely ko evalerially affoct, cur Internal canteol wver financlal reparting.

S ir Kbk 1501 et Rpare

Raeport O Independent Registered Public Accounting Fism

Rapart of lnd { ublic A g Firen
The Board of Directors and Shaseliolders
Toler Techuatogles, .

We have audited Teler Teehntdogles, Ine.'s ivteenal controf ver financial reporing e of Cicenbat 31, 2015, basefon
criteda mabl!shmn listurmal Contro! — Integrated Frameweed sured wmecnmmlltm nfSpcnmring nrganhallnmoi
the Teeadway (20139 (tha GOSY eritecial, Trler Technalog)

for malntalning effective intarnal control ovr financial reporting, and for ity aswsemeutoﬂhe lﬁm‘.hwnuss of Intemal
Contrel tvar financial reporting Inclugead ki the 1t's Raepart am Internal Cantral Over Finanaial

Reporting.” Our responulility & o sxgess an npénkon on L pany’s internal 1 over financial raperting based on
our audit.
Wa conduciad wl Bﬂdll hactordanca wilh the slandards of the Public Company AcoUnting Eversight Baard itnited
smes). ds requlre Ihnt ph perrorm the audit to abi‘aln masunahla sssiance shoul whether

tivm intmrnal contrel over 1) irdalried In 2dl Cur audlt Inglucdet abtalning an
unerstanding of Internal cantrol over fnarea rq»rihu; amlngtha rh.k mal & mabarsl weskness exists, lestingand
evaluating the deslgn and »puatlng ed risk, and perarming suek
uther procedures 35 1 In the ekcumet We belleve that our audit provides a regsensble basls
far su; opinlan,
Acompany’s intermal contrtd evar financlal reporing s 2 p designed la provide gthe
el atility of linaniclal poiling and the 1 financie Tor extemal purposes in agmdamg r(hh
gerenlly accepled accounting principles, & mpum Inlermal control aver financial reporting Inchudas thote polizies
and procedures that (1} pertali to e of racards 4nat, in datal), el fairly reflect the
vanm!lunsmddlapusmmofmemmm‘hmmm {2) prosilek i thet an
recquded B8 y ko paemilt of th vilh gonarelly sccapied accalinting
prlaciples, and that revelpts and expendiivies of the mnanr 263 halng mad only In accaudznce vith authezatons of
mam@mnenl and diledavs of the wmpum-amltsl ol arlimaiy
eatar lnition, use, o2 ith Uf“‘. sould he & material affect on the

nanclal :htammh.

Bmuse of lh Inberem Ilmmtinna intumfcnnhl v firancial neporting may nat prevent or doter] misstatarents, Algo,
ok i subect o the riek that eonlrok may boacoria

lm,deqme Imausuel chmgnsh\mndilhm. o that the degy with the pallcles o | ]

deteriorate,

As Indlcated imlu -:mparwlng Manzgament's Repart on Intarnal Control over Financla Reparticg, managament's
of intemnal contral exer Branciel taporting ofd nat Inchede the Inteznal
trols of New Wh wiilzh Is Inelucied in the 2018 cansolidated Rinencial statemeants of Ter
Ine. aak ituted 57% of tetal &5 af Decemnber 3L, 2015 and 276 of reveriies far the yearthen
endad, Cur wdrh)f inhcrnal conlrol ovar 1| reporting of Tyler Technelogles, Inc, also did not Includs an evalustion
of the liteme! T Hew Werld Systoms Corpration.

I pur ppinten, Tyler Technoksgies, b, maintsined, In all materlal ropecis, effective internal coniro] aver financlal
réparting 2s of Decernber 31, 2015, basod o e COSQ erltarla,

Wa alao havs audiled, in accordance with the standards of the Publia Cormnpedy Accounling Cvaright Board {UnRed
stalen, the consalidated bnlnnnn shects of Whar Tachnologfes, Inc. as of December 31, 2016 and 2014, add tha relsted

Trcome, equity, and cah Pows for eecH of 1he three peays In the
period trided Decernbar 31 2015 and our report dated Fabieay 24, 2016 aypressad an unqualified opinlon thason,

Brrat MLLP
Dallat, Texgs
February 24, 201&
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Report OF Indepandant Reglstered Public Accounting Flrm

Repari ol nd gistored Public A ing Flrm
The Board of Directors and Sharehoklers
Tiler Technolagles, Ine.

Wh Hityg eudlled the sceompenying conselidated batancy theals of Tylor Technalogies, tne. & &F Decamber 31,
2315 and 2074, ard tha relaled consolidated stodamants of comprahensive income, shareholdars' equlty, and cash
flowa for each of the thiea 'rears in the perod ended Decambar 31, 2013, These finanelai statarepts are the

L of the Company Ourr I3 10 express an aplnfon orl theaw finanelal
statements based onowr audits,
W d our awdlts n ith the ol tha Public Capatry Accounting Oversight Board

[Unlled States}. Thosa standards requlre that we plam gnd perform the audit to oblain rensenabla assweanca about
whether the financlal statements ara fee of matariak missiatement, Anoudlt Includes seamining, un a test basts,
evldencd thie amounts and I tha financlal An andit alsa includes essessing the
il ] ol ared =i g1 if lea made by g a8 well 22 evafuating the evaral)
financlal s#alsment presentation, Wa believe that eur nudlts previda 1 réasohabhy basts for cur opinlar,

It sur oplalon, the firanelal statsmants raferrad to above preserd falely, In 2l materlal redpects, the Anenetal
posilion of Wler Tochnologtea, Ino. st Decamber 31, 2016 and 2014, and the results of its opemtions and is cash
1tows for sach of the three pears In thi parlod wndad Docomber 51, 2015, In conformily with U5, ganerally
sccepied accoundlng principles.

A jm Noie 1 to the lidated financkal siatemants, tha Company has adopted ASU 201817 Inzams
Tawes {Taple 740); Balance Sheot Classification of Deferred Tares.

We nlsa have audited, In with the al tha Publie Company Aceaunting Overaighl Beord {Unlted
States), Tyler Technotogles, Inc.'s Internal conical over fnanclai reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on

eriterla In Intarnal Conteel—Inl | Framework Issued by tha Committas of Sponsoring Crganlzallens
ol the dwey fssicn (2013 and awr report dated Fetwtary 24, 2015 axprossed an unqualified
opinion thereer.

Eamat MLLP
Calles, Texaz
February 24, 2016
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Conaolideted Statsments of Gomprehensive Income

Censelidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomng

For Lhe years anded Becember 31, 2014 2004 2013
In Whoucands, except per shuie emounls
Howaniuen:
Saltvade lisansta and royatiley o EY $ 49,068 § AbBAL
Svtaerlations #1175 21848 (37203
Saftyears srvkces AT 113,821 93,267
Masntemance KLY 212,596 191,720
Appralial sarvcoy G QR 1,802 20,825
Hardbsree and piter B3 7,568 B
Tardl sevenucs Lt 433,10 416,643
Bott of reyamas
Sodtwate fleenses and ropalties 11 1,500 2an
Acquiad softwarm el 1858 2,E7B
ol burbre stvides, meinlisnnca med subscriptinas EIT T ¥ 226363 199,617
Apipralssl sarvices 1 14,284 13,608
Hiahvars and albes "ok 3335 5880
bl cost of ravenus. R 253,130 223,440
Grasa profit W W 5233471 $193,203
Selfing, general and administrativa apenass - 108.260 98,289
Reszarch and desviopment wiparise Ex 2] 26,792 23,269
‘inertizatinn ol pusHALer a0 Lroch mas Intengbles i 4546 451
Operating incoma kb gnd 94,822 £7,128
Bther lagqmp [mganced, dot N [R:] a,308)
lncame bafors incorme tacss "0 4 94,467 65,819
Insoiirs Lan peovtsion 3 kil 36,527 20,018
ol tncona 4 44809 % 84,840 3 49,101
EBMiNgs par common thace:
PBaslg B Hp § Lya 4 L2
Diluted L S0} § 168 + L3
Unmalized galns on bvestment seearitizs svelable-for-sale * - ¥ -~ 3 kT3]
el o uth — -— s
eonigeetieratye Indonik
Olhar camprahansivs incoma. nat of b b - 5 e 3 2
Comprantshia Income Lo ohiLE 3§ 68,340 § 39323

St acerAqping Nk
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Caneolidated Balansa Shints

tecombiar 31, 2015 2014
Intlwysands, excent par value and share anioveis
ASSETS
Gursant ysaube
Cach and cazh equivalénis o S208,167
Accounlts receivable Sess allowancs for lesses ol $1.6%8 In ZD15 and $1,745 th 28143 ITasin 112,650
Ehattaim ruml vy adY -
Prepald exponses s 12,881
Iecome tax recelwble 21 g 1
It gucent asstls 1% 338
Tolul cuzrent assats "RNN 3370%6
Acesunis recelvable, lorp-term Lxid 181
Propesty and equipment, ot LY 65510
Befarred Incants taned - 502
Ciher Kisatay
Aoodwil] 4. 124,042
Dther Intanglblas, nat KT 4702
Cast methic Jrvestmeni FEL -
Nonsguriunk Inwestnsals 2o lhier masly 20 19y 7
4234370 £048.812
LIARILITIES AND SHAREHOLDENS' EQUITY
Current lfebilitles,
Aceaunts poyable FORNA § 410
Accrued lablitkes e 29,508
Delezred revenie 244 ba? 188,2)2
“Totad eLarent ipbiiles 337 £f= 232,839
Revalving {ina of tredil ELAY o~
Oafutiod rosius, Jeng-tarm 1w e
Daforred licime e 2.0 i
Commitmiats and contingenies
Shoveholdars' equlty:
Prefanxd siock, 310.00 par valug; 1,000,000 sharss aulivorirad; nons fxguad - RS
Gomnian alnck, 3001 por veluzs L0000 aharea s holredy 48,147,969 shares kaied i 0 251
2015 #nd 2014
Adkditiona) patta capital T 201,289
Azcanalslad gthar camprehanshis Joys, net of txx At e
Ralsined aamirgs Tihlay 251,150
Tramaury atock, ot cost; 11,373,866 dnd 14,678,742 shares in 2015 and 201, respectively i (136001}
Toisk sharskafders' equily HRAETY 138,973

Foa oumpanyiog nates.
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Censolidaked Slataments of Shareholders' Equity

ek
of

3 Eqelty

Fer Ine yuses endad Decombar 71, 2013, 2014 shd 2019

Erenimitaled o
- Akl ool Rl olAl
Somn ok, Thldn & e Rekalnad Tiersury Sack Shavsholdns®
Shares Amount  Eapital IQM Earnives Shares Anvgnl Equity
Inthousands
Halanca o} Dacember 31, 2012 48,040 $461 4164018 szem  $14310% (8817 8Q7E08L % 145293
et Income P - - 3,100 - - 3p,101
Unenlinad gaq o Investmant

sacurdtles, nal of Tag - * - 22 - - - 2
1s0ane2 of shares purgsant tw .

alock compensation plan ~ - - w1443 32,031 15,289
Shoek companzaion a [SRE $K 1) o . - oy 1,88
ws17ac04 of sharer purmumt 1o - .

Wmplopa slack purchas slon - e e w6 L6c2 3542
Fuderol Income lax benett nalsted .

W0 exerule of sioh opllmn - - B - e - - Wl
[elance st Decambor L, 2013 48,148 481 132,176 e o218 1530 (126.802)  245,31F
Nl Incame —_ - - - 58340 - — 55,340
Tswance of shares purstant b
Blnck COmPEnBYN pltn - = am - e 55 EFERET] 14,550
Stogh comperzation - - 14BLE wa e L o 4 Elg
Intaiance o shaeea putidnl io

amplayes tlock puichizs plan - - ¢ - - 53 1,909 4,144
Fuderal income tan beaefit solsten

10 exerclse of 2otk opsions - =~ a5 e o - - 13,415
Treasury stuck purehases - - - T Aun {784} 22,017 {azaLn
Issuance of shares for agsulsition d - 1% - - 1?7 1,260 1413
Balance stDacembor 31,2014 48,146 4B 201,389 ME 20,150 QuEe (126001 33gen
et Inean - - —~ wiae® = Eal LIR A
trwsnen sl siaras pusuant - .
atock compansation plan - = - ~ ol 5L T
Sinck companssbion . ARl . » e
lesuancani shares purssant 1o - : -

mployen atack porehaze plan L - 3 o2 L
Feddueal leorna ek buietit réttted . .
Io expmise ol siock opUons oroe M LE
TDeaawry sfock purcheses - — - - - B pr Yy
Vepunnen o sharva for sqbishioas - = dwsnvdy - R YL Bt Do 3T
Bolince 8 Dotiybee 31, 2015 wba-s 3 48, ‘,-5‘7.?1.:].5{ PR T 1 (A L e A 3!&‘5&1

Foasvaripanying nofer.

3% Debuiogin 14§ fural Ry 83



Consolidated Stalements of Cash Flows

Consolidated Statoments of Gash Flows

For the years ended Becembsr 31, 2018 2014 2013
I thensandy,
‘Canh fiows Jrom oparating methtine, i
Ned income cEunMPT § BHSH $33,101
Agfretmants to recancils net income b eash pewtded by operalions:
Dapeociation and amertization 18,5 14,605 13,768
Bhars-hased compansation mpense 3k 14819 11653
Pueninlan for Jpasay.~ spogunts recekilily 1734 LE97 729
Exenm oy leas of sharebased 43,114 Dos02r  (es207)
Detarred Ingarma s benefit etian 8,804} Laan
wiclysive of atfcls
of atiilred companlen
Aucounts ieceivatls PR 0 ma1g (7,488
Engoma Eax recelyable R ] M117 lae9a
Propald arpsisss and other cuament nasots ik A (2635 159
Aceriini jriyabla 1586 1a74)
Aecrued Hablllties 8328 7,558
. Daferred revente A1451 16,188
et sash provicded by eperailag sctivitus 123,497 56,000
Cauh tiowes druan frvgsting aclivities: .
Cozl of soquishtiens, net of tash goquired E UL 13,242} sy
Prchase of cost meihod investment jigile) —_ -
Purchizse of morkelable secorily investments T - -
Prucsary fram markataba socunly investmenty e s 1,080
Addiffess tn pregarly and aquipment i, (@343)  (25858)
Dorredse In il . af 0z 21
Hle casly bsed by Investing activitlay 1405, P (L1585 (25,6560
Cash ot Erorn finascing witheities;
Incraes { m) et borrewings an of prsdll D - B0
Purshass of frazsury shsea (22,817 -
Cantribieflong trom eniiiyea stock gurchese plan 4,144 3.542
Procaeds Irmm muweish of slack options 14,680 18,269
Db Iszuanca cests BILA — .
Excazs cxerclies of shars-bassd %014 19,402 28,907
Eicd cash peavida by Fnancing aclivitisg N9, 300 16,809 12,028
et 11 £ath pad ossh squival 1arzm T2AM
Cath and cash equivaliats ot beginning of period 7BATS H.406
Cashnd cash sambatentz ot and of period SEO6,167  $VBHIG

Soe aCCOMpATYINE ROdAL
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Noles ta Consolidated Financlal Statements

ITablas In thousands, sxeepl por share gatob

(1] Sumniary of Signifcant Accouniteg Pollcies

BESCRIFTION OF RUSINESS

We provide Integratad software systems and selated sandces for tha sublic sector, with a focus on local gevarnmiants.
We develop end mashiet a broad fine ol saftwans solutlons and services ta address the Information tavlinclagy (1T}
astnds o Gitls, colntles, schoats and sther Toce! gevernmant entities, In additln, v provida prolessionel |T
sorvices, Ineluding oftware snd harduera bnstaltation, data ¢onvarslon, training, and far certaln customers, product
madiflestigns, shoag with contlauing meintenarce and support for customare using our systatna, We also provide
subserplion-based $anices such zs software a5 a servica ["34p5") drangantents, which utillze the Tylar privale
cloud, and electronic 4 filing eolutions {"s-fIting™), In 2ddilion, we provida proparty apgraléal culseurciag
xervicen for wudng Juitsdletion.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION
Tha censolictsted {Inanisl thatermenis Includa sur parent company and a subssilary, which 1s whatly-owned, All
slgnHicant liitercompany balancas and have bt lenl n 1iat|

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Gasiln excess of that necessary for oparating requirements Is fnvested In short-tarm, Bighly liguld, Incomes
preduging f 1 with original liies of thres menths or less ara elassiied ay cash and cash
equivalents, which primasily consist of cash on depeslt with ssmral banka asd money markel funds, Cesh and cesh
exqulvalanis arg stated st ast, whish appraximtes market value,

REVENUE RECOGHNIVIOH
W earn revanug from soltware fivenses, ryaltios, subsoription-besed sanvieas, software services, sest-contract
gugtamer suppork (*PCS™ or "mai ). hardwara, and vicas,
Soltwara ferangeriedts: -
i the majority of our saftwate amangsmants, we provida sorvices Mat range frox Installation, tralnlig, and beslc
10 sottwere d |23k to meet speclic customer needs. I tha eangemant does not

Tegire medification or or whesa iha software sarvices ara not eonsidared
tzsenifal lo the ] reveniee | 4 whisn all ol the tollowing condltions ara mat

L iva evidenca of an exlsts;

M. dellvery has occumed;
Iil, our fest B Fiked or detersinabley snd
fv. calleatabllity 5 probable.

For ptulliple efement amangements, eact oloment of the ariangement Is analyzed and wa aliocata ¢ portion of the
tutal armngemant faa to the elements based on the relalfve talr valie of the elamenl using vendorspecific ahjactive
enidance of falr value ["VEOE"), regardhecs of any saparato prices stated within the cantract for aach slement, Fair
valug in conldaved the price & sustoimer wodld be reqaired o pay If the glament wad sald separstely bacad on our
histoitea! experience of siand-afana sales of thess sloments 16 hivd partles, For PCS, we use renzwal rates for
continued support falr value. For softw vlges, wa usa the falr value we therge our
custoimers when thosd dervices zre We meqnitor our \o delermine that wa maintaln and
pedodically revise VSOE to retlect Jalr value, In software arrangernants In which we have the falr vatue of all
undelivered elements bt not of o delivarar elemant, we spply the "residual melhed,” in. compllance vith
Accounting Stendsrds Codification {“ASC"} 983-605, Softwara Revenus Reengritian, Ungor the rasidual insthod, If
the falr value of elomants ) the tale valus of the undafivered eléments Is defesred and
the Ening perlion of Ve fe | ol tha dslivered el and Is recog 8s fevenue
essumaing thewthor revanue recognition criterla gre mat. In saftware awang=ments in whish we do nul hive YSOE for
ol undeifvered efements, revenus Iy delawed unlil talr valie ds dutermined or alf slaments tor which we da ot hosa
YSDE have baon defvead, Altormakively, if $ufficlent YSOE dous not exist and the aoly yadellvered elamant ts
seyvices that do not Imvolve sign’ modificatian or +f the software, Tha entite fee is recognlzed
aver the period duelng which the services are expected ta ba parformesd.
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Sal{ware Licenses and Roysities

Wa recngnize tha revonun allocable 1o softwara fcenses and specified upgradas upon delivery of the saftware
produet o Upprade to tha sustonser, untass the Joa §4 not fixad or determinatit or collectability Is not probable. i
Ahe few is aul fixed or determinable, safiware licensa revenii¢ v ganerally reccgnizad es paymerils bécome dua from
tha customer, If ollectablllty Is not conslderad prababla, reverue is racognized when the tue Is ecllectsd,
Arrangements thet includy software servicas, siuch as inaining o [nstallation, ar ovalusted ta datorine whether
thoze senvices o the product's i

A majortly of cur saftvrare rvangemeats involve "off-the-shalf" sallwasn, Wa consier saliwara Lo ba olf-taesholl
softwari IF It can be atded fo.an arrangement with minar changes | (he underlying coda and it can be Lsed by the
custemar for the 'S pUtposa Upan Installatlon, For afftha-shell sulivearg etraigements, we 1scogmlee Ine
software licenza feq as revenue aftar dolivary has accined, customer scoaplance reazonghly sesured, that porilan
of tha feg rep 1 ahundable ank lg clakn and [+ probable of collection, and e remalnlng services
suches trainllng are not cansidered essentlal to tha pradust’s fusctionality

Far fhut lvalve shenilicant o madilleation or eustomization of the softwars, v whara
il vices arg oth Idered essential, we recognlte revaniig Using comtrast aecounting and agply
e peavislons of the Cansiuction - Type and Production - Type Gontracts us discussad in ASC 50536, Mulliple
Elements Arangements, We gedeslly Ute the parcintags-of.campletian method to recogniza evanue from these
We t prmerlly Using lzbor hours incurred, o valun addad, Thy
peecdntage-of-completion mathod genarally results In the recsgnittan of reasanably consistent prafit merging aver
Ihe I o a cantrack becauss we have the atiilly o prodves reasanably dapendabl estimates of sntract hilliags
and coniyoct 9ats, We use tha level of prafit margin that I most likely ke ovcur o a cantracl, IF ihe mast Rkaiy
et muegln covinak ba precisely datarmined, the levest prakabls lavel of prefit In the range of eslimates js used
untll the resufts can be estimatad more precisety. The: s are ofte imp outi an extanted
Ima perled ad lgnolly reulie us 1o revfse kotal eost estl Amoupis Ized In revanue are Iuted
using the progress-to-complition measutament 4w giving effoct to oy chengss in our cost estiinates. Changes {o
batal estimated contract casts, Jf any, ere recorded In the periad they ere datermined, Estimeted losses on
latad conlearts dad In the: period in which wa firat delermine that @ foss Is apparent, For
errang=ments that fnclude new produc releases for which It lx difficult Lo estimete final profitablilty except by
esating thit no Joss will ullmately be incurred, we recognize revanue voder tha eompleted cantract nethod, Under
the completed contract mellwd, revanug fs only when tract g ar ly camnplate,
Historleally these emounts have baen Immaierial,

Wa recogaize roysity revenua wher earned Lmder the brms of car thind-perty royally srrangemants, provided tha fees

I ezl or d i and piyment fa probable. Suttently, $ur third-party soyallias ane
varlaile Im rabure and sugh anwunts aps het onsldered fived o delerminable unti] we recaive notica ol amouats
eamed. Typlcaly, we recelve nolice of toyaity revenues estnad on a quarterly basls Tnthe aukcber Inmedlataly
Tollowlng the rapalty repariing perfad,

Sofly:are Services

Bome of dur safiwara srvsagements Include services considerad sssenlial forthe customer to uso U sofiwaa for
The 'S purpoves. For thids deHy Toth the goftware Ilcarsa revonue and the seng:
tEWRnLe dra 8 the services are using the p ge-of-complstion eantract Ing,
method, Wien 4a#wite darvioen ar not considerad esssntisl, the fea allocable to the servica alement is recognized
B rEVONL4 36 we perfors the senlces,

Cmnpuln:r Hardvare Equprasnt
Revenue allacable ta oomputar herdwae aquipmvant is recognizad whan wa defives e equipment and callaction la probable,

Post Contraet Custernas Suppatl
Dw enter intn P{S vehien they purchase gur soliwers llcansas. POS Tncludes
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talephon sUppot, bug fhes, wnd Hghts te upgradas on A when-and-if avallable basly, Qvr PGS asrearients ara
bypically hla annually. R Il toPCS on a slraight-lina basis over the periad ife
FC3 |a provided, AN slgnifieant costs and expencas gasoclated with PCS &rs apensed as ipewrred.

Subserpiion-Based Services
Subscription-bated tervices consist of rvanuss darlwol frem Saa8 amangsments, which willize the Tyler privaty
cloud, and electunle fillng fransactions,

Fov Sant rrangemants, wa svaluste whether tha custoemar has the confrattual right to take peatession of aur
softwere at any Hme during the hasting period wihout stgnificant penalty and whother 118 eustomer ¢an feasibly
makntain the software:on the £nstatner's hacdwara or ente? Into another arangement with 2 third-party 1o hosl the
software, i Geses whera the custerner has I right o Lake of our softward at any tie duttng
the hasling perind withaut significant fanalty and the cystomer can feasibly maintaln the coftwere o tya
customar's hardirate oz antar Into another srangement with a third-party o hcst e settware, we recognlze the
Tieanse, servlces and Kosting servi o ASC S85-605, Softwara Revenua
Recegnltion,

For 5eas donat mest ha ¢rleda far under ASG 98B.605, wa docolnt for the
wleinents mider ASC 603-26, Muitiale Blement Arrangamenta, uslng alf applicable facts-and ¢licumstences,
Inclyding whether (1) tha element has stand-alona valua, (3} thare & & kzneral rlghd of reluen and (i) the revenueis
confingent en dellvery of cther elemants, We ellccate contract vatua to each afstiynt of {he arrangemanl ihat
quakiflas for frantmeat 65 a saparabs emant based on YSOE, and IN'VSCE & ol awailsble, third-party evidones, and
If third-party evid [£] I prica, We recogniize hosting sérvlzes ratably over the lerm of
the arrangemant, which ranga frent ona te 10 years Bl ers typlcally for 8 perdod of threa o seven years, For
professiond | sarvices sssocivted with Sa2% arvangements. that e detenming da ot fiiva sLsndwalons value 1 Hie
customer or aze cantlngant an delivery of atier elements, we pecopnlze the sorvies revenua ratably ever the
ramalning conlraeiual pariod et e hava provided the citstomet acceas to the software and we may begin blliing
fior fieas, We d s that hrave been Invalaed In accoumts recaivable bid in dofasred fevanue or
fevenves, depanding on whether the revenus recegnitlon critera have boeq mat,

Electronic fHing trangaction fees primarily pertain ta documents filed with Ehe gourle by aiterneys and other third-
partles via obr e-filing senvices and refrleval of fited documents via our aocess sendces, The alements for thase
artangaindnts ars actetnted for under ASC §05-25, Far sach document filed with a court, the Yiler gonaeally pays 4
transacfien fee and & courf filing Fee o us andwea remit & portion of the transaction fea 4nd $iné Alng fea 1o tha
court, Wa racord a1 revenia the transackion lae, whlie the wortlon af the transaetion fee femilter ta the courls fs
recerdéd at cost of Sals = we are artieg a5 u principal In Ihe smangement, Court fillng fees eellected on behalf of
the courts end remitled Lo the eouds are recerded on & net basls gnd this o nol affest the statement of
cofprehensivs Incoms, I some sases, wa as pald on a fixed fes basia snd recognlze The revenue ratably aver the
totitractuzl period,

Cesta af parfermlng servlceq under fion-baged 213 exponsed a8 Incunred, sxeept Jer curdain
direct and Intradental contract origination and set-up cost l with 3223 ts, Such direct and
| Ensis arg and am mtably ever tha related S2a3 hosting tanm.

Appralsal Services

For our paoperty appratsal projects, e meogniza revanus 1aing the pogortinnal perfotinance melhod of revenus
recagnition sinés mary of thesa profacts am implmarted ovar ome to three Yesr perjods and conekt of warlpis YnlgR
activities. Underthis method of revenoe recogaltion, we Identity eachactiviy for s Sgpraisal project, with a typical
praject gengrally ealiing far bonding, office sal up, WaMing, muling of mep Information, dsta antry, deta collection, tata
verilicatlon, Informal hearlngs, appeals and project management. Each activity or act I8 apecifically antificd ahd
assigned an estimated cosl. Costs which are conudesed 1o ba assoclated with Indirect activilies, such as bonding costs
and effice sat up, ars expernad ga Incumed. Thesa custs ere typleatly bifledas incurad snd are Tecognlaed as ravenue
4quakdo coxt, Divech cantract Buffill thit el fy cosds such a9 Jata eollection, date entry and
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et panasd as Tncured, T diract for thexa acih(tles ore tetermined znd the folal contrast valua is
Ihen allocated Ja each activity bessd o a canslstent profit margin, Each setivity 's assigned a conslstent unit of
MERsHE U e1uniis iograsy fowards complation ane revenue |s recognized for esch activity based upon {he
percentsge complete as applied i tiva sMimated revenue for that netivity. Progress for ha frlfiliment sctivities Is
typleally based on labior fibirs of sh oL put measara guch as tha numbet of parce] counts corplated lor that actvity,
Estimatad laseas an uncoinplated contracts ara recorded in the pardod in which we first detecmine that a los Is apnarant,

Aflmnun of Revanug o malemenls af CGrnprenenswe Inceme
I our s of income, 1o software licanses, software semlcos,
ftalntenance and harcware snd other based unllle YBOE of lalr elue for slemenis fn each revenus arangement
nnd 1ha application of the residual rruthnd {or nrrengements n which we have astebllahed YSOE of falr valve for ail

sleinents, [n mls wheta We ara aot able to astablish YSOE of Jalr valyg for ail uncielivered
ulemagnty, rovenye [p flist alloegted to dny undeliverad ¢lementa for which VEGE of falr valle has been establishes,
Wethen sllocata reveve ta any yatslivored elements for which VSOE of falr value haa nat been esiablished based
upen management’s besd eslimate of fir value of thess Wniellered stements and anply & realdual mathed ke
dotermine tha llcenas fae, Mansgement's best estimate of Falr value of undstivered efamznts for whizh VSOE af faly
valug hiss nol beenestablished 19 based upan the VSOE of similar offerings and other objective oiltera,

Other
Thte majaelty of deferzd ists of pport and ravanigs that hos baen bliled based
o larios 10 the with the remaining balance consisting of peyments received in

advante.of révenua baing eamtd under siiware llcensing, subscription-based sendces, softwars and appralssl
services and hardware installatfon. Unbilled revenue s not biltabie at 1ha balance shoot date bt i remuahla oyer
Tha remalning IHa of tha cantraet thrpagh bEllngs meds In wif]
glauses in our conkracts ganerally provide for the payment for fhis value of pmdu:ls dellverad ang serulm parformed
in the exerl of an early tarmiination.

Prepaid expenses and o\hurcurrent assals ineluda direst and § | costy sych as s d
with te for wh 1 hes been deferad, Euch coats are mpensed at fhe time the related
devenue isvecognlzed,
sa of Estimates

of aur flnsncizl n confi y with accounting prinelples generally accepled In the

UnHed States {"GAAP"] requlres vs ko make eslinates and astitenptiens that affatt tha reported 2maunts of assets
and ttabilities and discloswa of conkingent assets and llabilities at the date of the linanclal statanients and tha
reported amounta of revenues and uptmses dullng the npcnlng perlud Slgnificant items subject ta such estimates

and fans Include the applk and fohzl parformance mathods of
revanus Facognition, the sanylng atmount anﬁ estimated uselul fves of Inlangible assets, detennination of shara-
hosed pansa and valwation all fat acalvables, Actual results could giffer from estimates,

Propesty and Equipman, Hal

Propmy. equ|pmnnt and purchesed softviaee ara racordad af adgingl ¢out end Incremsed by the cast of any

Wa expenge malnlenance and repalrs when incurred. Depreciaiton and
smartization s calculabed using the steaight-Jine melhod aver the shortar of The aeset's eatinated usefut )ifs of the
tarm of tha feasa i the cass o7 leasehold Improvernents, Fot Incotis bk purposes, we ues acoslerated depreciation
methiods 18 aflowend By ba lews,

Reswarch and Develppmant Gosts
We exponsad research and develapment coots of $29.9 millian duting 2016, $26.7 milllen during 2314, and
$23.2 mitlion durlng 2013,
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Encome Taras
Inzoma laxes are accounted (o upder the ssset and Ilahlllly mathad, Deferied taxes erise bacause ol differant
trentment between financlal known 28 ditferances” Wa

record the tax aftect of these temparary diﬁsranees as"d:leuadlaz sasets” (generally Homa that can be sed asa
teog daduction ar cradit In the futurs perfids) wnd "defarmed tax llabitlties™ {generelly Rems fhat we rocelead 8 4,
deduction for, which heve net yet bean recorded In the incame statertent), The deferrsd tax 2sseta and lisbllities are
mepsUred using enacted tax rules snd lows that are expecled to be in ¢Hoct when lhe lamporary differances e
sxpactad o g racovired or settted. A vatuallon allowanco would ba established o raducs deferres tox assats I it is
more ikely than not that a daferrad tax asset will not be realized.

Bn Novamber 20, 2015, the Flaansial A king Brard lssued Uptiats (*ASUM
Ho. 2015-17, Income Taxes (Topic 740 Balance Sheat Class|flcation of Dafarred Taxos. Tie slandard amends tha
cupmmnk mquiromant foF anfities te present deferred tax liBhilities and sssst as.current and noncurrant In &
classified balance sheot. Inctesd, antities will new be s nired to classify all deferrad tax assaln and abilicfes o2
noncurrent, The ASU Is atfectlva for fiacal years, and Interim perfods within thoee years, beginning after Decembar
15, 2016, with early adeptlon peimilted. Ye aarly sdopizd 1hla slandard durlng Insrth quarier 2016, utlilzing the
ratrospeciiva appiication as permitted, As such, certaln prior periad amaunts have been reclaasified Lo confarm to
the current peesentalion,

Sharg-Basad Compansation

e iz a stock option plan that provides for the grant of sback aptions te key employeas, diresiors end nam-
employse tonsultants. Stock optians genrally vest after biree o six yaars of contlnuiona servize Hom the date of
grent end have a contractunl term of 10 years, We aceaunt for shara-based compensation wilitzing the foir vaiue
recagnition pusuant ta ASG 718, Stack Campensation, Sea Note 3~ "Shars-Based Compansztion” for furlher
Informatlon.

Toodwill and Dther Inlangible Assets

Goodwill

Gaodwilt represents the excess of the purchasa prca ovei Wha Fair valuz of net assals acquired, Including identifiabln
Inleuigible assebs, in connaction with our business eombinatiens. Upen acouisiklon, goochwill |5 sssigned ta the
Teporting unit #hat Ja expected to benefit fronk the syoergles of tlrs bysiness rombination, which Is ha reperting unit

Ao which Wby related hoquired tashnology 1s asslgned. A reporting unit Is the operating segment, or a buslizss unkt

onadovel balow that opereting segmant, far which dla:reteﬂnanclal infoirmabion #s prepacad and regularly reviswed

by executive it We goochwll] foc Impakreent nnually s of Aprl, or mora frequently whznever

wonts of thanges inl elrcumstantsy indicats s cairying valva may not ba recoverabia,

Vinen testing gootwll for Impairmany quantibativaly, e fiest compare tha fair vaiua of sach feporting unlt with s
eakeying amount, If the earylng amount of 4 seporting wnlt exceeds Ity falr value, B secand step iy parforimed b
measure fhe smount of potential impalrment. |0 the seeond elep, we compare tha mplicd falr vélus of repcriing
unit goadul) with tha cerrying amount of tha reporfing unii's goadwil, If the carying amount of taparting snil
gocdklll excands the Impliad lalfvalue of that goodwill, an lmpelnmnunss Is ricognizad, The folr valuea calculsted
In our f fests d using h flew matle)e frwvslving soveral assumptions. The
farsumytions that s esad are basad upon what wa Balleva 3 hypothelicel Marketplace participant would use in
estimating falr value, We evaluate the I of the falr valuz of our raparting urits by
comparing the tota! of the falr valuz ot all of our repsrting wols t vur folsl market capitslizalion,

Gur annual goodwill [mpairmant analysis, which we parkamed cuantitatlvsly dering the secand qutriar ol 2015, did
nok rezult In an Impalpment charge,

Dkl\ei' In‘?ﬂgpblu Aseels

ut the Intanzibl e ol

abal than goadwlll whenaver evenls or
chungnsln alrctimstarnces dicaby that an Impalrmnni 1y exlst. Custorner base and axquired sehware tach
anmprise helk of ow jible assets othor than goodwill, Wa rovlew gur tistomer
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turnewsr waeh yuar tor lndleations of Impabrment. Gue epstorer turnavar bag hislaricelly bear very kow, Thers have

bean no of 13 in any of tha perods presenled. (I Indleatlons of impaimaont
i daterminad boexlﬂ W masure the ility of zesale by a Isan of the camying amount of e dssot
to e sstimated urdlseotinted hittira cash flows m«p&cted 10 ba ganmwd by the agsat, IF tie canying amaount of
tha 2asets axceeds thelr estimatad fut h Tlows, an Impai it chirge it for the amount by whieh

the camying smonnt of 1ha assets wxcouds tha falr vaige of 1he %sats,

Impainment of Long-Livad Assets
We paitodically waluate whether currant facts or circumstancay [ncleato that he camying velue of sur properly snd
equipment or other [ong-lived nesets o be held and ceed may nat ba recovarabie, IF such clroumstances are
determbned to axfat, we messirs she recewammbility of axtets to be held and used by a camparison of tha canylng
smetink of tho assst or PRrop of azsets and the s5timated Und: d fufurs cash flows expected to
b generatad by tha sssats. If the carnying amount of the assels exceads thelr estimated futyre cash lewa, en
Impdlmunlehugp Ik ieogilzad for the ameunt by which tha cmylng ampunt of he assels axseeds the falr valua of
Assats o be disposed of would be i d In the balancs shest and reported at the lower of
the carrying amount or falr valus less coats o sell, and aza na longer depreaiated. The asqets sad llabllilles of
disposad groip classified 2s hald for sale would be prosonted separately In the appropttaba msat snd llability
sactions of e balance shaet. There eva baen ho elgnHicank impairments of long-fived assels in any of tha perleds
presented,

Gosts ot Gamputar Sottware
Wa copilalfie softwora d L ds upon the calablishment of teasibility and prior to the
availabiliy of the praduect for genevel release ta cuslomers, Software Javelopment cesls primarily cansist of
pnsnnnal l:usts alld rent for related ulllce apace. Webe;h to amoritza capltatzad costs whan 8 preduct |s avallable
KD ab a proditei-byprodust basis at a rale not
]asa than stralght-llne baala aies the product’s I Tife, We have not capltalizad sny
Intennal safiwarg devalop oasls fmany af the period

Fair Value of Fhaanetal mstruenents

Caeh and eash equivelents, trcounts recelvables, aeeounts payables, sherd-tem abligations and cartain other assets
at cost approximate faik value because of the short maturity ol these lnstruments. The fair value ol our revelving ling
of credit appreximatas bogk valua a5 of Doeamber 31, 20186, becassa our [ntarest rates resal 2ppraxmatsly every
30 days of [ass, Sar Nota 6~ “Resolving Ling af Cradit” (or furthar dlseussion,

A of Decembor 201 6. we hava $30,9 mililon In Inveatmant grade carporate and munlclpal bonds with maturity
dtes Mnglag from 2014 through mid-2017. Wa Intend lo hold thasa bonda to maucity and have classified them as
such. Wa belleve cost appraxfmnates fale valye because of the rejativaly short duration of these liwestments, The lalr
walves of these socurltles aea consldared Lavel i as they are basad ot |nguts from quoted prices In markets that aro
nat active or from olter ebsesvable markst data. These investmants ar loglyded I short-term lavastments and
nga-curent Investoants sod sther asdcks,

On Janoary 30, 2016, we mpde a$15.0 million investment in convertible proferrad stock rapresenting a 20%
Tnterest In Record Holknga Pty Limited, a privately held 1 company In digltizing the spoken
word In ¢eurt and lagal procaedings. Tha fair valtias of th1s invastmond b based on veluntlons using Level 1),

ke Inputs that are by ltle or rio market valua activily and that are signiticant 1o the 1zIr valua
ot f1e Myeskment,

Cancentraians of Sredit Risk and Uublliad Runalnhla:

Fluanclal I that bjexst 0a to &l of cedit rfak consist prineipally of
cash and cas) accounts tbla fram trade ardl in nzkatabla sacuritias.
Qur ceah and cash equivslents. piimurlly censists of operating account balances and money markst funds, wiith are
rmalstained at several major domestic linanclat Instituticns and the bafances often excued st ampunt, A of
Decenibar 31, 2016 we hed cash and cash equivelerts ol $33.1 million. Wa parform parledic woluations of the
credit standing af these financla| institptions,
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Cancentrations of credlt fisk with respest i i mited due ta the slre ang foal divaisty of our

cueiurer base, Historically, our cradit losses hava not baen slgnificant, At a resull, we do not Dilleva we have any
of eradit ek a2 of Decemmbar 31, 2015,

‘Wiz malniain efiowances lor doubiful accounts and sales adjustmsnts, whish #re provided at the tima e ravanue s
recognized. Since mosd of our cuslomars ara dorsestie gwsrnmental entitles, we raraly Incur 2 lags restiting from
tha Inability of » eustarter to make rquirad paymenh Events or chanm In cireumstanees thal indicata that tha
canying emewnt ot the &l tor and sakds Inay ragulre revsion, fnclude, but
e N8 limiied to, detetiorallon of 4 costomer' fallure to mandes our cusiomers sxpectations
ragaiding tha scopa of the services to be dellvered, and detects or arrrs In new versions or enhancemanty of our
softwara peaducts.

Tha foltowing table thechanges In the tor dowbtiul attounls and sales adjustmanta:

Yans endied Oacember 31, 2015 2014 2013
Balincs ot beginnig el year $itis  §1.17 1062
Fravidors fos loxsen - sccounta recelvabls 158 1897 28
Goltbebion of acttints prévivusly written off pLE3 - -
Lreduetions far accoutits charged off o eredlity baued 110541 263 11,237
Bafanze st apd of yasr 11810 SL1A6  $1.i1a

The terminatfon clausea In mest &f ow contracts provide for the: puymem br mava]u»n ot prestucts dellvaered or
acrvicas performed in the event of eafy Qur properiy 4op sarvice contracly vad mnge
up {0 Bhres yaars and, In 2 few cases, as long as five yaara, In dusetion. In-connaction with thesa contracts, es well
s certaln soffwars sarvics ontracts, wa may perform work prior by when tha 2ettwart and ecrvices are tillakls
andfor payable pursuent to the cortract, We have hMulotically recorded wuch unbitled recelvables (reats and
estimzted prafit In excess of blliings) tn eannaction with {11 praperty appealsal servlees eontracts acesuntad for
uing propartiengl performence pecounting In which the revenue [a tanoed based upon actliitlet perormied i one
Mnﬁnﬂ puiod batthe hlllingnnnmlh une-uruuhsequunlly and may span another accounting peried) (2)
eanlracty ot Lsing th method of revanua recognHion usirg

labar hours a9 3 f progiess In whl-:h tha xanylces are periocmed in ene azcounling
period bt e billing for ihe software elemen of the arzangenent miay ba based upen the spectfic pheaa of the
Implementatian {3) softwara revanua for which we have objeclivg evidence that the sustormer-specitied ohiective
ttltetle heg been tet but The billlng hes not k=L been submitled to the custonten (4) some of oo contracts pravica
Tor an amzunt ta be withheld fram @ progress billng igancrally belveen 5% snd 20% retentlon} untl tins! and

v project |3 achleved; and (6} In & ©f cases, we may grant exianded payment
terms, genarally 1o exisiing costomens with wharm we have 2 long-temm relationship and faverable cofielion history

Wa have recerded Unbiited recelvables of $29.7 million and $14.8 mitllon at Decamber 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, Wa alsn havs reconded retentlan raceables of §4.7 milllon &t Decomber 31, 2015 aig 2014,
raspectively, and thaga retentions beceme paysble. spon the completion of the coerract of exmpletion of gur
linldwork and formsl haarings. Unbilled 2acelvables and retentfon recatvobles apected tobe eo\lsclnd |r| st
f ona yeer have been Incl ith sccgunks Tang-tarm pomion i the

bafanea dhasts.
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Motes to Consolidatad Financial

Iudginnitication

Most of our software license agraemants indamnify our custdrets I tha event that the saltware sold tnhinges upon
the Intellectunl peoperty righta of a third-perky, These dgreementa typlcally provide that In sueh eyant wo wil) eithor
modify o repfacs the softwara so that il berames nen-Jniringing or procisra for the customer the right to use the
softwace, e haye ded mo lEzbility latad with thess indemnifications, as we ara nal awsre of any pending
o thrsetenad Infringsment acklons ihat are pesslble fosses. Wa beflave the estimeled folr value of thesa Intellzctual
property indemnification clalises (s mintmal,

W bave alag agreed ta ndaimnify aur oifieers and board mambers If they gre natmed or (hraztansd %o bt nainad ds »
parly teany praceeding by rasson of the fact that thay scted in such capacity, ¥ maintain directors’ and officars’
llablitty nsurancs coverega to pratect againet 2y such |omses, 'We have recorded no llability assaclated with thosa
Indemnifizations. Becausa of onr Insurance coverege, w8 Yeliava the estimated falr valus of {Heda lndatnlcation
egreements |3 mintmal,

Retlassifioations
Cartaly amounty for previous years Jiave been reclassliled to copfarm to the current vear prasentation,

Few Actounting Pronsuncemants

On May 28, 2014, tha Financlal Accounting Standards Soard ("FASE") fssued ASY No, 2014.08, “Ravenus from
Contracts with Customers,” This ASE Is tha result of a conargance profast biatwans M FASE and the Inlernatdonsl
Accounting Standards Board, The core prihciple behiad ASU 2014-09 Is hat 2n entity should recognize revanua o
daphet e transfec of pramisad gands and sarvices to Im 2n emednt that raflacts tha canalkdaration to
which the gntlty expscts lo ba anifled In axchenge far deliverlng thesa goods and servives, This medel kvalves a
Uive-stap prazosy that Includes Kenltfying the contract wiih the customer, [denliylng the in
the conirzct, ing the. pel all tha # tlen awices b the performance obligations in
ihe contrect and recognizivg revenue when {or as) tho entity satistes tha parformance abligations, The gultanas In
he ASU superatdes wisting revenue recegnition guldance and Js sffactiva for annual raperlitg periods begintitng
after Decambar 15, 2016 with eerfy appilcation nel pezenlited. The ASY eilows twa methads of adoption; a full

retrospectiva appiaach whera three years of financtal Infcrmatian are prasented In wlih tha naw
standard, and a Hed p appreash whise the ASU (4 applled to the most eurrent pezlod grosunied in
the financial staterments.

On Auglist 12, 2005, Hie FASE votad Lor s one-year defanal of tha effective data of the new standard and now
raquites applicatian of the new standard ne later than annuat reporting periods beginning eiter Decamber 15, 2017,
lactuding Interln repasting parods thereln, Hewever, under the propoesl, pubf[¢ entitles wot(d he permitted to elect
to early adopl 1he ey stzmdard a3 of 4 iging! affeclive delo. ¥a cumunily axpect to adopt Iha new standard In
Fiecal year 2018 [a d wilh i iisedd effactive date,

72 Tie Boklpet 21 Al Bpiet

Notes lo Consolidatad Fi ial Gtalements
{2} Aequisitions
2018
Un Nevemkar 16, 2036, we acquired all of the caplilal stock of New Word Spatems Corpatation (“NWE', which
mavides public safely and [Inancla) sofutions for tncal g ‘Tha purehase price, netof cash acquired o

$22.5 milllen, was 53375 Million in cash, of which $4.0 milllon was actiued at December 31, 2013, and 2.1
illon shares of Tyler comimon stock valued at $362.8 willlion, wiich waz hased on Ihs rlosiag price on Movember
16, 2015, Wa ajsa Incurred feas of approxiinately $5,9 willlon for finantlal sdvisory, Tagal, sccounting, due
dillgenca, valuation and other various serv y o complate the ‘Thesa feos peneed in
2018 and are included [ selfing, general and agminlatraiive oxpenses.

Tylar has performed a prellminary valuation analysis of the falr market valus of NWS* assats and [abilllies, Tha

following table |2ex the allecatlon «f tha prellminary purchasa prics as of the sequietion date,
Cash § raAas
Artbints réetdunbls azeas
Dthar euirmid susads 2371
Propery and equipment do,E72
IdfentEfiable intangible sussts ZEABIA
Goedudtl 827,618
st payabh 11,383}
Aettued erpenses 17,282}
Dafarred imyanua 163,088}
Referred tan lsbsllities, net {104,483}
Toln) cang doralion $718813
[} £l with thiy 4 i ired total langible assels af §70.1 mililan and pssumed NahRitisa of

#pproximately $6 1.8 milllon, We racarded gocdwil of $52208 milllan, none of which I3 sxpacled to bu daductibls
for tax purpoes, snd olhier Inlangible asets of apptosl niately $264.8 million. Approxmately $261.1 millen of
‘intanylEsle avsais I attribubehibe to eustomer relalionships, acquired software and trade nama and wil e ztworlized
over awalghted averaga perfed of mpproximetely 11 years. Alsa Included in other ltangibles is en asset for
appriciniately $3.7 millan do reflect the fabr votus af exdsting fesse agreemenis, and {his Intangiblewtll be
amorflzed over the welghted average life of these | by 4 years and raducas dther
Incoma. In ediition, we recondad daferred tax Habilltias of $104.5 milllon ralated to estimated fair valuz aliocations,
Wa belleve this Lransaciion wilk bresdan our courls and |uslice software solutions and will creste a unlqua and-te-
-and enterpelss criminat |wstice solutlon. We belleva thel (ikaty market participants for ihis transaction would be
antities with a presence i the judiclal and publlc snfuty markets, Therefora, the gecdwill of $527.6 midloo arlsing
fromtils mequlsition s pamarily atirisuted to ousr abil iy to Jntegrate NWS salutlons with out axlstlng oritcdio and
genarsle Incresssd iwvanoes, earnings and cash flave As of Oecember 31, 2015, the purchasa prica allecation: for
NWS1s not yet complete, The pefiminary estimates of far valug azsumed at the acquisition dete for intangibla
aspaby, rattlvabing ead deferred dovenua and rolaled defoered faxes arm subject i change as valuslisns are finalizzd,
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Notes te Gengolidated Financial Stalements Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemants

(8} Praparty and Eqolpmen, et
Preperty and enuipment, net conisty of the following o Decomber 31

The fullewing filedd pro forma fon of th i resuils of cperations have been prepased ay f the
NWS acquisition had oecumred ot January 1, 2014, after gldng effech lo cartaln ad]uelments, Saeluding amertization el Lgs
of Intangiblay, Intarsat, transaction costs And tax effects, Tha pro fouma tesults of operallans include compenaatian  (vadrat 015 2014
eosts of $16.3 mitlien and $36.0 milllen In 2015 and 2014, respectively, for cartain NWS execidlves whase Land —— PR T
employment terminated at th data of acquisitien, ~ . )
Building and lszsehiold mprovements 3 kLAY 51,309
Pro famma 1 not il thet are not naterial ta our resulta of aperations. Computte: equipmiont nd puichasad saftirare: ] AT 243 34,058
6 pro forma does nal purperd bo eap M what out rasuite of operations scivzlly would heve besn had Fursitura are fittures B 1o kG 382
;:fr:il;dh:mcllum or evaut oceamed on The dates specified, or Yo praject our results of speratlens lor any futuea Danspenation equlpment 5 e [
’ T 105,168
AU #8243
For e yesvs Endrd Bucarmter 31, 2008 2011 Eraperty and shuiprbent, net el S §5a10
Reeniias i $690.071
Mt income [SPLVN 44,438 Depeaciation eapense waa $9,1 million duving 2015, 2.9 milllon durirg 2014, #nd $6.4 million durlng 2013,
Basle easlings per commn shire 167 128 We gwn office bulldings in Bangor and Yamiouti, Maine; LubbaeX ahd Plaio, Tekas; Toey, Michigah; and Morine,
Dilgtad exmings pee comman share iP5l 118 116 W loasa some space In thesd bulldings te lbird-giutty tenants. These ledses explre batwmen 2016 and 2025
and are expected fo provide rental Income of §1.7 mlliton duripg 2016, $1.6 killlon during 2017,
$%.6 milion during 2618, $1.5 mlillon dwing 2089, $1.3 milllen during 2020, and $6.6 millon; therezfler,
On Way 29, 2015, we scquired all of the caplisl stock af Beated Technalogy Gorporation {"Bréaes™, whish provides Rental tncome from third-party tanants was $213,000 In 2015, $945,000 In 2014, and $704,004 In 2013,
mabile hand held solatlons pmarily to dow entorsement agencies for flald eccident reparting and elesironlealty
Iasulpg oitatfons The purchase price, nel of eash sequires of $312,000 and jachuding dobt assumed of $733,000, _
Yotz $4.1 million Imeash and 12,500 shares of Tyler corumor: stock valued at $1.6 miliien. As # /2sull, we acquired (AIEn?dwlll !‘“Id Diher Inkangible Assals
total tangible assets of approimately $2.1 miillon and assumed llabities of approximately $2.6 miBlon, Wa liava Gthor acels and related Ists of the fallawing st Dacember 31:
racorded total gaodwill ol 2pproximately $1.% milllo, alk of which Is cxpeatad ta ha deductibla for tax purposss,
and ather [ntangible assets of approximately $6.2 milkldn, The $6.2 million of Intengltle assels Is atributabla o
customer relatienships, atquived sslware and irade mante 2nd wiil be amortized over a waighled cveregs pered of 2013 2014
appridtiately lem years. Tir0sa eaiylngl BIOUM oF BEOMIN I Inlangibles: N
The operating results of NWS gud Brazas are Inchuded with the nperating resudts of tho Entarpriss Boftwara Lunlomes reluicd intemgitlca MRAT §61,325
Salutions sagment sinea thelr datas of sequisition, Revanuea fraln MWS fnzluded In 2015 restlts of sperations Acninired soltwars 120000 45,103

totaled approsinataly $10,0 milllom and met Incsime was not significant. Our balance sheet as of Decamber 31,

Trade neme FLETLY £33
2018, reflects the elfacatlen of the purchase price to the pisets scqulred based on thelf falv value at the date of [P— e ta -
i Tho falrvalue of the assets and Irabilties setuleed are based on valuzlions using Level 11§, - -
Inputs that vra supparted by ((itle o tio marked activity and thal are significant to the falr vatue ol R .75
ihig ausels pr |lablfltles, Actunulalad amerizstlon PN (€3,0871

Tata Inlangibles, nel
2014 e sme—

On August 29, 2014, wa acqulred all of 14 caplfal stock of SuftGade, Ine, {*SufiCuda"), which develops ard selis
vl procast management sofivare, fypically kv county sharitl dopartments, Tha purchess prics, net of cash Total amartzaty for Intangibl 10.9 million in 2018, $6.2 mil

i o 70 s 33,8 o Inagh, of wich $325,000 e et ol Dacaor 31, 0024 oo dn“:‘;rgzml lon expense for imtangibles was $10.3 million in 2018, $6.4 millien It 2014, and $6.,8 mifiion
16,540 shares of Tylur commen shoch valnad Al $1.5 nilllan, based on e stock prie on the acauidltion date.

i
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Nates to Consalidated Financlal S4atementa

The alfocat] I ibla asaets ks it the leliowing lable;
Docember 31, 2015 December 31, 2054
Weighled Wlghtart
Gtisg Averigd Gross Auerage
Camrying Cagying A |
Angunk Teriad Amadiznilan At Period Amonizglion
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Notes to Consolidated Financial S{alemaats

{EhAesrued Liabiitlas
Ascrued lnbllities consist of tha ollowing al Decembar 1

Noramarilzable Intang bes:

2015 2014
]
Actriad wages, bonusea antk comminsiom. L2000 $30,977
Qe Bccrued liabilities 13,150 a1
0% L $3%,508

Goathwil wBIA AL = 124,142 . -
Sarwrllzable Lnfanpfhtes:
Custonvar refetad Intengibles 12,93 3o 64,326 16y 3,194
Aequirell soflvare tretat Frans 3303 Spen 20,441
Tady nana ey Tier. 4331 16 yaars 1402
basses shaulied Bl LI w - a -

The changes Tn the eamying amvaunt of goodwill for the two years ended Decembar 31, 2015 are as follaws:

Tnterphse  Apprdisal aad Tre
Soflware  Boflwr: Sofuligny

Salufens FLL Talal
il
Bafartan aa af Decamher 31, 2013 3114854 34,567 12011
Goodwill acqubed during 2014 aslalsd to the pwchase of Sefilode 3.l - 3,131
Balanca g of Bacamber 35, 2014 117,585 6,557 124,142
Guodwill scquived during 2015 aelatad o the purchase of NS 54414 . P t2r 0
Goodwill scquired durlng 2016 releted ta The purchase of Bietos L - 109
Balgnce pa of Lecarnbar 31, 2015 6" W% $6,507 & TS

Estlmaitd snual amortization expense relating Lo acquired jeases will ke recorded s a redutlian b stiier Income
and Is expected {0 ba $444,000 In 2016, $444,000 in 2017, $426,000 Tn 2013, $372,0001n 2019, $315,000
In 2020 and $1.7 milllan thereafter, Estimated aanual smortization expansa relating ta scquistian intengibles,
Including acqired sottwera, for which i amortization axpenas I3 recordad as cayt of ravanugs, ot tha next fve
years is a5 follows:

7014 435,182
o 38,204
L8 33,828
g 32,100
202a 30.804

24 Bhe Tekorhs 945 viond Riprrs

G Revoiving Line of Cradit

On Newember 16, 2015, wo entered Inta 2 $300.0 mlllen Credit Agreement the *Credit Facility™ with the vardous
letders party themio and Wells Fasge Bank, Ratlenal Atsaclation, as Adminizfrative Azant, The Sredit Farilly
prodides for q revalving cradit llna up to $300.0 millfan, Incleding 2 $10.0 millkoh sblimi fot jetters of redll. The

Credit Faciiity mat M ber 16, 2020, undef the Gredit Facility may ba used for general
varporate purpesas, lneluding working capitel requi 1 lons and sh hi

Barrowings under the: Credit Fackilty baar Intarest et arata of elther {1) Wells Fargo Bank's prima jale {subject b
cetlaln higher rate delerminatians) slis & masgin of 0.25% la 1.00% of [2) the 30, &0, 98 or 180 day LIBOR rala
Blus & argn of 1,26% 10 2.00%. k& of Decembes 33, 2046, our Iittaresd thte ws 1.6%, Tha Credit Facility I3
secusad by suastantisliy 1l of our 2sset, The Gradit Facliity requires us te malntaln certaln tnancla) ratlos and
giher financhal conditfons and prehiblts us fmm making certaln Investments, advariezs, cash dividends of [éans, and

Ninslt i and [lens, Ay of lanr 81, 2015, wensea |0 compllance with
Xhose covenants,

As of Decomber 31, 2015, we had §66,0 milion In outstanding borowings and unused borowing capaclty of
$234.0 milllon undar tha Cradit Faciily, |1 addlllon, as of Dacember 31, 201%, we had an cutstanding $1.6
wnllliort baiter of credit in faver 3f anaof our cllents, Tha letter of credit puwantees qur paformance under a saffwarg

tontract and eipires In 2016,
e patd Interest of 5223,000 In 2015,

{7HIncoime Tax
Thaincoma bax proviston [benefh) an Incoma frusm operalions consists af the followhng:

Yaus uwfod Decembes 31, 2015 2014 2013
fhrmanks

Fedeqal A4 $34.504 25,628

Slats A 4877 2%

R IALH 38,33 28,258

Defeniad Turm {3,804 1487

bt S Nﬁ,ﬁ?
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Nales to Consolldated Financial Slatements

Reconetliation of the U.S. siatutary Inceane tax rata twour efthetive Ineame 1ax axgonsé wrta for opsrations follow:

Years nchd D arvber 31, 015 2014 2013
Federsl Ingobte 145 enpense al statolory rate RILX ) $33.064 323,097
4tetz Ingpma fa, ned of dedaral b tax bensl 8 M 2,867 2,31
Nondadugtible bushans mepgiisoy tomal- 1485 1110
Qualied manuiacluring acihilfas. e [L,72m .
Oiher, nat Ll tied) 200
$45 {3 S_JMJ izs{:’lﬂ

The tax effects of the major Hems recopdad ap daferred Lax asgets and Habillties as of Decambar 31 s

2015 7014

S
Baferred incam fax ascats:

Dpmadreg expenses ind curtently dedueliblp voENy "% 900m
Staek eptlon end dther amplayoe benolt ptans 13 W 3,318
Caplia] Josa and erach camyonaed P L wmr
Prapasly pd equlpment v 45
“Tolal daferredt Incoms tax assets aAEs; 13,121

Determad (rncoma ki Yabllites;

Intangibis acsaly QIR {13,4216)
Pripbety ahd i lpment [t #1] —
Qthar s 209)

Tola| deforred Inrame tax [fab% Hes Tl kitd; 03,52n
Hol datarrad Incoriva bex {Hiabilil) sssm » (&4 C2) $ 5504
et rre
In 2014, we utilizxd appraximetely $5650,004 of nat eperating lass canyforvitds Jor fedéral income tax reporting
purpeses, The fifl amont of Bha net otfilzed was 1o excess tax henallts ralated to shere-
hased tor which tathva guidarics prehialted the racaghition of a delerred bt asset n 2013, In

2014, 1hiz tox banaift was secounted for o3 an ikcreose'te sharetclders' equity 2ad a feductlar In Income tax
payable, In tolal, we reccgnized approximately $45,3 millton snd $16.4 million of excess tax bensdily xlated (o
Shere-based sranyements In 2016 and 2014, resy I, 43 # ¢racit o sharsholdars’ equity and 2 mduction In
Income tazes payable,

Althaugh reallzation Is ek asaurad, wa befieve it |s mors likaly than not thal all the defarsad tax assats at Dacember
31, 2015 and 2014 il be realized, Accordingly, we belleva novaluation alfowance s required for the deferred fax
nssels, However, tha amount of the defemed tax assef gonslderad reallzable could i sdusted In tha haura if
natimatea of reversing Wosble turmpavary dithctonces am fevisad.

The Mtesnal Reverue Service {*|RS"} s examining our 0,5, Inoare tax roturn 1o¢ the yasr 200 2, In pddition, thers
Ta ona apon slata sudit for tha year 2011, As of Februmy 22, 2016, 10 eignHicent adjustmants have been proposad
By the IR, We aie unabil to maka & reascnable extimate 5 to when cash setllemonts, IF any, will cecyr.

o o subleet ko 1.8 fadcral {ax o3 wall 89 Invkome tax of mirtiple dtate and local Jurisdictions. We 2re ne Jongar
subfect to United States federal Income fax examinallons for yexs befors 2012, We are w longer subjeot lc state
and toeal Income Yax exurninations by tax autherities for \ha yoary before 2011,

A i Terlbphn S v et

Noles ta Consolidaled Fitancial Statements

We pald [neore Lates, nst of refunds raceived, of $27.3 million In 2015, $19.2 miltion in 2014, and $4.3 milllon
in 2013,

{8) Shargliolders Byrity
“Tné tollawing table dbtails actidty n our common stotk:

“ears anded Decamber 3],

2015 2014 2013
Shares Amaunl Shates  Amguni Elmie:  Amount
Stoch apifon sxerelsss L1 A%k 853 ¥ 680 LA4: 518,209
Purchieses of common stock - A 204y {2610 - -
Employes stock plan purchases L w7 =] 4144 B4 a4z
Shawy Tsspag for aequiatiiong FA T RS # 17 1413 — o

Subsequent ko December 31, 2016 and Iewgh February 22, 2018, wa raparchased 241,000 shares for an
egrogale purchesa prica of $31.3 milllon, As of Fabmuary 22, 2016, we had authorlzation frem oor board of
directary 10 repurchaze up to L2 million, addNlonal sharas of eur common stack,

£9) Shave-Based Compensation
Share-83sed Cempersallon Plan

Wabave o stock option plan that provides for the grant of stogk options to key employees, directary and
Ron-emiploy I $hock wpth by vast after Wiras 1o sboyears of contnuous sarvice fram the data
ol grang and have a contractual term of 10 years, Once optlons beeome exersisable, the smplayes £an purchass
shares of qur cemmon steck at the Matket pices e the dota wa granted the option. We accounl for shire-based
campensatlon ofillzing tha falr value meognition purevant ta ASG 718, Stock Campanttion.

A5 of December 31, 2014, thers were 9,7 milllian shares avaliable for fubiza grants unday ihs plan from the 208
milllon shares p dppreed by thy

Determindng Fal- Yalue of S1eck Cumpensation

Valuatfon nd Amordization Mithod. We estimats tha alr value of shars-hased avrards granted veing tha Blagk-
Scholes option vatuston model, W amoitize the i value of all awards on a sraighidina basls wver the requisila
setvica parlods, which are generally the vesting periods.

Enpacted Life. The eapagied life of ds granted the perlad of time that they 2t spected t ke

g The axpected fife the welghted-avetage perlod the slaek optlons are expected tn ba
eutsianding hased primaly on Lhe npiions! vesting tarms, remain life:and the employess’ expected
exerclse based on historleal prtteras.

Enpected VolaliTily. Uslng tha Black-§ohotes btitn walitation model, we sstimate the volatllity of i cormmon stock
a1 the date of grant hased on the historieal volatlity of our common stock.

Risk-Frge Interest f{ale. We ks tha risk-fres Intarest raba Usedl in the Black-Schales optlon valuation medel on the
Implled yield cuergatly avallable on L5, Tressury raro-copen Issees with an equivalent remaining l2rm squal to the
axpeetad |ifa of tha award,

Expacted Dividand Yield. We hxa not palc any cash dividends on cur common stéck in more than tan yaers and wy
o et antlclpals paying any tash divldesds Jm the foresesahla future. Consatuently, wa ave en expectad dividend
yinld ot zera In the Black-Scheles aption valyitian medal,
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Neles to Conselldaled Financlal Statements

Expecied Forlaktwree, Wo use historien data to estimate pre-vesting optian forfeltures, We record shivesbased
compznsallon hiy for those avwards et ars sxpeetad b vest.

The follawing welghtod average astumptions wete usad fo) optiona grantas

¥ #y endedd Decamber 31, 42.0.15 2014 2013
Expectsd Iite fin year] ah 3] 6.4
Exgerted volulility R L XL a24%
Rlskedrae intares eato Ih 3 1% 14%
Eupached Farfeltura uate a1, 0% 0%

Tha folfowing tabl hare-based

[ the statermenta of comprehansive lncome:

aipanse télated to share-based awards which Is recorded

Yeors endind Décomes 31, 2o1g 2014 2013
Cost of solty W $aske 32077 §1,500
Selfing, gareral and adminisirotive expenzes i 1Y 12,642 10,144
Totdl shishared ctmpensatinn axpences w3 14,619 11,853
Tgx beasfit Vo MG 4,231 (3363
Hut dactases in net Encomns 2hi9G  $1088:  4E290

T8 Xelasleirr ) Al pen

Moles 1o Consolidated Financlal Stalements

Steck Optian Activity
Lpions grantad, erarzlaad, turtaitad 3na Atplred wre Eumimarized a3 follovs:

Faghted
Aterags
hemaining
Welghied tontrms lodd
Humist of Inerage Txemire Lite Aparegale
Shuey Fin i'feara) Inlrinse: Vabie

Oulataraffng ol Decembir 31, 2002 B7il 32086

Grntad 1483 67,08

Exarghod 11443} 12.68

Foeteited [o}] 6617
Outstanding al Dacernber 31, 2613 B.J20 34.66

Drapded 678 94.15

Encrcbsod (855 w7

Forfaltad 131 T4
Dutstanding at Tucambar 31, 2014 E.537 44,51

Guaning ) #45: tan

Exapelasd 1R Fia] A

Forfeliey el Lot
Outstanding st Deceniler 31, 2015 ot B v
Exsaefsabla at Decembar 31, 3015 = B Lubpy & B2

o had unvestad uplions b purshasa 3.1 million sheres with 4 welghted weerage grank dala exerciss price of
$78.56 35 of Decamnber 31, 2015 and unvésted oplions to purchase 3,3 million sharas with awalghted average
ank dale exercise prico of $56,81 #a of Dacember 31, 2014, A3 of Decsinbar 31, 2015, we had $65.8 millien
0F tota) unvassgnlsod compuitsation eest related to unvastad aptions, ml of expectad Farfeitures, which ls expaclad
1 be amartized over a weighted aversge smartlzition paried of 3.4 years,

Cilier information pavtsining to eption attidiy waz s foflows during the twelve montis endad Becamter 91:

2015 0i4 2013
Walghtad pveraze pant-date fair value of slock oplizns grsntad byt $ a3z § 2
Total $ntrinsiz valum of steek sptstins xerclusd atadd 69768 99,39

Employee Staeh Pyrchase Plan

Undor our Emplayan Stock Pluchze Plan ("ESPP") paticipants may corirlbuls upta 16% of thelr amwal
tompansation o purchase comman shazes of Tyler, The purahase price of the shes [+ aruat to B5% of the
ciosing prica of Tler shares on the isat day of rach quasterly elfering peried. As of Decembar 31, 2015, there
ware 839,000 shares avallable for luture grants under the ESFP fram the 2.0 million shares previsusly approvad
byt the stockhoiders,

Snr iy 2085 Bt K1



Notzs le Cansalidated Finzncial St

(19 Earnlngs Per Shars
Basle eamings and dllutad earnlngs per share data wore compata] a3 tollows:
Yeans ended Bicamber 31, 4015 2014 2013
Nunersiot foe bl ond dlited sermings pet sherer o

Net hiriome Ao dhi § 36,840 $ 35,101
Dwnomineien -

Welghted- ig COMION shores FLAE 33,014 33,8231

Assyrned conrersion of difutlen sapuriflese
Stock upifans o 2490 2,699

e e e ne s
Easatngs pe commen shark
Bl SR o1m 4 i

23
Cilutend - Y] 3 &8 LR E]
—— —

§tock optlans reprasanting tha right o parchasa common stock of 417,000 shages In 2015, 48),004 shares I
2014, d 62,000 shatas In 2013 wara not Included In the somputatisn of diluted 2armings par shais becausa 15elr
Inglyslon would [reve had an anti-gliuthu sHect.

{17 Leasea

We sazs office lacllities for vae In our operations, aa well a4 lrensportation, compuler and othor squipmant, Wa slga
heves am offico facilty ks agreenent with an nlity owned by an executives fathar and hrether, Tha executive doss
not fyarve an interest in tha antity that leases the property o us and the lase arvangement existed at the time wa
aedulted the basiness unlt that occuples this prapasty, Mest of our lerses aie nan-cancefehly opdrating nase
dgronmarts and they ettpire st varlays dates thiough 2022, [n addithn Lo rent, the leases generally res Uire bs 1 pey
{ewas, mainlenance, Insurancs and certaln alhar apeeating expenses.

Rent expenss was approaimately $2.2 talition in 2015, $6.7 miltion in 2014, and $7.5 milllen {n 2013, which
Included rend expease assaclated with relatad party lease agreements of $1.6 milllen In 2016, $1.7 milicn In
24, and £1.7 mifkion In 2013,

Fuure minimum lesze umder alf Jenses ol 31, 2015 210 a2 follows:

eald prcleg Decembar 1,

216 § 8912
207 8,280
20l 3,845
2019 13904
2020 3ose
Themattes 2323

04,454

Inchaded in Tease paymusls g n lable payrients due fo related parties of 51,9 milkion jn
2014, $1.9 milllon in 2017 and 514,000 [n 2018,

RP e Kakertegbud 203 vl hegwr

Notes to Censolldated Financial Stalements

{12) Emplaysa Benef Plans

o pravide & dufined conlribution plar for the majorlty of our empdeyees mesting minimum carvles requitements.
The employees oan contribute ap o 30% of thelr current compgngsiton o the plan xubjact to certin siatutery
liemi e contribula up b 6 matioum of 3% of 2n emplopes’s compensation te the plan. Wa meds
contrbulitns to tha plan and chirgsd sacating results $8.3 milllen during 2018, $4.3 million duting 2014, and
$3.8 mili{on duriag 2013.

{13} Gamimitienis and Gontingencles
Other iran roatine Nitlgatian Incldental Yo our busliess, isve are no mokerial Iega) procsediaga panding o which we
w2 pacty or ta whieh any of aur propertins ave sebject,

{14 Segrnent and dtetaled Infomnasion
Wa ere a major provider of b i
fosus on tecal and state governments,

solutians and sirylees for 1he public secter, with a

W provide aur softwars systems and services snd appralasl services Birugh feur business yalts, which focus on tha
fallowing products;

¥ Tirancial dycation and plannirg, regul and mal software salullaps;

» flaanclal Ieipal conerty, wnd |and and vital software solutions:
* courts and Justica and public gafety software sclutlons; ang

» appraloal and tax sofiware splutions and property anpralsal services,

in aceordance with ASG 280-10, Segmeat Reportlng, the fi dutalion and planning,

and malntenance soffware salulions unty Ananelal managamant, munleipal oourts and land and vital 1acarda
managarment softwan 4ofutTon unlt) and the courts and justice and publia safuty woftwerg Yolulicme unlt meet the
eriterla for nggregation and are presented En one reporlably segntant, Enterprise Software Sclutlons. ["ESS"), The
ESS ssgment pavides munlelpal and cousty gvernmants nd scheals with softwara systams and garvlcas 1o maat
thelr i and neads for mission-critical "hack-offfca” functlons such as financlal
manpgement and courts and fystics and pusiilc safety procasses, The Appraisel and Tex Sofiware Solutlons and
Services {"ATSS") segmenl provides systems ahd softwze that automate the apprabal and asseasmont of real and
petsonad proporty a3 well as property appalsal culsaorelng servicas for local Levarnments snd taxing avlhoriles,
Property appralsal entsourelng tervizes Inclade) the physical | of ial and resiiential propariles;
data callecton and pwdessing) compltor analysls for property valuation; preparatisn af {aurells; Soromunity
educations and arbtration betwesn taxpayers and fhe assessing [urisdiction,

Wa ayalualg parformanca based ¢n several Irctars, of which the pridsary (narsclal messiice Is business sagrment
operaling Income. Wa defing segrant aperaling Inconse for vur busiioss unite es fcame befare noncash
of |

F=sels laled with thefr acqul intesest expansa and |noome bauies. Sogmant
operating | neorte (neludes ink fons, The majodly of pony tons ralate by cantricts
Iiwolving more than ene unit ard zre vakid hasatl of the conleacima| prrangantant. Segment aparating lncoimd for

rimarly cobslsis of comp ¢ols for th it tean andl eedaln lag end

adminlstrathe Bl and shisfe-based compensation expange for the enlre company, Corporzle segment operating
incorne alsn ingllides reveniues and expenses vatalad o 2 compeng-wide ser eonference, The aecauting palitles of
the repqrieble sspments ara the sama a3 thas desetibed [a Note 2, "Summaty oF Significant Aceounting Palicies™

Sgment assets Inchuda net accounts raceivable, prepald axpenass end ofber cument aesets and nat praporty and
tangibl with

equipment, Gorgorate eseets canatst of eagh and [ prepald | , |
ecquisitlons, dofarmed Income taxes and ret proprerty and equi nalnly rukated te unall ‘formation and
technology assels.

ESS sngment capllal expsndlitures 2003 Included $19,6 miblian for ihe crnstriction of & new building and
purchase of an existing bullding and land.
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Notles to Conselidated Financlal $tatements

Enleprke  Appesinel ond T
Geftwae  Soltwara Soluiiony
Ag of the yem ended Deewmber 31, 2015 ﬂﬁ'a:.m 2l Ret /ey Cmﬂle Totals
Revenuss
Eaftwore Heenees and ryallies U STl B & HORR
Eubosriptfany Wt R3-20] Aty
Boltuard strvivds [rN g hFy - 11l X 13
Malntenanca SR8 [YR 18 - W
Appraleal sanviges. P BN _ s
Hatdwarn gnd alhor 169 "’ el 47
nlucompary st - a0 -
Tomat yenues. IR [2IF L ndl 1 H0R
Dupreciatian 4nd amarifzaion expense b haz b HYs ] 290 A aThe
‘Sagmeat operating Inesmne LI AL LIy b LI L TR -
CepHal experidiluren 3wl 4 J a uM
Sugmeni sy ARt LH S sLHES N %
Ewierprie Appwdial nnd Tas
Sullwars  Solluars Soludons
A of the year ended Drreraber 31, 2014 Selnbuns it Srvicas Cargatnts Takils
Revenues
Saftware lloenses o lowvibizg 3 45,047 5 1018 H - $ 49,085
Subscriptions B4,322 5.E26 — B7,B48
Software rervices 104,145 9,675 - 113821
M elntenanca 185,B41 16815 - 212,856
Appiatd saryces s 21,802 e 21,807
Harcwesrs and olher E393 11 2460 1,869
I 2,812 — 12,812} —
Tetul ravenues §4a8.50¢ § 84,057 5 w3 § 493,101
Depiacinten and Mmorifzation sipensa ¥ 1,140 LI ) $ 393 § 14,505
Acpment apeting Incowe F14.98) 311,603 $125370) $101,226
Capital sapengitured $ a5u § aso & Eae § o440
Segment atsats $120,359 516463 F30z900 $E03BI2

Metes to Consolidated Finangial St ts

Entepnse  Appraisal any] Tax
Scheare Sollwars Solfpus

As of 1he yoar saded Begember 31, 2003 Soluliong mnd Serpces Commaie Totaly
Revenues

Scdtwarn (icenies ond reymiien $ 98,774 3 2067 A - § a0

Bubasriptiom Br.ova 2,794 —_ 61,064

Balbuyrs senvions 85,459 7,808 B 83,257

Malib:ndaica 175,180 14,540 P 181,220

Appralsal sendezs - 20,625 & 20,825

Hardwazw gnd other Gr2 — L784 8126

Antercampany 2,839 - 2,508) —
Totaf ravaniies $367, 724 350,034 ¥ {1,115} § 116843
Depresiativn wid smarlealie sunse 3 10,568 $ 1028 § &bz $ 13,766
Brgrent oparsiing lncoms: $ B5.045 3 0408 $130,750) $ 733
Capial aspendfures. § 22437 ¥ %0 5 3428 $ 20,145
Segmenl aspels $161,923 $16.244 4265321 $ 244,488
insome ls mrcu;rn.;:m;\s g 1 2né 21
Totel eagrmaatt oparating iems $101,228 s e
Amixlizallan o acquired cofiwars. .38 2,078
Adtorlization of custamer znd Lrede nama ktungibles © L Dupr 4,546) “s1n
Dihar knenma (epentsd, net £ 1335) 11,399
Aneme befors Inorn Lixk LI 3 94,457 $65,4L0
{15} husrtaly Financtal Taformation {unzudited)
The following tabls contalns selectsd {inancia) from of incama for each quarter of
2018 and 2014,

2015 2014

Buarlars oasiod Dec.difa)  Bepl.30  June30 ddar, 3] s8]  S4L30  funed0. Mo 3l
Trwvcues FLRT0R 1aM08% RdMERa P H7.40 £128.66¢ 3124371 §112.626
andzs profit g b2 R L 60431 61792  EH3E8  £3,530
Incoms hekxe Income Lixes LB 41714 it A 4J80 268% 23406 19,608
Met Fnetans 1 b bt 138050 FrFAY 1A 37,000 14740 11,883
Enrnogs par gliuead shia o kg L &5 LR X5 0.48 0.52 033
et el A dLdt 500 AR 96661 Saes  IRISL 3800

(a} Operating resuits for the thrae menths ended Decamber 31, 2016, Inckide $5.5 millish for financial advisony,

lagal, sseatnting, dua dillgonca, valuation and other services nacassary to complete e NWS agquisition as well es
$3.8 milllen i ol tated ta NWS acqulsitl

4 {Hy Kebreepid J11 iowl s




Performance Graph

The following table compares total Shareholder returns for Tyler over the last five years to the Standard and Poor's
500 Stock Index and the Standard and Poor's 600 Information Technology Index assuming a $100 investment made
on December 31, 2010. Each of the three measures of cumulative total return assumes reinvestment of dividencs.
The stock performance shown on the graph below is not necessarily indicative of future price performance.

COMPARISON GF CUMULATIVE FIVE YEAR TOTAL RETURN

$900
$800 £
reeif=  Tyler Technologies, Inc.
(e S&P 500 Stack Index
$700 . 'O' « B&P 600 Informatlon Technolegy Index /
$600
$500
$400
$300
$200
$100 -
30
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
i 100 146,04 233.33 491.95 527,17 830.69
mefBem 100 102,11 11845 156.82 178.29 180,75
weder 100 95.98 107.52 155.80 178,51 184.72
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STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION
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REQUISITION

RQIT17006003 23/JAN/2017

VENDOR: REQUISITIONER:
TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC IT DEPARTMENT CF INFORMATIONM TECH
12 GOOSE LN 240 OLD COQUNTRY ROAD
§TH FLOOR
TOLLAND CT 06084-0000 MINEOLA NY 11501
S, BARNETT/MARK MACARTHUR({1-2771)
TEL: (800)273-8605 TEL: {516)571-2233
FAX: (B60)872-9526 FAX:{516)571-3918
ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY U/M UNIT COST TOTAL
001 92045 1.00 EA 517,155.0000 517,155.00
COMPUTER SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE/SUPBORT
2016 IAS MATNTENACE RENEWAL 1/1/2016~12/31/2016 $278B,615.00
2016 ADAPT MATNTENAMNCE RENEWAL 1/1/2016-12/31/2016 4218,540.00
ADAPT MATNTENANCE:

TAX BILLING & COLLECTION $517,155.00

DELINQUENT TAX

APPEALS MANAGEMENT

EDMS INTERFACE (IDOC)

INCLUDES: UPGRADES, NEW ENHANCEMENT RELEASES, HOT BUG FIXESE/PATCHES
MON-FRI $:00 AM - 5:00 PM TOLL FREE TELEPHONE SUPPORT,
USER GROUP

ESTIMATED TOTAL: 517,155.4090



RQIT17 000003 23/T8/2017
VENDOR ¢
TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC
12 GOOSE LN

TOLLAND cr 06084-0000

TEL: (800} 273-B505
FAX: (860)872-9526

REQUISITION

REQUISTTIONER:

IT DEPARTMENT OF TINFORMATION TECH
240 OLD COUNTRY ROAD

6TH FLOOR

MINEOLA NY 11501
S.BARNETT/MARK MACARTHUR(1-2771)
TEL: (516)571-2233

FAX:(516)571-3918



REQUISITION

RQIT17000005 23 /JAN/2017

VENDOR : REQUISITIONER ; ¥
TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC T DEPARTMENT OF INFORMAWTION TECH
12 GODSE LN 240 OLD COUNTRY ROAD
6TH FLOOR
TOLLAND CT 06084-0000 MINEOLA NY 11501
P.LABAS/MARY MAHONEY(1-3519)
TEL: (800} 273~-8605 TEL: (516)571-3519
FAX: (860} 872-9526 FAXY:{516)571-3918
ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY WH UNIT COST TOTAL
001 920-45 1.00 EX 537,840.0000 537,840.00

COMPUTER SOFIWARE MAINTENANCE/SUPFPORT
2017 IAS MAINTENANCE RENEWAL 1/1/2017-12/31/2017
2017 ADAPT MAINTENANCE RENEWAL 1/1/2017-12/31/2017
ADAPT MAINTENANCE t
TAX BILLING & COLLECTION
DELINQUENT TAX
APPEALS MANAGEMENT
EDME INTERFACE (IDOC)

$289,760.00
$248, 080,00

$537,840,.00

TNCLUDES: UPGRADES, NEW ENHANCEMENT RELEASES, HOT BUG FIXES/PATCHES
MON-FRI 8:00 AM - 5:00 PM TOLL FREE TELEPHONE SUPRORT,

USER GROUR

ESTIMATED TOTAL: 537,840.00



REQUISITION

RQIT17000005 23/7AM/2017

VENDOR.: REQUISITIONER:
TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC pay DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION 'TECH
12 GOOSE LN 240 OLD COUNTRY ROAD
6TH FLOOR
TOLLAND CT 06084-0000 MINEOLA NY 11501
P.LABAS/MARY MAHONEY({1-3519)
TEL:! {B0D}273-8605 TEL; {516}571-3519

FAX: (860}872-9526 FAX: (516)571-3918
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e tyler
@66,@ '
@ tachnologles
K100 Miller-Yatentiete Courl
Wodlne, Giie 43334

PoBOOB00.2581
Fg3tEa Y

wwieiachapny

January 8, 2015

Ms. Mary Mahoney

Nassau County IT Departmént

240 Old CountryRead .
Mineala, N¥ 11501 ‘

Rei 2015 lasworld Sola Souree

Dear Ms, Mahaoney:

Tyler Techiologies” tsWaild system fs 2 highly specialized coinputter software solution’ that
contalns software coding, processes and trade secrots that are proprietary 1o Tyler Techiologles,
Tyler staif has performad all of the laswaorld systern implementations, and no other company'fs
suthorizéd t provide elther thase services or the ongolng product support,

Also, as part of Nassau County's ongeing tasWorld 3tipport contract, the County Js sntltfed to
recelve upddtes, néw releades gnd t\}'ar‘r‘anty Tixes, that ranonly be supplied by Tyler: Therefore,
Tylerls the only véndor with the necessary knowlédge, skills and authatity to provide the wsWorld
support services to Nassau County.

If.1 can B of further asslstance or if you have any questions, | can be reached at 1-800-800-2581

ext, 1924 or yvia emal-at gus.tenhundfeld@tylertach.com.  Thank you. for your continued
canfidente and sufiport of Tyler Technologies.

Stceraly,

e |
GUS Tedthundfeld
inside Sajes Manager




PURCHASE ORDER[SERVICE CONTRACT

‘County of Nassau
STATE OF NEWYORK

OFFICE OF PURCHASING

Deliver ] [_j T)CJ
To:  DEPARTMENT OF INTORMATION FECHNOLOGY Purchase Order No,yormisacot.

240 OLD COUNTRY ROAD P.O. Dateruav/a01s U\yi i LET s -

§TH FLOOR -

MINEOLA By 11501 FOBhesr ™ ]

( O dat g Us

Vendor'#'rsaaazszn Delivery Datgi oy, 15

TYLER TECENOLOGIES, ING

12 GOOSE IN Buyertmoa ., mIimLs

} TEL: 516 571 43200

TOLLAND CT 06084-0000

ATT4 PAUL FLYNN
TEL; 800 273 8605
FAX: 850 673 9536

ltem . Description Cluantity Unit  Unit Price Armount

oL 920-43 1.00 Bh 483,315,0000 489,315,00
COMEUTER BOFTWARE MATNTENANCE/SUPPORT )

2015 TAS MAYMPENACE RENEWAL 1/1/3015-12/31/2015 $267,500.00
2015 ADART MATNTENANCE REMSWAL 1/1/2015-12/31/2015 §229,365.00
ADAPT MALNTENANCE RO EHENES =
PAY BILLENG & COLLECTION $497,265.00
DELINQUENT TAY ON-TTHE LPAY CREPIT: -§ 7,950,00
APPHEATS MANAGRMENT B S e
FIMS INTERFACE (IDOC) 4489 ,315.00

INCLUDES: UPGRADES, NEW ENHANCEMENT RELEASES, HOT BUG FIXES/PATCHES
NMON-FRI B:00 AM ~ 5100 BM TOLL FPRES TELEYHONE SUPRORT,
USFR GROUER

DLSCOUNT TERMS: 0% MET 30

TERMS:

CUTHE COUNTY 0¥ MASSAT [HEREINAFTER CALIFD THR GOUNTY) REPRESENTED BY
THE DIRECTOR, OFEFICE OF PURCHASING (HEFREINAFTER CALLED 'THE DIREC;EOR},
AND THE INDIVIDUAY;, RARTNENSHIF, JOTNT VENTUIE OR CORPORATION ‘NAMED
ABOVE {HEREINAFTER CALLED THE CONTRACTOR) MUTUALLY AGRRE TO PERFORM
THIS CONTEACT TN STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH THE GEMERAL FROVISIONS ATTACH-
ED {ERETO AND THE SDHEQIFICATIONS, NSRMS AND CORDITIONS CONTASNED HRRE-
TN,

T Y R IR L L e e e e S R L R LR L £
WORK 1O BE PERFORMED FOR:IT DHRAETMENT
240 OLD COUIRY RD
STH FLOCR
MINEOLA N. ¥,115¢1-
<< CONTINUED, NEXT DAGE >>
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Deliver
To:

PURGHASE ORDER/SERVICE CONTRACT

&) County of Nassau |

STATE OF NEW YORK

OF'FICE OF PURCHASING °

Vendor;

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY Purchase Order No.ro1T15600243

240 OLD COWNTRY ROAD Co- P.O. Datoymax/2015

STH TLOOR ‘ ‘ . .

MINEOLA MY 11501 FOBbaar

#752303920 Delivery Datgiuay, 15

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC

12 GOONE Ly Buyery wpa a, umze
TEL: B16 B71 4200

TOLLAND CT 06084-0000
ATY: PAUL FLYNN '
TEL: BOO 273 8505

¥AX: BE0 872 9534

Item Description Quantity Unit  Unlt Price

ADPICS

***ﬁ****!ﬁ***wk*'ﬂiw** ARNRWRTTENANRRTARNERE NN L RReh A AR hhr kR h AT

PRAYMENT: A CERTIFIED INVOICE, OR A COUNTY CLAIM FORM 70 WHILCH THE
INVOICE I8 AMTTACHED, SHALL BE SUBMITTED IN ARRTARS, DIRECTLY TO THER
USING AGENCY, SURPORTED BY VCUCHERS DIONAD BY AGENCY PERSQONNEL
ATURETING TO THRE SATTSFACTORY COMBLERION OF THH REQUIRED SERVICES AS
SPECIFIED.
LRI T "****VENDORCMIHCERTIFICATION*******"*"'
T¥ A CLAIM VOUCHER IS NOT BRING SURMITTED, THE FOLLOWING
CERTIFPICATION MUST APPBAR ON THE THVOICE:
I HREREBY CERTIFY THAT ALL ITEMS OR SERVICES WERE DELIVERED OR RENDERED .
Ag gEr FORTH IN THIS CLATM; THAT TIE PRICEE CBARGED ARE IN ACCORDANCE .
WITH THE RPFERVNCED PURCHASE ORDER, DELIVERY ORDER OF CONTRACT, THAT
THE CLAIM' IS JUST, TRUE AND CORRECT; THAT THE BALANCE STATED HEREIN 18
ACGTUALLY DU AND QWING AND HAS NOT BEEN PREVICUSLY CLATMED; THAT NO
TAXRS FROM WHICH THE COUNTY I8 EXWMRT ARE INCLUDED) ANT THAT ANY
AMOUNTS CLAIMED FOR DISBURSEMENTS HAVE ACTUALLY AN NECHSSARILY BEEN

MADE,
CIATMANT NAMS R
BY (SYGHATURE) TITLE

CLATIM VOUCHERS OR CERTIFIED INVOICES NOT PROFERLY COMPLETER WILh
BE RETURNED T0 YOU UNPALD. '
TR ANAA R T TN LR AR RN AR R AR A E N ENNF AR NN AR AR RN ETFAR AR R N b RN S d ok
]‘.ppsn&ix EE:
Egual Engloyment Cpportunities For Mivorities and Women
e 8 1 g o k1 9 4 8 B0 P 0 PO 0 81 11 1 g 1 e 8 A R B B8
The provistons of this Appandix ER ara hereby made a paxt of the
doaunant to which 1t is atbached, ,
<< CONTINUED, NEXY PAGE »>
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PURCHASE ORDER { SERVICE CONTRACT

¢ County of Nassau

STATE OF NEW YORK

OFFICE OF PURCHASING

-?::I ver DEPARTMENT OF INPORMATYON TECHNOLOHY Purchase Order Mosorriseqssss

240 OLD COUNMRY ROAD RO. Datomar/a01%

&TH FLOOR

MINEOLA Y 11501 FOBpgn
Vendor'ﬂ?sasuasao Dellvery Dafgiuny; 15

TYLER TROHNOLOGIES, INC

12 Goos® LN : Buyeriospa a, wrers

TEL: 516 571 4200

POLLAND CT 06084~0000
ATT; BAUL FLYMN ’
TEL4 B0D 273 8605

FAYXY BHO 872 9526

Itam Description Quantity Unit  Unit Price Amount

The Contractor shall comply with all federal,state & local statutoxy
congtitutional antl-diacrimination provigions., In addikion, Local Law
No,14~2002,entitled “Partloipation by, Hinorlty droup Membexs & Women
in Nassai County Conbracte", govorns all County Contracts as defined
by sugh title & scllaltations for blds or proposals for County
Copbracts. In acooxdance with Local Law No,14-2002: )
(2} The Contractor shall nob discriminate againab emplovess
or applloants for employments basaums of race, orasd, eolor, nablonal
ordgin, pax, age; dipability or marital status in recruitment,ewploy-
mant, jok asgignments, promotions, uwpgradings, demeotions, tranaferg,
layoffs, teminatioms & rateg ¢f pay or other forms of compensation,
The Contractor will undortske or continue existing progrems related
to wooruitment, employwment, job asslpnments, promotions, uwwgradings,
transfers and rakes of pay or other forps of compensabion bo ensure
that minorlty group mexbers and woren ars afforded aegual swploymedt
opportunities without dlsorimination, H
{b) At the requeat of ths County contyadting sgenay, the
Contractor shall ragquest each employment agency, labor unifon or
authorized representative of worlexs with which it has a collective
bargaining or other agresmenk or understanding, bto -furnish a wrltben
atatement that audh enploywent agengy, unlon or repressntatlive will
not dipoximinats on the basle of rage, greed, oolor, nabicnmal origin,
dert, age, disabllity or marital ptatus el that auch ewplovment agenoy
lzbor union or reprasentative will affirmatively acoperats in the
implementation of the Conbtranter's cbligations herein.

{0)The sontracter shall state, in all solicitations or advarxtise-
ments for employeas,that, ln the performance of the County Contract,
all qualified applicants will be affurded equal smployment opportumi-
ties withoubk discrimination begause of. raca, oreed, coplor, naticnal

<< CONTINUED, NEXT PAGE >»




PURCHASE ORDER / SERVICE CONTRACT

County of Nassau-

STATE OF NEW YORK

' OFFICE OF PURCHASING

Deliver EPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOYY Purchase Order No.rorrisoa014a
240 OLD COUNTRY ROAD R.Q. Dajeruny/ao1s
§TH FLOOR .
MINEOLE, Y 11501 FOBbgew
Vendo O 52303920 Delivery Dajgiuny; 15
TYLER TECHNOLOGTES, ING ' . [
12 GOGSE &N Buyertixoa a. mizis ;
TEL: 516 571 4300 ;

TOELAND © CT 06084-0000
ATTy PAUL FLYLN '
TEL §00 273 8608

FAX: 860 BY2 9526

‘Item Description Guantity - Unit  Unii Price Amount |

origin, pex, age, dlaabllity or maxital status.

{d) The Contractor ghall waks Best Bfforts to eellolt astive
participation by certified minority or women-owned businsas enter-
prigens ("Certifisd M/WBE'E") zd defined in Ssation 101 of Lowcal Iaw

No.14=2002 including ths granting of Subdontractd,

{e) Tha cemtractor phall, in lts advertisementa and solleita-
tions for Suboontractors, indleate ite iptevest inm rscsiving bilds
from Cextifisd M/WEE'M and ths reguiremsnt that Subcontractors musk
be egusl cpportuniby emplovend.

{#} Contractors must notlfy and receive approval fxrom the
raspective Department Head prior to lsaulng any Subcontracts and, at
the time of xeguesting such suthorizatdion, wuat sulmit & ﬂ:lgnld Bash
Rfforts Chaokilat, ;

(g) Contractors for projects vndex the su:perv:.aion of the County's |
Department of Publia Works shall alsa submit a wtilizavion plan
1isting ell preposed Buboontradtors Bo that, to the greatsst extent
feasible, all Subcontractora will ba approved prior to commengemsnt of
work, Any additicns or changes te the list of subsontractors under the
uvhilization plan ehall he approved by the Commlzsloner of the Depart-
ment of Publics Works when wade., A gopy of tha utilization plan and
additions or ohanges thereto shall be submitted by the Qontractor to
tha 0ffioe of Minority rEfaira nimltaneously with the submissiom to
thu Department of Fublic Works,

(h) At any bime after Suboontzactor approval has béen requested
and pricr to being granted, tha contrazoting agensy may Eequire tha
Contractor Lo submit Documentatlon Demcmstrating Bast Efforts be
chtain Cartlfied Mimerity or Women-owned Budiness fnterprises. In
addition,tha contracting ageney may xequire the contracter te submli

s rmr,

puch documentabion at any time efter Subcontiachox approval when the
<4 CONTINUED, NEXT PAGE »>
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PURCHASE ORDER/SERVICE CONTRACT -

County of Nassau

STATE OF NEW YORK

OFFICE OF PURCHASING

Dalivel
To: ' DEPARIMENT OF TNFORMATYON TECHNOLOGY Purchase Order Nopo1TLE000143
240 OLD CQOQUNTRY ROAD B.O, Datamny/ 2014
8TH FLOOR
KINEOLA NY 11501 FOBopsT
Vandor:
W¥152203920 Delivery Datgjmuny; 15
TYLER TECHNOLOAIES, INC
12 @oos®E Ly Buyertansa A. MILLg
TELt 546 571 4200

TOLLAND CT 06084-0000
ATT: PAUL FLYMN '
TEL) 800 273 8605

FAX: B60 872 98526

Item Pescription Guantity Unit  Unit Price Amount

contracting agancy has pessonabis cause to believe that the existing
Baat Efforts Checklist may be inadourabe. Within ten working days
{10} of any such request hy the sontraoting agency, the Contractor
mugt submlt Dooumentation. -

(i) In the oaBe whers a redquast iz made by the contracting
agency or a Deputy County Exeoutive acting on behalf of tha ganbtyagb-~
ing agenay, tha Contragtor must, within two (2) working deya of sunh'
request, sukbmit -evidence to demomestrata that it employed Best Effoxta )
o obtaln Certified M/WBE paxtiolpation threugh propsr documentatdon. , ,

1) Award of a County Conkract alona ghall not o desmad ar , '
intorproted as approval of sll Contracter's Subgontraoctsa e.md_ .

Cantragtors fulfillment of Basul Bfforts to obtaln partlcipation by
Cartified M/WBE'n,

(k) A ¢ombractor shall maintain Documentatlon Ramanstrating
past Efforts to Obtain Certifled Minority or Women-gwned Business '
Enterprises for & peried of alx (§) yeard. Failure ta maintain wuch
records shall be Asemsd fallure to maks Pest Bfforts to aomply with
this Appendix EE, evidance of false certification as M/WEE compliant
1s counsiderad bresmah of the County Contraat.

{1} The Conbtiactor shall he bound by the provisions of Hogtion
109 of Local Law No,1d-1002 providing for the euforcemsnt of

wvioclations as follows:

{a} Upon receolpt by the Executive Director of a complaint
from a donkxacting agency that a Couwnty Conbkractor han
failed to camply with the provisiona of Lopal Law
Na.l4-3002, Thia pppendlx BE or any obthar gontxactual
provisions lnaluded in furtherance of Iwoal Law
No.14-2002, tha Exegubive Ndrector will try to resclve
the matter,
<< CONTINUED, NBEXT PAGE »»




PURCHASE ORDER/ SERVICE CONTRACT -

~County of Nassau

STATE OF NEWYORIK

" OFFICE OF PURCHASING

,Ili_ls:llver ARTUENT OF IHFORMATION TECHNOLOGY Purchase Order No.pozris000143

240 OLD COUNFRY HOAD s , P.C, Dateymat/a015

6T FLOOR

KINEOLA KY 11503 FOBtEsT
Vendor'#vsnaosszo Delivery Datgyuny; 1s

TYLER TECHNOTOGLES, ING

12 GOOSE IN Buyertowea a. wxrno

TEI: 516 571 4200

TOLLAND CcT 06084-0000
AITH PAUL FLYMN '
TEL: BOO 273 8605

FAX: BE60 BT2 9534

ltem " Description Quantity Unit  Unit Price

ADPIGS a9 PO 29

{h)} If efforts to resolve such matter tg the satimfactlon
of all parties are unsucceasful, the Executive Dirsotow

ghall vefer the matter, within thixty daya (S0) of receipt

of the vomplaint, to the American Arbitration Amsoniablon

for prooseding therecmn, '

{c) Upon conaluaion of the arbitratlen proceedings, the axbile
trator shall submit to the Executive Plyeotor his recommenda-
tidns regerding the impositiens of sanations, £ines or
penaltier. Tha Ewewmitive Diractor shall either (1) adoph
tha vecemmendation of the arbitwvator (ii) debermine ‘that
no sanctionn, f£ines or penaltles should be imposed or (1i4)
modify the recsomendation of the arbitrator, provided that
such modification ahali not expand upen any sanction
rooammended, inpose any new sanctlon, or inorease the amount
of any recommyended fine or penalty. The Executiva piractes,
within ten daya (10) of veoeipt of the arbltrators awaxd and
rogommendtlons, shall file a determination of such mattexr - -
and ghall caugse & oopy of such detexminatlen bo be merved
upon the respendent by personal service ox by ¢eredfied wmall
return recalpt reguested.
The award of the arbltrator, an¥l the fines and penaltles
imposed by the Ewecutive Directar, shall.bs #inal determina-
tiome dnd may only be vacated axr modified as provided in the
aivil practice law rulea (“CRLR"}.

{m} The contractonw shall provide contrasting agenoy with informa~
tion regarding all suboonkracts awarded under any County Contrach,
ineloding the amount of compensation paid te each Suboontractor and
shall gonpleto all foxms provided by the Exepcutive Director or Depart~
ment Head relating to evhoontractor utilization amd afforts bto cbbtain

<< CONPINUED, WEXT PAGE »>

Amount
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Dellver
To:

Vendor:

PURGHASE ORDER/SERVICE CONTRACT

County of Nassau

STATEOF NEW YORK

" OFFIGE OF PURCHASING

DERARTMENT OF INFORMATICN TECHNCLOGY Purchase Order No.porrisoooids

240 OLD COUNTRY ROAD P.Q. Dateyuaxs2015

68TH FLOCH

MINEOLS, NY 1130l FOBpmgy

#752303920 Deltvery Datty/may; 13

TYLER TECHMOLOGIES, INC

12 googm M Buyeriysnoa A, vILLs
TELy 516 571 4200

TOLIAND' 6T 54084-0000

AT PAUL FLYNN
TEL:1 800 373 BEOS
FAX: 360 072 9526

ltem Description Quantity Untt  Unit Price

K/WBE participatlon,

Fallure to camply with provielions (a) through (m) abovae,
aa ultimately determined by the Exsoutive Direobor,shall he a material
breach of the sontract conatituting grounds for lamedlats termination.
Onoe a final determination of £allure to comply has been reached hy
the Execublve Direstor, the detexmination of whether to temmlnate a
oontraot shall rest with #ha Depitty County Zwaouiive with oversight
regponeibllity for the contraoting agenoy.

Provisions (a), (b) and (@) shall not be blnding upon contractors

or Subgontwactors In the performange of work or the provislon of
marvices or any other activity that ars unrelated, separate, or
ddgtingt from the Qounty Conbtract as expressad by Lta terns.

The requiremants of the provisions (a), (b) and {6} ehall not
apply to any employment or application for smpleywent oubslde of this
County or salleltations or advertigements therefor or any exiating
programs of affirmative actlon regarding employment outside of this
county and the effact of contragt provisions required by thess
provisiona {(a), (b} aud {¢} ghall be so limited,

The Qontractor shall inolude provigions (a), (b) and (¢) in every

Subdoutragt in euch a manner that these pwoviedons shall be bhinding
upon each Subcontraghor as to work in gomneotlon with the County
Contrdot,

Ag uaed in this Appendlix EE the followlng texm meaninga shall applys
vBeak Efforks Cheooklist' ahall mean a list almued by the

" Contractor, Lisbting the prodeduras it has undertaken ba

prooire fSuboconbtractore in agnczdanoe with this Appendix EE.
founty Combract! aball mean (L)a wribtten agresment or purchase
order fnatrument, providing for a total exponditura in’excess of
twenty-five thousand dollaxa (425,000}, whereby a County

<< CQONTTNUED, NEXT PAGE »>»
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PURCHASE ORDER | SERVICE CONTRACT

Cou_nty of Nassau "'

STATE OF NEW YORK.

 OFFICE OF PURCHASING

Deliver
To: DESARTMIN! OF INFORMNITON TECHNOLOGY : Purchase Order No.porriseo0142
240 QLD COUNTRY ROAD : P.O. Datey/mavs2018
§TH FLOOR
NINEOLA wY 11504 FOBppsr
Vendor: $752303920 - Delivery Datg yny, 15
TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC .
12 GOOSE IN Buyerizmoa A, MIrig
TEL: 516 571 4200

TOLLAND ¢ DEGEL-0000
ATT: PAUL FLYNN !
TEL: BOO 273 8605

FAX: BE6Q 972 9326

item : Description Quantity Unit  Unit Price Amount

centracting agency i sonmitted to expend or does sxpend funds
in retyrn for labor, serviaes, puppllaes, equipment, materlala
or any gombinatlion of the forsgolng, to be performed for, or
vendersd or Eurnlshed to the County; or (11) a writfen afrrue-
ment in excess of onmo hundred thowsand dollars (§100,000),
whareby a County contracting agency s commitbed to expend or
does pxpend funds for the acguisition, comstruction, ‘damald, -
tion, xeplacement, major repair or removation of real propexty.
and improvements tharaon, Howsver, the term "County Contrace!
does not inolude agresments oxr ordsvs for the followlng servicess
banking sexvlces, insurance pclioies or contracts, or conbracte
with 8 County centracting agency for the sale of Yoods, notes
or any other secuxibtles,
"Ceounty Comtractor® weens an individual, business enterprige,
ingluding sole proprietorship, partnership, corparation, not-
far=profit porparation, or any cbher pexaon orx entlty other thamn
tha County, whether a contrastor, ligensar, licenesas ox ‘apy othex
party, that is (i} party tc a County Contradt, (1) w bidder in
oomnsgtion with the awsrd of 2 County Contraot, or (1ii} a pro-
poged party to a County Contraot, but shall not inolude any
subaontractor.
reounty Contrackort sheil mean a person or £lrm who will
manage and ba respounsible for an entlre contracted project.
"Documentation Dewomgtrating Best Bfforts to Obtaln Certlfled
Minority or Women-cvned Business Enterprises® shall ingluds, hut ia
not limited te the followingy
a. ¥rocf of having advertised for bide, where appropriate, in
minority publications, trade newspapers/notloes and magawinos,
trade and uplon publicatidna, avd publications of .genoral

<< CONTINUED, NEXY PAGE »>»
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PURCHASE ORDER  SERVICE CONTRACT

County of Nassau

STATE OF NEWYORK

OFFICE OF PURCHASING

-?:..I ver DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATTION TECHROLOGY Purchase Order No.porrisoqo14s

240 OLD COUNTRY ROAD P.0. Datgruax/aoLs

6TH FLOOR

KINEOLA, NY 11501 FOBhesT
Vendor'iwsaauaszo ' Delivery Dajgymays 15

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC

12 GOOSH IN Buyertoms, A, ¥rxng

: TEL: 516 BTL 4200

TOLLAND ce 05084-00Q0
ATT: PAUL FLYNN '
TEL: 800 373 BGOS

FAXs 860 873 9526

ltem Description Quantity Unit  Unit Prics Amount

girovlakion in Nasmau County and surrounding areas or having
varbally sollglted W/WBRa whom the County Contracter reascnably
believed mlght have the gualificabionn to do the work, A copy of
the advertisoment, 1f uszed, shall bha included te demonatrate that
it contained language indisating that the County Contractow
walaomed blds and quotes fram M/WER fubcontractors, In addi.t;icm,
proof of the dats{s) any such advertisements npsxaa.rud mast bhe
inoluded in the Best Effort Dooumentation, If verbal moligdta-
tion is used, a County Contyactor's affldavit with a notary's
pignature and stamp shall ha raquired as part of bhe
doounentatd on,

b, Proof of having provided reagonable time fer M/N‘BE Buly-
oontractors to respond to bid opportunltiles according to industry
norms and standaxds. A chart cutiining the sohedula/bima frams
uasd to obtain blds from M/WEEs is suggaested ko be included with
the Beat Effort Dooumentatlon,

3. Proof or affidavit of Eollow-up of telephona calle with
poteontial M/WEE suboontractovs enoouraging thalr partlaipation,
palaphone logs indloeting euch action can be Ineludsd with the
Beat BEfort Dooumentation.

d. [Droof or affidavit thabt W/WBE Subaonbractors wars allowed to
reviey the bid speclfigations, bhlue prints and all othar bid/mey
related items at no charge to the M/WBRa, other than raascnahle
documentation costs inourred by the Counky Contractor thab are
passed onto the M/WRE,

a. Proof or affidavit that sufficient tims priexr to malking
award was allowed for M/WBEs to participate effectively, ko tha
extent praoticable gilven tha tima frame of the County Conbraot,
f. Proof or affidavit that nagotiations wara held in Best Effoxts

<< CONTINUED, NEXD? PAGE >»
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PURGHASE GRIOER/SERVICE CONTRAGT

County of Nas_sali'

STATE OF NEW YORK

" "OFFICE OF PURCHASING

?::liver DEFARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY - Purchase Order No.poxeasooco14s

240 OLD COUNTRY ROAD : P.O, Daioyuay/a01s

§TH FLOOR .

MINEOLA MY 11501 FOBprgy
vendor.#vszaoasau Delivery Datgyyny, 15

TYLER TROMNCLOGIES, INC

12 GOOSE IN Buyeryrioa a. wriza

WEr) 516 571 4200

TOLLANE o7 06084-0000
ATT; PAUL FLVNN '
TEL: 800 273 8605

FRX: 260 B72 952§

item Deascription Quantity Unit  UnitPrice .  Amount

wlth Intaerested M/WBEs, and that M/WBEs were not rejectaed as

unquallfied or unaccepbables wlbhout pound businesa reasona hased

on {1} a thorough investigatlon of M/WEE qualiffcatlons and
vapebilitiss weviewsed againet lndustry oustom and atendavds and

(2) costs of parfoxmanca, The haals for relecting any M/WHE deemsd

ungualified by the County Conkractor shall be included in

the Baest Effort Documentation.

g, ITE an M/WEE 13 refegted based on cost, ths Sounty Conbractor

must submit a 1ist of all sub-bldders for each ltem of work

aolicited avd thelr bid prices for the work,

h., 'The gaonditions of pexformance expeoted of Subcontractoxs by

the County Contractor must also ba dnoluded with the Beat BEFaxt

Dagumentatlon,

1. County Contractors may inolude any cther types of documentation

they fsel necessary bo further demonetrate thelr Best Bfforts

regarding thelx bid dcoumenta.

"Evaoubive Direotor" shall mean the Egecoutive Director of the
Nagsau County Offlse of Minowity Affairs) provided, howsver, thak
Exaedutilve Director shall lhelude a deslgnee of the Executive
Direcbor axsapt in the casa of final debezminations issued pursuant
to Seobion (aj through (1} of these rules.

hguhoontraot™ phall mean an agreemsnt consipting of pare oz
parts of the dontracked work of the County Contractor.

"gubcontractor” shall maan s person o Flzm who performs pazt
ox parks of the contracted woxrk of a prima contractor providing
servigan, inclnding congtriotion garvioes, to thse Counby purswvant ko
a cowty contract, Suboortractor ahall includs a persom or firm that
provides laboxr, professional or other mervices, materinls or supplies
to a prims gontragtor that are necessaxry for the prims dontractor

<< CONTTNUED, MEXT PAGE >> '
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PURCHASE ORDER/ SERVICE CONTRAGT

County of Nassau

STATE OF NEW YORK

OFFICE OF PURCHASING

Fs

?;Iiver DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY Purchase Order Mo, rorrisegoiss

240 OLD CCUNTRY ROAD P.O. Dataymay/2013

§TH TLOOR

WINEOLA NY 11501 FOBoggy
S Delivery Dafgimy; 15

TY¥LER TECHNOLOGIES, INC

12 GUOSE Iy’ Buyertoma a. wanng

DEL: 516 §71 4200

TOLLAND o ggQad-goa0
ATy PAUL FLYNN '
TEL: 800 373 8605

FAXt 860 872 9538

ltem Description ' Quantity Unit  Unii Price Amount

to fulfill its cabldgatdens to provide services to the Couskty purauant
to a oounty contract. Subcontractor shall not includes o supplier of
materials to a contraotor wvho has contracted to provida goods buk no
ssrvices to the Comnty, nor & suppller of Inoildental matarials ko a
contractor, such as offloe suppliles, toola and other ltems of nominal
opat that are ublllzed in the perfurmance of & pervlea donbract,
rrovisions requiring contractors teo rataln or submit dooumantation
of best efforts to ubilize cortifled suboontractors and requirzing
Department head approval prio.;: to svhoonbrasting shall not apply to
intexr-govarnmental agreements, Tn additien, the tracking of sipend-
Ltares of County dollars by notwfor-profit corporatlions, othey
mund.a.:l.pe.lit.iaa, &tabtes, or the fadewal government is not required,
Contraotor ahall xetaln complete and esooursate regords and documenta
rolated to this Agreement for aix {6) years flellowing the later of
termination or final payment, Such recozda ahall at all timaes be
avallable for audit and ingpection by the Gounby.
FROTETREEIEI IR PRI AT IR TR E R I T IR EE8T3E1ET71E7 1!
Govarning Law - Consent to Jurisdictlon and Venua) doverning Law.
Unless otharwige speclfied in thils Agraement or requlred by Law,
excoluslve ordginal juris@ictlon for all .clalms or metions with respact
to this Agreement shall be in ths Suprems Court in Wassau Counby in
Neow Yoxk Stats and the parblas ewpreasly walve any objecbicna te tha
gamg on any grournis, including venue and forum nom oonvendens, This
Agracment is Intended ap a contract under, and shall ba govermed and
gonatxued in accoxdance with, tha Laws of New York Stete, withoue
ragayd to tha gonflict of laws provigicons theveof.
FEEEPILEETELENELERERER ISP EPEL BT 30 E 0 EE L P T EL T HEd R EL 3 ET
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AUTHORITE ! NEM YORK STATE COMPTROLLER'S OPINION B3-67, AND A‘I.“I‘ACHEED
<< CONTINUED, NEXT DMIE »>




Deliver
To:

FURGHASE ORDER/SERVICE CONTRACT

County of Nassau ‘

STATE OFNEW YORK

 OFFICE OF PURGHASING

DEPARTHENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
240 OLD COUNTHY ROAD
ETH FLOOR

MINEOTA | NY 11501

Yendor;

Htem

ADPICS GE P10 2758

#752303930
TYLER TECHNOLOGIEY,
13 @oosE Ly

INC

TOLLAND

ATT: PAUL FLYMNN
TEL: 800 273 8605
FaX: HE0 872 9528

CT 06084~¢000

Description

QUOTE DATED 01/09/15 #060-2627 PROJECT #125180,
RR § 70-2015 (A-14-2015)
L A TR AR AR E R TR R B A TR F L e e T T L TR T L L E T T SO T OF 2 T T T3

Purchase Order No.vorrisoo0143
P.O. Dataruay/a01s

FOBbpay

Delivery Datgyymy, 18

Buyettonos a, urmes
TEL: E16 571 4200

Quantity Unit

Unit Price

Amount

PR-195.11/98 REV, 7712




CONDITIONS GOVERNING THIS ORDER

. THE'GOUNTY OF NASSAU IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR MATERIALS, SUPPLIES OR EQUIPMENT
DELIVERED OR SERVICES RENDERED WITHOUT AUTHOR!TY OF ITS WRITTEN ORDER.

2, ~ Do not overship or substitute. Ship exactly as ordered. Include ftemized packing slips with all shipments or
deliveries which designate the name of DEPARTMENT for which Is intended. Use separate dlaim form for each order.
Claim must be ltemlzed In datail pursuant to Secticn 24 of the County law so that anyona reading same may readily
understand the kind, quantity, quality and prices, CASH DISCOUNT TERMS must be indicated on clalm form where
applicable. . P R

3. ' Allfm-aterlai shipped by freight, express or parcel MUST HAVE ALL CHARGES FULLY PREPAID TO PQINT _OF
_QELJMERY, unless otherwise arrangsd for and axpreasty stated In this order. Curb-Door deliverles are not accsptable,

4, " Invoices m_u's_t be rendercad with clalm form, on date of complete shipment of all materials on this order, Separate
bitiing for partial shipments not allowed unless otherwise arranged for and expressly stated on this order,

6 - Al maier!a!a’, supplles and equipment received as wel! as services rendered are subject to Inspection and accep-
tance by County of Nassau. All materlals, suppiles and equipmant tecslved must be new unless otherwlse spacifled on the
order, ’ '

6. ~ If un'able'tb fli this order exactly In accordance with description, unt, price thereon, communicats at once with
Qffice of Purchasing. The County reserves the right to reject and retum at the shipper's expense any and afl materiats or

‘supplles delivered-which do to conform to description or specification on the order,

7. I there Is ar{y part of this order you can not fill promptly or perform within the time specified, hotify the Office of
Purchasing at once. In case of unreasonable delay in delivery, or delivery of goods Inferlor to those specified or In case of
any other default of the vendor, the Dirsctor, Office of Purchasing shall have the right at his option o cancel this order In

- wholé or in'part, and te County may precure the goods or services from other sources and hold the vendor responsible for

any EXCESS COST, EXPENSE AND DAMAGES oceasionsd thersby.

8. The vendor by executing this arder agrees to assume the defense of and hold County of Nassau, Its agents and
employess, hammless from all sults, costs, expenses, claims and damages arlsing from use of the described materlals
or ag a result of the serviees rendered, Including, without limfation, any claims and damages arlsing because of actual or

~ allaged infringements of any copyrights, patents, or patent rights of any invention of any other ¢euss.

5. Tha'v'srp_dor'represents and warrants that the prices charged heralin are not higher than those charged to any other
purchaser for ke quantftios. -

10. . .?Fh-e-_wo‘rki:nanship. 'éguantit‘tes or @ha!lties of goods or services which are to be pald hereunder shall be to the

- satisfaction of the Offfce of Purchasing and before final acceptance, all matlers of dispute must be adjusted to the mutua!

safisfaction of the Office of Purchesing and the vendor. Determination and decislons, in case any question shall arise shall
constitute a condiilon precedent to the right of the vandor to recelve any money thareof, until the matter in question is
getlled. R S ' : '

" jfhis ro.r'der',may' not be asslgﬁed; transferred or in any way disposed by the vendor without first having obtained
written approval thereof from the County of Nassau,

12. " ‘The-vendor warrants that he s riot in arrears to the County of Nassau upon any debt or contract, and that he has
not baen in’ default and‘is not in default as surety, contractor or otherwise.

1'% Upon tﬁjé v@ﬁi:ia'r,'é‘ac':cebfance hereof, the vendar agreed to cofnp!y with Article X, Sectlon 2 C of the CGonstitutien

- of the State of New York; Section 220, 220a, 220b,220d,220e and 230 of the Labor Law, Section 5 and 12 of the Lian Law,

- .. Article 24of the Uniform Gommerdlal Cade, Section 108 and 109 as well as Arflcle 18 of the General Municipal Law,
- Baction 2218 of the County Government Law of Naszau County, Section 22-4.2 of the Nassau County Administrative Cods,
" the pravigions of the Anti-Disorimination: Qrder 'of Nassau Gounty, and the vendor shall keep himself fully informead of ail
" additional municipal brdiriance’s and regulations, Stale. and National. Laws in any manner affecting this order and the

1 gopds or serviees delivered or rendéretd or (0 bie delivered or-rendered thereunder, and shall at all fimes obsefved and

L pomply: \di}th-’.'_si;a'id;ardlnancﬁasf;".is’a,_w‘gilgpq.,r_e‘gu!aﬁqn? at-his-sole cost and expénses, e e L

14.."" " The 'pt‘e'—printiecl.lathlagé‘Qf 'thiéipu%c‘;haée ordér/service contracifolanket Drdérldta!ivery order has been approved as

o, form by the Office & the County Attorney., - &




